
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA*
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2022, AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order and Roll Call.

B. Citizen Comment Period.

C. Approval of Minutes: Regular Common Council Meeting of October 4, 2022.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational Business.

F. Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute a Subdivision Development

Agreement with the Subdivider of Cape Crossing Subdivision, 12200 W. Ryan Road,
Tax Key Nos. 890-9991-001 and 890-9991-002.

2. An Ordinance to Amend the Unified Development Ordinance (Zoning Map) to
Rezone a Certain Parcel of Land from R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence
District and C-1 Conservancy District to R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family
Residence District (Specifically Located at 8979 South 42nd Street) (Approximately
1.507 Acres) (Christian S. Sartler and Karen R. Sartler, Applicants).

3. Authorize a Consulting Services Agreement with Wrayburn Consulting, LLC, for
General Planning Services.

4. Parks Commission Request for Review of Parks Marketing Materials.
5. A Resolution for Acceptance of a Storm Water Facilities Maintenance Agreement and

a Storm Water Management Access Easement for 5500 W. Oakwood Park Drive, Tax
Key No. 931-0005-000.

6. A Resolution for Acceptance of a Storm Water Facilities Maintenance Agreement
and a Storm Water Management Access Easement for 2855 W. Forest Hill Avenue,
Tax Key No. 832-989-8002.

7. Franklin Public Library 2020-2024 Strategic Plan
8. A Resolution to Award Change Order No. 3 for 2023 Asphalt Work to Buteyn-

Peterson Construction Co., Inc. for the Franklin Corporate Park South Hickory
Street Improvements.

9. An Ordinance to Amend §207-21 of the Municipal Code regarding Special
Assessments of Water Main Laterals.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
October 18, 2022
Page 2

10. A Resolution to Issue Change Order No. 1 for the 2022 Local Street Preventative
Maintenance Program to Scott Construction, Inc. in the Amount of $6,569.82.

11. Recommendation for 2023 Employee Benefit-Related Coverages, Carriers, and
Premium Shares, Including: Health Insurance, Wellness, Health and Wellness
Supplementary Programs, and Dental Insurance, and Related Contracts.

12. Finance Committee Recommended Changes to the 2023 Mayor's Recommended
Budget.

13. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance No. 2021-2486, an Ordinance Adopting the 2022
Annual Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund to Transfer $260,000 of
Engineering Capital Funds to the Street Improvement Fund.

14. Confirmation of the Appointment of Gary Meerschaert as Director of Inspection
Services. The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats.
§ 19.85(1)(c) and (t), to consider employment, promotion, compensation, or
performance evaluation data of a public employee over which the Common Council
has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility and to consider financial, social, or
personal histories of specific persons which, if discussed in public, would be likely to
have substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred to in such
histories and may re-enter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

15. Confirmation of the Appointment of Karen Kastenson as Director of Clerk Services.
The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats. § 19.85(1)(c)
and (t), to consider employment, promotion, compensation, or performance
evaluation data of a public employee over which the Common Council has
jurisdiction or exercises responsibility and to consider financial, social, or personal
histories of specific persons which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have
substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred to in such
histories and may re-enter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

16. FF&E, LLC v City ofFranklin Board ofReview, Milwaukee County Circuit Court
Case No. 20-CV-6955, and Corresponding 2022 Assessment. The Common Council
may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal
counsel for the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be
adopted by the body with respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open session
at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate.

17. Sam's Real Estate Business Trust v City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County Circuit
Court Case No. 21-CV-5567, and Corresponding 2022 Assessment. The Common
Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer with
legal counsel for the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy
to be adopted by the body with respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it
deems appropriate.

18. Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust v City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County Circuit
Court Case No. 21-CV-5568, and Corresponding 2022 Assessment. The Common
Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(g), to confer with
legal counsel for the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy



Common Council Meeting Agenda
October 18, 2022
Page 3

to be adopted by the body with respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it
deems appropriate.

19. Common Council Consideration of Code of Conduct Complaints. The Common
Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(±), considering
financial, medical, social, or personal histories or disciplinary data of specific
persons, preliminary consideration of specific personnel problems or the
investigation of charges against specific persons except where par. (b) applies which,
if discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the
reputation of any person referred to in such histories or data, or involved in such
problems or investigations, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to
act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

H. Licenses and Permits.
License Committee Meeting of October 18, 2022:
1. Miscellaneous Licenses.
2. Fireworks Display Process for License Committee Consideration and

Discussion for Recommendation to the Common Council (Referred from
9/20/2022 and 10/04/2022 Common Council Meeting).

3. Review and Recommendation Regarding Current Alcohol Beverage Licenses
Enforcement Policy Guidelines and License Committee Administrative Rules
and Procedures (Referred from 10/04/2022 Common Council Meeting).

4. Statistics on Existing Alcohol Beverage Licenses in the City of Franklin and
Statistics on Quota of Available Licenses in Relation Thereto.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.

Supporting documentation and details of these agenda 1tems are available mn the Common Council Meeting Packet on the City of Franklin
webs1te www.franklnw1.gov

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropr1ate aids and
services For additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS:
October 30
November 1
November 3
November 8
November 15
November 17

Trick or Treat
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting
General Election
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting

4:00-7:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.
7:00 p.m.
7:00 a.m.-8:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.
7:00 p.m.



BLANK PAGE



CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

OCTOBER 4, 2022
MINUTES

C.

ROLL CALL A.

CITIZEN COMMENT B.

MINUTES C.
SEPTEMBER 20, 2022

CONCEPT REVIEW G.l.
Ml MIXED-USE AT
BALLPARK
COMMONS, MANDEL
GROUP, INC., AGENT

CONCEPT REVIEW G.2.
THE RETREAT AT
8301 W. OLD LOOMIS
RD.,MANDEL
GROUP, INC., AGENT

CONCEPT REVIEW G.3.
PUBLIC SQUARE AT
7154 S. 76TH ST.,
MANDEL GROUP,
INC.,AGENT

PURCHASE OF G.4.
VMWARE SERVER
HARDWARE

The regular meeting of the Franklin Common Council was held on
October 04, 2022, and was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Olson
in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were present:
Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann, Alderwoman
Kristen Wilhelm, Alderwoman Hanneman, Alderman Barber (arrived
at 6:38 p.m.), and Alderman John R. Nelson. Also in attendance were
Dir. of Administration Peggy Steeno, City Engineer Glen Morrow, City
Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski, and City Clerk Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:31 p.m. and was closed at
6:40p.m.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council meeting of September 20, 2022, with a correction to
Item B.2. adding "introduce and" before the word "adopt". Seconded
by Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.

No action was taken following a presentation of a Concept Review for
the Ml Mixed-use building at Ballpark Commons at SE Corner of
Rawson Avenue and Ballpark Drive (TKN: 754-9006-000) (Mandel
Group, Inc., Agent).

No action was taken following a presentation of a Concept Review for
The Retreat, a retail and multi-family residential development (8301
W. Old Loomis Road) (Mandel Group, Inc, Agent).

No action was taken following a presentation of a Concept Review for
The Public Square, redevelopment of the Orchard View Shopping
Center (7154 S. 76th Street) (Mandel Group, Agent).

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to authorize the purchase of two (2)
HP DL380 Gen 10 Servers for City Hall and two (2) HP DL380 Gen
Servers for the Police Department through CDW-G at a total cost of
$59,327.92, being charged to IS Computer Equipment Capital Outlay
Budget, Account Number 41-0144-5841. Seconded by Alderwoman
Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
October 4, 2022
Page 2

PURCHASE OF G.5.
ANNUAL PALO ALTO
MAINTENANCE

WI DHS GRANT FOR G.6.
PURCHASE OF UTV
FOR FIRE DEPT.

HAWTHORNE G.11.
NEIGHBORHOOD
PAVEMENT

MAYOR'S 2023 G.7.
RECOMMENDED
BUDGET

AGREEMENT WITH G.8.
FRANKLIN SCHOOLS
FOR REC. TRAIL
BETWEEN S. 80TH
AND 92ND STS.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the execution of Heartland
Business Systems (HBS) Quote 283107 v2 in the amount of
$20,061.84 for the annual Palo Alto maintenance, licensing, and
support subscription renewal for the period 10/5/2022 through
10/5/2023 funded by IS Equipment Maintenance Operating Budget,
Account 01-0144-5242. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to accept a DHS flex grant, and
authorization to move forward with purchase of a Utility Terrain
Vehicle, EMS cot skid-load, trailer, and other associated items at an
anticipated cost of approximately $24,500, with the entirety of funding
corning from the flex grant and other existing and available grant
programs. Seconded by Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted Aye.
Motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to direct staff to plan for a near-future
repaving project without any accompanying utility project for the
Hawthorne Neighborhood. Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to forward the Mayor's 2023 Recommended
Budget to the Finance Committee for its review and submission of its
recommended changes to the Common Council at their special meeting
of October 13, 2022 and to further provide other direction to staff, as
appropriate, relative to additional materials or information needed for
the October 13, 2022 Special Common Council meeting budget
discussions. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to table for 6 months, A Resolution for
Agreement Between the City of Franklin and Franklin Public Schools
to Jointly Develop a Public Recreational Trail, Trail Head Parking Lt
and Restroom Facilities on Franklin Public Schools Properties Between
South 80th Street and South 92nd Street (TKNs 896-9996-001 and
895-9999-000). Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

S. 116TH ST.
TRAILHEAD AT W.
RYAN RD.

G.9. Alderman Nelson moved to do nothing at this time for the South 116th
Street Trailhead at approximately 11950 West Ryan Road (TKN 890-
9991-001). Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

RES. 2022-7910 G.10.
AWARD CONTRACT
FOR W. MINNESOTA
AVE ANDS. 50TH ST.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7910, A
RESOLUTION TO AWARD CONTRACT FOR THE W.
MINNESOTA AVENUE ANDS. 50TH STREET WATER MAIN
EXTENSION AND ON S. 49TH STREET TO A POINT 50 FEET



Common Council Meeting
October 4, 2022
Page 3

WATER MAIN TO
WILLKOMM
EXCAVATING AND
GRADING, INC.

NORTH ONLY, TO WILLKOMM EXCAVATING AND GRADING,
INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $398,897.75 and that the Project will not
get expanded, and that the fifth Whereas clause in the Resolution
should include due to time constraints the City would prefer to
construct the Project in 2023, and direct staff to return with a budget
amendment to move $260,000 from the Design Highway Building
(Fund 46-0331-5216.9620). Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

RES. 2022-7911
WE ENERGIES TO
REMOVE STREET
LIGHTS ON S.
LOVERS LANE RD.

G.12. Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7911, A
RESOLUTION FOR WE ENERGIES TO REMOVE STANDARD
AND NON-STANDARD STREET LIGHTS ON S. LOVERS LANE
ROAD FROM W. RAWSON AVENUE TOW. COLLEGE AVENUE
TO ACCOMMODATE THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION STH 100 RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT
FOR $4,881.08. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

RES. 2022-7912 G.13.
DISTRIBUTION
EASEMENT
UNDERGROUND TO
WI ELECTRIC POWER
COMPANY

RES. 2022-7913 G.14.
ANTENNA SITE
AGREEMENT FOR
WATER TOWER AT
8901 W. DREXEL AVE.

RES. 2022-7914 G.15.
CHANGE ORDER 1 TO
PARKING LOT
MAINTENANCE, LLC
FOR CITY FACILITIES

ORD. 2022-2518 G.16.
AMEND ORD. 2021-
2486, ADOPTING 2022
ANNUAL BUDGET

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7912, A
RESOLUTION TO GRANT DISTRIBUTION EASEMENT
UNDERGROUND TO WISCONSIN ELECTRIC POWER
COMPANY ON THE CITY OF FRANKLIN OWNED PARCEL
DESCRIBED AS THE NORTH TWELVE (12) FEET OF THE WEST
ONE-HUNDRED (100) FEET OF LOT 2 OF CSM NO. 9369 (TKN
931-0006-001) 10100 S. 60TH STREET. Seconded by Alderman
Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7913,
RESOLUTION APPROVING THIRD AMENDMENT TO
ANTENNA SITE LOCATION AGREEMENT FOR A CELLULAR
PHONE ANTENNA ON THE WATER TOWER LOCATED AT 8901
W. DREXEL AVENUE. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7914, A
RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER NO. I TO
PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE, LLC FOR THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN FACILITY RENOVATIONS HARDSCAPE
RENOVATIONS PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $840. Seconded
by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-2518,
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 2021-2486, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2022 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND TO INCREASE THE
APPROPRIATION BY $377,651.26 FOR THE SOUTHWEST PARK
PURCHASE AND APPROPRIATE ADDITIONAL IMPACT FEES



Common Council Meeting
October 4, 2022
Page 4

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

ADJOURNMENT

I.

J.

OF $47,654.45, LWMMI FUNDS OF $24,368, AND TID #3
REMAINDER FUNDS OF $305,628.81. Seconded by Alderman
Nelson. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to approve the following licenses:

Hold 2022-23 Operator License to Hadi Johnson and Eric Zoromskis
for Legal Opinion;
Referred to the next meeting Fireworks Display Process, and License
Enforcement Policy Guidelines and License Committee Administrative
Rules and Procedures;
No action was needed regarding the Milkmen Concession Stands at
Franklin Field; and
Grant 2022-23 Operator License to Hanna Wallace, Colleen Lesser,
and James Morgan.

Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve City vouchers with an ending date
of October 1, 2022, in the amount of $1,019,980.12, and payroll dated
September 23, 2022, in the amount of $461,377.52 and payments of the
various payroll deductions in the amount of $454,763.12, plus City
matching payments; estimated payroll dated October 7, 2022, in the
amount of $426,000 and payments of the various payroll deductions in
the amount of $245,000 plus City matching payments; and approval to
release payment to WE Energies in the amount of $4,881.08, and
approval to release the funds for the Southwest Park purchase in the
amount of $1,507,651.26. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. On
roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adjourn the meeting of the Common
Council at 10:25 p.m. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

LICENSE COMM. H.
RECOMMENDATIONS



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

AResolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute a
Subdivision Development Agreement with the Subdivider of

Cape Crossing Subdivision,
12200 W. Ryan Road, TKNs 890-9991-001 and 890-9991-002

MTG.DATE
October 18, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.1.

BACKGROUND
Pursuant to the approval of Cape Crossing subdivision, the Subdivider, Cape Crossing, LLC, is
ready to proceed with the subdivision. The subdivision is on property located at 12200 W. Ryan
Road (TKNs 890-9991-001 and 890-9991-002), and it is necessary to enter into a development
agreement at an estimated cost of $4,379,768.00.

The final plat was conditionally approved by Common Council at the September 20, 2022 meeting.

The final plat includes the dedication ofland in the southeast comer of the subdivision, known as
Outlot 4 (26,309+/- square feet) to the City. The resolution includes the follow condition 

17. The subdivider must revise sheet 2, note 5, to indicate dedication ofOutlot 4 to the City
ofFranklin. The subdivider may obtain a credit or credit refund ofthe totalpark impactfee
obligationper UDOSection 15-5 01 IOF4 b

ANALYSIS
This agreement provides for the necessary public improvements required for the Cape Crossing
subdivision. Included in the agreement is the extension of public roads, storm sewer, sanitary
sewer, and water main throughout the site.

This dedication of Outlot 4 is noted in Exhibit "E" of the subdivision development agreement,
additional subdivision requirements number 16

Subdivider shallprepare finalplat ofPhase 1 to dedicate land on the southeast corner of
the entire subdivision known as Outlot 4 (26,309 +/- squarefeet) to City. Upon recording
ofdedication ofOutlot 4, an amount of$13,680 00 shall be credited to Subdivider from
applicable Park Impactfeesfor this subdivision. Such credited amount shall be processed
by way ofa refund to the Subdivider ofparks, playgrounds, and landfor athletic fields
impactfees paid by the Subdivider, by way ofCity checkpayable to the Subdivider sent by
way ofUS. Postal Service Mail, within 90 days ofthe receipt by the City ofsuch payment
by the Subdivider, until the aforesaid amount of$13,680 00 has been received by the City
and refunded in its entirety

Staff worked on an analysis concerning the value of Outlot 4. The assessors data for 2022 for the
larger parcel (not the farmhouse) was used and extrapolated for the 26,309 square feet of Outlot 4.

Land Class
Agriculture
Undeveloepd

Acres Value
74.79 $18,000.00

5.00 $13,000.00

Value/Acre Value/SF Value of Outlot 4
$240.67 $0.0055 $145.36

$2,600.00 $0.0597 $1,570.33



However, the Assessor's office confirmed that the value of agriculture land is set by the state and
not indicative of the true value of the land. Staff has asked the developer for a copy of the closing
statement, but internet sources have reported that the April 2022 sale price was $1.9 million. The
Plat documents that the entire parcel (including the farmhouse) consists of 84.0074 acres. Note
that the farmhouse is actually a liability to the developer as it will need to be razed. Extrapolating
$22,617/acre price for the 26,309 square feet computes a value of $13,660.06. The developer had
previously submitted a value of $13,680. Staff concludes that the $13,680 appears to be a
reasonable fair market value for the property.

OPTIONS
It is recommended that the Common Council approve the enclosed standard form of the
development agreement with specific items contained in Exhibit "E" attached.

The agreement remains in negotiations subject to the provisions, including but not limited to the
insurance coverage. Insurance certificates were requested and will be reviewed for conformance
with current City requirements.

FISCAL NOTE
Municipal services and contingencies are accepted with percentages and are included in bond.

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2022- a resolution authorizing certain officials to execute
a subdivision development agreement with the subdivider of Cape Crossing subdivision, 12200
W. Ryan Road, TKNs 890-9991-001 and 890-9991-002, subject to potential changes to the
agreement, with the final form and content to be approved by the City Engineer and the City
Attorney.

Engineering: TAB



CITY OF FRANKLIN

WISCONSIN

SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

FOR

CAPE CROSSING SUBDIVISION (Phase 1)

October 2022

1



SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

CAPE CROSSING SUBDIVISION (Phase 1)

ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT (THIS "Agreement") made and entered mto thus day of _
2022, by and between, Cape Crossmg LLC, heremafter called the "Subd1v1der"

as party of the first part, and the City of Frankhn, a mumc1pal corporation of Milwaukee County,
Wisconsmn, party of the second part, hereinafter called the "City"

WITNESSETH.

WHEREAS, the Subdrvder desires to mmprove and develop certam lands located mn the City as
descnbed on attached Exhibit "A" (the "Subdvis1on"), and for that purpose cause the installation of
certain pubhc improvements, hereinafter described m this Agreement and the exhibits hereto (the
"Improvements"); and

WHEREAS, §§ 236.13(2)(am), 236 13(2)(b), 236.13(2)(c), 236.13(2)(d) and 236.13(2m) of the
Wisconsin Statutes and Divis1on 15-9 0300 Land Drvsion Procedures and Administration of the Unufied
Development Ordmance of the City of Franklin Mumc1pal Code, provide that as a cond1t10n of approvmg
the Subdivision, the governing body of a municipality may reqmre that the Subdivider make and install,
or have made and have mstalled, any pubhc improvements reasonably necessary, that designated facilities
be provided as a condition of approving the planned Subdivis10n development, that necessary alterations
to existing public utlites be made, and that the Subdrvder provide a Financial Guarantee approved by
the City Attorney guaranteemg that the Subdivider will make and mstall, or have made and mstalled,
those improvements within a reasonable time; and

WHEREAS, the pubhc works schedule and budget of the City does not now include the
Improvements for the Subdivision and normally there would be a considerable delay in the mstallation of
the Improvements unless this Agreement is entered mto by the parties; and

WHEREAS, the City believes that the orderly planned development of the Subd1v1s10n will best
promote the health, safety and general welfare of the community, and hence is willing to approve the
Subdivision provided the Subdivider proceed with the installation of the Improvements m and as may be
required for the Subdivision, on the terms and conditions set forth m this Agreement and the exhibits
attached hereto

NOW, THEREFORE, m consideration of the payment of One Dollar ($1 00) and other good and
valuable considerat10n to each in hand paid by the other, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged and mn
consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties agree

The legal description of the Subdrvus1on 1s set forth on attached Exhub1t "A"

2 The improvements aforementioned shall be as described m Exh1b1t "B" except as noted
m Exhibit "1??

3 The Subdivider shall prepare plans and specifications for the aforesaid Improvements,
under d1rectlon of the City Engmeer, and to be approved by the City Engmeer After
recervmng the City's approval thereof, the Subdrvder shall take buds, and award contracts
(the "Improvements Contracts") for and mstall all of the improvements m accordance
with standard engmeenng and pubhc works practices, and the applicable statutes of the State of

2



Wisconsm The Improvements shall be based on the construction specifications stated m
attached Exhibitr"

4 The full cost of the Improvements will include all labor, equipment, mater1al,
engmeermg, surveymg, mspectlon and overhead costs necessary or mc1dental to
completmg the Improvements (collectively the "Improvements Costs") Payment for the
Improvements Costs will be made by the Subdivider penod1cally as the Improvements
are completed as provided m the Improvements Contracts The total estimated cost of the
Improvements is (IN WORDS) FOUR MILLION, THREE HUNDRED SEVENTY
NINE THOUSAND, SEVEN HUNDRED SIXTY-EIGHT and 00/100 Dollars as
1tem1zed in attached Exhibit "D"

5 To assure compliance with all of Subd1vider's obligations under this Agreement, prior to
the issuance of any building permits, the Subdivider shall file with the City a Financial
Guarantee (the "Fmancial Guarantee", which may be either mn the form of a Letter of
Credit or a Performance Bond and such form shall be the choice of the Subdivider) in the
imtial amount of $4,379,768.00representmg the estimated costs for the Public
Improvements as shown in attached Exhibit "D" Upon the written approval of the City
Engmeer, the amount of the Financial Guarantee may be reduced perodcally as the
Improvements are paid for and approved by the City so that following each such
reduction, the Financial Guarantee equals the total amount remaining for Improvements
Costs pertaming to Improvements for which Subdivider has not paid as set forth in the
Improvements Contracts for the Improvements or which remam unapproved by the City
The Financial Guarantee shall be issued by a bank or other financial mstitut1on (the
"Surety Guarantee Issuer") reasonably satisfactory to the City, for the City as
"Beneficiary", in a form satisfactory to the City Attorney. Failure to file the Financial
Guarantee within ten (10) days after written demand by the City to the Subdivider shall
make and render this Agreement null and v01d, at the election of the City Upon
acceptance by the City (as described below) of and payment by Subdivider for all the
completed Improvements, the Financial Guarantee shall be released and surrendered by
the City to the Subdivider, and thereafter the Subdrvider shall have no further obligation
to provide the Financial Guarantee to the City under this Paragraph 5., except as set forth
under Paragraph 13. below.

6 In the event the Subdrvder fails to pay the required amount for the Improvements or
services enumerated herein wthin thirty (30) days or per contract after being bulled for
each improvement of each stage for any Improvements Costs at the time and in the
manner provided m this Agreement, and if amounts remam unpaid after an additional
thirty (30) days written notice to Subdivider, the Caty may notify the Guarantee Issuer mn
wntmg to make the said payments under the terms of the Financial Guarantee to the
Contractor, within the later of the time frame stipulated m the Fmancial Guarantee or five
(5) days after recervmng a written demand from the City to make such payment Demand
shall be sent by registered letter with a return receipt requested, addressed to the Surety
Guarantee Issuer at the address mdicated on the Financial Guarantee, with a copy to the
Subdvder, described m Paragraph five (5) above It us understood between the parties to
this Agreement, that bdhngs for the Improvements Costs shall take place as the various
segments and sections of the Improvements are completed and certified by the City
Engmeer as complymg with the approved plans and applicable provisions of the Franklm
Municipal Code and Umfied Development Ordinance

3



In add1t10n, the City Engmeer may demand that the Fmancial Guarantee be extended
from time to time to provide that the Fmanc1al Guarantee be m force until such time that
all improvements have been installed and accepted through the one (I) year guarantee
period as set forth under Paragraph 13. below, mcludmg the fourteen (14) months
followmg substantial completion of the Improvements and 10% hm1tatlons also set forth
thereunder For the purposes of this Agreement, "Substantial Completion" 1s defined as
bemg the date that the binder course of asphalt is placed on the public roadway of the
Subdrvrsion. Demand for sad extension shall be sent by registered letter with a return
receipt, with a copy to the Subdivider. If sad Financial Guarantee 1s not extended for a
mmimum of a one (1) year penod pnor to expiration date of the Financial Guarantee
(subJect to any then applicable of the aforementioned limitations), the City may send
wntten notice to the Surety Guarantee Issuer to make payment of the remainmg balance
of the Fmancial Guarantee to the City to be placed as an escrow deposit

7 The followmg special provisions shall apply.

(a) Those special provisions as itemized on attached Exhibit "C" and attached
Exhibit "E" are hereby mcorporated by reference m this Agreement and made a
part hereofas if fully set forth herein.

(b) The laterals mentioned m Exhibit "B" are to be installed before street surfacmg ment10ned m
Exhibit "B" Is commenced.

(c) To the extent necessary to accommodate pubhc utilities easements on the
Subdivision development, easements will be dedicated for the use of the Electric
Company, the Telephone Company and Cable Company to provide utility
services to the Subdrvis1on All utihties shall be underground except for any
existmg utility poles/Imes

(d) The curb face to curb face width of the roads m the Subdivision shall be as
determmed by the City Engmeer.

(e) Fee title to all of the Improvements and bmndmng easements upon lands on which
they are located, shall be dedicated and grven by the Subdivider to the City, in
form and content as required by the City, without recourse, and free and clear of
all hens or encumbrances, with final mspection and approval of the
Improvements and accompanying title and easement documents by the City
constitutmg acceptance of such ded1cat10n The Improvements shall thereafter be
under the Jurisdiction of, the City and the City shall maintam, at the City's
expense, all of the Improvements after completion and acceptance thereof by the
City Necessary permits shall be obtained for all work described m th1s
Agreement

8 The Subdivider agrees that 1t shall be fully responsible for all the Improvements m the
Subdivision and appurtenances thereto durmg the period the Improvements are being
constructed and contmuing until the Improvements are accepted by the City (the
"Construction Penod") Damages that may occur to the Improvements durmg the
Construction Perod shall be replaced or repaired by the Subdivider The Subdivider's
obligations under this Paragraph 8 , as to any improvement, termmates upon acceptance
of that improvement by the City

4



9. The Subdivider shall take all reasonable precaut10ns to protect persons and property of
others on or adjacent to the Subdrvus1on from injury or damage durmg the Construct1on
Period This duty to protect shall include the duty to provide, place and mamtam at and
about the Subdrvson, lights and barricades during the Construction Period.

10 If the persons or property of others sustam loss, damage or injury resultmg d1rectly or
ind1rectly from the work of the Subdivider or its subcontractors or matenalmen in their
performance of this Agreement or from its failure to comply with any of the provisions of
this Agreement or of law, the Subdivider shall mdemnify and hold the City harmless
from any and all claims and Judgments for damages, and from costs and expenses to
which the City may be subJected or which it may suffer or mcur by reason thereof,
provded; however, that the City shall provide to the Subdrvder promptly, in writing,
notice of the alleged loss, damage or mjury

11. Except as otherwise provided m Paragraph 12 below, the Subdivider shall mdemnify and
save harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees, and shall defend the same,
from and agamst any and all liab1hty, claims, loss, damages, interest, actions, smts,
Judgments, costs, expenses, and attorneys' fees, to whomsoever owed and by
whomsoever and whenever brought or obtamed, which mn any manner results from or
arises in connection with.

(a) the negligent or willfully wrongful performance of this Agreement by the
Subdivider or any subcontractor retamed by the Subdrvuder,

(b) the negligent or willfully wrongful construction of the Improvements by the
Subdivider or by any of said subcontractors,

(c) the negligent or willfully wrongful operation of the Improvements by the
Subdivider dunng the Construction Period;

(d) the volaton by the Subdivider or by any of said subcontractors of any applicable
law, rule, regulation, order or ordinance, or

(e) the mfringement by the Subdivider or by any of said subcontractors of any
patent, trademark, trade name or copyright

12. Anything mn th1s Agreement to the contrary notw1thstandmg, the Subd1v1der shall not be
obligated to indemmfy the City or the City's officers, agents or employees (collectively
the "Indemnified Parties") from any l1ability, claim, loss, damage, mterest, action, suit,
judgment, cost, expenses or attorneys fees which anse from or as a result of the
negligence or willful misconduct of any of the Indemnified Part1es

13 The Subdivider hereby guarantees that the Improvements will be free of defects m
material and/or workmanship for a penod of one (1) year from the date of acceptance of
the Improvements by the City. To secure the Subdrvder's obligations under said
guaranty upon acceptance of the Improvements by the Ctty, the Subdrvder will provide
to the City a Financial Guarantee equal to 10% of the sub-total m Exh1b1t "D" of the total
Improvements Costs, which Fmancial Guarantee shall exp1re one (1) year after the
Improvements have been accepted by the City or contmue the exrstmng base Fmanc1al
Guarantee mamtaming a mmnmmum of 10% of the sub-total m Exhibit "D" of the total
Improvements Costs for one (1) year after the improvements have been accepted by the

5



City Thus Financial Guarantee shall be a partal contmuat1on of, and not mn addrton to,
the Fmanc1al Guarantee descnbed m Paragraph 5 above Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary in the foregoing provisions of this Paragraph which may be more
restrictive, the Subdivider's obligations under said guaranty shall expire upon the
day after 14 months after the date the public improvements for which the security
is provided are substantially completed and upon substantial completion of the
public improvements, the amount of the Letter of Credit shall be no more than the
amount equal to the total cost to complete any uncompleted public improvements
plus IO percent of the total cost of the completed public improvements, pursuant
to Wis. Stat.§ 236.13(2)(am)l.c.

14. (a) The Developer shall not commence work on the Improvements until it has
obtained all insurance coverage required under this Paragraph 14. and has filed
certificates thereof with the City:

A. General/Commercial Liability $2,000,000 per each occurrence for bodily
injury, personal injury, and property damage
$4,000,000 per general aggregate,

CITY shall be named as an addtonal nsured
on a primary, non-contrbutory bass

B. Automobile Liability $1,000,000 combined single limit

CITY shall be named as an addztwnal znsured
on a primary, non-contrbutory bass

C. Contractor's Pollution Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence
$2,000,000 aggregate

To be provided by
Developer's subcontractor,
Tomasn, Inc

the
DF CITYshall be named as an addtonal nsured

on a primary, non-contrbutory bass

$10,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury,
personal injury, and property

D. Umbrella or Excess Liability
Coverage for
General/Commercial, Automobile
Liability, and Contractor's CITY shall be named as an addtonal nsured
Pollution Liability on a pnmary, non-contributory basts

Contractor wllprovde a waver ofsubrogaton
and/or any rights ofrecovery allowed under any
workers' compensatzon law

E. Worker's Compensation and Statutory
Employers' Liability

F. Professional Liability (Errors
& Omissions)

$2,000,000 single limit

To be provded by the
Developer's subcontractors,
Pinnacle Engneerng Group,
Inc

6



(b) The Developer shall file a certificate of insurance containing a thirty (30) day
notice of cancellation to the City prior to any cancellation or change of said
insurance coverage which coverage amounts shall not be reduced by claims not
arising from this Agreement.

I5 The Subdivider shall not be released or discharged of its obligations under this
Agreement until the City has completed its final mspection of all the Improvements and
the City has issued its written approval of all of the Improvements, which approval shall
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, and Subdrvder has pad all of the
Improvements Costs, at which tmme the Subdivider shall have no further obligations
under this Agreement except for the one ( 1) year guaranty under Paragraph 13

16 The Subdivider and the City hereby agree that the cost and value of the Improvements
will become an mtegral part of the value of the Subdivision and that no future lot
assessments or other types of special assessments of any kind will be made agamst the
Subdivision by the Subdivider or by the City for the benefit of the Subdivider, to recoup
or obtam the reimbursement of any Improvement Costs for the Subdivider

l 7. Execution and performance of this Agreement shall be accepted by the City as adequate
prov1Sion for the Improvements reqmred within the meanmg of $$ 236 132)a),
236 l3(2)(b), 236 l3(2)(c), 236.l3(2)(d) and 236 l3(2m) of the Wisconsm Statutes.

18. Penalties for Subdivider's failure to perform any or all parts of this Agreement shall be m
accordance with Divis1on 15-9 0500, Violations, Penalties, and Remedies of the Unified
Development Ordmance and §1-19. Penalty provisions of the City of Franklin Mumcipal
Code, as amended from time to time, mn add1ton to any other remedies provided by law
or in equity so that the City may obtain Subd1vider's compliance with the terms of this
Agreement as necessary

This Agreement shall be bindmg upon the parties hereto and the1r respective successors and assigns,
excepting that the parties hereto do not otherwise intend the terms or provisions of this Agreement to be
enforceable by or provide any benefit to any person or entity other than the party of the first part and the
party of the second part. Subdivider shall not convey or assign any of its rights or obligations under this
contract whatsoever without the written consent of the City, whch shall not be unreasonably withheld
upon a showmg that any successor or assignee is ready, wllng and able to fully perform the terms hereof
and the Subd1v1der remams hable hereunder This Agreement shall run with the land.

[The remainder of this page 1s intentionally left blank Signatures are on the followmg pages]

7



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said party of the first part has set its hand and seal and the said
party of the second part has caused these presents to be duly executed by Stephen R. Olson, Mayor, and
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed as of the day and year
first above wntten

SEALED IN PRESENCE OF _
Cape Crossing LLC

By Steve DeCleene

Title Managmg Member Cape Crossing LLC

Party of the Ftrst Part

STATE OF WISCONSIN )

WAUKESHA COUNTY )
)ss

Personally came before me thus (day) of, 20• the above
named of and
acknowledged that [she/he] executed the foregomg instrument as such officer as the deed of said

by Its authority
or

This mstrument was acknowledged before me on (date) by
(name(s) of person(s)) as

(type of authority, e g, officer, trustee, etc.) of (name of
party on behalf of whom mstrument was executed)

Notary Pubhc, County, WI
My comm1ss1on expires.

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By·------------
Name. Stephen R. Olson
Title Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED.

By----------------
Name. Sandra L. Wesolowski
Title City Clerk

8



Party of the Second Part

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)ss.

COUNTY )

Personally came before me thus _day of, 20> the above named
Stephen R Olson, Mayor, and Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk, of the above named municipal
corporation, City of Franklin, to me known to be such Mayor and City Clerk of said mumcipal
corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the foregomg mstrument as such officers as the
Deed of said mumcipal corporation by its authority and pursuant to Resolution No _
___, adopted by its Common Council on the day of_________ 20

Notary Pubhc, Milwaukee County, WI
My commiss1on expires

Thus Instrument was drafted by the City Engineer for the City of Franklin

Form approved

Jesse A Wesolowska, City Attorney

9



Exhibit A

Exhibit B

Exhibit C

Exhibit D

Exhibit E

Exhub1t F

INDEX OF EXHIBITS
TO

SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

CAPE CROSSING SUBDIVISION (Phase 1)

Legal Descnptlon of Subdivision

General Descnptlon ofReqmred Subd1v1s10n Improvements

General Subd1v1s1on Reqmrements

Estimated Improvement Costs

Additional Subd1v1s10n Requirements

Construction Spec1ficatlons

10



EXHIBIT "A"
TO

SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

CAPE CROSSING SUBDIVISION (Phase 1)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
OF SUBDIVISION

LEGAL DESCRIPTION of Phase 1

Being a part of the Southwest 1/4 and Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 19,
Township 5 North, Range 21 East, CIty of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin,
described as follows·

Beginning at the southwest corner of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 19; thence
North 01 °22'14" West along the west line of said Southwest 1/4, 331.22 feet, thence
North 88°37'46" East, 25.00 feet; thence South 24°32'53" East, 122.60 feet; thence
South 47°07°55" East, 127.19 feet, thence South 89°31'45" East, 119 31 feet, thence
North 00°28' 15" East, 190 00 feet, thence South 89°31 '45" East, 53.58 feet; thence
North 00°28'15" East, 95.89 feet; thence North 01 °22'14" West, 280.00 feet; thence
South 88°37'46" West, 131.37 feet; thence North 01 °22'14" West, 30 00 feet; thence
North 88°37'46" East, 131.37 feet; thence North 01 °22'14" West, 272 24 feet, thence
North 14°03'35" East, 18 52 feet, thence South 75°56'25" East, 70 00 feet; thence North
14°03'35" East, 135.00 feet, thence North 75°56'25" West, 30 00 feet; thence North
14°03'35" East, 180 00 feet, thence North 75°56'25" West, 130 00 feet; thence South
8531'39" West, 57.23 feet to a point on a curve, thence northwesterly 40.04 feet along
the arc of said curve to the left, whose radius is 275.00 feet and whose chord bears
North 08°38'35" West, 40 00 feet; thence North 77°11'11" East, 140 00 feet; thence
North 16°08'23" West, 189 70 feet, thence North 01°22'14" West, 168.42 feet, thence
North 21 °18'48" East, 49 89 feet; thence North 32°37'57" East, 340.00 feet, thence
South 78°47'41" East, 20.00feet, thence North 11°12'19" East, 142 77feet, thence
South 78°47'41" East, 30 00 feet, thence South 11°12'19" West, 142 77 feet; thence
South 78°47'41" East, 200.04 feet; thence South 13°50'10" East, 170 00 feet, thence
North 76°09'50" East, 209.52 feet, thence South 13°50'1 O" East, 14.60 feet; thence
North 76°09'50" East, 142.00 feet; thence North 89°23'03" East, 191 70 feet to the east
line of the west 1/2 of said Southwest 1/4 as described by the Onginal Section Survey;
thence South 00°36'57" East along said east line, 1481 18 feet to the northwesterly line
of The Milwaukee Electric Railway and Light Company (nowWisconsmn Electric Power
Company) as recorded in the Register of Deeds office for Milwaukee County, mn Volume
1395, Page 367 and a point on a curve, thence southwesterly 599.21 feet along the arc
of said curve to the rght, whose radius Is 7777 60 feet and whose chord bears South
36°38'24" West, 599.06 feet to the south line of said Southwest 1/4, thence North
89°31'45" West along said south line, 1015 31 feet to the Pomnt of Beginning

11



ALSO

That part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 19, Township 5 North,
Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows

Commencing at the southwest corner of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 19, thence
South 89°31 '45" East along the south lme of said Southwest 1/4, 1142 36 feet to the
southeasterly line of The Milwaukee Electric Railway and Light Company (now
Wisconsin Electric Power Company) as recorded mn the Register of Deeds office for
Milwaukee County, in Volume 1395, Page 367, a point on a curve and the Point of
Beginning 2; thence northeasterly 387.26 feet along the arc of said curve to the left,
whose radius Is 7877 60 feet and whose chord bears North 36°51'54" East, 387.22 feet
to the east line of the west 1/2 of said Southwest 1/4 as described by the Original
Section Survey, thence South 00°36'57" East along said east line, 311.75 feet to the
south line of said Southwest 1/4; thence North 89°31'45" West along said south hne,
235 67 feet to the Pomnt of Beginning 2

12



EXHIBIT "B"
TO

SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

CAPE CROSSING SUBDIVISION (Phase 1)

GENERAL DESCRIPTION
OF

REQUIRED SUBDIVISION
IMPROVEMENTS

Description of improvements required to be mstalled to develop the Cape Crossmng Subdrvrs1on

*S

*C

(NA)

(I)

Denotes contract for improvements to be awarded, financed and paid for by
the Subdrvtder m leu of spec1al assessments

Denotes contract for improvements to be awarded by the City, but financed
and paid for by the Subdivider in accordance with this agreement

Denotes improvement is not reqmred to be mstalled m the Subdivision

Denotes that the City is to pay for a portion of the improvement, m
accordance with this agreement, as computed by the City Engineer

General Description of Improvements
(refer to additional sheets for concise breakdown)

1 Grading of all lots and blocks withm the Subdiv1S1on m conformance with the *S
approved gradmg plan

2 Gradmg of the streets within the Subdrvis1on mn accordance with the established *S
street grades and the City approved street cross-section and specifications

3 Installat10n of concrete or asphalt permanent pavement with vertical face *S
concrete curb and gutter mn accordance with present City specifications

4 Sanitary sewer rnam and appurtenances mn the streets and/or easement mn the *S
Subdivision, to such size and extent as determmed by the master sewer plan
and/or City Engmeer, as necessary to provide adequate service for the final
Subdrvrs1on and dramnage area.

5 Laterals and appurtenances from samtary sewer mam to each lot hne, one for *S
each lot as determined by the City

6 Water main and fittings m the streets and/or easement mn the SubdrvIs1on, to such S
size and extent as determined by the master water plan and/or the City Engmeer
as necessary to provide adequate service for the final Subdrvs1on and service
area

13



7 Laterals and appurtenances from water mam to the street !me, one for each lot, *S
as determined by the City Engmeer together with curb stop as specified by the
City

8 Hydrants and appurtenances provided and spaced to adequately service the area *S
and as the City shall reqmre.

9 Paved streets with curb and gutter m the Subdrvs1on to the approved grade and *S
1n accordance with the City specifications.

IO Concrete sidewalks in the Subdivision to the approved grade and m accordance *S
with the City specifications

1 l. Concrete, asphalt or chipped pedestnan walks in dedicated pedestrian ways and *S
easements m the Subdrvus1on as approved by the Caty.

12. Concrete driveways between the street line and curb and gutter for each lot as (NA.)
specified and approved by the City

13 Street trees *C

14 Protective fencmg adJacent to pedestnan ways, etc (NA)

15 Engmeering, planning and admmistratlon services as approved *S

16 Dramage system as determmed and/or approved by the City to adequately drain *S
the surface water from the Subdivision and management areas in accordance
with the master drainage plan and/or approved system plan

17 Street lightmg and appurtenances along the street nght-of-way as determmed by *C
the CIty

18. Street s1gnage in such locations and such size and des1gn as determined by the *C
City

19 Title evidence on all conveyances *S

14



EXHIBIT "C"
TO

SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

CAPE CROSSING SUBDIVISION (Phase 1)

GENERAL SUBDIVISION REQUIREMENTS

I GENERAL

A The Subdrvder shall prepare a plat of the land, plans for improvements, as-built drawmgs
of the improvements and all other 1tems mn accordance with all apphcable state laws and
City ordmances and regulations

B All improvements shall be mstalled m accordance with all City specifications and
ordmances

C The entrre Subdiv1s1on as proposed shall be recorded

II LOT SIZE AND UNIT SIZE

A Lots

1 All lots shall be as shown on the final approved plat.

B Units

The mmnmmum area of any living unrt built mn the project shall be as specified mn
the Franklm Municipal Code and Umufied Development Ordmance in effect at the
tame the permit 1s issued unless otherwise specified in the agreement.

III WATER SYSTEM

A Ava1lab1lrty

Each and every lot m the Subd1v1s1on shall be served by a water mamn

2 The Subdivider shall provide for the extension of the water system to abutting
properties by laying water pipe m pubhc right-of-way or in water easement to the
exteror lot lmne of the Subdrvrs1on as directed by the City Engineer.

3 Laterals shall be laid to each and every lot Size shall be approved by the City
Engineer

4 Fire hydrants shall be available to the City's Fire and Pubhc Works Departments,
and both City Departments shall have free and unhm1ted use of the water

B Construction

15



I. All construct10n shall be m accordance with the specifications of the City.

2 Inspection of the work shall be at the Subdivider's expense

3 Mams and appurtenances mcludmg all pipe, hydrants, gate valves, laterals and
curb stop boxes shall be mstalled

IV SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM

A Components

Sanitary sewerage service through and within the Subdvts1on shall be provided It shall
consist of without limitation because of enumeration, samtary sewer, manholes,
appurtenances, laterals, and other appurtenances.

B Ava1lab1l1ty

I . Each and every building in the Subdivis10n shall be served by a samtary sewer

2 Laterals shall be laid to the lot line of each and every lot

3 a) The Subdivider shall provide for the extens1on of the sanitary
sewer system to abuttmg properties by laying sewer pipe to the extenor
lot lines of the Subdrvs1on as directed by the City Engineer, and mn
accordance with system plans as approved by Milwaukee Metropohtan
Sewerage D1strict

b) In the event that adjacent property owners request sewer service prior to
the time the sewer extensions are installed to the exterior boundaries of
the Subdivision as descnbed in Section IV B 3 (a) above, the City is
hereby granted the right to mstall said extensions within the Subdivision
at the expense of the Subdivider. All costs for installmg sewer systems
outs1de of the boundaries of the Subdrvision shall be pand by the adjacent
property owners upon any special assessment proceedings had by the
City or waiver thereof by the adjacent property owners pursuant to W1s
Stat § 66.0701 Special assessments by local ordmance, and §207 15
Special assessments, of the Mumc1pal Code.

V STORM DRAINAGE

A Components

Storm dramage through and withm the Subd1v1s1on shall be provided by means of storm
sewer, culverts and ditches installed w1thm the road required as per approved system
plan. It shall consist of, without limitation because of enumeration, sewers, culverts,
pipes, manholes, mlets, leads, open swales, retention basms and other management
fac1hhes as determined by the City Engineer The City, at the determmnaton of the City
Engmeer, may have the storm dramage system reviewed by a consultant engmeer at the
Subdivider's cost

16



B Endwalls

Endwalls shall be approved by the City Engineer

2 Endwalls shall be mstalled on each and every culvert and at all open ends of
storm sewers

C Outfalls and Retaining Walls

Outfalls and retaining walls shall be bmlt where reqmred by the City Engineer

2 The aesthetic design of said structures shall be approved by the Architectural
Board

3 The structural design of said structures shall be done by a hcensed Engineer or
Architect registered mn the State of Wisconsin

D Responsibihty of Discharged Water

1 The Subdivider shall be responsible for the storm drainage until 1t crosses the
exterior property hne of the Subdivision or until it reaches a point designated by the City
outside of and adJacent to the property from which the water crosses over, under or
through artificial or natural bamers The water shall be brought to said point by an open
ditch or other means as directed by the City Engineer.

2 However, if the Subdrvder of the Subdivision wll, in the opinion of the City
Engineer, cause water problems downstream from the Subdivision which will reasonably
require special cons1derat1on, the Subdrvder shall comply with such terms as the City
Engineer may reqmre to prevent these problems Said terms shall be made part of those
documents under the section titled "Special Provisions".

VI STREETS

A Location

Streets shall be constructed m such a manner that the centerline of roadway shall
be centerhne of nght-of-way

2 Streets shall be constructed m each and every road nght-of-way platted and shall
be bmlt to the extenor lot lne of the Subdivision whenever possible except as
noted mn Exhubnt "E"

B Names

The names of all streets shall be approved by the City Engineer

C Construct10n

All streets shall be bmlt in accordance with the specifications on file m the City
Engineer's Office

17



2 All streets shall be constructed with 8" of stonebase and 4" of A/C bmder course
pnor to Subdivision certification The 2" A/C surface course shall be mstalled
when 90% of the lots w1thm the Subd1vISion have been built upon or at the
discretion of the City Engineer

Before the final hft of asphalt can be mstalled w1thm a Subd1v1sion the
Subdivider must make arrangements to repatr damaged or failed concrete curb
and gutter, concrete walk, asphalt base course or sub-grade Also, damaged or
failed utility appurtenances must be repatred, rebuilt or replaced by the
Subd1v1der's contractor pnor to the installation of the final hft of asphalt
pavement.

All assocated costs wth thus work wll be the responsrbtlrty of the Subdivider

3 The construction shall be mspected by the City or its agent and all fees due to
such inspect1on shall be paid by Subdivider

D Snow Removal and Ice Control

The responsibility for snow removal and ice control on all streets within the Subdiv1s1on
shall he with the Subdivider until

a) The plat is recorded, and

b) The streets have been provisionally approved by the City

VII EASEMENTS

A Dramage

All dramage easements dedicated to the public shall be improved as follows

a) Storm sewer or open channel, unless otherwise agreed upon by the
Subdrvder and the City.

b) Side slopes no steeper than 4 1.

c) Landscaped mn accordance with the apphcable City regulations and/or
approvals condrt1on for the Subdrvrs1on for landscaping requirements or,
mn the case of storm sewer, as dtrected by the City Engmeer

2 Pedestnan Path

a) The pedestnan path shall be constructed by the Subd1v1der m accordance
with the plans and specifications approved by the City Engmeer

b) The edge of the walk shall be at least one (I) foot from either side of the
easement

18



VIII PERMITS ISSUED

A Building Perrmts

No bmldmg perrmts shall be issued until

a) The samtary and storm sewer and water mams have been mstalled, tested
and approved

b) Storm water management facilities have been rough grade certified and
approved

c) Streets and lots have been rough graded and approved, and curb and
gutter installed and the base course of asphalt pavement installed.

d) The plat has been recorded

e) All Subdivision rear lot monuments have been set

2. Buildmg permits may be granted for model homes prior to satisfying the above
conditions, provided an agreement relating thereto has been approved by the
Common Council of the City ofFrankhn.

B Occupancy Permits

No temporary occupancy permits shall be issued until·

a) Streets have been paved except for the final hft of asphalt.

b) The gas, telephone and electrical services have been mstalled and are m
operation.

c) The water system 1s installed, tested and approved

d) The site Is stablzed and all storm water management face1litres have
been re-certified and approved

e) All Subdivis10n front lot monuments have been set

IX DEED RESTRICTIONS

A A Fmancial Guarantee approved by the City Attorney m the full amount of all non
assessable improvements not yet mstalled and approved as of the date of this Agreement
shall be submitted to the City before any perm1ts are 1ssued

B The tame of completon of improvements

19



The Subdivider shall take all action necessary so as to have all the improvements
specrfied in this Agreement mstalled and approved by the City before

two years from the date of this agreement

2 Should the Subdivider fail to take said acton by sand date, rt rs agreed that the
City, at 1ts opt1on and at the expense of the Subdivider, may cause the installation
of or the correction of any deficiencies mn sad Improvements

X CHARGES FOR SERVICES BY THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

A Fee for Checkmg and Review

At the time of submittmg the plans and specifications for the construction of the
Subd1v1s1on improvements, a fee equal to two-and-one-fourth percent (2 %) of the cost
of the improvements as estimated by the City Engmeer at the time of submission of
improvement plans and specifications, to partially cover the cost to the City of checkmg
and reviewing such plans and specifications provided that cost does not exceed
$250,000.00; a fee equal to one-and-three-fourth percent (1¾ %) of such cost, 1f the cost
1s in excess of $250,000.00, but not m excess of $500,000 00, and one-and-one-fourth
percent (1%) of said cost m excess of $500,000 00 At the demand of the Subdivider
or City Engmeer, the fee may be recomputed after the work is done m accordance with
the actual cost of such improvements and the difference, if any, shall be paid by or
remitted to the Subdivider Evidence of cost shall be mn such detail and form as required
by the City Engineer

B For the services of testing labs, consultmg engineers and other personnel, the Subdivider
agrees to pay the City the actual charge plus five (5%) percent for admmistration and
overhead.

20



EXHIBIT "D"
TO

SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

CAPE CROSSING SUBDIVISION (Phase 1)

ESTIMATED IMPROVEMENT COSTS

All improvement costs, mcludmg but not hmited to preparation of plans, installation of facilities and
Inspection shall be borne by the Subdivider 1 accordance with Paragraph (4) of thus Agreement

Said costs for the project are estimated to be as follows

DESCRIPTION COSTS
Eros1on Control $151,989 00

Samtary System $883,802.00

Water System $565,654.00

Storm Sewer System $596,769

Paving (including sidewalk) $1,080,240 00

Street Trees (150 x $400/lot) $60,000.00

Street Lights (6) @ approximately $5,000/ea. $30,000 00

Street Signs $3,000 00

Underground Electnc, Gas and Telephone Not Inc.

Storm Water Management Gradmg $278,353.00

SUBTOTAL $3,649,807.00

Engmeenng/Consultmg Services Not inc

Mum1c1pal Services Not inc.
(7% of Subtotal)

Contmgency Fund $729,961 00
(20% of Subtotal)

TOTAL. $4,379,768 00

[otal/[()() [)o][ars

APPROVED By Late
Glen E Morrow, City Engineer

21



EXHIBIT "E"
TO

SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

CAPE CROSSING SUBDIVISION (Phase 1)

ADDITIONAL SUBDIVISION
REQUIREMENTS

1. The Subdivider agrees that 1t shall pay to the City of Frankhn for six (6) public street light
fixtures and poles as provided by WE-Energies The LED fixtures shall be oval- high lumen (143
watts) for mayor intersectuons and medrum lumen (92 watts) for the mterior of the subd1v1S1on
The poles shall be 35-foot fiberglass with 6-foot arm (position over the City street) Non-LED
lights are not permitted.

2 The Subdivider shall make every effort to protect and retam all existing trees, shrubbery, vmes
and grasses pursuant to the approved Natural Resource Protection Plan (the "NRPP") Trees shall
be protected and preserved dunng construction m accordance with sound conservation practices
as outlined m §§15-8 0204A through F of the Unified Development Ordmance

3. The Subdivider shall cause all gradmg, excavations, open cuts, side slopes and other land surface
disturbances to be so mulched, seeded, sodded or otherwise protected that eros10n, siltation,
sedimentation and washing are prevented in accordance with the plans and specifications
approved by the City Engmeer as outlmed in $$15-8 0203H 1 through 5 of the Unified
Development Ordinance.

4 The Subdivider agrees to pay the City for street trees planted by the City at the rate of $400 per
tree with a planting distance between trees of 85 feet on the average. The City shall determme
the plantmg schedule and shall be responsible for tree maintenance and replacement except for
damage caused by the Subdivider, the Subdrvder's sub-contractors, or the lot owners

5 The requirements for the mstallatlon of concrete driveway approaches shall be omitted from this
Agreement because the Subdrvder wll require that the owners of sand lots mstall concrete
driveway approaches, as required by the Franklmn Buuldmng Inspector

6 The Subdivider shall be responsible for cleanmg up the debns that has blown from buldmngs
under construct1on within the Subdrvs1on The Subdivider shall clean up all debris within forty
eight (48) hours after receivmg a notice from the City Engmeer

7 The Subdivider shall be responsible for cleaning up the mud and dart on the roadways until such
time as the final lift of asphalt has been mstalled. The Subdivider shall clean the roadways withm
forty-eight (48) hours after receiving a notice from the City Engmeer

8 Prior to commencmg site grading, the Subdrvder shall submit for approval by the City Engineer
an eros1on and salt control plan Saud plan shall provide sufficient control of the srte to prevent
siltation downstream from the s1te. The Subdivider shall mamntam the eros1on and siltation
control until such time that vegetation sufficient to equal pre-existmg conditions has been
established

22



9 The Subdrvder shall preserve the environmental natural resource features as shown on the
Natural Resource Protection Plan and shall mstall an orange snow fence and silt fence around the
environmental natural resource features pr1or to land disturbing

IO The Subdivider shall mform the persons purchasmg lots of their obhgahon to cut weeds to
conform to the City's noxious weed ordmance

11 The Subd1v1der shall construct storm water management facilities as required mn the Storm Water
Management Plan mn accordance with the plans and specificat10ns approved by the City Engmeer
Maintenance of said storm water management fac1hhes shall be the respons1b1hty of the
Subdivider and/or owners assoc1at1on

12 The Subdrvder shall create a Homeowners Association for the care and mamtenance of all
common lands, mcluding all storm water management facilities, and other green areas Said
Homeowners Association documents shall be reviewed and approved by the Franklm Plan
Comm1ss1on or as may otherwise be provided by the Unified Development Ordmnance, pr1or to
recording of the Final Plat. The Subdivider is responsible to recertify the storm water
management facilities after the site is stabihzed and pnor to the conveyance to the Homeowners
Assoc1at1on

13 Homeowners Association documents shall mclude a Declaration ofRestrictions and Covenants
specifying the preservation ofthe ex1stmg storm water management fac1hhes and landscaping and
entryways Said document shall be recorded after review and approval by the City Attorney

14 Construct10n Reqmrements

a) Pnor to any construction activity on the site, Subdivider shall prepare a gravel surfaced
parkmg area withm the boundaries ofthe site

b) During construction, all vehicles and equipment shall park on the site Parkmg shall not be
permitted on any external pubhc nght-of-way.

c) Pnor to issuance of any buldmng permits other than m the case ofthe issuance ofany model
structure permits, all necessary gradmg and improvements shall be completed as dlfected by
the City Engineer.

d) All traffic shall enter the site from Ryan Road.

15 The Subdivider shall provide for the connection to the exrstmng Ryan Road and mnstall any
necessary curb and gutter and pavement

16 Subd1v1der shall prepare final plat ofPhase 1 to dedicate land on the southeast comer ofthe entlfe
subdivision known as Outlot 4 (26,309 +/- square feet) to Caty Upon recording ofded1cat1on of
Outlot 4, an amount of $13,680 00 shall be credited to Subdivider from applicable Park Impact
fees for this subd1vis10n Such credited amount shall be processed by way of a refund to the
Subd1v1der ofparks, playgrounds, and land for athletic fields impact fees paid by the Subdivider,
by way ofCaty check payable to the Subdrvder sent by way ofU S Postal Service Mail, wthmn
90 days of the receipt by the City ofsuch payment by the Subdivider, until the aforesaid amount
of$13,680 00 has been received by the City and refunded mn rts entirety

23



EXHIBIT "F"
TO

SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

CAPE CROSSING SUBDIVISION (Phase 1)

CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS

The following specifications shall be used for the construct1on of the various Improvements

ITEM SPECIFICATION

Storm & Sanitary Sewer STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWER
AND WATER CONSTRUCTION IN
WISCONSIN, most current edition
CITY OF FRANKLIN

Water Mains STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWER
AND WATER CONSTRUCTION IN
WISCONSIN, most current edition
CITY OF FRANKLIN

Concrete Curb & Gutter CITY OF FRANKLIN

Streets

Construction CITY OF FRANKLIN

Materials
Asphalt CITY OF FRANKLIN
Aggregate CITY OF FRANKLIN
Concrete CITY OF FRANKLIN

Cross Section CITY OF FRANKLIN

24



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022----

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE A
SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE SUBDIVIDER OF

CAPE CROSSING SUBDIVISION,
12200 W. RYAN ROAD, TKNS 890-9991-001 AND 890-9991-002

WHEREAS, the Subdivider, Cape Crossing, LLC, is ready to proceed with the Cape
Crossing subdivision and it is necessary to enter into a Subdivision Development Agreement for
this subdivision; and

WHEREAS, the final plat for this development was conditionally approved by Common
Council on September 20, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the final plat includes the dedication of land in the southeast corner of the
subdivision, known as Outlot 4 (26,309 +/- square feet) to City; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Franklin to provide an orderly planned
subdivision development known as Cape Crossing; and

WHEREAS, the developer of the subdivision is willing to proceed with the installation of
the improvements provided for in the Subdivision Development Agreement; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the
Subdivision Development Agreement on behalf of the City with the Subdivider.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is directed to record the Subdivision
Development Agreement with the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council on the_day of
,2)22 by Alderman

Passed and adopted by the Common Council on the
,2022.-------

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

day of

AYES NOES ABSENT



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Sae
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

ANORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (ZONING
MAP) TO REZONE A CERTAIN PARCEL
OF LAND FROM R-3 SUBURBAN/ESTATE
SINGLE-FAMILYRESIDENCE DISTRICT
AND C-1 CONSERVANCYDISTRICT TOR-
3 SUBURBAN/ESTATE SINGLE-FAMILY

RESIDENCE DISTRICT
(SPECIFICALLY LOCATEDAT 8979

SOUTH 42ND STREET)

(APPROXIMATELY 1.507 ACRES)

(CHRISTIAN S. SARTLERAND KARENR.
SARTLER, APPLICANTS)

MEETING
DATE

10/18/22

ITEM NUMBER

G.2.

At its October 6, 2022, regular meeting, the Plan Commission carried a motion to
recommend approval of this rezoning request, the vote was 4-1-1 : four 'ayes', one
'nay' and one absence.

If this rezoning request is approved, the applicant would still need to obtain approval
of a Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE) to allow for the proposed detached
garage and associated impacts to the existing shore buffer, wetland buffer and setback.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Ordinance 2022- , to amend the Unified Development
Ordinance (zoning map) to rezone a certain parcel of land from R-3 Suburban/Estate
Single-family Residence District and C-1 Conservancy District to R-3
Suburban/Estate Single-family Residence District (specifically located at 8979 South
42nd Street) (approximately 1.507 acres) (Christian S. Sartler and Karen R. Sartler,
applicants)

Department ofCity Development RMM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2022

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draf 9-19-22]

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE (ZONING MAP) TO REZONE A CERTAIN PARCEL OF

LAND FROM R-3 SUBURBAN/ESTATE SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE
DISTRICT AND C-1 CONSERVANCY DISTRICT TO R-3

SUBURBAN/ESTATE SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE DISTRICT
(SPECIFICALLY LOCATED AT 8979 SOUTH 42ND STREET)

(APPROXIMATELY 1.507 ACRES)
(CHRISTIANS. SARTLER AND KAREN R. SARTLER, APPLICANTS)

WHEREAS, Christian S. Sartler and Karen R. Sartler having petitioned for the
rezoning of approximately 1.507 acres of land, from R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family
Residence District and C-1 Conservancy District (northern portion of the property) to R-3
Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District, such land specifically located at 8979
South 42nd Street; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the City of Franklin Plan Commission
on the 6th day of October, 2022, upon the aforesaid petition and the Plan Commission
thereafter having determined that the proposed rezoning would promote the health, safety
and welfare of the City and having recommended approval thereof to the Common Council,
and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the petition and having
concurred with the recommendation of the Plan Commission and having determined that the
proposed rezoning is consistent with the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin and would promote the health, safety and welfare of the Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows·

SECTION 1 $15-3.0102 (Zoning Map) of the Unified Development Ordinance of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsm, is hereby amended to provide that the
zoning district designation for land specifically located at 8979 South
42nd Street, described below, be changed from R-3 Suburban/Estate
Single-Family Residence District and C-1 Conservancy District
(northern portion of the property) to R-3 Suburban/Estate Single
Family Residence District:

A parcel of land in the South 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Sect1on 24,
Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City ofFranklin, Milwaukee



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-
Page 2

County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows:

Commencing at a point in the West line of said 1/4 Section, which 1s
North 00 degrees 17 minutes West 595.35 feet of the Southwest corner
of said 1/4 Section, running thence North 00 degrees 17 minutes West
along the West Line of said 1/4 Section 185 feet to a point; thence
North 88 degrees 31 minutes 39 seconds East and parallel to the South
line of said 1/4 Section, 355 feet to a point; thence South 00 degrees 17
minutes East and parallel to the West line of said 1/4 Section, 185 feet
to a point and thence South 88 degrees 31 minutes 39 seconds West and
parallel to the South line of said 1/4 Section, 355 feet to the place of
beginning, reserving therefrom the West 45 feet and the East 30 feet for
street or highway purposes.

Tax Key No.: 854-9952-000.

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances mn contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2022, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2022

APPROVED

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk
AYES NOES ABSENT



Franklin
S U N S I N

CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of October 6, 2022

Rezoning

Item C.1.

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends denial of this rezoning request due to a
navigable waterway in the area to be rezoned.

Project Name:

Address Location:

Tax Key #(s):

Current zoning:

Proposed zoning:

Property Owner(s):

Applicant Name:

Assigned Planner:

Submittal Date:

Application Number:

Sartler Rezoning

8979 S. 42nd Street

854 9952 000

R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District & C-1
Conservancy District

R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District

Sartler, Christian S. and Karen R.

Ellertson, Kevin

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP, Principal Planner

05-13-2022

PPZ22-0084

Introduction:

The subject property is zoned R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District and C-1
Conservancy District. The C-1 zoning area is located in the north end of this property where the owner
is proposing to build a detached garage and driveway, but the C-1 zoning district does not allow for
accessory structures. Therefore, the applicant is requesting this rezoning to remove the C-1 zoning
designation. The C-1 is an obsolete zoning district because it exists only in the zoning map without any
specific development standards in the zoning ordinance text.

It can be noted that the C-1 zoning text had been removed from the City's Unified Development
Ordinance (UDO), because the C-1 zoning district boundaries had become inaccurate. However, the
City's zoning map had not been revised at that time. Therefore, it has become common practice for the
City to require rezoning to remove the C-1 district from the City's zoning map when a new project
with more accurate information becomes available.

Natural Resources:

The applicant submitted a wetland delineation report for the study area adjacent to the proposed
improvements, specifically 0.17 acres (appendix 1) The environmental consultant (Heartland
Ecological Group, Inc) identified one wetland (W-1) and one waterway (WWI) in the study area. It 1s
highly likely that this waterway is navigable per e-mail communication from the Department of
Natural Resources (DNR), appendix 2. The UDO requires a 75-foot shore buffer from any navigable
waterway where land disturbances are not allowed This waterway and its shore buffer run along the



north property line and cover most of the C-1 area to be rezoned, therefore this area is subject to
natural resource protection.

□

LI sorat0 1a)
Milwaukee Co. L Cr1ou

c9 Fd Deineant1et1arts {1 IL c
itreray

I" .,I P'"f'-",,,..; Ga1a;,-e
P-poiD«"weway

Sample Pomts
t· upland
0 l'letlar,

Figure 5 Field
~hne..ted Wetlcinds
879out± 42rd tie!
Pr,..r-ct C2022a796
15-~~ RZlE. SZ4
C fran'(.l 'J, MIIW!IUk~ Co

.l..•~-M.iU15.iL
Ia.±r Cs ti, .34NW

Field delineated wetlands by Heartland Ecological Group Inc.

Comprehensive Master Plan Consistency

The City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan (CMP) identifies the subject property as
'Residential' with the southwest part ofit as 'Areas ofNatural Resource Features'.

Given that the existing waterway appears to be navigable, it can be noted that the proposed rezoning is
not consistent with the following goals, objectives and recommendations set forth within the
Comprehensive Master Plan:

# I Protect envzronmental resources
Chapter 3: Agricultural, Natural, and Cultural Resources (page 3-56)

o Dzscourage zncompatzble development and alteratzon offloodplazns, lakes, rzvers and
streams, wetlands, shore/ands, steep slopes, and woodland areas so as to preserve the

2



mntegrty ofthese resources and to promote the ecologcal value ofthese assets, and to
mnmze adverse mpacts upon adjacentpropertes
Staff comment: The existing waterway and shore buffer are protected natural
resources, approval of this rezoning request for construction of a garage is incompatible
with this objective.

#2 It s recommended that thefollowzng zonzng map related zssues be considered and/or be
the subject offurther study by the Caty when a reasonable opportunty arses
Chapter 5: Land Use (page 5-87).

o Elmnate the C-l zoning dstrct
Staff comment: As noted earlier, since the C-1 zoning district is obsolete, it is a
common practice to remove the C-1 district from the City's zoning map when more
accurate information becomes available. However, staff does not recommend removal
of the C-1 conservancy district in this case, due to the presence of navigable waterway
WWI.

Recommendation:

A motion to recommend denial of the proposed rezoning due to the presence of a navigable waterway
in the area to be rezoned.

If this rezoning request is approved, the applicant would still need to obtain approval of a Natural
Resource Special Exception to allow for impacts to the shore buffer.

Appendixes:

1. Assured wetland delineation report by Heartland Ecological Group Inc, July 20, 2022.
Excluding appendixes B through E.

2. E-mail from the Department ofNatural Resources dated September 8, 2022

3



'Franklinf

\N/SCONSIN

8979 S. 42nd Street
TKN: 854 9952 000

R-3 @M7»l , ,
i
t
1

I
I

' I_, l
l!m !

I
I,: '"I
I

I I

Property

r
I
'

R-3

.l f

"e
-#

(
)
)

This map shows the approxunate relahve locatwn ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared bya professwna/ /and surveyor
This map sprovdedfor mformatwnalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal engmeermg
or surveyingpurposes

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 80 160 320 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aenal Photo



"Franklinf

W IC O M S { MN

8979 S. 42nd Street
TKN: 854 9952 000

Property

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 80 160

€l!J!iG)¼Il@

320 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approxunate relaflve locat10n ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared bya profess10nal land surveyor
This map sprovdedfor nformatonalpurposes only
and maynot be suffic1ent or appropriatefor legal engmeermg
or surveyingpurposes



Appendix #1

Assured Wetland Delineation Report

8979 42d Street Site
City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

July 20, 2022

Project Number: 20220796

506 Springdale Street I Mount Horeb, WI 53572 I www.heartlandecological.com



8979 42nd Street Site
City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
July 20, 2022

Prepared for:

Limitless Property Works

Mr. Kevin EIiertson

P.O. Box 85185

Racine, WI 53408

Prepared by:

Heartland Ecological Group, Inc.

506 Springdale Street

Mount Horeb, WI 53572

608-490-2450

www.heartlandecolog1cal.com

Enc C. Parker, Pnnc1pal Matt Stangel, Environmental Scientist

Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources.



Table of Contents
1.0 Introduction 4

2.0 Methods 5

2.1 Wetlands 5

3.0 Results and D1scuss1on 6

3 .1 Desktop Review 6

Table 1. Summary of NRCS Mapped Soils within the Study Area 7

3.2 Field Review 7

Table 2. Summary of Wetlands Identified within the Study Area 8

3.3 Other Cons1derat1ons 9

4.0 Conclusion 10

5.0 References 11

Appendx A ] Figures and NAIP Imagery

Appendix B I APT Analysis

Appendix C I Wetland Determination Data Sheets

Append1x D ] Site Photographs

Appendx E ] Delmneator Qualifications

Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources.



ASSURED WETLAND DELINEATION REPORT

1.0

Limitless Property Works
8979 South 424 Street Site
Project # · 20220796
July 20, 2022

Introduction
Heartland Ecological Group, Inc. ("Heartland") completed an assured wetland determination

and delineation on the 8979 South 424 Street site on July 14, 2022 at the request of

Limitless Property Works (LPW). Fieldwork was completed by Enc C Parker, SPWS, an

assured delineator qualified via the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources' (WDNR's)

Wetland Delineation Assurance Program (Appendrx E, Qualifications). The 0.17-acre site

(the "Study Area") is southwest of the intersection of West Woodward Drve and South 42d

Street, in the northwest¼ of Section 24, TSN, R21E, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, WI

(Figure 1, Appendix A). The purpose of the wetland delineation was to determine the

location and extent of wetlands and waterways within the Study Area.

One (1) wetland area, located along a ditch-waterway, was delineated and mapped within

the Study Area (Figure 6, Appendix A). Delineated wetlands continue outside the Study Area

to the east and west. No water bodies were observed in the Study Area. Wetlands and

waterways mn the Study Area appeared to be artificial mn orgmn

Wetlands, waterways, and water bodies discussed in this report may be subject to federal

regulation under the Junsdict1on of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), state

regulation under the jurisdiction of the WDNR, and local zoning authorities. Heartland

recommends this report be submitted to local authorities, the WDNR, and USACE for final

jurisdictional review and concurrence.

Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources. Page 4



ASSURED WETLAND DELINEATION REPORT

2.0

2.1

L,m,tless Property Works
8979 South 424 Street Site
Project # · 20220796
July 20, 2022

Methods

Wetlands
Wetlands were determined and delineated using the criteria and methods described in the

USACE Wetlands Delineation Manual, T.R. Y-87-1 ("1987 Corps Manual") and the applicable

Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engmeers Wetland Delmeat1on Manual. In addition, the

Gwdance for Submittal of De/meat/On Reports to the St. Paul D1stnct USACE and the WDNR

(WDNR, 2015) was followed in completing the wetland delineation and report.

Determinations and delineations utilized available resources mncluding the U.S. Geological

Survey's (USGS) WI 7.5 Mmute Senes (Topographic) Map (Figure 2, Appendix A), the

Natural Resource Conservation Service's (NRCS) Soil Survey Geographic Database

(SSURGO), U.S. Department of Agriculture's (USDA) Web Soil Survey (Figure 3, Appendix

A), the WDNR's Surface Water Data Viewer's wetland indicator data layer (Figure 4,

Append1x A), the WDNVR's Wisconsin Wetland Inventory data layer (Figure 5, Appendix A),

and aerial imagery available through the USDA Farm Service Agency's (FSA) National

Agriculture Imagery Program (NAIP) (Appendix A). The USGS National Hydrography Dataset

1s included on Figures 2 and 5, Appendix A.

Wetland determ1nat1ons were completed on-site at sample points, often along transects,

using the three (3) criteria (vegetation, soil, and hydrology) approach per the 1987 Corps

Manual and the Regional Supplement. Procedures in these sources were followed to

demonstrate that, under normal circumstances, wetlands were present or not present based

on a predominance of hydrophyt1c vegetation, hydric soils, and wetland hydrology.

Recent weather conditions influence the visibility or presence of certain wetland hydrology

indicators. An assessment of recent precip1tat1on patterns helps to determine 1f

climatic/hydrologc conditions were typical when the field investigation was completed.

Therefore, a review of the antecedent precipitation in the 90 daysleadmng up to the field

investigation was completed. Using an Antecedent Precicprtation Tool (APT) analysts

developed by the USACE (Deters & Gutenson 2021), the amount of prec1p1tat1on in these 90

days were compared to averages and standard devaton thresholds over the past 30 years

to generally represent if conditions encountered during the investigation were normal, wet,

or dry. Recent precipitation events in the weeks prior to the investigation were considered

while interpreting wetland hydrology indicators The Palmer Drought Seventy Index (PDSI)

Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources. Page 5



ASSURED WETLAND DELINEATION REPORT

Limitless Property Works
8979 South 424 Street Site
Project # 20220796
July 20, 2022

was calculated as part of the APT analysis to determine long-term drought or moist

conditions (NOAA, 2018).

The uppermost wetland boundaries were identified and marked with wetland flagging.

Wetland boundaries and sample pomnt locations were recorded with a Global Navigation

Satellite System (GNSS) receiver capable of sub-meter accuracy. In some cases, wetland

flagging was not utilized to mark the boundary and the location was only recorded with a

GNSS receiver, particularly in active agricultural and regularly mowed areas. The GNSS data

was then used to map the wetlands using ESRI ArcGIS Pro™ 3.0.0 software.

3.0 Results and Discussion

3.1 Desktop Review
Climatic Conditions

According to the APT analysis using the previous 90 days of precipitation data, conditions

encountered at the time of the fieldwork were expected to be normal for the time of year

(Appendix B). The Palmer Drought Seventy Index was calculated as part of the APT analysis

and the long-term cond1t1ons at the time of the fieldwork were mn the moderate drought

range. Fieldwork was completed within the dry-season based on long-term regional

hydrology data utilized in the WebWIMP Climatic Water Balance computed as part of the

APT analysis.

General Topography and Land Use

The topography w1th1n the Study Area was somewhat flat, with a ditch along its north

perimeter. A topographic high of approximately 744 feet above mean sea level (ms) Is

present on a hill near the western edge of the Study Area, while a topographic low of

approximately 740 feet above msl is in the ditch along the northern edge of the Study Area

(Figures 2 and 6, Appendix A) Land uses within and adJacent to the Study Area were noted

to be primarily wooded res1dental. General drainage Is to the east toward Oak Creek, which

lies approximately 800 feet east of the Study Area.

Soil Mapping

Soils mapped by the NRCS Soil Survey within the Study Area and therr hydrc status are

summarzed m Table 1. Wetlands dentfied during the field mnvestugaton are located

Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources. Page 6



ASSURED WETLAND DELINEATION REPORT

Limitless Property Works
8979 South 42nd Street Site
Project # 20220796
July 20, 2022

primarily within areas mapped as hydrtc or partially hydrc soils including wetland indicator

soils (Figures 3 and 4, Appendix A).

Table 1. Summary of NRCS Mapped Soils within the Study Area

Soil symbol: Soil Soil Unit Soil Unit HydricComponent LandformUnit Name Component Percentage status

BIA: Blount silt Blount 90-98 Moraines No
loam, 1-3% slopes

Ashkum 2-10 Depressions Yes

Wetland Mapping

The Wisconsin Wetlands Inventory (WWI) mapping (Figure 5, Appendix A) does not depict

wetlands or waterways w1th1n the Study Area. A forested wetland (T3K) area is depicted

west of the Study Area In add1t1on, an NHD Waterway 1s depicted south of the Study Area.

Previous Delineations and Landowner Contacts

Heartland is not aware of any previous wetland del1neat1ons completed in the Study Area.

The owner reports that the waterway along the northern edge of the Study Area was

constructed to convey stormwater east to Oak Creek from the subd1v1s1on that lies to the

west.

Aerial Photography

Reviewing the NAIP Imagery, there does not appear to have been significant changes mn the

Study Area since 2005.

3.2 Field Review
One (1) wetland area, associated with a likely excaved waterway, was identified and

delineated within and adjacent to the Study Area. Wetland determination data sheets

(Appendx C) were completed at two (2) sample points that were representative of the

wetland and upland cond1t1ons near the boundary and where potential wetlands may be

present based on the desktop review and field reconnaissance. Appendix D provides

photographs, typically at the sample point locations of the wetlands and adJacent uplands.

Other photographs of observed ditch wetlands and key plant species that provide evidence

the growing season 1s underway are also included. The wetland boundary and sample point

Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources. Page 7



ASSURED WETLAND DELINEATION REPORT

Limitless Property Works
8979 South 424 Street Site
Project #: 20220796
July 20, 2022

locations are shown on Figure 6 (Appendix A) and the wetlands are summarized In Table 2

and detailed in the following sections.

Table 2. Summary of Wetlands Identified within the Study Area

Wetland *Surface Water *NR151 AcreageWetland ID ProtectiveDescription Connections Area (on-site)

Contiguous with an Less
W-1 Shrub Carr Unnamed Tributary to susceptible, 0.01

Oak Creek 10-30 feet

Classification based on Heartland's professional opinion. Jurisdictional authority of
wetland and waterwayprotective areas under NR 151 lies with the WDNR Local 0.01
zoning authorities may have additional restrictions USACE has authority for
determining federal jurisdiction of wetlands and waterways

Wetland 1(W-1)

Wetland 1(W-1)1s an approximately 0.01 acre shrub carr associated with a ditch waterway

along the northern edge of the Study Area. The boundary of W-1 followed a well-defined

topographic break that comprises the channel of the ditch waterway.

W-1 was dominated by black raspberry (Rubus occ1denta/1s, UPL), prickly gooseberry (Rtbes

cynosbat, FAC), creeping Charlie (Glechoma hederacea, FACU), orange jewelweed

(Impatiens capens,s, FACW), and nee cut-grass (Leersta oryzotdes, OBL). The wetland

vegetation parameter was met based on most dominant species being hydrophytIc.

The Depleted Below Dark Surface (A110 and Depleted Matrx (F3) hydnc soil indicators were

noted mn W-1, which is not consistent with the Blount silt loam (BIA) sol type that is mapped

in the Study Area. The hydrtc sol parameter was met based on meeting a hydric soil

Indicator.

The primary wetland hydrology IndIcators of Standing Water (A1), High Water Table (A2),

Saturation (A3), and Drift Deposits (B3) were noted at the sample point completed in W-1

In add1t1on, the secondary indicators included Drainage Patterns (Bll) and GeomorphIc

Position (D2) Therefore the wetland hydrology parameter was met throughout W-1.

Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources. Page 8



ASSURED WETLAND DELINEATION REPORT

3.3

Limitless Property Works
8979 South 424 street Site
Project # · 20220796
July 20, 2022

Other Considerations
Thus report rs limited to the identrfcation and delineation of wetlands wrthin the Study Area.

Other regulated environmental resources that result mn land use restrictions may be present

within the Study Area that were not evaluated by Heartland (e.g. navigable waterways,

floodplains, cultural resources, and threatened or endangered species).

Wisconsin Act 183 provides exemptions to permitting requirements for certain nonfederal

wetlands. Nonfederal wetlands are wetlands that are not subject to federal Jurisdiction.

Exemptions apply to proJects m urban areas with wetland impacts up to 1-acre per parcel.

An urban area Is defined as an incorporated area; an area w1thm ½ mile of an incorporated

area; or an area served by a sewerage system. Exemptions for nonfederal wetlands also

apply to proJects m rural areas with wetland impacts up to three (3) acres per parcel.

Exemptions in rural areas only apply to structures with an agricultural purpose such as

buildings, roads, and driveways. The determination of federal and nonfederal wetlands

MUST be made by the USACE through an Approved Jurisdictional Determination (AJD). This

report may be submitted to the USACE to assist with their determination.

Wis. Adm. Code NR 151 ("NR 151") requires that a "protective area" (buffer) be determined

from the Ordinary High-Water Mark (OHWM) of lakes, streams and rvers, or at the

delineated boundary of wetlands. Per NR 151.12, the protective area width for "less

susceptible" wetlands Is determined by using 10% of the average wetland width, no less

than 10 feet or more than 30 feet. "Moderately susceptible" wetlands, lakes, and perennial

and intermittent streams 1dent1fied on recent mapping require a protective area width of 50

feet; while "highly susceptible wetlands" are associated with outstanding or exceptional

resource waters in areas of special natural resource interest and require protective area

width of 75 feet. Table 2 above lists the potential wetland buffers per NVR 151 for each

wetland 1dent1f1ed based on Heartland's professional opinion. Please note that Junsdict1onal

authority on wetland and waterway protective areas under NR 151 lies with the WDNR

Local zoning authont1es and regional planning organizations may have add1t1onal land use

restrictions within or adjacent to wetlands

Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources. Page 9



ASSURED WETLAND DELINEATION REPORT

Limitless Property Works
8979 South 42nd Street Site
Project # 20220796
July 20, 2022

Conclusion
Heartland completed an assured wetland determination and delineation on the 8979 South

42nd Street site on July 14, 2022 at the request of LPW. Fieldwork was completed by Enc C.

Parker, SPWS, an assured delineator qualified via the WDNR's Wetland Delineation

Assurance Program (Appendix E, Qualifications). The 0.17-acre Study Area Is southwest of

the intersection of West Woodward Drive and South 42nd Street, in the northwest ¼ of

Section 24, TSN, R21E, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, WI (Figure 1, Appendix A).

One (1) wetland area, located along a ditch-waterway, was delineated and mapped within

the Study Area (Figure 6, Appendix A). Delineated wetlands continue outside the Study Area

to the east and west. No water bodies were observed mn the Study Area. Wetlands and

waterways in the Study Area appeared to be artificial m origin.

Wetlands, waterways, and water bodies discussed m this report may be subject to federal

regulation under the jurisdiction of the USACE, state regulation under the jurisdiction of the

WDNR, and the local zoning authority. Heartland recommends this report be submitted to

the USACE and WDNR for final Jurisdictional review and concurrence. Review by local

authorities may be necessary applicable zoning and setback restrictions.

Heartland recommends that all applicable regulatory agency reviews and permits are

obtained prior to beginning work within the Study Area or within or adjacent to wetlands or

waterways Heartland can assist wrth evaluating the need for additional environmental

reviews, surveys, or regulatory agency coordination m cons1deratmn of the proposed activity

and land use as requested but Is outside of the scope of the wetland delineation.

Experienced and qualified professionals completed the wetland determination and

del1neat1on using standard practices and professional Judgment. Wetland boundaries may be

affected by cond1t1ons present within the Study Area at the time of the fieldwork. All final

dec1s1ons on wetlands and their boundaries are made by the USACE, the WDNR, and/or

sometimes a local urnt of government. Wetland determination and boundary reviews by

regulatory agencies may result in mod1ficat1ons to the findings presented to the Client.

These modifications may result from varying conditions between the tmme the wetland

delineation was completed and the time of the review. Factors that may influence the

findings may include but not limited to precipitation patterns, drainage modifications,

changes or mod1f1cat1on to vegetation, and the time of year.

Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources. Page 10



ASSURED WETLAND DELINEATION REPORT

5.0

Limitless Property Works
8979 South 42nd street Site
Project #: 20220796
July 20, 2022

References
Deters, J. & Gutenson, J. (2021). Antecedent Precipitation Tool (APT) [Electronic Source:

python source code]. See: GitHub - ]Deters-USACE/Antecedent-Preciptaton-Tool:

Eggers, S.D., & D. M. Reed. (2014). Wetland Plants and Plant Communtties of Minnesota

and Wisconsin (V. 3.1). U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Regulatory Branch, St. Paul, MN

District. See: http://www.mvp.usace.army.mil/.

Environmental Laboratory (1987). Corps of Engineers Wetlands De/meat/On Manual, Tech.

Report Y-87-1, U.S. Army Engineer Waterways Experiment Station, Vicksburg, MS.

Lichvar, R.W., D. L. Banks, W. N. Kirchner, and N.C. Melvin. (2016). The National Wetland

Plant List: 2016 wetland ratings. Phytoneuron 2016-30: 1-17. Published 28 April 2016.

ISSN 2153 733X. See: http://www.phytoneuron.net/.

Midwestern Regional Climate Center. (2014). c-MATE [climate data access tool]. See:

http: /Im rec. isws.ilhnrns.edu/CLIMATE/.

National Oceanic and Atmosphenc Administration (NOAA). (2015) Regional Climate Centers

Applied Climate Information System. WETS table. See: http://agacis.rcc-acrs org.

NOAA National Center for Environmental Information. (2018) Histonc Palmer Drought

Indices. See: https://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/temp-and-prec1p/drouqht/h1storical

palmers/psi/201512-201601.

Soil Survey Staff, Natural Resources Conservation Service, United States Department of

Agriculture (USDA) (2018). Sol Survey Geographic (SSURGO) Database See·

http ://webso1lsurvey.nrcs.usda.qov/ or htto://dataqatewav.nrcs.usda.qov/.

Soil Survey Staff, Natural Resources Conservation Service, USDA (2018). Web Soil Survey

See: http://websoilsurvey.nrcs. usda .gov/.

U.S Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources

(WDNR). (March 2015). "Gwdance for Submittal of De/meat1on Reports to the St. Paul

D1stnct Army Corps of Engineers and the W1sconsm Department of Natural Resources". See.

http://dnr.wt.aov/topic/wetlands/documents/FinalWisconsmnDelmneationGu1dance.pdf.

Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources. Page 11



ASSURED WETLAND DELINEATION REPORT

Limitless Property Works
8979 South 42d street Site
Project #. 20220796
July 20, 2022

USACE. Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engmeers Wetland Delmeatt0n Manual:

Midwest Region (Version 2.0). (2010). ed. J.S. Wakeley, R.W. LIchvar, and C.V. Noble.

ERDC/EL TR-10-16. Vicksburg, MS: U.S. Army Engineer Research and Development Center.

USACE St. Paul DIstrct & Minnesota Board of Water & Soil Resources. (July 2016). Gutdance

for Offstte Hydrology/Wetland Determmatt0ns. See:

http://www. mvo. usace.army.m1I/M1ssions/Regulatory/Delineation/.

United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Farm Service Agency (FSA). (1991-2020)

[Racine County, Wisconsin aeral photographs]. National Agriculture Imagery Program

(NAIP). Salt Lake City, UT: Aerial Photography Field Office.

USDA, Natural Resource Conservation Service (NRCS). (2010). Field Indicators of Hydnc

Sotls m the Untted States, Version 8.2 L M. Vaslas, G.W. Hurt, and C.V. Noble (eds.).

USDA, NRCS mn cooperation with the National Technical Committee for Hydric Soils

United States Department of the Interior (USDI), U.S. Geological Survey (USGS)

Wisconsin 7.5 Minute Series (Topographic) Maps. 1:24,000. Reston, VA.

USDI, USGS National Hydrography Dataset (NHD) 24K scale data. See:

https: //nhd. usgs.gov/.

Wetland Training Institute, Inc (WTI). (2010). Pocket guide to hydric soul field indicators.

(Robert J. Perce, Ed.). (7"ed ). Glenwood, NM: Wetland Training Institute, Inc.

Willmott, C.J. and K. Matsuura. (2016). Web-Based Water-Budget Interactive Mode/mg

Program (WebWIMP). University of Delaware Department of Geography. Newark, DE. See:

climate.geog.udel.edu/vwump/.

WDNR, Surface Water Data Viewer Interactive Web-mapping Tool. (2018). See·

https://dnr.w1 .gov/topic/surfacewater/swdv/.

WDNR, D1v1s1on of Water. (2010). [24k hydrography geospat1al data layer]. See:

ftp://dnrftp01.w1.gov/geodata/hydro 24k/.

WDNR, WIDNR Open Data. (2019) [Wisconsin Wetland Inventory Geodatabase] See:

httos://www.arcq1s.com/home/item.html?id=16119ac2100c4286ab82l9bf03377ebf.

Woodward, D.E. ed. (1997). Hydrology Tools for Wetland Determmatt0n, WETS Analysis,

Chapter 19. Engineering Field Handbook. USDA, NRCS, Fort Worth, TX.

Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources. Page 12



ASSURED WETLAND DELINEATION REPORT

Limitless Property Works
8979 South 42d Street Site
Project #: 20220796
July 20, 2022

Appendix A I Figures and NAIP Imagery

Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources.



Section 10 Section,1,1 Section 12 Section 7 ,

Section 15 Section 14

(
t ¢ $r

.,:1• Lt

Seeton 18

A

3 °
:>

Section 22 Section 23

5N 21E Cl

Section 24

6N 22E ,

Section 19

P

Section 27

N+
Section 26 Section 25 Section 30

(,1 et·nd,;I P
! A '

<mat th Mt lw

Oak •

D Study Area (0.17 ac)

r
[

0 1,000 2,00(1
Ft Heartland

ECOL.OL,IC./\L GROUP H·JC

Figure 1. Project
Location
8979 South 42nd Street
ProJect #20220796
TSN, R21E, 524
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

"'"'''"□ ] Township

l Section

OpenStreetMap
ESRI LRR MW



:

Section 10 Section 11 Section 12 Section 7

JJ;,·. \

LI
'- I I

:/l_

I/, ,.6 ,., ,_ ;-' l - I·- L.
,-

l
t I '

l
' I'

l, -Section 15 Section 14 Section 13 Section 18

I~
I

9

:/
.l

- -
1 '

'I

,,
f

I
-- I·~

I,;:

I '
•I

'<

" <
-- !l· ,,._~ I. ,I

;
- _, r:

' '
5N 21E I

Cl
I

-- I 5N 22E

Section 22 WISCON$i'!6lion 23 Section 24 I Section 19

I
,_ J_-

g tr

...
.E!L..~, , re lit'or . brr yo , ..,.- -~ . ...,.....,.,.,, ...,,,. rea.a.tea .«ye.yo«e ' ""=""" -=-----'~ "'T"'"" - ----~ ah ea o eseePPt,Mr~ -.rs

e.  ...,.,,.,_,_==-.......~• -~,..~ -~-~ :-~.
_ ..;

,,
J.1. (I

- i
-

~ Section 27 Section 26 Section 25 Section 30,.
" i

N I+ --

CJ ii\ :l i

I -'l t Study Area (0.17 ac) 0 1,000 2,000 HeartlandGt eendale fit
! l l Township ECOLOGICI\L GRO!_ f' INC

I Sn1 th \•1 lw ! _] Section Figure 2. USGS
+rat1kl □ Oak Ce

TopographyI
8979 South 42nd Street
Project #20220796

I TSN, R21E, S24

i C Franklin, Milwaukee Co
I

USGSTopoI USGS LRR MW



LRR MW

HeartlandAL GROUP INC

Figure 3. NRCS
Hydnc S011s
8979 South 42nd S
Proiect #20220796treet
TSN, R21E, S24
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

2020 Maxar Sat
NRCS '

sn
Ft

0

.r
I

I

·?\
..-+. ··,

t =~ .. '!:-

.J -4,;: •. • ,:">»

□

..9
c=J Study Area (0.17 ac) ~·

NRCS Soil Survey Data
Hydnc (100%)

Predommantlt
1

Y Hydnc (Ss-990, )

· Partial! H

10

Y ydnc (16-84%)

Predommantl N

=
=====''="-17 y on-Hydnc (1-1501i)on-Hydnc (0%) o

."'8a/' -~ }t. - :f:...l:'!t ...
-::: ~I ,;t

·'
._,.·
.,.

U,,?t· '



-r - - '\_
%

s
t

□

D Study Area (0.17 ac)

SWDV Wetland Indicators
0 so

Ft Heartland
[COLOGICAL GROUP INC

Figure 4. SWDV
Wetland Indicators
8979 South 42nd Street
ProJect #20220796
TSN, R21E, S24
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

2020 Maxar Sat.
WDNR LRR MW



i_ le-

$.
f

l.

$

•t4$
I

<C) WWI Wetland Polygons

Im WWI Wetland Points (No Features in Map Extent)

NHD Waterway

OND Waterbody (No Features in Map Extent)
□

D Study Area (0.17 ac) 0 50
Ft Heartland

ECOLOGICAL GROUP INC

Figure 5. Wisconsin
Wetland Inventory
8979 South 42nd Street
ProJect #20220796
TSN, R21E, 524
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

2020 Maxar Sat.
WDNR, USGS LRR MW



±±,,g
t, ~ \. 1

\ .

i~

li;i,~ ":°'
,.-,1,f.•
3 •
,.

N;z:

LRR MW

.
\,
i

¥
, , !,. ..-,I'.7t.:\ -j' .

;,,{1"",..' 1.

2020 Maxar Sat.
Milwaukee Co, HEG

Figure 6. Field
Delineated Wetlands
8979 South 42nd Street
ProJect #20220796
T5N, R21E, S24
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

Heartland
ECOLOGIC/'.\L GROUP INC

\
.;;- -:;,, --m~...

• «i

d:
Cr
it

c:J Study Area (0.17 ac)

Milwaukee Co 1' Contours

CJ) Field Delineated Wetlands (0 01 ac)

Waterways

1 _J Proposed Garage

Proposed Driveway

Sample Points
0 Upland

O Wetland

D

w ~1 r_,.·.:F1 '1 c'

:i
Ir



.,1 []study Area (0.17 ac)

□

O 100
Ft Heartland

ECOLOGICAL GROUP IC
Appendx: 2005-06-08
NAIP Aenal Imagery
8979 South 42nd Street
Project #20220796
TSN, R21E, S24
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

2005 NAIP
USDA



~,-,---,-----------7. D Study Area (0.17 ac)

□
S Heartland

ECOLOGICAL GROUP HK

Appendix: 2008-07-05
NAIP Aerial Imagery
8979 South 42nd Street
Project #20220796
T5N, R21E, S24
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

2008 NAIP
USDA



1[]Study Area (0.17 ac)

□

100
1Ft Heartland

ECOLOGICAL GROUP INC

Appendix: 2010-06-28
NAIP Aenal Imagery
8979 South 42nd Street
ProJect #20220796
TSN, R21E, S24
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

2010 NAIP
USDA

0



·r

□

D study Area (0.17 ac): O 100
Ft Heartland

.COLO±ICAL GROLU? IC

Appendix: 2013-06-19
NAIP Aerial Imagery
8979 South 42nd Street
ProJect #20220796
TSN, R21E, S24
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

2013 NAIP
USDA



1[]study Area (0.17 ac)

□
;

O 100
Ft Heartland

ECOLObICAL GROUP INC

Appendix: 2015-09-22
NAIP Aerial Imagery
8979 South 42nd Street
ProJect #20220796
TSN, R21E, S24
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

2015 NAIP
USDA



..1[]Study Area (0.17 ac)

□

O 100
1Ft Heartland

ECOLOGICAL GROU? IC

Appendx: 2017-09-22
NAIP Aerial Imagery
8979 South 42nd Street
ProJect #20220796
T5N, R21E, S24
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

2017 NAIP
USDA



□

D Study Area (0.17 ac) 100
1FE Heartland

ECOLOGICAL GROUO INC

Appendix: 2018-09-14
NAIP Aerial Imagery
8979 South 42nd Street
ProJect #20220796
T5N, R21E, S24
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

2018 NAIP
USDA

0



,I

I

'¥ $ii
. '

-;~ ! ti' r, r·' ' i .,;
l I . ' •

" ti
~··-~

3

tl \><;,A.' ,/ J i . . '/ .i•,~.' •. . 0

: , '(J,i' .,,, . ·\ ' . l f :· • ,,, .. ll.
, .. .. . .. -~ . _ -'.

1
_j ,·;- t .,, ., I ~

i
'f.

e

D Study Area (0.17 ac) 0 100----====:::::iFt I-Ieartland
ECOLOGICAL GROUP Ii'K

□
:

Appendix: 2020-05-01
Maxar Sat. Imagery
8979 South 42nd Street
ProJect #20220796
TSN, R21E, 524
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

2020 Sat. Imagery
Maxar



□

D Study Area (0.17 ac) 100
F t Heartland

[COLOGICAL GROUP HK

Appendx: 2020-09-02
NAIP Aerial Imagery
8979 South 42nd Street
Project #20220796
TSN, R21E, S24
C Franklin, Milwaukee Co

2020 NAIP
USDA

0



Regulo Martinez-Montilva
Appendix #2

From:

Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:

Follow Up Flag:
Flag Status:

Kramasz, Kathleen M - DNR <Kathleen Kramasz@wsconsmn gov> on behalf of DNR WMS Public
Inquiry <DNRWMSPubliclnqumry@wsconsm gov>
Thursday, September 8, 2022 7 17 AM
stefaniea@lim1tlesspropertyworks com
Masek, Alison M- DNR, Manon Eeks, Dillenburg, Marty R - DNR, Regulo Martinez-Montlva
RE Artificial wetland determination/Navigability determmnaton, Franklin, WI

Follow up
Flagged

Stefanie, 1t does appear that the stream on this property has a defined bed and banks and carries enough water during
the spring high water period to float a canoe so 1t would be considered navigable I am not sure how this wetland would
meet the artificial exemption but rt appears that most of the wetland 1s the actual stream corridor and state statutes
prohibit filling in a waterway so no filling mn the stream can be done anyway lt rs not worth submitting the artificial
wetland exemption smnce thus area cannot be filled m

Please let me know 1f you have any add1t1onal questions

We are committed to service excellence.
V1s1t our survey at http //dnr w1 gov/customersurvey to evaluate how I did

Kathi Kramasz
Phone (920) 893 8531
Kathleen kramasz@wsconsmn gov

From: Stefanie Andersen <stefaniea@lim1tlesspropertyworks com>
Sent: Wednesday, September 07, 2022 12 51 PM
To: DNR WMS Public Inquiry <DNRWMSPubliclnqu1ry@w1sconsin gov>, Masek, Alison M - DNR
<ahson masek@w1sconsm gov>
Subject: Artificial wetland determination/Navigability determination, Franklin, WI

ff {«1ii@#? ! f±ju ·ui et,d-"64rnl ft,
to t;pf#ff+fist'r sf 1tis f}, t±nit.nx? uilw@tax wjjrplt Ia wl rt!t fir+fit

Good afternoon,

We are the general contractor currently trying to obtain building permits for a detached garage build
at 8979 S 42ND ST, FRANKLIN, WI
We are in the rezoning application process and were told we needed to submit an assured wetland
delineation report to Franklin for review (which has been completed and is attached) Per the email from
the City of Franklin found below, 1n order to apply for permitting we also need to submit the following to
them:

• Artif1c1al wetland determination by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) and
the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE).

• Navigability determination by the WNDR.

1



(Note our wetland delineation reports states that "Heartland recommends this report to be
submitted to the USACE and WDNR for final Jurisdictional review and concurrence" (page
10).

I'm looking for assistance on how I should go about obtaining the determinations being requested by the
City of Franklin. Is there a standard process to complete this, or do you just need a copy of the
delineation report?

Any help is greatly appreciation.

Thank you,

Stefanie Andersen
Business Operations Manager
Limitless Property Works
stefaniea@limrtlesspropertyworks.com
(414) 540-8200
www l1m1tlesspropertyworks com

============ Forwarded message============
From: Regulo Martinez-Montilva <RMartinez-Montlva@franklinw.gov>
To: "'Karen Sartler'"<ksartler@dmheatinq.com>
Cc: "Aimee Schlueter"<ASchlueter@frankl1nw1.gov>, "Manon Ecks"<MEcks@frankllnw1.gov>, "Shan
Hanneman"<SHanneman@frankllnw1 .qov>, "'Stefanie
Andersen"' <stefan1ea@llm1tlesspropertyworks.com>, "'Kevin
EIiertson"'< kevine@l1m1tlesspropertyworks.com>, "csartler@qma1I com"<csartler@qma1l.com>, "Steve
Olson"<Solson@franklinw1.gov>, "Steve Olson"<steve-olson@wi.rr.com>
Date: Tue, 06 Sep 2022 16:11:16 -0500
Subject: RE: 8979 S 42ND ST
============ Forwarded message============

Dates added.

Mrs Sartler,

Per our phone conversation, your rezoning application has been scheduled as follows

• Recommendation and Public Hearing. Plan Comm1ss1on October 6, 7:00
pm, in the Common Council Chambers at City Hall.

• Decision. Common Council October 18, 6:30 pm, same location.

Since you have submitted the assured wetland delineation report requested by City Development staff,
no additional information from your end rs required for thus rezoning application lf your rezoning

2



application 1s approved, you still need to obtain building permits lt is worth noting that you will need to
submit the following information to the City Development Department pror to the issuance of building
permits

• Artificial wetland determination by the Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources (WDNR) and the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE).

• Nav1gabil1ty determination by the WNDR.

Note that the wetland delineation reports states that "Heartland recommends this report to be
submitted to the USACE and WDNR forfinal Junsd1ct1onal review and concurrence" (page 10)

For information about other submittal requirements for building permits, please contact the Inspection
Services Department at 414-425-0084

Thank you,

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP

Principal Planner - Department of City Development

City of Franklin

9229 W Loomis Road

Franklin, WI53132

Phone (414) 425 4024 / 427-7564

RMartinez-Montilva@frankhnw1 gov

Franklin

3



May 12, 2022

City of Franklmn

Planning & Zoning Department

9929 W Loomis Rd

Franklin, WI 53132

RE 8979 S 42nd Street, Franklin, WI 53132 (Parcel No 854-9952-000)

To Whom It May Concern

This rezoning application requests to rezone the north portion of 8979 S 42nd Street to solely a

R-3 Suburban/Estate S1ngle-Fam1ly Residence District to allow for the construction of a

detached garage Currently the area of property falls under a C-1 Conservation zone which

does not allow buildings

The rezoning 1s requested to construct a 30' by 30' garage on the North side of the house

Interior will be unfinished without power

If you have any questions regarding this request, please call Kevin at (262) 598-7742 Thank

you for your time and help

Sincerely,

Kevin EIiertson, Owner
L1m1tless Property Works LLC
General Contractor
(262) 598-7742

Chris Sartler
Property Owner
8979 S 42nd Street, Franklin, WI 53132
(414) 218-7804

Limitless Property Works LLC I PO Box 85185 I Racine, WI 53408 I 414 540 8200 I 1nfo@hm1tlesspropertyworks com



(/)
C

2m
-<0
2(/)
0
m
z'n
0
2m

JZf1£1E]EI@>@0

Ii mm0..,1"mG):a:6
+th

XX:i:0r)>nR en<!j
)>::;;,,mmFez --<z00a,z

m--<zc¥¢ zz,,0z rz,,m G)G)
z..,0--<Gyr-a

e
G)A00m
)>,,r::;s:,,0--<zo

mom
fe

!J;!z 0mm--< --<rzzmr0
,,z0,,'"z

-,,Q
5mm2o00

Om r"►--<m za--< m-'z
<:i m
0

8325.0SF
O19Acres

(reservedforroad)

"O,,
i T0"O

"O;o
3rn

"
rn

a:;o~"O
--<.,,)>

;,;-<.g;o
►rn

~
0g0
0

3.,, ;o0
rn2?J enen

1-u
E,1>
Is:l;o
ImIn
I;Im
-.lr

l->

"'"' ....(D
(D
(Dm a,

"' 01
01
0
q

0
37'91/2,z

g:
i

,-------v--x-7

I
O>

I
010-u 010)Q)
4

583 (Da,
X

X
)>010<O-

O<ii(/)0

I I
<ii(/)u-nO

~"
-3 O

=>-30a (1)=>g5 =g-!!!,,.enX
X

I

@>

c~~
;1I If,s00°11"00E18500' I.

(/)
a,
"'l
~
"' <D

z:;E
"' 9....

%"'
<D

01(D
01a,
0
o

0

"'0g

BEARINGSAREREFERENCEDTO
WLINEOFTHENWQUARTEROFSEC.
24-5-21BEARSN00°17'00'W

55500SF
O13Acres

(reservedforroad)

.§.42NDSI (60-ROWJ

soo·1TooEmsoo·

"'0g
------.L...----------------------'L..__



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL
$le

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Authorize a Consulting Services Agreement
withWrayburn Consulting, LLC for general

planning services

MEETING DATE
10/18/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.3.

BACKGROUND

The City Development Department is seeking Council approval to transfer $5,000 from the Salaries-FT
(full time) fund to the Other Professional Services account in the 2022 fiscal year.

City Development staff is requesting this reallocation of funds for a planning services agreement with
a budget of $5,000, specifically for development and plan review services, including but not limited to
items such as site plans, landscaping plans, lighting plans, architectural plans, certified survey maps
Planning services include is the review of site plans, landscaping plans, lighting plans, architectural
plans, certified survey maps, and other such plans that are part of or related to applications submitted
to the City Development Department.

This is the second agreement for planning services in the 2022 fiscal year, the Common Council
authorized a similar agreement with another consultant on September 20.

Note: in secton VI Insurance, the min1mum limits of $1,000,000/$2,000,000 for General/Commercial Liability
and $1,000,000 for Excess Liability, as this is an agreement for professional services, not for contractor services
that normally requires a minimum limit of $2,000,000/$4,000,000 and $10,000,000.

FISCAL IMPACT

General Fund budget, planning division, transferring $5,000 of Salaries-FT funds from account number
01-0621-5111 to the Other Professional Services budget account number 01-0621-5219.

City Development staff is requesting council approval to use budgeted personnel appropriations for
these consulting services due to the vacancy of the Planning Manager position. The purpose of the
funding is not changing, so no formal budget amendment is required.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize a Consulting Services Agreement with Wrayburn Consulting, LLC for general
planning services; utilizing 2022 budgeted personnel finds in the planning division budget; and
authorize the Mayor to execute and administer the appropriate, related contract.

City Development-RMM



AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT, made and entered into this_ day of , between the City of
Franklin, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 (hereinafter "CLIENT') and
Wrayburn Consulting, LLC (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"), whose principal place of business is
2000 Fairhaven Boulevard, Elm Grove, WI 53122.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR is duly qualified and experienced as a municipal services
contractor and has offered services for the purposes specified in this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, in the judgment ofCLIENT, it is necessary and advisable to obtain the services
of the CONTRACTOR to provide planning and zoning related services;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the following mutual
covenants, terms, and conditions, CLIENT and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

I. BASIC SERVICES AND AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A. CONTRACTOR shall provide services to CLIENT for development and plan
review services, including but not limited to items such as site plans, landscaping
plans, lighting plans, architectural plans, certified survey maps, and other such
plans that are part of or related to applications submitted to the City of Franklm
Planning Department. Additionally, services also include all general planning
services such as, but not limited to, site visits, presentation at meetings of boards
and commissions and the Common Council, customer support. and assisting
individuals in understanding and following the Unified Development Ordinance,
applications, and code and application processcs and requirements. as described
in CONTRACTOR's proposal to CLIENT dated September 21, 2022, annexed
hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment A.

B. CONTRACTOR shall serve as CLIENT's professional representative in matters
to which this AGREEMENT applies. CONTRACTOR may employ the services
of outside consultants and subcontractors when deemed necessary by
CONTRACTOR to complete work under this AGREEMENT following approval
by CLIENT.

C. CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and all persons furnishing services
hereunder are employees of, or independent subcontractors to, CONTRACTOR
and not ofCLIENT. AII obligations under the Federal Insurance Contribution Act
(FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and income tax
withholding are the responsibility of CONTRACTOR as employer. CLIENT
understands that express AGREEMENTS may exist between CONTRACTOR
and its employees regarding extra work, competition, and nondisclosure.

D. During the term of this AGREEMENT and throughout the period of performance
of any resultant AGREEMENT, including extensions, modifications, or additions
thereto, and tor a period of one ( l) year from the conclusion of such activity, the

Page-1



parties hereto agree that neither shall solicit for employment any technical or
professional employees of the other without the prior written approval of the
other party.

II. FEES AND PAYMENTS

CLIENT agrees to pay CONTRACTOR, for and in consideration of the performance of Basic
Services further described in Attachment A, [at our standard billing rates] [with a not-to-exceed
budget of $5,000], subject to the terms detailed below:

A. CONTRACTOR may bill CLIENT and be paid for all work satisfactorily
completed hereunder on a monthly basis. CLIENT agrees to pay
CONTRACTOR's invoice within 30 days of invoice date for all approved work.

B. Total price will not exceed budget of $5,000. For services rendered, monthly
invoices will include a report that clearly states the hours and type of work
completed and the fee earned during the month bemng invoiced.

C. In consideration of the faithful performance of this AGREEMENT, the
CONTRACTOR will not exceed the fee for Basic Services and expenses without
written authorization from CLIENT to perform work over and above that
described in the original AGREEMENT.

D. Should CLIENT find deficiencies in work performed or reported, it will notify
CONTRACTOR in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of mnvoice and
related report and the CONTRACTOR will remedy the deficiencies within thirty
(30) days of receiving CLIENT's review. Thus subsection shall not be construed
to be a limitation of any rights or remedies otherwise available to CLIENT.

Ill. MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A. CLIENT may, in writing, request changes in the Basic Services required to be
performed by CONTRACTOR and require a specification of incremental or
decremental costs prior to change order agreement under this AGREEMENT.
Upon acceptance of the request of such changes, CONTRACTOR shall submit a
"Change Order Request Form" to CLIENT for authorization and notice to
proceed signature and return to CONTRACTOR. Should any such actual
changes be made, an equitable adjustment will be made to compensate
CONTRACTOR or reduce the fixed price, for any incremental or decremental
labor or direct costs, respectively. Any claim by CONTRACTOR for adjustments
hereunder must be made to CLIENT in writing no later than forty-five (45) days
after receipt by CONTRACTOR ofnotice of such changes from CLIENT

IV. ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A Regulo Martinez-Montilva, Principal Planner. will coordinate the work of the
CONTRACTOR, and be solely responsible for communication within the
CLIENT's organization as related to all issues orgmnating under this
AGREEMENT

Page-2



B. CLIENT will timely provide CONTRACTOR with all available information
concerning PROJECT as deemed necessary by CONTRACTOR.

C. CONTRACTOR will appoint, subject to the approval of CLIENT, Nicholas
Fuchs CONTRACTOR's Project Manager and other key providers of the Basic
Services. Substitution ofother staff may occur only with the consent ofCLIENT.

V. TERMINATION

A. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by CLIENT, for its convenience, for
any or no reason, upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. This
AGREEMENT may be terminated by CONTRACTOR upon thirty (30) days
written notice. Upon such tennination by CLIENT, CON"J RACI OR shall be
entitled to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONTRACTOR for all work approved up to the date of termmation, except
that no amount shall be payable for any losses of revenue or profit from any
source outside the scope of th1s AGREEMENT, mcluding but not limited to.
other actual or potential agreements for services with other parties.

B. In the event that this AGREEMENT is terminated for any reason,
CONTRAC TOR shall deliver to CLIENT all data, reports, summaries.
correspondence, and other written, printed, or tabulated material pertaining in
any way to Basic Services that CONTRACTOR may have accumulated Such
material is to be delivered to CLIENT whether in completed form or in
process. CLIENT shall hold CONTRACTOR harmless for any work that 1s
1ncomplete due to early termination.

C. The rights and remedies of CLIENT and CONTRACTOR under this section
are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or appearing in any other article ofthis AGREEMENT.

VI. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall. during the life of the AGREEMENT, mamtain insurance coverage with
an authorized insurance carrier at least equal to the minimum limits set forth bclow.

$1,000,000/$2,000.000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$500,000
$2.000,000

Limit ofGeneral/Commercial Liability
Automobile Liability. Bodily Injury/Property Damage
Excess Liability for General Commercial or Automobile Liability
Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability
Professional Liability

A.
B.
C.
D.
E.

The CLIENT shall be named as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory basis for
General/Commercial L1ability, Auto Liabtltty, and Excess Ltabltty.

The CONTRAC IOR shall provide a waiver of subrogation and/or any rghts of recovery allowed
under and worker's compensation law

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall supply CLIENT with a suitable
statement certifying said protection and defining the tenns of the policy issued, which shall specify

Page-3



that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days prior notice to CLIENT,
and naming CLIENT as an additional insured for General Liability.

VII. INDEMNIFICATION AND ALLOCATION OF RISK

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold
harmless CLIENT, CLIENT'S officers, directors, partners, and employees from and
against costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to reasonable fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and reasonable
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent
acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or CONTRACl OR'S officers, dlt'ectors,
partners. employees, and consultants in the performance of CONTRACTOR'S
services under this AGREEMENT.

B. Nothing contained within this AGREEMENT 1s mtended to be a waiver or cstoppel
of the contracting municipality CLIENT or its insurer to rely upon the limitations.
defenses, and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including those contained
within Wisconsin Statutes $$ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that
indemnification is available and enforceable, the municipality CLIENT or its insurer
shall not be liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the limits
of liability for municipal claims established by Wisconsin Law

VIII. TIME FOR COMPLETION

CONTRACTOR shall commence work immediately having received a Memorandum from the
Department ofCity Development.

IX. DISPUTES

This AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of W15consin
The venue for any actions arising under this AGREEMENT shall be the Circuit Court for Milwaukee
County. The prevailing party shall be awarded its actual costs of any such litigation, including
reasonable attorney fees.

X. RECORDS RETENTION

CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records pertaining to this AGREEMENT during the term of this
AGREEMENT and for a period of 3 years following its completion. Such records shall be made
available by the CONTRACTOR to CLIENT for inspection and copying upon request

XI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A.

B

Professionalism. The same degree ofcare, skill and diligence shall be exercised in the
performance of the services as is possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profession, Lurrently practicing, under similar circumstances, and all persons
providing such services under this AGREEMENT shall have such active
cc11ifications, licenses and permissions as may be required by law.

Pursuant to Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary anywhere else set forth
wIthmn thus AGREEMENl, all services and any and all materials and/or products
provided by CONTRACTOR under this AGREEMENT shall be m compliance with

Page-4



all applicable governmental laws, statutes, decisions, codes, rules, orders, and
ordinances, be they Federal, State, County or Local.

C. Conflict of Interest. CONTRACTOR warrants that neither it nor any of its affiliates
has any financial or other personal interest that would conflict in any manner with the
performance of the services under this Agreement and that neither it nor any of its
affiliates will acquire directly or indirectly any such interest. CONTRACTOR
warrants that it will immediately notify the CLIENT ifany actual or potential conflict
of interest arises or becomes known to the CONTRACTOR. Upon receipt of such
notification, a CLIENT review and written approval is required for the CLIENT to
continue to perform work under this Agreement.

D. This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONTRACTOR.

XU. CONTROLLING TERMS AND PROVISIONS

The aforesaid terms and provisions shall control over any conflicting term or prov1s1on of any
CONTRACTOR proposal, Attachment, Exhibit, and standard terms and provisions annexed hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above written.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BY _

PRINT NAME Stephen R Olson

TITLE Mayor

DATE _

OY _

PRINT NAME De111se D Gilbert

TITLE Director of Finance and Treasurer

DATE

BY _

PRINT NAME Sandra L Wesolowski

TITLE. City Clerk

DATE

Approved as to form

Wrayburn Consulting, LLC

2BY .-> 7.
I

PRINT NAMr ?ra.1 Zs
rt 2/a-.1 G.y 0

DAT o/? /2o2z
7 7

Page-5



Jesse A Wesolowski, City Attorney
[)']},

Page-6



BLANK PAGE



srro"

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

PARKS COMMISSION REQUEST FOR
REVIEW OF PARKS MARKETING

MATERIALS

MEETING DATE

October 18, 2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.4.
The Parks Commission would like to promote the City of Franklin Park System and
provide the public with consolidated information about parks through updated
marketing materials and maps. To that end, Commissioner Karen Malecki has
drafted the attached draft Park and Trail Map for the Common Council's
consideration and feedback. This item has been reviewed by the Parks Commission,
as well as staff from Planning, Public Works, and the Clerk's Office.

If the Council desires, the map may be added to the City's website or printed for the
public.

The Commission is developing additional materials such as a brochure and park
amenity donation policy that will be provided for review at a future date.

Fiscal Note

This item was not budgeted for in the 2022 parks budget. Commissioner Malecki
donated her time and graphic design skills to produce the map.

If it is desirable to print the map for public distribution, funds would need to be
appropriated accordingly. The cost of printing full-color 8.5 x 11 inch pages is
$0.4389 per page or about $110 to print 250 pages. However it may be desirable to
print these materials at a larger scale.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Feedback on the attached draft map.

And/or

A motion to take action on the above item as the Common Council deems appropriate.

Department of City Development. MX



%k&k@
GIIo
t«40)

RtRLA ts pp4 ft v t
«·Pu

Franklin Community
Education & Recreation Dept.
Franklin High School• 8222 S. 51st St.
(414 ) 423-4646 frankllnwi.myrec.com

Dog Friendly Parks
Dogs must beleased {no longer than6), havecurrent license, and under
control of theowner. Owners are required by law to pik up after adog
cg Stations (indludeplasticbags and trash reepta dle) areavailableat
indicated parks. Owners are responsiblefer any injuries caused by their
dogs. TheGty of franklin / Milwaukee (County are NOT liable for the
action of any doq within or cutsidethebcundaries of the parks.

20\? aseba Diamond
~ Rentals Available

Franklin Public Schools
District offe +8255 W. ForestHill Ave.· 414-529-8220

8) Ben Franklin 7620s83rd St.

$) country Dale 7380 S. North Cape Rd.

$9 Forest Park Middle 8255 W. Forest Hill Ave.

g) Franklin High 8222$s.51 St.

~ Pleasant View 4601 W. Marquette Ave.

~ Robinwood 1070SW.Robinwoodln.

f Southwood Glen 9090 s. 35th St.

<q Milwaukee County Sports Complex
6000 W. Ryan Rd. Acreage: 116 .5
The sports complex is a year-round multi-use
athletic and expo facility hub, including 55,000
square foot indoor gymnasium and five multi
use outdoor fields that hosts:
Indoor: Volleyball, Soccer, Basketball
Outdoor: Disc-golf course, football, rugby/

soccer fields and athletic trail segment

33) Oak Leaf Trail - Root River Line 'y me Oak Leaf Trail is thejewel in the crown of
Milwaukee County's extensive trail system.
The trail meanders for more than 135 miles in
and around the Milwaukee County.
The Root River Line is a 18.9 mile extension of
the Oak Leaf Trail and is moderately trafficked
point-to-point trail located in Franklin, that
features a lake and bridges and is good for all
skill levels. The trail is primarily used for walking,
bird watching, running, ro ller blading, and road
biking and is accessible year-round.

a) oakwood Park/ Golf Coursey 3600 W. Oakwood Rd. Acreage: 276
(414) 281-6700 http://mke.golf/oakwood
Oakwood is the longest in length of Milwaukee
County Parks' golf courses at over 7,000 yards,
although four sets of tee boxes allow it to be
enjoyable for a golfer of any skill level.

'

Savanna Nature Preserve (No. 409)
Wisconsin State Natural Area Acreage: 85
Franklin Savanna is an outstanding example
of the oak savanna community. Home to rare
plants, animals, natural communities. Currently
under restoration. www.mkeconservancy.org

66) Southwood Glen Parky 3180 W. Hilltop Ln. Acreage:9
Leased by Franklin Public Schools.
Shrubs and trees, sand volleyball, soccer field,
baseball diamond.

a7) St. Martins ParkY 1070S W. Robinwood Ln. Acreage: 1.75

es) Whitnall Park
/ss79s.92ds. Acreage: 625

(414) 425-7303
A beautiful wooded park featuring the Wehr
Nature Center, Boerner Botanical Gardens, a
championship golf course, miles and miles of
walking/biking trails, waterfall, pond, and
multiple picnic sites.

L iris
@)1
41

Located in Franklin,Wisconsin

Milwaukee County Park System
Building & Field Rentals (414) 281-2694

Parks Information (414) 257-PARK (7 275)
https://countyparks.com

ea) Froemming Park, y 88015.SlstSt. Acreage:16.9
Picnic area with shelter, baseball and softball
diamonds, sand volleyball, tot lot, playarea,
Oak leaf Trail (paved multi-use trail), parking lot,
restrooms.

6i) Grobschmidt Parky 3751 W.ColtegeAve. Acreage: 152
A bit ofwilderness that borders a residential
community in Greenfield. The trail in is non
descript, just a grass path mostly unimproved
natural area to Mud Lake.

Miles 2.1Paved bike and hiking trail with benches.

Victory Creek Special Park /Trail lj;
East of PleasantView Park Acreage: 84.6
Paved bike and hiking trail, passive prairie and wetlands with
benches. Mowed trail for cross country running and skiing, dog
sledding. Access and parking available at PleasantView Park.

Franklin City Parks/Trails
Nore: Surrounding fonds are private.

Cascade Creek Park '
8300 S.60th St Acreage: 8.7
Grass open space and passive woodlands with benches.

Christine Rathke Memorial Park/Trail 8 gf
7700 5. 68th St. Acreage: 6.5
Play structures, ball diamond, picnic tables, benches and paved
walking trail, and parking area.

Crooked Creek Walking Trail
W. Forest Hill Ave. to S. 44th St
Limestone walking trail

Dr. Lynette Fox Memorial Park
6860 S. Harvard Dr. Acreage: .4
Play structure, picnic tables and benches

Ernie Lake Park/Trail
8000 S. Chapel Hill Dr. Acreage: 13.2
Paved walking trail, picnic tables, adult exercise equipment,
benches, and bridge.

Friendship Park/Trail lj;
3810 W. Sharon Ln. Acreage: 1.6
Paved walking trail, play structure, grass ball diamond,
basketball half court, picnic tables and shaded seating areas
and benches.

Glenn Meadows Park
7362 5. 37th Pl. Acreage: 1
Play structure, basketball court, picnic tables and benches.

Jack E. Workman Park /Trail
3674 W. Forest Hill Ave. Acreage: 12
Asphaltwalking trail, play structure, ball diamond, tennis court,
basketball court, volleyball court, picnic tables and benches.

Meadowlands Park/ Trail
8665 W. EIm Ct. Acreage: 14
Wetland area. Limestone walking trail with benches.

Mission Hills Wetlands
Approx. 10400W. Church St. Acreage: 13.6
Grass open space and passive woodlands with benches.

River Park Trail
Asphaltwalking trail with bridge and bench.

~

Robinwood Trail :;;18
Trail between St. Martins Rd., Allwood Dr. and Robinwood
School (St. Martins Park) area.

6) s. Martins Hike and Bike Trail Linky Rawson Ave. (near Ken Wind/Park) heading south to Swiss St.&
follows 116th St. right-o f-way past Ryan Rd .
Intersection westward (crosses ForestHome Ave. &N. Cape Rd.)
connecting to Muskego Recreation Trail

GENERAL PARK
HOURS ARE FROM
DAWN TO DUSK.

The following City parks (#'s 1-6) may be rented.
Visit www.franklinwi.gov > Parks

for information on how to reserve a park.
f:'y-,'I QUESTIONS? (414) 425-7500 (Cil)'Clerk)

Monday-Friday • 8:30am-5.00pm
9229 W.Loomis Rd. · Franklin, WI53132

G) Franklin Woods Nature Center Paviliony Home of Kayla's Playground ,•j;
3723W. Puetz Rd. Acreage: 38.4
Kayla's play structure at Franklin Woods was a mission of
Kayla's Krew. The Krewworked wholeheartedlywith the
City of Franklin to build an all-accessible, all-inclusive play
structure in Franklin to be inspiring and truly all-accessible for
all children and families of any age and ability.
• Open air pavilion (renta/ovailoble I lom-8pm)
• All-inclusive ADA Play Structure • Restrooms
• Natural Area with limestone Walking Trail• Picnic Tables
· Benches ·Paved Walking Trail ·Paved Parking Area

(2) Ken Windl Park Pavilion
1161sw.Rawson Ave. Acreage:3 38
• Indoor pavilion {NC, Heated)
(Rental available 1 lom-Bpm • year-round)

• Gazebo • Picnic Tables · Benches . Play Structure
• Combination Tennis and Pickleball Courts
. Restrooms · Access to St. Martins Bike & Hiking Trail

(3) Lions Legend Park - Lions Pavilion ;y?y SOSO S. Legend Dr. Acreage: 14 ~
• Open Air Pavilion (rental available 1 1am-8pm)
• PicnicTables• Benches• Paved Walking Trail
• Play Structure • Tennis Courts • Volleyball Courts
• Ball Diamond • Restrooms · Band Shell /rental available)
· Historical Buildings (rental available)

Lions Legend Park II - , )K'!(?
Vernon E. Barg Pavilion 6f?
8717W.Drexel Ave. Acreage: 21
• Open air pavilion (rental available I lam-Bpm)
• PicnicTables · Benches .Paved Walking Trail
, Play Structure Paved Parking Area ·Pickleball Courts
• Tennis Court • Volleyball Court• Soccer Field
• Ball Diamond • Restrooms

Market Square Gazebo
11230W. Franklin St. Acreage. .S
• Gazebo (rental available 1am8pm)
• Picnic Tables• Benches

Pleasant View Park Pavilion
4620 W. Evergreen St. Acreage: 23.8
· Indoor/outdoor pavilion (Heated)
{Rental available 1 lam-Bpm - year-round)

• PicnicTables• Play Structure• Ball Diamond
· Tennis Courts · Pickleball Courts Volleyball Court
• Restrooms • Paved Trails ·Benches ·Paved Parking Area



APPROVAL

3h0
Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

AResolution for Acceptance of a
Storm Water Facilities Maintenance Agreement and a

Storm Water Management Access Easement
for 5500 W. Oakwood ParkDrive, TKN 931-0005-000

MTG.DATE
October 18, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.5.
BACKGROUND
The City of Franklin, Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD), and Wisconsin
Department of Natural resources (WDNR) require storm water management facilities for any
developments which meet thresholds as defined in their individual ordinances and rules. These
facilities as designed may be for quantity and/or quality control. In the City of Franklin these are
typically wet ponds, biofiltration basins, and/or permeable pavers, although other best
management practices (BMPs) are also available. As a MMSD customer and designated by the
WDNR as a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System, the City's Ordinance is written to not only
include City quantity requirements, but also MMSD quantity requirements, and WDNR quantity
and quality requirements. The facilities within private developments are involved in those credits.
Therefore, ongoing maintenance ofprivate facilities is imperative.

It is the responsibility of the development owner, or a subdivision homeowners association, to
maintain the storm water facilities in perpetuity per a prescribed maintenance agreement. The
access easement allows for the City the right of entry in and across the easement area to access the
storm water management facilities, and, if needed to inspect, maintain, or repair the facilities.

ANALYSIS
It is recommended that the Common Council authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said the
storm water facilities maintenance agreement and the storm water management access easement,
and have them recorded with the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County.

FISCAL NOTE
All costs associated with storm water facilities maintenance are to be paid by the development
owner or homeowmers association as stated in the individual agreement.

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2022- a resolution for acceptance of a storm water
facilities maintenance agreement and a storm water management access easement for 5500 W.
Oakwood Park Drive, TKN 931-0005-000.

Engineering: TAB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 

A RESOLUTION FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A
STORM WATER FACILITIES MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT AND A

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT ACCESS EASEMENT
FOR 5500 W. OAKWOOD PARK DRIVE, TKN 931-0005-000

WHEREAS, storm water facilities are required to meet quantity and quality standards;
and

WHEREAS, a maintenance agreement is developed and executed to ensure effective
maintenance and operation of private storm water facilities in perpetuity; and

WHEREAS, an access easement is necessary to allow the City right of entry in and across
the easement area to access the storm water management facilities.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin that it would be in the best interest of the City to accept such Storm Water Facilities
Maintenance Agreement and Storm Water Management Access Easement, and, therefore, the
Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute them on behalf of the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to record said maintenance
agreement and access easement with the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of,2022, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



STORM WATER FACILITIES
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

Custom Fabrication and Supplies
5500 W. Oakwood Park Drive

Tax Key 9310005000 J
This AGREEMENT, made and entered into this~ day of /4x.., rJ-, 202 2 ,

by and between HL Investment Properties LLP, hereikReFcalled the "Owner', and the City of
Franklin, hereinafter called the "City".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of the following described lands situated in the City
of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, to-wit:

Lot 8, Block 5, in Franklin Industrial Park Addition No. 1, being a Subdivision of lands in
part of the Southeast 1/4 and Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 26, Town 5
North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Hereinafter called the "Property". WHEREAS, the Owner is developing the Property; and

WHEREAS, the Site Plan known as Custom Fabrication and Supplies hereinafter called the
"Plan", which is expressly made a part hereof, as approved or to be approved by the City,
provides for on-site Storm Water Facilities within the confines of the Property as shown on the
plan attached hereto as Exhibit "B" and more particularly described on Exhibit "C"; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Owner, its successors and assigns ("successors and assigns"
meaning to include any homeowners' association and all owners of the property or any portion
thereof), including any homeowners association, agree that the health, safety, and welfare of the
residents of the City of Franklin, require that on-site Storm Water Facilities as defined in Section
15-8.0600 Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin be constructed and
maintained on the Property; and

WHEREAS. the City requires that on-site storm water management practices as shown on
the Plan be constructed and adequately maintained by the Owner, its successors andassigns.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual covenants
contained heremn, and the following terms and conditions, the parties hereto agree as follows.

1. The on-site storm water facilities shall be constructed by Owner in accordance with the
plans and specifications which are identified as part of the storm water management
plan dated 11/3/2021 and erosion control plan dated 11/3/2021 approved by the City
Engineer and submitted as part of the as-built drawings approved by the City Engineer.
Fountains and/or aerators shall not be installed in any ponds without prior written
approval from the City Engineer.



2 The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall comply with the ordinances and regulations
which require that the Storm Water Facilities shall be regularly inspected and maintained
as often as conditions may require, but in any event, at least once each year. The
Standard Operation and Maintenance Report attached to thus agreement as Exhibit "A"
and by this reference made a part hereof shall be used for the purpose of the regular
inspections of the Storm Water Facilities. The Owners, its successors and assigns, shall
keep the Operation and Maintenance Reports from past inspections, as well as a log of
maintenance activity indicating the date and type ofmaintenance completed of the Storm
Water Facilities. The purpose ofthe inspections is to assure safe and proper functioning
of the facilities. The inspections shall cover all storm water facilities, including but not
limited to open swales (ditches), storm sewers, manholes. inlets, berms, outlet structures,
pond areas and access roads. Deficiencies shall be noted in the Operation and
Maintenance Report. The Reports and maintenance log shall be made available to the
City forreview.

3. The Owner, its successors and assigns, hereby grant permission to the City, its authorized
agents and employees, to enter upon the Property and to inspect the Storm Water
Facilities, whenever the City deems necessary. The purpose of inspection is to provide
periodic review by City staff, to investigate reported deficiencies and/or to respond to
citizen complaints. The City shall provide the Owner, its successors and assigns, copies
of the inspection findings and a directive to commence with the repairs if necessary.
Corrective actions shall be taken within a reasonable time frame as established by the
City Engineer.

4. The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall adequately maintam the Storm Water
Facilities, including but not limited to all pipes and channels built to convey storm water
to the facility, as well as all structures, improvements, and vegetation provided to control
the quantity and quality of the storm water. Adequate maintenance is herein defined as
keeping the Storm Water Facilities in good working condition so that these storm water
facilities are performing their design functions and are in accordance with the Stormwater
Basin Maintenance Standards as detailed in Section 15.8.0600 of the City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance, and Section 13.12 (2) of the Milwaukee Metropolitan
Sewerage District (MMSD) rules, and by this reference made a parthereof.

5. If the Owner, its successors and assigns fail to maintain the Storm Water Facilities in
good working condition acceptable to the City and does not perform the required
corrective actions in a time as established by the City Engineer in written notice, the City
may:

a) Issue a citation to the Owner, 1ts successors and assigns. Such failure constitutes a
violation ofSection 15.8.0600 ofthe Unified Development Ordinance ofthe City of
Franklin. The penalty for such violation ofSection 15.8.0600 shall be not less than
$100 nor more than $2500 for each offense, together with the costs of prosecution.
Each day that the violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, and

b) Perform the corrective actions identified in the inspection report and assess the
Owner, its successors and assigns, for the cost ofsuch work. The cost ofsuch work
shall be specially charged against the Property pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes
Section 66.0627. If the facilities are located on an outlot owned collectively by a
homeowner's association, the City may specially charge each member of the
homeowner's association according to the ownership Interest in the facilities located
on the property. This provision shall not be construed to allow the City to erect any
structure ofpermanent nature on the land ofthe Owner outside of the easement for
the Storm Water Facilities. It is expressly understood and agreed that the City is
under no obligation to routinely mamntamn or repair said storm water management
practices and in no event shall this Agreement be construed to impose any such
obligation on the City

2



6. In the event the City, pursuant to this Agreement and applicable easements performs work
of an emergency nature, or expends any funds in performance of said work for labor, use
of equipment, supplies, materials, and the like, the Owner, its successors and assigns,
shall reimburse the City upon demand, within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof for all
actual costs incurred by the Cityhereunder.

7. This Agreement imposes no liability of any kind whatsoever on the City and the Owner
agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless from any liability in the event the Storm
Water Facilities fail to operate properly.

8. This Agreement shall be attached as an exhibit to any document which creates a
homeowners association that is responsible for maintenance of the Storm Water Facilities
and shall be recorded at the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, and shall constitute a
covenant running with the land, and shall be binding on the Owner, its administrators,
executors, assigns, heirs and any other successors in interest, including any homeowners
association and all owners of the property or any portion thereof. The owner shall provide
the City with a copy of any document which creates a homeowner's association that is
responsible for the Storm Water Facilities.

9. The owner, its successors and assigns, is prohibited from building structures. installing
play equipment, installing plants, changing grades or performing any function that
inhibits care and maintenance of any Storm Water Facilities.

10. The owner, its successor and assigns shall maintain, at all times, an individual(s) who will
serve as a contact person(s).

3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Owner have set forth their hands and seals, effective the
date first above written.

s««so av«sci •l L
Lthi,,,r, o. ;Owner

zz3°
STATE OF WISCONSIN) ss. ,,""""'"""•,,,

Hoss4-- coUNTY) s"!S.%,
? so so°

Personally came store me cots 2?" a»yor huu±- .20a, e $so7a, Y%¥
named tlnr fit 4 HLIN , Inc , to me known to be the person wto ck%, -iz4
the foregoing mstrument and acknowledged the same in the capaceiy indicated. kl'suc } j·"- s'111'-,,_ ~--......... ✓

Lrug-----4-tdtvWIS
Notary Public,zwe-r----_County, WI ,,,,., --'
My commission expires: 3·3l-20a

CITY OF FRANKLIN

___________(Seal)By:
Name: Stephen R. Olson
Title: Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED:
___________(Seal)By:

Name: Sandra L. Wesolowski
Title: City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN) ss.
MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

Personally came before me this day of , 20_, the
above named Stephen R. Olson, Mayor and Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk, of the above named
municipal corporation, City ofFranklin, to me known to be such Mayor and City Clerk of said
municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the foregoing instrument as such
officers as the Deed ofsaid municipal corporation by its authority and pursuant to the Resolution
File No., adopted by its Common Council on this day of _
20__.

Notary Pubhe, Milwaukee County, WI
My commission expires: _

This instrument was drafted by the City Engmeer for the City ofFranklm
Form approved· _

Jesse A Wesolowski, City Attorney
4



EXHIBIT "A"

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INSPECTIONREPORT
STORMWATERMANAGEMENT PONDS

City of Franklin

Name ofDevelopment Custom Fabrication:d Suo:es

Responsible Party Name 5]ZtJ w (k/a.vn:r,.J ~--L l) /\Address _

Telephone No //2120O Fax No //2220 E-mail_ Inspector Name

____________Address I Telephone NoFax No

••el-.le
Basin Location General Address 5500 W. oakfood Park Dr. Section No. --------
NormalPool 0Yes 0No

Items inspected Checked Maintenance Remarks
(Pond components) (Yes/No/NA) Needed

(Yes/No/NA)
1 Embankment and Emergency spillway

l Vegetat10n and ground cover adequate
2. Embankmenterosion
3 Animal burrows
4 Unauthonzed plantings
5 Cracking, bulging, or sliding ofdam

l Upstream face
2 Downstream face
3 At or beyond toe

Upstream
Downstream

4 Emergency spillway
6 Pond, toe & chimney drams functioning
7. Seeps/leaks on downstream face
8 Slope protect10n or nprap failures
9 Emergency spillway clear ofdebns

10 Other (specify)
2 RIser and principal spillway

Type Reinforced concrete
Corrugated metal pipe
PVC/HOPE --
Masonry

I Low flow orifice obstructed
2 Primary outlet structure

l Debris removal necessary
2 Corrosion control

3 Trash rack maintenance
1. Debns removal necessary
2 Corrosion control

3 Pond bottom
Sediment or debns buildup m low flow
Pilot channel or bottom (estimate depth)

5

E-mail



EXHIBIT "A-1"

GUIDELINES/PROCEDURES FOROPERATION AND MAINTENANCE
OF STORMWATER DETENTION POND

Inspections

1) Inspections of ponds should be at a mm1mum of once per year We further recommend that ponds be
inspected on a monthly basis for debris, and that discretion be used for mspect1ons after maJor storm events
and to address any seasonal issues (mosquitoes, algae, vegetation, etc.). lt is recommended that if only one
Inspection per year is performed, that tt be during wet weather conditions to determine if the ponds are
functioning properly

2) Inspection priorities shall include

a) Visual observation of the embankments for subsidence, erosion, cracking and woody plant material
growth.

b) Visual observation of the conditions of the emergency spillway
c) Visual observation of accumulation of sediment and debris in the outlet structure
d) Visual obstruction of the adequacy of upstream and downstream channel erosion protection

measures
e) Visual observation and confirmation of any mod1ficat1on of the contributory watershed
f) Visual observation of the pond and any channel side slope integrity.
g) Visual observation of filter strip areas for signs of erosion

3) As-bu tit plans shall be used for reference during the inspection procedures

Mowing

1) The side slopes and embankments shall be mowed at least two times per year to prevent the growth of
woody plants and control weed growth

2) Periodic mowing of grass swales and filter strips will encourage vigorous grass cover and allow better
inspections for erosion

3) Add1t1onal mowing to further control the growth of weeds may be completed at the d1scret1on of owner

Debris and Litter Removal

1) Debrs and litter shall be removed from pond area
2) Debris and litter shall be removed from the primary and emergency outlet structures to prevent clogging

Erosion Control

1) If the pond side slopes, emergency spillway and embankment show evidence of slumping and/or erosion,
corrective measures such as re-grading, riprap, replacement and re-vegetation may be required The
owner shall complete the appropriate corrective measure to repair the problem.

Nuisance Control

1) Dependmg on the type of above ground storm water management basin, nuisance control may or may not
be required Field cond1t1ons shall dictate the need for nuisance control.

2) If apphcable, b1olog1cal control of nuisance algae and mosquitoes utlhzing flat head minnows should be
considered m heu of chemical controls

3) If apphcable, mechanical control of these nuisances may be considered as another option to chemical or
biological control

6



EXHIBIT "A-2"

Outlet Structure

1 Visual inspection of components shall be performed and debris removed from inlet and storm dram
pipes.

2. Repair inlet/outlet areas, which are damaged or show signs of erosion
3 Repars must restore the component to the specifications of the original plan

NON-ROUTINE MAINTENANCE PROCEDURES

Structural Repairs and Replacement

1) Eventually, the primary outlets for the ponds will deteriorate and will need replacement Routine
maintenance and inspections will insure longevity of structures

Sediment Removal

1) Unless otherwise specified in the storm water management plan, sediment clean out cycle Is
recommended every 10 to 20 years It 1s recommended that sediment be removed from the permanent
pool area once the permanent pool depth is less than 3 feet.

2) Bottom surveys of the sediment depth should be completed on a 5-year basts If the sediment survey
reveals an accelerated deposition rate, upstream conditions should be inspected for erosion control and
sedimentation problems. Control of upstream erosion and sediment transport will decrease the rate of
sediment deposition and thus preclude frequent, costly dredging and disposal operation.

7



EXHIBIT "A-3"

GUIDELINES/PROCEDURES FOR OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE
OF STORM WATER ROOF DETENTION

Inspections

1) Inspections of pond should be at a minimum of once per year We further recommend that pond be
Inspected on a monthly basis for debris, and that discretion be used for inspections after mayor storm events
and to address any seasonal issues (mosquitoes, algae, vegetation, etc) lt is recommended that if only one
inspection per year is performed, that it be during wet weather conditions to determine 1f the pond are
functioning properly

2) Inspection pnont1es shall include

a) Visual observation of the conditions of the emergency spillway scuppers
b) Visual observation of accumulation of sediment and debris in the roof structures
c) Visual observation and confirmation of any modification of the contributory watershed
d) Visual observation of the pond integrity

3) As-built plans shall be used for reference during the inspection procedures

Debris and Litter Removal

1) Debris and litter shall be removed from pond area
2) Debris and litter shall be removed from the primary and emergency outlet structures to prevent clogging

Nuisance Control

1) Depending on the type of above ground storm water management basin, nuisance control may or may not
be required Feld conditions shall dictate the need for nuisance control

2) If applicable, b1olog1cal control of nuisance algae and mosquitoes ut1hzmg flat head minnows should be
considered m heu of chemical controls

3) If applicable, mechanical control of these nuisances may be considered as another option to chemical or
biological control

Outlet Structure

1) Visual inspection of components shall be performed and debris removed from inlet and storm drain pipes
2) Repair inlet/outlet areas, which are damaged or show signs of erosion
3) Repairs must restore the component to the specifications of the orgnal plan

NON-ROUTINE MAINTENANCE PROCEDURES

Structural Repairs and Replacement

1) Eventually, the primary outlets for the pond will deteriorate and will need replacement Routine
maintenance and inspections will insure longevity of structures

Sediment Removal

1) Unless otherwise specified m the storm water management plan, sediment clean out cycle Is
recommended every 10 to 20 years

8



EXHIBIT "A-4"

STORM SEWER SYSTEM OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

Inspection

Frequency

• Inspect storm sewer end section at least twice per year and after maJor rainfall events

2 Inspection

• Storm Sewer End sections
• Observe for obstructions, accumulation of sediment and trash,

undermining and joint separation.
• Inspect end treatment for settlement, scour and displaced armoring

Standard Maintenance

Storm Sewer End sections

• End sections should be free flowing, trash, debris and obstructions should be
removed to prevent backups

• End sections which have separated from the storm sewer pipe shall be reset on
firm bedding and reconnected to the existing storm sewer pipe. Restrain joints If
necessary.

• Scour areas shall be repaired immediately Replace mussing soil with clean fill and
replace/install end treatment Mussing armoring will require additional stone,
typically one class larger.

• Excessive material deposited at the storm sewer outfall is ind1cat1ve of a disturbed
area upstream drammg to the system or a potential failure of a system component.
Disturbed areas dra1mng to the system should be stab1hzed 1mmed1ately or
diverted to dram to a BMP Potential system failures require non-standard
maintenance

Non-Standard Maintenance

1 Non-standard maintenance includes inspection, repair or replacement of buried
structures

• Televising of buried structures (pipes) should occur when excessive material Is
found within the system or at an outfall with no apparent source area v1s1ble at the
surface, or the system experiences frequent backups.

• Follow the recommendations for the repair and/or replacement of system
components televised by a firm spec1ahzing in this work.

9



EXHIBIT "A-5"

Inspection and Maintenance Checklist Guidelines

Development Name

Inspector Name

Inspector Address

Inspector Telephone Number

Type of Inspection Storm Monthly __

Date of Inspection

Annual Other

Check 1f stormwater management system has multiple ponds

Evaluation Criteria 2= Routine maintenance Is required

N = Not investigated 3= Immediate repair is necessary

0 = Not a problem * = Use open space after each section to further

1= Monitor (potential exists for future problem explam
as needed

General Site Conditions
Trash or debris N 0 1 2 3
Erosion N 0 1 2 3
Excessive sediment deposits N 0 1 2 3
Channels and/or Filter Strip Integrity N 0 1 2 3

Storm Inlets, Catch Basins, Manholes (structures)
Trash or debris plugging more than 20% of opening N 0 1 2 3
Accumulated sediment affecting inletting or N 0 1 2 3outletting of structure
Mussing or damaged frames, grates, covers, etc N 0 1 2 3
Structure condition N 0 1 2 3
Other N 0 1 2 3

Storm Sewer (piping)
Trash or debris present in pipe N 0 1 2 3
Excessive sediment deposits mn pipe N 0 1 2 3
Pipe condition N 0 1 2 3
Other N 0 1 2 3

Pond - Inlets/Outlets (For multiple ponds, enter pond identifier)
Trash or debris plugging more than 20% of opening N 0 1 2 3
Accumulated sediment > 10% of designed pond N 0 1 2 3depth or affects inletting our outletting of facility
M1ss1ng or damaged frames, grates, covers, etc N 0 1 2 3
Structure condition N 0 1 2 3
Other N 0 1 2 3

Pond - Emergency Spillway and Berm
Trash and debris> 1 cf/1,000 sf (one standard sized N 0 1 2 3garbage bag)
Erosion N 0 1 2 3

JO



EXHIBIT "A-6"

Growth does not allow/interferes with maintenance N 0 1 2 3activities or affects overall system performance
General condition N 0 1 2 3
Other N 0 1 2 3

Pond - General
Trash and debns > 1cf/1,000 sf (one standard sized N 0 1 2 3garbage bag)
Growth does not allow/interferes wth maintenance N 0 1 2 3activities or affects overall system performance
Accumulated sediment >10% of designed pond N 0 4 2 3depth or affects inletting or outletting of facility
Evidence of oil, gasoline or other contaminants or N 0 1 2 3ollution
General conditions N 0 1 2 3
Other N 0 1 2 3

Inspectors Summary (please hst general comments, corrective action to be taken with suggested time frame,
and include photos and other documents as needed Please attach additional pages if needed)

11



EXHIBIT ''B"

DEPICTION OF THE FACILITIES

ROOF DETENTION

! C

·t.· j~"!l'i~t---------
!
I

l
I
l
l

I
j.·,

l
l
'~-------
STORM
~EWER

l
!
I
!
I

JlJ.
< - •- . !

I l
f
I
I:;
I
~T DETENTION

:
i
I.;
\i,._ _

.....,..__

l
' I

--- -t

[j iT

. ..f ~rf···
J,q 1· , .·t.

C

-5z - .
::,; l L -

¢
ff

·~,_,..,,,.~-·'

ZURN CONTROL
FLOW (4 EA)

roes au. «nee.3
##.£, ... ,...

)

•

"IL

12



EXHIBIT "C"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF AREA

Lot 8, Block 5, in Franklin Industrial Park Addition No. 1, being a Subdivision of lands
m part of the Southeast 1/4 and Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 26, Town
5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

FRANKLIN INOIJSTR/AL PARK
ADDITION NO. I
..... .....,..., 0, I.AMII "'IVIIT OT r~ l0Utw14Sr
w/'w Mp ouw w$#t a¢ de n surest # fI1'

2th2 Poat# et, test tu ±st

CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
-=5 ..0 j

,,..~ .., ''"'"•= •• .,..., t tutti..,.n .,,.

·::r!
-0,

i."'
3V_PLil_TTtJ-.1

~

' TI ,,,,.,,M'..,,,,...-r
¢

I

• ~-:~ ~.L:ie..:ai:- ............,, ...'.4.2.%%.
l':.a!' flp<,11,•a ,ci !D UaJ -•- l.dK n-12% {Nu «or«

rul.pa
i
!
L

tllOCK

13



STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ACCESS EASEMENT
Custom Fabrication and Supplies

5500 W. Oakwood Park Dnve
Tax Key 9310005000

THIS EASEMENT is made by and between_HL Investment Properties, LLP and the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a
municipal corporation of the State of Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as "City," collectively referred to as "Grantees,"
and HL Investment Properties, LLP, as owner (mcluding successors and ass1gn's of the City as may become applicable
mcludmg the heirs, executors. administrators, successors and assigns of above owner(s) as may be or may become
applicable), hereinafter called "Grantor," (1f more than one grantor is listed above, sad language herein referring thereto
shall be interpreted in the plural and referjointly and severally to such grantors).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor Is the owner and holder of record Title to certain real property described on Exhub1t "A"
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein (the Property); and

WHEREAS, the City desires to acquire a non-exclusive easement with the right of entry in and across a portion
of the property as the same 1s more particularly heremafter described, with the nght to build and construct and/or operate,
mamtam, repair, enlarge, reconstruct, relocate and inspect as may be or may become applicable the following fac1hhes
and appurtenances thereto. hereinafter collectively called the "Facilities," in, upon and across said portion of the Property
a storm water management basin as shown on the plan attached hereto as Exhibit "B."; and

NOW, THEREFORE, m consideration of the grant of the easement hereinafter described, the imttal mstallation
and maintenance of the Facihttes by the Grantor, and the Grantees, and the payment of One Dollar ($1.00) and other
valuable cons1derat1ons to the Grantor, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, said Grantor, being the owner and
person interested m the land heremafter described, does hereby grant unto the City a perpetual, non-exclusive easement on
that part of the of Section 26. Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin,
more particularly described on Exhibit C attached hereto (the "Easement Area")

That said FacI11t1es shall be maintamed and kept in good order and condition by the Owner, at the sole cost and
expense of said Owner The City, at its sole discretion, may assume the rights of the Owner to mamtain the
Facilities

2 That 111 and during whatever construction, reconstruction, enlargement or repair work is or becomes necessary 111
constructmg and/or maintaining of said Facilities, so much of the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area on
the Property as may be disturbed will, at the expense of the Association, be replaced m substantially the same
condition as tt was pror to such disturbance. The City, at its sole discretion, may assume the rghts of the Owner
to construct, reconstruct, enlarge, repair, or do whatever Is necessary in constructmg and/or mamtaimng such
Factl1t1es However. the Grantees shall indemmfy and save harmless the Grantor from and against any loss,
damage, claim, cost. tnJury or liability resulting from negligence or willful acts or omissions on the part of the
Grantees, its agents or employees in connection with said work involved mn constructing and/or maintaining of
said Facilities, provided that if the above loss, claim, cost, damage, injury or liability results from the joint
neghgence of parties hereto, then the liab1hty therefore shall be borne by them m proport10n to their respective
degree of neghgence, provided further, however, that these provismns are subject to the legal defenses available
under law which the Grantees or Grantor are entitled to raise, excepting the defense of so-called "sovereign
1mmuntty "

3 That no structure may be placed w1thm the hm1ts of the Easement Area by the Grantor, except that improvement
such as walks, pavements for driveways, parking lot surfacing and landscape plantmg may be constructed or
placed within the Easement Area

4 In connection wth the construction by the Grantor of any structure or buuldmng abutting sand Easement Area, the
Grantor will assume all liability for any damage to the Facilities 1n the above described Easement Area The
Grantor will also save and keep the Grantees clear and harmless from any claims for personal inJuries or property
damage caused by any negligence or willful acts or omissions of the Grantor or persons acting on behalf of the



Grantor, arsmg out ofthe construction by the Grantor of any structure or building abutting the said Easement
Area, and shall reimburse the Grantees for the full amount of such loss or damage.

5 The Grantor shall be responsible for the routine maintenance of land on which the easement is located

6 The Fac11Ities shall be accessible for maintenance by the Owner at all times The Grantor shall submit plans for
approval to the City Engineer for any underground installation within the Easement Area, which approval shall
not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

7 That the Grantor shall submit plans for all surface alterations ofplus or mmus I foot or greater within the limits of
said Easement Area Sand alterations shall be made only with the approval of the City Engineer of the City of
Franklm, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

8 The Grantees and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause their employees, officers,
customers, agents, contractors and assigns to use, the Easement Area in a reasonable manner and so as not to
obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area in a manner that would unreasonably interfere with the use thereof
by the other party hereto or its employees, officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns.

9 The Grantees and Grantor each hereby waives all rights of subrogat10n that either has or may hereafter have
agamst the other for any damage to the Easement Area or any other real or personal property or to persons
covered by such party's insurance, but only to the extent of the waiving party's insurance coverage; provided,
however, that the foregoing waivers shall not invalidate any policy of insurance now or hereafter issued, it being
hereby agreed that such a warver shall not apply mn any case whch would result in the invalidation of any such
policy of msurance and that each party shall notify the other If such party's insurance would be so mvalidated.

10 Either party hereto may enforce this easement by appropnate action, and should it prevail m such htigation, that
party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable attorneys' fees.

l l This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a writmg executed and delivered by the Grantees and
Grantor or their respective successors and assigns.

12 No waiver of, acquiescence mn, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, or condition hereof shall be
construed as, or constitute, a waiver of, acqmescence m, or consent to any other, further, or succeeding breach of
the same or any other term, covenant, or condition

I 3 If any term or provision of this easement shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable under applicable law,
then the remaining terms and provisions of this easement shall not be affected thereby, and each such remaining
term and provision shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law.

4 This easement shall be construed and enforced mn accordance with the internal laws ofthe State of Wisconsin

I5 Upon completion of use of the Easement Area for the specific use as a storm water management access by the
City, the easement shall be terminated by recording a release mn recordable form with directions for delivery of
same to Grantor at his last address given pursuant hereto, whereupon all rights, duties and liabilities created shall
term mate

2



F""""'""""'='iF:::::::c--,r-----<Seal)

Name & Title. --l---.ll...f-£4~,:..._--=----41-"'----!~~---1--L--"'-""--'--;<hJ-j-

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the Grantor has hereunto set its hands and seals. 11 J
ON THIS DA TE orlex l22".»22

B Toal.± B.A-ks P
Company Nam

B

STATE or LQiSCoo61
ss

COUNTY OF \-v"\ I \Will•.L~ l.t

• AD 202 .soi«sore4 ore_22"or or Bkuguf
SK

esrdent or Name printed Secretary or Name prmted
to me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregomg EASEMENT and acknowledged the same as the,~ohn\tM')I,,,
act and deed of said corporatwn. ( ~/1~. _ n O ~ tr··_ •<':G\..LE ZIA:"-..._I4eHL--•LU'>$'a2-<

Nosy Psis. >. 2, As/or '\?%
My commission expires 2 31.avg 1 •%3¥

!Cl.I• A ..._ -.,I• ~\ ~u: ,c.. a
\'A..\ sue/ i
$°', > "--·-- 3s~,, WIS •"'......................

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By _
Stephen R Olson. Mayor

By· _
Sandra L Wesolowsk1, City Clerk

S rATE OF- WISCONSIN)
ss

COUNTY OF MIL WAUKEE)

On th1s day of A.D. 20 before me personally appeared Stephen
R Olson and Sandra L Wesolowski who bemg by me duly sworn. did say that they are respectively the Mayor and City
Clerk of the City of Franklm. and that the seal affixed to said mstrument 1s the corporate seal of said mu111c1pal
corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregomg assignment as such officers as the deed of said mumcipal
corporation by its authority, and pursuant to resolution file No adopted by its Common Council on _
______,20

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, Wisconsm
My comm1ss1on expires _

3



MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

'I he undersigned, 8MO t-\-41.r"ra 8q,"I( a Wisconsin bankmg corporation ("Mortgagee"), as
Mortgagee under that certain Mortgage encumbering the Property and recorded m the Office ofthe Register of Deeds for
MIiwaukee County, Wisconsmn, on ul'} ,202l, as Document No_ * , hereby
consents to the execution of the foregoing easement and its addition as an encumbrance agamst title to the Property

IN wn Nt'SS WHERfOF, Mortgagee has caused these presents to be signed by its duly authorized officers, and
1h corpo1 ak seal to be hereunto affixed, as of the day and year first above wntten.

* 11183337

11183338

11183139

11183340
Name:

Tttle

kchh take
a« idat

STAIE OF WISCONSIN)
ss

COUN rv OF MILWAUKEE)

On this, the adayor f4st .20a2, erore me, the undersigned, personally
appeared Kertk Eke ,the Ve Pr sileor of ?mo Harri Bai ,a Wisconsin banking
corporation, and acknowledged that (s)he executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said corporation, by its authority
and tor the purposes therem contamed.

Nomehdreo.&lu!a,
State of Ucon
County or r,lake €

My commission expnres. 3[m/a6

I h1~ mstrument wa~ dratted by the City of Franklm

Approved a~ to contents
City Engmeer
Date

Approved as to form only
City Attorney
Date _

4

Notary Pubhc



Exhibit A

(Description ofthe Property)

Lot 8. Block 5, in Franklin Industral Park Addition No. 1, being a Subdivision of
lands in part of the Southeast 1/4 and Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section
26, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

5



Exhibit B

(Depiction ofthe Facilities)

...
l
i
I

!.
I
l
I.... ...•...
STORM

EWER

.
£

l
. I t
' l,j i
WET DETENTION
I l
I •

i !
I
.\ !
'{ ····-.

I-

ROOF DETENTION

,·
w+a

1

•

ZURN CONTROL
FLOW (4 EA.)

__.,..:'ll!it'- ,•..,,.......>-,

a.%
to,ame.tu

•
;

A

6



Exhibit C

(Description ofEasement Area)

All that part of Lot 8, Block 5, mn Franklin Industrial Park Addition No. 1, being a Subdivision of lands mn
part of the Southeast 1/4 and Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Sect1on 26, Town 5 North, Range 21
East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follow:

Commencmng and beginning at the southeast corner of said Lot 8, thence South 88°31 '30" West along the
north \me of West Oakwood Park Drve, 138 89 feet; thence North 01°28'30" West, 57.37 feet; thence North
88°3130° East, 45 90 feet; thence North 44°41' 13" East, 50 04 feet; thence North 00°18'47" West, 153 51
feet; thence North 89°4 1'13" East, 58.75 feet to the west line of South 54th Street; thence South 00° 18' 47"
East along said west lme, 244 37 feet to the pomt ofbegmmng.

7



.,

.- -•!

6.

ExhibitC

(Map ofEasement Area)

,;,

- 1
4✓ ~-.

;,

1
l
I

-J

l;jl
LUI
C,::J It
:x:I I
1-l'..,., ,,
V'I J

POB

!---

W..$>~KWOOD PARK DRIVE ·:J
- - ; -- I-

-=.::-------~
rrE

NOTTO SCALE

8



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Sha
Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution for Acceptance of a
Storm Water Facilities Maintenance Agreement and a

Storm Water Management Access Easement
for 2855 W. Forest Hill Avenue, TKN 832-989-8002

MTG.DATE
October 18, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.6.
BACKGROUND
The City of Franklin, Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD), and Wisconsin
Department of Natural resources (WDNR) require storm water management facilities for any
developments which meet thresholds as defined in their individual ordinances and rules. These
facilities as designed may be for quantity and/or quality control. In the City of Franklin these are
typically wet ponds, biofiltration basins, and/or permeable pavers, although other best
management practices (BMPs) are also available. As a MMSD customer and designated by the
WDNR as a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System, the City's Ordinance is written to not only
include City quantity requirements, but also MMSD quantity requirements, and WDNR quantity
and quality requirements. The facilities within private developments are involved in those credits.
Therefore, ongoing maintenance of private facilities is imperative.

It is the responsibility of the development owner, or a subdivision homeowners association, to
maintain the storm water facilities in perpetuity per a prescribed maintenance agreement. The
access easement allows for the City the right of entry in and across the easement area to access the
storm water management facilities, and, if needed to inspect, maintain, or repair the facilities.

ANALYSIS
It is recommended that the Common Council authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said the
storm water facilities maintenance agreement and the storm water management access easement,
and have them recorded with the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County.

FISCAL NOTE
All costs associated with storm water facilities maintenance are to be paid by the development
owner or homeowmers association as stated in the individual agreement.

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2022- a resolution for acceptance of a storm water
facilities maintenance agreement and a storm water management access easement for 2855 W.
Forest Hill Avenue, TKN 832-989-8002.

Engineering: TAB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 -

A RESOLUTION FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A
STORM WATER FACILITIES MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT AND A

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT ACCESS EASEMENT
FOR 2855 W. FOREST HILL AVENUE, TKN 832-989-8002

WHEREAS, storm water facilities are required to meet quantity and quality standards;
and

WHEREAS, a maintenance agreement is developed and executed to ensure effective
maintenance and operation ofprivate storm water facilities in perpetuity; and

WHEREAS, an access easement is necessary to allow the City right of entry in and across
the easement area to access the storm water management facilities.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin that it would be in the best interest of the City to accept such Storm Water Facilities
Maintenance Agreement and Storm Water Management Access Easement, and, therefore, the
Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute them on behalf of the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to record said maintenance
agreement and access easement with the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of,2022, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--



STORMWATER FACILITIES
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

(DEVELOPMENT NAM)kg Yes;;)ave
Address -)& • fesr Ave.
Tax Key 83d i79 ooa

Thus AGREEMENT, made and entered into thus 27" day of Ny ,2022
by and between Kvfl.T KtJo€tJCL , hereinafter called the "Owner", and
the City of Franklm, heremafter called the "City"

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of the following descnbed lands situated m the City
of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State ofWisconsm, to-wit:

WHEREAS, the Owner is developmg the Property; and

WHEREAS, the Site Plan/Subd1v1s10n (Site Plan, Special Use, P D.D., CSM or Subd1V1sion)
known as 6g f5ibwd (Name of Plan/Development)
heremafter called the "Plan", which 1s expressly made a part hereof, as approved or to be
approved by the city, provides for on-site Storm Water Facilities withm the confines of the
Property as shown on the plan attached hereto as Exh1b1t "B" and more particularly described on
Exhibnt "C"; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Owner, its successors and ass1gns ("successors and assigns"
meanmg to mclude any homeowners' associat10n and all owners of the property or any port10n
thereof), Including any homeowners assoc1at1on, agree that the health, safety, and welfare of the
residents of the City of Frankhn, requue that on-site Storm Water Facilities as defined m Sect10n
15-8.0600 Unfied Development Ordinance of the City of Franklm be constructed and
mamntamned on the Property; and

WHEREAS, the City reqmres that on-site storm water management practices as shown
on the Plan be constructed and adequately mamtamed by the Owner, its successors and assigns

NOW, THEREFORE, m considerat10n of the foregomg premises, the mutual covenants
contained herem, and the followmg terms and conditions, the parties hereto agree as follows·

l. The on-site storm water faculties shall be constructed by the Owner m accordance with
the plans and spec.ficahons which are identified as part of the storm water management
plan dated /272 and erosion control plan dated 57«~.2,i_approved by the City

Q-1



Engineer and submitted as part of the as-bmlt drawmgs approved by the City Engmeer.
Fountains and/or aerators shall not be mstalled m any ponds without prior wntten
approval from the City Engineer.

2. The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall comply with the ordinances and regulations
which require that the Storm Water Facihties shall be regularly mspected and maintamed
as often as conditions may require, but in any event, at least once each year. The
Standard Operation and Maintenance Report attached to thus agreement as Exhibit "A?
and by this reference made a part hereof shall be used for the purpose of the regular
mspectlons of the Storm Water Facilities. The Owners, its successors and assigns, shall
keep the Operation and Maintenance Reports from past inspections, as well as a log of
mamtenance activity indicating the date and type of maintenance completed of the Storm
Water Facilities. The purpose of the inspections 1s to assure safe and proper functionmg
of the facilities. The inspections shall cover all storm water facihties, including but not
limited to open swales (ditches), storm sewers, manholes, inlets, berms, outlet structures,
pond areas and access roads. Deficiencies shall be noted m the Operation and
Maintenance Report. The Reports and mamtenance log shall be made available to the
City for review.

3. The Owner, its successors and assigns, hereby grant permission to the Caty, 1ts author1zed
agents and employees, to enter upon the Property and to inspect the Storm Water
Facilities, whenever the City deems necessary. The purpose of mspection is to provide
perod1c review by City staff, to investigate reported deficiencies and/or to respond to
c1t1zen complaints. The Caty shall provide the Owner, its successors and assigns, cop1es
of the mspection findings and a directive to commence with the repairs if necessary.
Corrective actions shall be taken within a reasonable time frame as established by the
City Engineer

4. The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall adequately mamtam the Storm Water
Facilities, mcludmg but not lmuted to all pipes and channels bmlt to convey storm water
to the fac1hty, as well as all structures, improvements, and vegetation provided to control
the quantity and quality of the storm water. Adequate maintenance is herem defined as
keeping the Storm Water Fac1hties m good workmg condition so that these storm water
facilities are performmg the1r design funct10ns and are in accordance with the Stormwater
Basin Maintenance Standards as detailed m Section 15 8.0600 of the City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordmance, and Section 13.12 (2) of the Milwaukee Metropolitan
Sewerage D1stnct (MMSD) rules, and by this reference made a part hereof.

5. If the Owner, its successors and assigns fails to maintain the Storm Water Fac1ht1es m
good workmg condition acceptable to the City and does not perform the reqmred
corrective act10ns in a time as established by the City Engineer in written notice, the City
may:

a) Issue a citation to the Owner, its successors and assigns. Such failure constitutes a
violation of Section 15.8.0600 of the Umfied Development Ordmance of the City of
Franklin. The penalty for such violation of Sect10n 15.8.0600 shall be not less than
$100 nor more than $2500 for each offense, together with the costs of prosecution.
Each day that the violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, and

b) Perform the correctrve actions 1dentrfied in the inspect1on report and assess the
Owner, its successors and assigns, for the cost of such work. The cost of such work
shall be specially charged against the Property pursuant to W1sconsm Statutes
Section 66.0627. If the fac1hties are located on an outlot owned collectively by a
homeowners assoc1at1on, the City may spec1ally charge each member of the
homeowners assoc1ation according to the ownership mnterest m the factlrtres located

Q-2



on the property. Thus provision shall not be construed to allow the Caty to erect any
structure of permanent nature on the land of the Owner outside of the easement for
the Storm Water Facilities. It is expressly understood and agreed that the City is
under no obhgatlon to routmely maintain or repair saud storm water management
practices and mn no event shall this Agreement be construed to impose any such
0bl1gat1on on the Caty.

6. In the event the City, pursuant to this Agreement and applicable easements performs
work of an emergency nature, or expends any funds in performance of said work for
labor, use of equipment, supplies, matenals, and the like, the Owner, its successors and
assigns, shall reimburse the City upon demand, withm thirty (30) days of receipt thereof
for all actual costs incurred by the City hereunder

7. This Agreement imposes no habihty of any kind whatsoever on the City and the Owner
agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless from any liability m the event the Storm
Water Facilities fail to operate properly.

8. This Agreement shall be attached as an exhibit to any document which creates a
homeowners associat10n that 1s responsible for maintenance of the Storm Water Facilities
and shall be recorded at the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, and shall constitute a
covenant runmng with the land, and shall be binding on the Owner, its admmistrators,
executors, assigns, hetrs and any other successors m mterest, includmg any homeowners
associat10n and all owners of the property or any port10n thereof. The owner shall
provde the City wIth a copy of any document which creates a homeowners assoc1at1on
that is responsible for the Storm Water Fac1litres.

9 The owner, its successors and assigns, ts prohibited from building structures, mstallmg
play equipment, mstalhng plants, changmg grades or performing any function that
mnhb1ts care and maintenance of any Storm Water Facilities

10. The owner, its successor and assigns shall mamtain, at all times, an mdivtdual(s) who
will serve as a contact person(s).

Q-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Owner have set forth thetr hands and seals, effective the
date first above written.

SEALED IN PRESENCE OF

y.<rr-err
Name.

STATE OF WISCONSIN)ss.
/hakg_COUNTY)

Notary Pubhc, -. acCounty, WI
My commission exp1res: "1[oq[00-4

Personally9me befry me tis, 27 aay or [du4 ,2@), oe above
named 1rt (n»ea2{ ,Inc., to me known to be the person who executed
the forcgomg mstrument and acknowledged the same · t c pac,ty mdic :.R

CATHRINE PONDIKATI
NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF WISCONSIN

CITY OF FRANKLIN

___________ (Seal)By:
Name: Stephen R. Olson
Title: Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED.
____________ (Seal)By:

Name: Sandra L Wesolowski
Title: City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN)ss
MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

Personally came before me thus day of, 2O, the
above named Stephen R. Olson, Mayor and Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk. of the above
named mumc1pal corporation, City of Franklm, to me known to be such Mayor and City Clerk of
said mumcipal corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the foregomg mstrument as
such officers as the Deed of said mumcipal corporation by its authonty and pursuant to the
Resolution F1le No adopted by its Common Council on thus day of
___,20_.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, WI
My comm1ss1on cxpres

This mstrnment was drafted by the City Engmeer for the City ofFranklin
Form approved

Jesse A Wesolowski, City Attorney

Q-4



EXHIBIT "A"

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INSPECTION REPORT
STORMWATERMANAGEMENT PONDS

City of Franklin

Address--------------
E-mail------------Fax No. -----

Address _

Fax No E-mail _

Name ofDevelopment _

Responsible Party Name _

Telephone No _

Inspector Name _

Telephone No. _

Basin Location General Address Sect1on No.------------- --------
Normal Pool D Yes D No

Items inspected Checked Mamtenance Remarks
(Pond components) (Yes/No/NA) Needed

(Yes/No/NA)
l Embankment and Emergency spillway

l Vegetation and ground cover adequate
2. Embankment eros1on
3 Ammal burrows
4. Unauthorized plantings
5. Crackmg, bulgmg, or shdmg of dam

l Upstream face
2 Downstream face
3 At or beyond toe

Upstream
Downstream

4. Emergency spillway
6. Pond, toe & chnnney drams

functioning
7. Seeps/leaks on downstream face
8 Slope protection or rprap falures
9. Emergency spillway clear of debns

10 Other (spec1fy)
2 Riser and prmnc1pal spillway

Type Remforced concrete --
Corrugated metal pipe --
PVC/HDPE --
Masonry

l. Low flow onfice obstructed
2 Pnmary outlet structure

1 Debrs removal necessary
2 Corros1on control

3. Trash rack mamtenance
1 Debns removal necessary
2. Corros1on control

3 Pond bottom
Sediment or debns bmldup m low flow
Pilot channel or bottom (estimate depth)

Q-5



DEPICTION FACILITIES

Q-6



September 6th, 2022 EXHIBIT B - LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ACCESS EASEMENT Survey No KNOEBEL
PRELIMINARY STORM SEWERACCESS EASEMENT EXHIBIT 2022

L59P.08

An access easement to grant maintenance access to the 2 34'x16' Rain Gardens located on Parcel 2 ofCertified
Survey Map No, 7358. Includes access to entire driveway width, a 5' penmeter around and a 10' wde path between
sand Rann Gardens

L38 L58

L39 L57

C34 C37

C35 C36

PARCEL 2

L42 L54

L43

L44

L52

N

L49
L47

w E

518 West Cherry Street, MIiwaukee, WI 53212
PHONE (414) 604-0674 FAX (414) 604-0677

www daarcorp com

D AA
ENGINEER!

s

DRAWING BY PR
25' 75'
1 INCH = 50 FEET

GRAPHIC CALE
50' 100'---0

SURVEYORS

G, INC.
PLANNERSENGINEERS





EXHIBIT "C"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF AREA

f flf:c,££,j_ '
oKpaRcRty D5GD A5 follows!

Co/ctw Ar Th NcrhcsTokNk of sarb "- Scro/; 7hew
5' j ? 7°a'go" w, aleThe Notff/2 Li',JfF er- }A-/}) l S-EC:1/'0N 7/J', 00peer
Thele S, 00°o3' !i"O ,, E, l/5. I~ Fee-r /0 7pra bcfs1ilA/JrJ6- or--rAE'
L,,,Alb5 hE~tNtl ro be. DE5c1</bED 1' 1A€.Net' >; 00° oY' 5'o '1E, ~1. I 9 Fe.e -r
/0 II- l>cutJ-r I ,IiEt.Ice ti. ~7° 5;(., 3r/' E, /d.f. 00 peer -ro A/'°.'"' 1/ 1/iE{.Jtt!'

l . I . ~ Aft S .. o , . I', /tJ, 00 ° 03, §o" w, 36.l.. t'I fee, ro A fo,11rr; 1 £ ce , J>7 2 70 w..
125,00 7 Thpow op be'ww,

Updated 3/2022

L \ENGDOCS\Des1gn Standards (7 2017)\Design Standards July 2017\Design Standards finahzed for July 2017\2019 Design Standards

Appendix Q Stonn Water Fac1h1Ies Mamtenance Agreement #15 doc

Q-7





STORM WATER MANAGEMENT ACCESS EASEMENT

@evelopmemt Name9Ko5Rcibe£
Address - 255 w. roan ;LL Ave.
Tax Key -&3,2 7g7 8ooa

THIS EASEMENT is made by and between Ko€Et KEDEM6n10MEOWNERS ·
ASSOCIATION; a unincorporated association and the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a municipal corporation
o he State fWisconsin, hereinafter referred to as "City," collectively referred to as "Grantees," and

0, _:-_Corporation, as owner (including successors
and assign 's of the City as may become applicable including the heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns of above owner(s) as may be or may become applicable), hereinafter called
"Grantor," (if more than one grantor is listed above, said language herein referring thereto shall be
interpreted in the plural and referjointly and severally to such grantors).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Granter is the owner and holder ofrecord Title to certain real property described on
Exhibit "A" which is attached hereto and incorporated herein (the Property); and

WHEREAS, the City desires to acquire a non-exclusive easement with the right of entry in and
across a portion of the property as the same is more particularly hereinafter described, with the right to
build and construct and/or operate, maintain, repair, enlarge, reconstruct, relocate and inspect as may be
or may become applicable the following facilities and appurtenances thereto, hereinafter collectively
called the "Facilities," in, upon and across said portion of the Property: a storm water management basin
as shown on the plan attached hereto as Exhibit "B."; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the grant of the easement hereinafter described, the
initial installation and maintenance of the Facilities by the Grantor, and the Grantees, and the payment of
One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable considerations to the Grantor, the receipt whereof is hereby
acknowledged, said Grantor, being the owner and person interested in the land hereinafter described,
does hereby grant unto the City a perpetual, non-exclusive easement on that part ofhes 'of section

72reel (Q3), Township Five (5) North, Range Twenty-one2I) East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee
County, Wisconsin, more particularly described on Exhibit C attached hereto (the "Easement Area").

1. That said Facilities shall be maintained and kept in good order and condition by the Association,
at the sole cost and expense ofthe Association. The City, at its sole discretion, may assume the
rights of the Association to maintamn the Facilities.

2 That in and during whatever construction, reconstruction, enlargement or repair work 1s or
becomes necessary in constructing and/or maintaining of said Facilities, so much of the surface
or subsurface of the Easement Area on the Property as may be disturbed will, at the expense of
the Association, be replaced in substantially the same condition as it was prior to such
disturbance. The City, at its sole discretion, may assume the rights of the Association to
construct, reconstruct, enlarge, repair, or do whatever is necessary in constructing and/or
maintaining such Facilities. However, the Grantees shall indemnify and save harmless the
Grantor from and against any loss, damage, claim, cost, injury or liability resulting from
negligence or willful acts or omissions on the part of the Grantees, its agents or employees in
connection with said work involved m constructing and/or maintaining of said Facilities;
provided that if the above loss, claim, cost, damage, injury or liability results from the joint
negligence of parties hereto, then the liability therefore shall be borne by them in proportion to

N-1



their respective degree ofnegligence; provided further, however, that these provisions are subject
to the legal defenses available under law which the Grantees or Grantor are entitled to raise,
exceptmg the defense ofso-called "sovereign immunity."

3. That no structure may be placed within the limits of the Easement Area by the Grantor, except
that improvement such as walks, pavements for driveways, parking lot surfacing and landscape
planting may be constructed or placed within the Easement Area.

4 In connection with the construction by the Grantor of any structure or building abutting said
Easement Area, the Grantor will assume all liabihty for any damage to the Facilities in the above
described Easement Area. The Grantor will also save and keep the Grantees clear and harmless
from any claims for personal injuries or property damage caused by any negligence or willful
acts or omissions of the Grantor or persons acting on behalf of the Grantor, arising out of the
construction by the Grantor of any structure or building abutting the said Easement Area, and
shall reimburse the Grantees for the full amount of such loss or damage.

5. The Grantor shall be responsible for the routine maintenance of land on which the easement 1s
located

6. The Facilities shall be accessible for maintenance by the Association at all times. The Grantor
shall submit plans for approval to the City Engineer for any underground installation within the
Easement Area, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

7 That the Grantor shall submit plans for all surface alterations of plus or minus I foot or greater
within the limits of said Easement Area. Said alterations shall be made only with the approval of
the City Engineer of the City of Franklin, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed.

8. The Grantees and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause their employees,
officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns to use, the Easement Area in a reasonable
manner and so as not to obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area in a manner that would
unreasonably interfere with the use thereof by the other party hereto or its employees, officers,
customers, agents, contractors and assigns.

9. The Grantees and Grantor each hereby waives all rights of subrogation that either has or may
hereafter have against the other for any damage to the Easement Area or any other real or
personal property or to persons covered by such party's insurance, but only to the extent of the
waiving party's insurance coverage; provided, however, that the foregoing waivers shall not
mvalidate any policy of insurance now or hereafter issued, it being hereby agreed that such a
waiver shall not apply in any case which would result in the invalidation of any such policy of
insurance and that each party shall notify the other 1f such party's insurance would be so
mvalidated.

IO Either party hereto may enforce this easement by appropriate action, and should it prevail in such
litigation, that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable attorneys' fees

II Thus easement may not be modified or amended, except by a writing executed and delivered by
the Grantees and Gantor or their respective successors and assigns

12 No waver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, or condrtron
hereof shall be construed as, or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any other,
further, or succeeding breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condrtion

N-2



13. If any term or provision of this easement shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable under
applicable law, then the remaining terms and provisions of this easement shall not be affected
thereby, and each such remaining term and provision shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest
extent permitted by applicable law.

14. This easement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State
ofWisconsin.

15. Upon completion ofuse ofthe Easement Area for the specific use as a stonn water management
access by the City, the easement shall be terminated by recording a release in recordable form
with directions for delivery of same to Grantor at his last address given pursuant hereto,
whereupon all rights, duties and liabilities created shall tenninate.

N-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set its hand and seals this

ON THIS DATE ore. Ma427 ,o0%
koa Rs,Ewe€

t,,,7 .r

Name & Tile- Ku7ti
STATEOF L,JI

. M/ ss
coUTY or l}OUK

(Seal)

oW,tiE.{7

Before me personally appeared.on the J7 day of__AL_____,r---___,, A.D 20__cl::.
rt Epoelel :ye--q

President or Name printed
to me known to be the person(s) who executed the forego·
as the voluntary act and deed ofsaid corporation.

CATHRINE PONDIKATI
NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF WISCONSIN

Secretary or Name printed
SEMENT an ac nowledgedthe same

>
Noor Poe 0@[q/2u
My commission expires<'j

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By: _
Stephen R Olson, Mayor

By:---------------
Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUK.EE)

On thisday ofA.D. 20 before me personally
appeared Stephen R Olson and Sandra L Wesolowski who being by me duly sworn, dd say that they are
respectively the Mayor and City Clerk of the City ofFranklin. and that the seal affixed to said instrument
1s the corporate seal of said municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregomg
assignment as such officers as the deed of said municipal corporation by its authority, and pursuant to
resolution file No. adopted by its Common Council on 2)

Notary Public. Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
My commission expires _

N-4



MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

The undersigned, a Wisconsin banking corporation
("Mortgagee"), as Mortgagee under that certain Mortgage encumbering the Property and recorded in the
Office of the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on , 20
--~as Document No., hereby consents to the execution ofthe foregoing easement and
its addition as an encumbrance against title to the Property.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mortgagee has caused these presents to be signed by its duly
authorized officers, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, as of the day and year first above
written.

a Wisconsin Banking Corporation

By.-------------

Name: _

Title: _

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE)

On this, theday of20_, before me, the undersigned,
personally appeared th of
, a Wisconsin banking corporation, and acknowledged that (s)he executed the foregoing instrument on
behalf of said corporation, by its authority and for the purposes therein contained.

Name: _

Notary Public _

State of _

County of _

My commission expires· _

This instrument was drafted by the Cify ofJ,~klm ~~ t,
Aroved as to contents (il oz2so\Co

Date: ¢roeZ,0

Approved as to form only
City Attorney
Date _

N-5



Exhibit A

(Description of the Property)

fnRl"El ,).

l1ol?e f1M r,'cvfA-l!ly l>E5c.e,/JEJ) As FO(_{o~11s ~ . .
col"IMENC,iv6- /rt Tiu! No11 Thc11>1 co~JJe-1? of$A-,l> ;7 5EC r.b.,J; -rAet,JcC
3s.87m'3" w, law€ TeNo7k LooF 5an ;7 5c74 78,oo reer;
,hEtJc:£ 5. 00 0;1 ~I• EI¥$. IJ Fee, ·7o The f_o,,J, oF be-G,#1111./& of -rne
Law5 herwl z be bsce,ht'7#Ewe S,00"o3'so" E. 8ta.i reef
-re,, 11-f<)/,.;·r; ,!,£)JC('"'· 5'7c7,117011€, tJ.f.cvfe.e., ·,o,4fo,.J-r; -rAe,1/<.!&
JI, OOC} of' 70" \IV'. 86J.., 19 f£ff 7o A ,,,,r1·r j -r/JE,41~/; 5. J'7"2'30" w,
/;)..7,0() IC) TAt? ro/,.r, of BEb/Al/111/l/r

N-6



August 30th, 2022 EXHIBIT A - LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

PRELIMINARY STORM SEWERACCESS EASEMENT EXHIBIT
Survey No. KNOEBEL

2022

An access easement to grant maintenance access to the 2 34'x16' Ran Gardens located on Parcel 2 of Certified
Survey Map No. 7358. Includes access to entire driveway width, a 5' perimeter around and a 10' wide path between
said Ram Gardens.

T-N 875230E

125' f
tar±stas°

s 87°52'30"w 458.51'

N 00°03'50" W 862.19'

S 87°52'30"'
283.

E

N

s
w125.00'

S 87°52'30"' W
125 00'

S 00°03'50" E
45 31'

FOREST HILL AVE
( RO.W.VARIES)

8
o A
0 ....
$ e
o
iie
m
C.0o......ne

S 87°52'30"' W
125 00'

METESANDBOUNDS DESCRIPTION

PARCEL2
MORE PARTICULARLYDESCRIBEDAS
FOLLOWS:
Commencing at the Northeastcomer ofsaid
Section: thence
S. 87"52'30• W along the North lfne ofsaid
Section 718.00 feet; thence S. 00"03'50E.
45.13 feet to the pointof beginning ofthe lands
herein to be described; thence S. 000350° E.
862 19 feet to a point; thence N. 875230" E.
125.00 feet to a point; thence N. 00°03'50• W.
862 19 feetto a point; thence S. 87°52'30• W.
125.00 to the point ofbeginning.

Parcel 2 of Certified
Survey Map No. 7358,,
Being a Part of the
Northeast¼ of the
Southeast ¼ of Section
13 Town 5 North, Range
21 East, In the City of
Franklin, Milwaukee
County, Wisconsmn

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

518 West Cherry Street, MIiwaukee, WI 53212
PHONE (414) 604-0674 FAX (414) 604-0677

www daarcorp com

DAAR
E N G I N E E R I N G, I N C.

ENGINEERS PLANNERS SURVEYORS

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 150 300

75 225
1 INCH= 150 FEET

DRAWING BY PR





September 6th, 2022 EXHIBIT B - LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ACCESS EASEMENT
PRELIMINARY STORM SEWERACCESS EASEMENT EXHIBIT

Survey No KNOEBEL
2022

An access easement to grant maintenance access to the 2 34'x16' Rain Gardens located on Parcel 2 of Certified
Survey Map No. 7358. Includes access to entire drivewaywidth, a 5' perimeter around and a 10' wide path between
saId Ramn Gardens

L38 L58

L39 L57

C34 C37

C35

PARCEL2

L42 L54

L52

L44
5.00

L49

N

L47

518 West Cherry Street, Milwaukee, WI 53212
PHONE (414) 604-.0674 FAX (414) 604-0677

www daarcorp com

D A A
E N G I N E ER I G, IN C.

E
s

DRAWING BY PR

w
GRAPHIC CALE

50' 100'--- '--25' 75

1 INCH = 50 FEET

o·
iSURVEYORSPLANNERSENGINEERS





September 6th, 2022 EXHIBIT C-LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ACCESS EASEMENT Survey No. KNOEBEL
PRELIMINARY STORM SEWER ACCESS EASEMENT EXHIBIT 2022

An access easement to grant maintenance access to the 2 34'x16' Rain Gardens located on Parcel 2 ofCertified
Survey Map No. 7358. Includes access to entire drivewaywidth, a 5' perimeter around and a 10' wide path between
sand Ramn Gardens.

ACCESSEASEMENT LEGAL DESCRIPTION
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPT ION:
MOREPARTICULARLYDESCRIBEDASFOLLOWS:
Commencing at the Northeastcomerofsaidf Section. thence S. Br-52'30• W along the NorthHneof
sakliSection 718.00feet: thence S. 00-03•50• E. 45.13 feet to the pointofbeginningofthe landsherein to
be described :
thence M . 875230" E. 40,8t to thewestsideotthe driveway
thence $. 042602 W, 41.21%;
thence S. 00-01"2rE. 30.62,
thence 35.25" along a curve with a radiusof1B2.60'
and a chord bearing $. 030547W35.20"
thence 89.68 alonga curvewitha radiusof273.99"
and a chordbearing • 065244w 89.26
thence S. 00"57'1S-E.U.26'
thence S. B9"01"3t• E. 15.57 '-
thence S. A@000 E.34.00
thence N. 900000• 19.99
thence S. 33%4146" E.50.39
thence$. A000'00 E. 34.99
thence M., 900000 E., 24.00
thence M. 0000'00"E.44.00
thence M. 9000'00W. 19.99,
thence M. 334452 W, 50.38;
thence M. 000004E. 34.99,
thenceN. 89°59'1r W 31 73 to Iha Eastsideofthedriveway;
thence M 005710W.34.81%;
thence g7 7 alonga curvewith a radius or263 .99
and a chord bearing N. 06°56flr E. 86.78.
thence 37.85' along a curvewith II radius of199 .96"
and II chordbearing M. 031346E. 37.59
thenceN. 00%0427 W. 30.02;
thence N. 0426'02°E.41 98 the NorthOneofParcel2 atCM7358;
thence$. g75231 W, $0.87' to thepointofbeginning.

DA AR
E N G IN E E RI N G, I N C.

Line/ Curve Table
Line#/ Curve# Line Bearing Line Length Radius Arc Length Chord Length Chord Bearing

L37 N 87°52'30" E 40.81
L38 S 04°26'02" W 41.21
L39 S 00°01'27" E 30.62
C34 182.60 35.25 35.20 S 03°05'47" W
C35 273.99 89.66 89.26 S 06°52'44" W
L42 S 00°57'19" E 44.26
L43 S 89"01'31" E 15.57
L44 $ 0000'00" E 34.00
L45 N 90"00'00" E 19.99
L46 S 3341'46" E 50.39
L47 S 00"00'OO" E 34.99
L48 N 9000'00" E 26.00
L49 N 00"00'00" E 44.00
L50 N 90"00'00" W 19.99
LSl N 33"41'52" W 50.38
L52 N 0000'04" E 34.99
L53 N 89"59'15" W 31.73
L54 N 00"57'10" W 34.81
C36 263.99 87.17 8678 N 06"56'07" E
C37 199.96 37.65 37.59 N 03°13'46" E
L57 N 00"01'27" W 30.02
L58 N 04"26'02" E 41.98
L59 S 87°52'31" W 50.87

518 West Cherry Street, MIiwaukee, WI 53212
PHONE (414) 604-0674 FAX (414) 604-0677

www daarcorp com DRAWING BY PR

SURVEYORSPLANNERSENGINEERS





APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING
COUNCIL ACTION DATE

Shor October 18, 2022

REPORTS AND Franklin Public Library ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS 2020-2024 Strategic Plan G.7.

Presentation by Director Loeffel on the 2020-2024 Strategic Plan activities of Franklin Public Library

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

AResolution to Award
Change Order No. 3 for 2023 Asphalt Work

To Buteyn-Peterson Construction Co., Inc. For
The Franklin Corporate Park- South Hickory Street Improvements

MTG.DATE
October 18,

2022
ITEM NO.

G.8.

BACKGROUND
On April 19, 2022, Common Council awarded the S. Hickory Street improvements to Buteyn
Peterson Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $2,993,327.00. S. Hickory Street will be a new
street in the Franklin Corporate Park connecting W. Oakwood Road to the current terminus of
W. Elm Road. Improvements to W. Oakwood Road were added to accommodate development
along S. Oakwood Road. This work is included in the Tax Increment District (TID) 8 and
needed for commitments to developers within TID 8.

Buteyn-Peterson, the contractor, is anticipated to complete the project in 2022, but Staff would
prefer that the installation of the final asphalt surface be delayed until the spring of 2023.

ANALYSIS

Staff would prefer that the installation of the final asphalt surface be delayed until the spring of
2023 because of the amount of undercutting and quality of the soils that were encountered during
the project. Especially of concern is the utility trench from the sewer and water facilities that
were installed as part of TID 4. Settlement in another winter along with the anticipated road
traffic could cause some surface defects that could more easily be fixed on a base course and
covered with the surface course. Otherwise, road repairs on a finished road after the contractor
has completed their project would be less desirable and more expensive to fix.

This issue is of immediate importance as without a change order, the pavement is expected to be
completed by the end of October, 2023. Staff is working with Ruekert-Mielke and Buteyn
Peterson to finalize a change order. The amount of the change order is expected to be ready for
the October 18, 2022, Common Council meeting.

Note that approval of this change order will not delay the use of the road in 2022.

OPTIONS
Approve or deny the Change Order.



FISCAL NOTE
The Tax Increment District (TID) 8 budget and borrowing which was already executed for the
construction of this road was $3.5 million. Through change order 2, the project budget totaled
$3,007,409.65 leaving $492,590.35 within the budget.

$257,750.00 R&M Amendment 4- Hickory Road design work (Nov 16, 2021)
$28,100.00 R&M Amendment 5- Oakwood median design work (Dec 21, 2021)

$2,993,327.00 Buteyn-Peterson construction project (April 19, 2022)
$444,550.00 R&M Amendment 6 for full time inspection services (April 19, 2022)

$(874,232.70) Reimbursement from MMSD Green funds (May 3, 2022)
$46,110.00 PSI Contract for materials testing (June 7, 2022)
$92,666.25 WE Energies Relocation Work (June 7, 2022)
$15,139.10 BP Change Order No. 1- Drain Tile/ Driveway Access (September 6, 2022)
$4,000.00 BP Change Order No. 2- Asbestos (September 6, 2022)

$ , BP Change Order No. 3- 2023 Surface Paving (October 18, 2022)
Current total for Hickory Street (40-0331) [amounts to be provided at the

$_,__,__._ meeting]

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2022 - ---~ a resolution to award Change Order No. 3 for
Change Order No. 3 for 2023 Asphalt Work to Buteyn-Peterson Construction Co., Inc. for the
Franklin Corporate Park - South Hickory Street Improvements in the amount of$_.__._.
[amount to be provided at the meeting]

Engineering: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 ----

A RESOLUTION TO AWARD CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 FOR 2023 ASPHALT WORK
TO BUTEYN-PETERSON CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. FOR

THE FRANKLIN CORPORATE PARK- SOUTH HICKORY STREET IMPROVEMENTS
IN THE AMOUNT OF $ [amount to be provided at the meeting]

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin is constructing a new street in the Franklin Corporate
Park known as S. Hickory Street to serve the area included in Tax Increment District (TID) 8;
and

WHEREAS, Buteyn-Peterson Construction Co., Inc. was awarded the contract to
construct the project; and

WHEREAS, additional labor and materials are justified mn the amounts of
$-------

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, to award Change Order No. 3 for additional work and materials
needed to delay the installation of the asphalt surface in the amount of$ _

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of,2022, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Shor
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to Amend §207-21 of the Municipal Code
regarding Special Assessments ofWater Main Laterals

MTG.DATE
October 18, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.9.
BACKGROUND
There are several water main projects currently in the works where residents will be asked if they
want to connect to the water system. Connection to the water system is generally optional (note
that connection to the sanitary sewer is not optional). For those that want water service, they will
tell us where they prefer the tap and service lateral. Other property owners may have no intention
of ever connecting to our water system, or have a desire to, but not at this time.

Historically, the City has discouraged/prohibited installation of water laterals (service
connections) for homes that did not have intention of immediately connecting. Copper laterals
tend to go bad if left in the soil, unused. With today's non-corrodible plastic-based materials, the
old concerns have little merit.

Considering the new pipe materials, Staff would prefer to install water laterals for all homes as it
would eliminate future road cuts to install taps and laterals. However, such a decision would make
projects more expensive at the time of construction without ability to recoup payment from
assessments. Staff suggests that the lost cost of unused laterals is a better situation than continued
road repairs as homes do eventually make connections.

Staff would like guidance for a consistent method on water main projects. Current water main
projects in the works are located on S. Lovers Lane (Water Tower project), S. Lovers Lane
(Phyllis-Herda), W. Minnesota Avenue, and W. Ryan Road. Options are discussed below:

The Franklin Municipal Code Sections §207-15 and §207-20 provide guidelines for utility
assessments. § 207-21 discusses assessments for water main laterals.

The assessmentfor water main laterals installedfrom the main to theprivate property line
shall be based upon accepted contract bidprice quotation plus 16% for administrative,
engineering and inspectionfees. The owner, his or her agent or heirs ofsuchproperty shall
be assessed a lump sumfor each lateral installed

OPTIONS & ANALYSIS
Option 1: Status Quo. Do not install laterals for future use.
Although this is the most fiscally advantageous option for the City or Developer during the
construction of a water main project, this is more expensive for the property owners should they
decide to connect later as the future cost for a single project has the sole burden of contractor
mobilization, construction site costs, road repair, etc.

Invariably, future road patches over the future connections have increased road maintenance
issues.

Option 2: Install taps and laterals for all homes/buildings regardless of intent to initially
connect to the water system.
This option is the most expensive up-front option for the City and developers as costs of projects
will include the additional laterals. Even for properties that want to connect and reimburse the
City, many will choose City-finance options.

Costs will vary from project to project, but as an extreme case, it has been estimated that the new
water main on S. Lovers Lane would have 26 laterals at a cost of $148,000. It is conceivable that



none of the Lovers Lane homes would initially connect and many of homes will "never" connect.
Likewise, the Ryan Road water main has 12 homes that have previously expressed a desire to not
connect and the Minnesota and Phyllis-Herda water mains may have at least one property not
initially connect. Note that water laterals beneath S. Lovers Lane and within the Wisconsin
Department of Transportation right-of-way are significantly more expensive than same side
laterals of a City street/ right-of-way like W. Ryan Road and W. Minnesota Avenue.

Inspection services may flag the affected parcels in their software and charge impact connection
fees at the future time of connection. These fees tend to increase over time.

Option 2A: Each property would be specially assessed for cost of constructing the
lateral using existing assessment methods.

The City has an assessment process in place and the Finance Department would track these
assessments. Depending on the water main financing method, the property owner
may/may not be assessed for the water main. If City funded, the property owner is
assessed. Ifdeveloper financed, the assessment would only occur if connection happens
within 10-years.

There are deferment options that can defer payment up to 10-years. Deferments end earlier
if connection is made or property is sold.

Option 2B: Each property would be specially assessed for cost of constructing the
lateral using a proposed indefinite assessment method.

The indefinite deferment would end when the property chooses to make connection to the
public water system. Ifno connection were ever made, no collection of a special assessment
will ever occur.

Projects would only include laterals to properties with existing structures (homes) or lots
small enough to make an educated guess at a convenient future location. Large parcels that
could have a home placed in a variety of locations would not have a lateral installed. This
would not preclude Staff from conferring with property owners for desired locations of
laterals.

Option 2C: Each property would be specially assessed for cost of constructing the
lateral and an indefinite deferment would endwhen property is sold.

The indefinite deferent would end when the property chooses to make connection to the
public water system or property ownership is transferred. This deferment could extend for
many decades until a property ownership is transferred, but would eventually be paid.

The Board of Water Commissioners (BOWC) discussed this issue on September 20, 2022. The
BOWC recommended that Common Council adopt option 2Awhere each property would be
specially assessed for cost of constructing the lateral using existing assessment methods.

BOWC noted that Staff would need to use judgment on properties that could be split up or are
difficult to tell where a home or business might be located. Staff suggests that laterals be only
installed for "nondivisible lots" as consistent with other descriptions elsewhere in §207-20
Assessment for water mains. Divisible properties, of any zoning would not have laterals installed
at the time of water main construction. In addition, the lots should be developable so services
aren't extended to properties that are predominantly full of wetlands or other particular features.



The BOWC also recommends to Common Council to redefine the calculation of assessment for a
water lateral. This calculation is found in §207-21 Assessment for a water main lateral. The
current calculation is the actual bid price + 16% for administrative, engineering, and inspection
fees. BOWC would like to average the cost of the laterals on a project so there is no benefit or
penalty for the location of the water main in relation to someone's home. Staff proposes that the
bid costs of all laterals be averaged with a 16% increase for administrative, engineering, and
inspection fees\.

BOWC also asked Staff to verify with the Public Service Commission (PSC) if there are any
special requirements for assessment of water laterals. Staff received an answer from the PSC on
September 22, 2022. "It is PSC staff's opinion that it makes sensefrom apracticalperspective to
install the utility ownedportion ofthe service lateral at the same time as the main. Wis Stat
66 0911 seems to be consistent with Schedule X-2.A ofFranklin's water tariff IfFranklin plans
to change its past policy and to now install service laterals as part ofspecial assessed main
projects then Franklin shouldpass a resolution stating its new policy. "

Note that average cost method is allowed per State Statute§ 66.0911
66. 0911 Laterals and service pipes If the governing body by resolution requires water,
heat, sewer andgas laterals or servicepipes to be constructedfrom the lot line or near the
lot line to the main orfrom the lot line to the building to be serviced, or both, itmayprovide
that when the work is done by the city, village or town or under a city, village or town
contract, a record ofthe cost ofconstructing the laterals or servicepipes shall be kept and
the cost, or the average current cost oflaying the laterals or servicepipes, shall be charged
and be a lien against the lot or parcel served

Considering the BOWC recommendation to Common Council, and the response from the PSC,
the proposed language for §207-21 Assessment for water main lateral would be:

All non-divisible, developable lots shall have a water main lateral installed when a
water main is extended. The assessmentfor water main laterals installedfrom the main
to the private property line shall be based upon the average cost of the accepted contract
bidprice quotations of allwatermain laterals on the projectplus 16%for administrative,
engineering and inspectionfees. The owner, his or her agent or heirs ofsuchproperty shall
be assessed a lump sumfor each lateral installed.

Note that none of this affects the property's owner right to choose to connect or not to the new
water main.

FISCAL NOTE
One of the options presented affects the funding sources for a watermain project that are
determined on a project by project basis. Option 2B has an impact where there would be expenses
that would never be recovered. Option 2C has no timeline for recovery of all services, but would
eventually be recovered when a property is sold. Options 1 and 2A would recover all costs within
22 years for those that choose to finance over 12 years after a 10-year deferment.

RECOMMENDATION
Authorize Ordinance 2022-an ordinance to amend §207-21 of the Municipal Code regarding
Special Assessments of Water Main Laterals.

Engineering: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2022

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 207-21 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS OF WATER MAIN LATERALS

WHEREAS, the City wishes to install water main laterals at the time of constructing water main
projects to avoid future road repair concerns ofwater laterals that are connected at a later date.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin do hereby and ordain as
follows:

SECTION I. Section 207-21 "Assessment for water main lateral." of the Municipal Code of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended to read as follows (additions double underlined,
deletions in strikethrough):

All non-divisible, developable lots shall have a water main lateral installed when a water
main is extended. The assessment for water main laterals installed from the main to the
private property line shall be based upon the average cost of the accepted contract bid price
quotations ofall water main laterals on the project plus 16% for administrative, engineering
and inspection fees. The owner, his or her agent or heirs of such property shall be assessed
a lump sum for each lateral installed.

SECTION II.

SECTION III.

SECTION IV.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in contravention to this Ordinance are
hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage
and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council of the City ofFranklin on theday
of,2022, by Alderman

Passed and adopted by the Common Council on the day of>2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk



AYES NOES ABSENT



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Slr
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

AResolution to Issue Change Order No. 1 for
the 2022 Local Street Preventative Maintenance Program
to Scott Construction, Inc. in the Amount of $6,569.82

MTG. DATE
October 18,

2022
ITEM NO.

G.10.

BACKGROUND
On April 4, 2022, Common Council awarded the 2022 Local Street Preventative Maintenance
Program (LSPM) and contract to Scott Construction, Inc., in the amount of $89,389.35. The
2022 LSPM contained street segments receiving seal coating treatments. Portions of the
following roads were included in this contract:. 9' Street; W. Forest Hill Avenue; W. South
County Line Road; and S. 58"" Street. The work for this contract was completed by the
contractor in August.

ANALYSIS
The original contract cost with the plan quantities was $89,389.35. Adjustments in quantities for the
chip seal, fog seal, and GSB-88 seal were made during construction to ensure the most logical and
appropriate match points on the street segments were selected. The quantity change resulted in a
total increase of $6,569.82. The total contract cost after this change order will be $95,959.17.

Staff has reviewed and recommends that the final quantity adjustments are justified.

OPTIONS
Approve or deny.

FISCAL NOTE
The 2022 Budget included $1,159,000 in the 2022 Street Improvement Fund for the Local Street
Improvement Program Resurfacing and Local Street Preventative Maintenance (LSPM) contracts
(Fund 47-0331-5823). $100,000.00 of that was budgeted to fund the 2022 LSPM contract.

Current status:

$1,159,000.00 2022 LSIP Budget (Resufacing, LSPM, Mayers, ADA)
-$964,431.14 Anticipated 2022 Resurfacing Cost (Stark, DPW, testing)
-$87,081 51 Potential Future Change Orderfor Resurfacing Contract (Stark)
-$89,389.35 2022 LSPM Contract
-$6,569.82 Change Order No. 1 (7.3% of original contract)
$11,528.18 Remaining

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2022 - , a resolution to issue Change Order No. 1 for
the 2022 Local Street Preventative Maintenance Program to Scott Construction, Inc. in the
Amount of $6,569.82.

Engineering: TAB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022---

A RESOLUTION TO ISSUE CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 FOR
THE 2022 LOCAL STREET PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

TO SCOTT CONSTRUCTION, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,569.82

WHEREAS, on April 4, 2022, Common Council awarded the 2022 Local Street
Preventative Maintenance Program and contract to Scott Construction, Inc., in the amount of
$89,389.35; and

WHEREAS, changes in plan quantities for chip seal, fog seal, and GSB-88 seal items
were needed resulting in an increase of $6,569.82.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that Change Order No. 1 for the 2022 Local Street Preventative
Maintenance Program be issued to Scott Construction, Inc. in the amount of $6,569.82.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed
to execute Change Order No. 1 on behalf of the City.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of,2022, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- --



Change Order No: 1

CHANGE ORDER
CITY OF FRANKLIN

DEPARTMENT OF ENGINEERING

Dated: 10/07/2022

PROJECT NAME 2022 Local Street Preventative Maintenance Program

PROJECT LOCATION92St.,W.ForestHiAve.,W.SouthCouryLineRd.,S.50"St.

CONTRACTOR: Scott Construction, Inc.

Contract For City of Franklin

Nature of the Changes:

Adjustments in quantities for the chip seal, fog seal, and GSB-88 seal were made during construction
to ensure the most logical and appropriate match points on the street segments were selected.

Enclosures: See attached.

These changes result in the following adjustment of Contract Price and Contract Time: ( CITY
CONTRACT ONLY)

Original Contract Price $ 89,389.35---'-----------------------
Contract price prior to this Change Order $ 89,389.35
Net Increase resulting from this Change Order $ 6569.82_........_ _
Current contract price including this Change Order $ 95,959.17--------------
Net (Increase/Decrease) in time resulting from this Change OrderNone.

(Days)

The above changes are Approved by:

Mayor

By: Stephen R. Olson

Date:-------
Director of Finance &
Treasurer

By: Denise Gilbert

Date:-------
Forms/Contract ChangeOrder Form

City Clerk

By: Sandra L. Wesolowski

Date: -------

City Attorney

By: Jesse A. Wesolowski

Date: -------

10/10/22

ruction, Inc.



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Recommendation for 2023 Employee Benefit-Related
Coverages, Carriers, and Premium Shares, Including:

Health Insurance,Wellness, Health and Wellness
Supplementary Programs, and Dental Insurance, and

Related Contracts.

MEETING
DATE

10/18/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.11.

Below is mnformaton relatve to each element of the City's Health Insurance, Wellness, Health and Wellness
Supplementary Programs, and Dental Insurance Plan, and related contracts, for 2023, and a recommendation
on the same. Attached, as Exhbt A, 1s a draft of the 2023 Budget along with a comparison to the 2022
Adopted Budget.

The 1tems m bold text below are the elements bemg recommended for change m 2023.

Also, since the City recently performed an RFP process for the benefits consulting partner, and prev10usly
contracted for that work for 2023, 1t is not part of this recommendation.

Thus tem s beng consdered by the Personnel Commttee at ther October 17, 2022 meetng, and any recommendaton
made by the Committee wll be presented to the Common Councl at the Meetng

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Common Council approve the following proposed plan elements for 2023:

1. Conhnuation of UMR as the Third-Party Administrator (TPA) for the City's two (2) health msurance
plans, PPO and HDHP, as well as the administrator to manage the Health Reimbursement
Arrangement (HRA) Program and COBRA Program, per an existing two-year agreement which goes
through 2023 In 2022, the City transitioned from Urnted Health Care to UMR as they: (1) provide
expanded services; (2) offer add1tonal, Integrated reporting mncludung information from other benefit
providers (i.e. pharmacy, stop loss, NIce, etc.); (3) offer more flexibility; (4) Integrate better with other
providers; and (5) deliver better pricing. Also, there was NO change m provider network due to th1s
transition; the provider network remained exactly the same as it was with Umted Health Care.
Experience with this provider has been favorable.

2. No changes to overall premiums or employee premum shares for health insurance in 2023, as detailed
in the attached Exhbt B

3. Changing to a primary care model for the health insurance premium incentive. This means that
employees/spouses will need to submit proof that they have undergone an annual, age and gender
specific physical and corresponding bloodwork, to receive the preferred/wellness rate for the health
insurance plan for the following year. The annual physical is recommended to be completed
through Nice Healthcare. This is different from 2022 in that employees/spouses were required to
complete a Health Risk Assessment and biometrics testing, to receive the preferred/wellness rate
for the health insurance plan for the following year.

4. Conhnue with the Health Savmgs Account (HSA) contributions m 2023, at annual amounts of $750 for
a single plan and $1,500 for a family plan. These contributions will continue to be distributed on a
monthly bas1s.



5. Renew the HSA agreement currently mn place with Associated Bank. This three-year renewal is
favorable as it extends the current waiver of monthly service fees for accounts with balances less than
$1,000, and there are no monthly service fees for accounts with balances at $1,000 or more. A renewal
agreement/amendment 1s in process. Experience with thus provider has been favorable.

6. Continue with the Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) for 2023, up to $1,250 for a smgle plan
and up to $2,500 for a family plan, which prov1des coverage for employees enrolled mn the H1gh
Deductible Health Plan (HDHP), to help offset deductible and out-of-pocket costs. The HRA becomes
available once the employee reaches the access point of $1,500, no change from 2022, for a single
plan, and $3,000, up from $2,800, for a family plan. This change is due to an IRS, regulatory
adjustment for qualified high-deductible health plans, which changes the annual deductible for
single coverage to $1,500, from the 2022 amount of $1,400, and changes the annual deductible for
family coverage to $3,000, from the 2022 amount of $2,800.

7. Continue with the Nice Healthcare Program; a one-year renewal is recommended with a price
increase of $72 per employee per year. Experience with this provider has been favorable.

8. Continue with Go365 to encourage wellness activities; a one-year renewal is recommended with no
rate 1crease. Experience with thus provider has been favorable.

9. Continue with Serve You Rx as the Pharmacy Benefit Manager; currently under a multi-year
agreement. Experience with this provider has been favorable.

10. Continue with Symetra as the provider/administrator of the stop loss protection. The renewal offer
for this coverage is 4.53%, as illustrated in Exhibit C. Experience with this provider has been
favorable.

11. Continue with Prudential as the provider for both the City's life insurance and long-term disability
plans, under a three-year agreement which goes through 2024. Experience with this provider has been
favorable.

12. Continue with Delta Dental as the Third-Party Admmistrator for the City's dental plan, under a three
year agreement whuch goes through 2024. Experience with thus provider has been favorable.

13. Continue with VSP as the provider of the City's voluntary vision plan, under a four-year agreement
which goes through 2023. Experience with this provider has been favorable.

14. Continue with the flexible spending program through Employee Benefits Corporation, including
dependent care, standard health care, and limited health care. There is a minimal change in pricing;
a one-year renewal is recommended. Experience with this provider has been favorable.

15. Continue wth the USI Benefit Resource Center, at no add1tonal cost, for employees to provide
another pomt of contact for items such as: (1) customer service representatives to assist with findmg
providers; (2) obtammg detailed benefit information; (3) assisting with the open enrollment process;
(4) bemng able to answer just about any question posed m regard to the City's msurance benefits; (5) a
repository for the City's Plan Documents; and (6) videos and tutorials that are available on demand for
employees.



All of the Items included mn thus recommendaton are consistent with the Mayor's Recommended 2023
Budget. Collectively, these recommendations are very similar to pnor budgets, strvmg to contain overall
plan costs, engage employees, and prov1ding sufficient benefits to attract and retamn quality employees.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve the 2023 employee benefit-related coverages, earners, and premium shares, as outlined
herem, mncludmng. health insurance, wellness, health and wellness supplementary programs, and dental
insurance; and authonze the Director of Adm1mstration to execute the appropriate related contracts.

DOA-PAS



0
0
,-;
l/'l
<:t
,-;
1f}-

0
0
4

3.....,,_

0 0
0 0
o !
- (Y)00 r--

u%-

0
0
to

-v> N
rl
n%

iii
GIe::,
0.,,..
GI.c
5

iii

~

0 .l'.l0 i:::
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .,,

O
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ... G Q. r-- <D

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
U)

U"l 0 rl rl 0 0 en ID G CTI 0 CTI
0 r--- 0 co G 0 lO u ¢ (Y} -R N. ,-.:- ...... ... ID ,-; N
t N' ID o en 0 U) r..: t:
? m "' .....- lO rl t 0 (lt .,, ( ... t -v> ...

rl rl -v> -v> -v> u% .,; ... 0

N rl 00 o .,; -v> .,; n% u%- ..,,_ ..,,_
0..

-v> -v> ..,,_ ..,,_-v> ..,,_

iii» G
QI QI

sa z
E er:
ul
QI

.2:g

0o o o o
O O O <D
o n o e
co' r-i' .,i oo
I.D no E; !
33+g

0 00 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ....0 0 0 0 0 0 0 "' 0 0 0 0 0 4g ...0 0 r--- 0 0 0 (Y) 0 ..... '<t 0 ¢ ....0 0» ... ri ID 0 U') r..: c-J o ,-.:- en ...... en r..:

t
CJ) N. .,; U') el o ...... U) lO rl t r--- r .,, ...rl .... ..... 0 .,, ..,,_ 0 ..... rl -vi- -v> ..,,_ .,; ..,,_rl rl 00 i .,; ..,,_ .,; ..,,_ ..,,_ ..,,_-<I} -<I} ..,,_

-<I} ..,,_ ..,,_

..... ..... -;;;- N ("'() a,QI QI 5 ~ 2 <II <II N N u V}
cu cu QJ <II 0 0 P 0 0 C b5
LL LL .c E bO 0 u u

( N g
..... (1J u (1J

..abO er: 0 (1J 5 C C 3
C a, E

C --- - <II 0 ID ~ t
Eg 0 <II \0 > ::, 55 a (1J

a,u E 0 0 a.
E

::, a.. 00 u QJ g "O
0"iu --- ~ C "'

<II
QJ <( C .....

ID QJ QJC "iii U <II .c
(0

0 bi> er: ..!!! ·c (1J .. ..... ....::, --- u <II ::,u C "O C r c Ee £ QJ .... .s 0
C QJ ·;;; u e 5 ....<( X <II "O "iii <II .....,,

3 C6 ;:;: g <( QJ C QJ C
0

u
C r (1J a. 5 C C:?:

z (1J <II
ID QJ a X u, .....

VJ
..... C a .!:! WO ~--- 0 0 U') C: a, ng"' I- z

a, he
"' 5 .c lO QJ 0
0 ::, ..... (Y) QJ .h2 > -t,:
.... ..a "iii 0 > .... oa. ·.::: QJ 0 0 0 a. co
0 ..... T a. 0..C

E
ti iii 0 E E a, o""' - E u

QJ 8"' 0
<(

"O II ±i"' 0 ..... iii V)
QJ

V}
"' -' QJ

G r > y ....0 a. C: z
"iu 3 C

.... 0 .E oll
3 m

4
a. .... "' iii

y a.
0

.,,
"O ....

-0 ....
(1J"' "' ±g u

..... QI <( 0 QJ.,, .... u 3 0
±-: -eu (1J iii u:: u .... I'll

m
E bO u "' ..

"' y
QJ 5 iii E iii QJ

0 o a..
·.::; ..

.c u
*

. QJ Ill) QI .... iii .... ....
* ya. Ill)

::i?: 0 G 0 0.,, <( I- I-

+-'
QJ
tl.O
""'O
::J
co
QJu
C
ro
I....
::J
V')
C

..c
+-'
ro
QJ
r
("'(')
(]
0
(]

""'O
QJ
+-'u
QJ. ----,
0
I....
a..

V')
QJ
QJ
I....

+-'
QJ
0::::
""'O
C
ro
V')
QJ
>
+-'u
<(

....
C
(0

<(

e-
0 u r--0 -e r--

6

-t:::
0 0 0 ... ("'() <D

J
..0 0 0 0

0 0 0 en 0 0 r-- <D r--
0 0 0 o

0 0 t a..
0 l.D .....

0
00 u ...... ... ..,,_ r-.:- r- 0

..c
R ,-...- co -vi-

"!. a, ,-; ,-;

X

00 ..... l/)
1f}-

UJ r--- l/) l.D
n u /% ... a. 1f}-

t U"l ..... ..,,_u u -v> ....
V}

0u



Exhibit B

Medical Benefit and Employee Contribution Summary
City of Franklin

Effective January 1, 2023

Third Party Administrator

Plan Design

Calendar Year Deductible
In-Network (Single/ Family)

Out-of-Network (Single/ Family)

Coinsurance Level
Tier 1 Provider

Other In-Network Provider

Out-of-Network

Out-of-Pocket Maximum
In-Network (Single / Family)

Out-of-Network (Single I Family)

In-Network Preventive Care

In-Network Office Copay
Tier 1 Primary / Specialist

Other In Network Primary/ Spec.

In-Network ER Copay
In-Network UC Copay
Virtual Visits

Prescription Drug Copay

Tier 1 / 2 / 3

Specialty

Monthly Premium
Single

Family

Monthly Contribution-with annual physical/bloodwork
Single

Family

Monthly Contribution-without annual physical/bloodwork
Single

Family

2023 Health Savings Account
Contribution from the City
Single

Family

UMR

PPOPlan

$1 500 / $4 500
$4,500 I $13 500

85%
80%
60%

$4,500 I $9 000
$13,500 / $27,000

Covered at 100%

$25 / $50
$40 I $70

$400
$100
$15

$10 / $40 / $60

25% coinsurance

$790 54

$189972

$160 00

$386 00

$196 24

$472 60

N/A

N/A

UMR

High Deductible Plan (HSA Plan)

$3,000 I $6 000

$6 000 I $12,000

90%

80%

60%

$4 500 / $9,000

$9,000 I $18,000

Covered at 100%

Deductible then 90% Co-insurance

Deductible then 80% Co-insurance

Deductible then 90% Co-insurance

Deductible then 90% Co-insurance

Deductible then 90% Co-insurance

Deductible then 90% Tier 1,
Deductible then 80% Tiers 2 and 3

Deductible then 80% Co-insurance

$714 88

$1 724 74

$96 02

$232 26

$128 52

$310 84

$750 00

$1 500 00

2023 Health Reimbursement Arrangement (Access Point of $,1500 for Single and $3,000 for Family Plan)
Single NIA $1 250

Family N/A $2 500



Exhibit C

Group: City of Franklin
Effective Date: 01/01/2023
Stop-Loss Specific Premium

NNLRC%
Experience Refund

Current
NNL RC @50%

Included

Renewal
NNL RC @ 50%

Included

Option 1
NNL RC @50%

NIA

Option 2
NNL RC @ 50%

Included

Option 3
NNL RC @ 50%

Included

Swiss ReBerkshireCarrier: Symetra Symetra

Carrier Rating: A A ++ A++ A+

TPA: UMR UMR UMR UMR UMR
PPO Network: UHC Choice+ UHC Choice+ UHC Choice+ UHC Choice+ UHC Choice+
UR Vendor: UMR UMR UMR UMR UMR
PBM ServeYouRX ServeYouRX ServeYouRX ServeYouRX ServeYouRX
Stop Loss Commission: 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Benefits Included: Med/RX Med/RX Med/RX Med/RX Med/RX
Specific Deductible: $80,000 $80,000 $80,000 $80,000 $80,000
Aggregating Specific: $75,000 $75,000 $75,000 $75,000 $75,000
Specific Contract: 24/12 36/12 24/12 24/12 24/12
Specific Policy Year Maximum: Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited

Single Premium 52 $ 121.66 $ 131.63 $ 148.17 $ 106.95 $ 173.02
EE+SP Premium 0 $ 305.89 $ 318.01 $ 351.86 $ 311.43 $ 406.20
EE+CH Premium 0 $ 305.89 $ 318.01 $ 351.86 $ 311.43 $ 406.20
Family Premium 139 $ 305.89 $ 318.01 $ 351.86 $ 311.43 $ 406.20
Composite 191 $ 255.73 $ 267.27 $ 296.41 $ 255.76 $ 342.72
Monthly Specific Premium $ 48,845.03 $ 51,048.15 $ 56,613.38 $ 48,850.17 $ 65,458.84
Annual Specific Premium $ 586,140.36 $ 612,577.80 $ 679,360.56 $ 586,202.04 $ 785,506.08
% Difference 4.51% 15.90% 0.01% 34.01%

Aggregate Stop Loss
Aggregate Contract 24/12 36/12 24/12 24/12 24/12
Benefits Included: Med/RX Med/RX Med/RX Med/RX Med/RX
Aggregate Policy Year Maximum: $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Composite 191 $ 8.22 $ 8.64 $ 6.21 $ 8.50 $ 7.72
Monthly Aggregate Premium $ 1,570.02 $ 1,650.24 $ 1,186.11 $ 1,623.50 $ 1,474.52
Annual Aggregate Premium $ 18,840.24 $ 19,802.88 $ 14,233.32 $ 19,482.00 $ 17,694.24

Aggregate Corridor: 125% 125% 125% 125% 125%
Single Attachment 52 $ 701.17 $ 667.49 $ 644.76 $ 614.23 $ 581.95
EE+SP Attachment 0 $ 1,722.65 $ 1,635.83 $ 1,542.58 $ 1,756.29 $ 1,665.75
EE+CH Attachment 0 $ 1,722.65 $ 1,635.83 $ 1,542.58 $ 1,756.29 $ 1,665.75
Family Attachment 139 $ 1,722.65 $ 1,635.83 $ 1,542.58 $ 1,756.29 $ 1,665.75
Composite 191 $ 1,444.55 $ 1,372.20 $ 1,298.15 $ 1,445.36 $ 1,370.68
Monthly Claims Liability $ 275,909.19 $ 262,089.85 $ 247,946.14 $ 276,064.27 $ 261,800.65
Annual Claims Liability $ 3,310,910.28 $ 3,145,078.20 $ 2,975,353.68 $ 3,312,771.24 $ 3,141,607.80

-5.01% -10.13% 0.06% -5.11%
Aggregate Run-In Limit $ $ $ 446,303.00 $ 596,300.00 $

Total Reinsurance Expense
Annual Fixed Premium $ 604,980.60 $ 632,380.68 $ 693,593.88 $ 605,684.04 $ 803,200.32
% Difference 4.53% 14.65% 0.12% 32.76%
Maximum Cost Liability $ 3,915,890.88 $ 3,777,458.88 $ 3,668,947.56 $ 3,918,455.28 $ 3,944,808.12
% Difference -3.54% -6.31% 0.07% 0.74%

Proprie tary & Confidential

Berkshire Hathaway would be subject to an additional $5 PEPM which would be assessed by UMR as a
non-preferred stop loss vendor This would increase their cost by $11,460 which equates to a 2 01 % increase over
current. They also indicated the potential for two claimants to be lasered.



PPROVAL

Sl»
REPORTS AND

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Finance Committee Recommended Changes
to the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget

MEETING
DATE

10/18/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.12.
BACKGROUND

Following introduction of the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget to the Common Council on October
4, 2022, the Common Council approved a motion forwarding the budget to the Finance Committee for its
review and submission of any recommended changes to the Common Council.

The Finance Committee met and reviewed the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget at three meetings on
October 5th, October 6th, and October 11th. The first two meetings included: presentations from each
Department Head to provide details on the budget requests and respond to inquiries regarding
departmental operating and related capital items and the functions and operations of each department;
an overview of the entire budget document; and a plan to review the entire budget over the course of
three meetings. During the third meeting, the Committee accepted updated budget information from
staff regarding specific funds outside of the general fund which will be detailed below; reviewed the
details, including funding, of the Capital Funds-Capital Outlay, Equipment Replacement, Capital
Improvement, Street Improvement, Utility Development, Development Fund; reviewed the historical,
current and projected status, including funding, of the Tax Incremental Financing Districts; reviewed the
historical, current and projected status, including funding of the Debt Service; reviewed the Self
Insurance Fund; and reviewed the City's valuation, total tax levy and tax rates in detail.

ANALYSIS

Included in the updated information provided to the Finance Committee were additional information
and updates to the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget, including the amount of changes, as follows:

• Fund 61-Sanitary Sewer Fund - attached pages 35-37 / 211-213, with changes clearly identified
this budget was in process at the time of the October 4th budget release and subsequently
completed and provided to the Finance Committee on October 11th:

o Increase in Revenues - $1,578,796
o Increase in Expenses - $5,501,886

• Fund 25-Health Department Grant Fund - attached pages 224-225, with changes clearly identified 
this budget was complete at the time of the October 4th budget release, however, the revenues and
some of the expenditures were not carried forward from the Department Request column to the
Mayor's Recommended column; this was corrected and provided to the Finance Committee on
October 11th:

o Increase in Revenues- $723,683
o Increase in Expenditures - $317,293



• Fund 22- Utility Improvement Fund - attached page 276, with changes clearly identified - this
budget was held for staff review after the budget release, and was subsequently completed and
provided to the Finance Committee on October 11th:

o Increase in Revenues - $109,500
o Increase in Expenditures - $700,000

• Fund 27-Development Fund - attached pages 277-280, with changes clearly identified - all of the
project spending for this fund was originally included in the Capital Improvement Budget on page
256, however this budget was held for staff review after the budget release, and was subsequently
completed and provided to the Finance Committee on October 11th:

o Increase in Revenues - $1,190,000
o Increase in Expenditures - $969,325
o Note that there is one update compared to what was provided to the Finance Committee - on page

279, $88,800 was inadvertently placed in the Police Department account instead of the Fire
Department account; that has now been updated.

• Fund 51- Special Assessment Fund - attached page 299, with changes clearly identified - this budget
was held for staff review after the budget release, and was subsequently completed and provided
to the Finance Committee on October 11th:

o Increase in Revenues -
o Increase in Expenditures -

$3,100
$0

• Fund 75-Self-Insurance Fund - attached pages 323-325, which are new additions to the budget -
this budget was in process at the time of the October 4th budget release and subsequently
completed and provided to the Finance Committee on October 11th:

o Increase in Revenues - $3,045,900
o Increase in Expenses - $3,479,200

Please note that if these changes are authorized by Council, the Budget will go from being identified as
the '2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget' to the 'Proposed Budget'. The Proposed Budget will then be
utilized for the Public Hearing Notice which will be published on October 26, 2022, for the November
15, 2022, Public Hearing on the same.

RECOMMENDATION

At their October 11, 2022 meeting, the Finance Committee unanimously approved a motion to
recommend to the Common Council to amend the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget per the above
changes and as detailed in the attached schedules.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to amend the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget for revenues and expenditures as detailed
herein and on the attached schedules, to be included in the 2023 Proposed Budget for the Public
Hearing scheduled for November 15, 2022.

DOA-PS I Finance - DG



0 ><y E-1 0 0 ONOM'<1C-M 0\ \D 0\ 0 U1 0 U1 ri \D 0 ri ri U1 OM \D NO U1 ri NO\CDriO\MCD\D \D uO +-lD 0O0 H O\MM\DC-\0'<1 0\ 00 ri "" "" CD U1 U1 y qi O U1 r--- O"I 0\ r'""-ONO\DU)CDOO 0 r oo o u)
y i::; O"lt-NCD\O\.Ori y U1 N c- 0\ 0\ 0 0 ri riMOON 0\ ririNri\DCDriN \D 'Qlr-fll) f'")Q- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -E-1 ri N \D O \D C- \D y 0\ CD c- "" "" CD CD c- CDririMM ) or- Lu)r DO y \D '<I'M C'"l N riu IDOC-\Dri'<I' c- c- CD ('") ('") \D \D 0\ NN U1 0 +I y \D ri U1rt ri\0'<1ri U1 0\ "" "" 0 0 CD CD y n y

y M ri ri U1 U1{
ri ><y E-1 0 0 0'<1C-O\\DNO\ c- c- 0 ('") 0 1.110\ 0 "" '<10 "" OO<X>Of'")r-,.r--,. U1 C- 0\ N riN \000 0\ U1ri0\('")00 H riNri<'"l\DriN 0\ U1 M '<1 ('") "" ('") 0\ c- U1 U1 CD 0\ N N 0\ C- 0\ CD'<1C-\0Nri 0 c-ooc-1.11N i::; CD N '<1N N ri 0 0 0\ c- ri CD N'<1C'"l 0 c- c- \D VO +t "" 00\0CDO'<I' U1 q «I DO I- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -E-1 riNM'<1CD'<10\ M N '<1 c- O 0 0 "" "" c- CDNriCDC- U1 0 CD M NN C'"l N ('") U1 c- \Du O\C-U1'<1NO\ 0\ CD CD M U1 CD CD \D ri N N ('") ri c- ri 0 M ri '<11 ) DO+ «t U1 y n n 0\ 0\ ri ri ('") "" riy ""

y

~
E-l

N 8 0 0 0000000 0 0 '<1 0 "" 000 0 00 0 O\NOO"-JIC""lt' U1 CD U10 C-N CDOO 0 000000 0 0 0000000 0 0 \D \D 0 0 0 ri 0 c- "" ri U1 '<10\\DNU1CD c- 01.110 0 U1
y H 9 0 0 OMO\DOOM y 0 ri ri 0 0 N ri 0 ri c- \D CD MMC-'<1riCD 0\ OriU1U1U1t!) - - - a - - - - - - - - - - - - - -H Ill 0 0 Nl.1100\CDC-'<1 \D U1 N c- U1 U1 C'"l CD 0 ri ri CD N NC-C'"lNNC'"l ri u) O qt (nP'◄ 0\ 0\ CD U10 C- M\D y U1 U1 N y U1 ri NN N ) (n c- ri \D \D ri U10 ri ri '<1\DU1ri U1 "" ('") ('") "" @ ('") # ri

N "" ri ri

00000
'<l'LOOOO
CD'<1LOOO

00000
'<1LOOOO
CD'<l'l.1100

00000
00000
OOOLOO

LOU1C-C-ri
N ri U1

ri
c
ri

ri
CD
ri

N \Ori U1N N
M'<1 CD ri

N \Ori CDN 0\
('") "" c-

'<1M'<10riC-OO 0\
riN'<1U1CDN M

O a+l0 O

ri
c
ri

'<1C'"l'<10riC-OO 0\
riN'<1U1CDN C'"l
CD\0'<1C')ri\D 0

'<1M'<1\DriMOO ri
rfNql\OCX)-.:::1' r--,
CD\D'<1NriCD ri

riNCD CD
NN N

#

riNCD CD
NN N

3

riNCD CD
NN N

3

CDCD 0
U1 ri
('")

CD CD 0
U1 ri
('")

CD CD 0
U1 ri
('")

C'"lNOOCDOU1 CD
'<l'riO \DC-'<1 C'"l
O\riO OOC- 0\

MNOOCDOU1 CD
'<1ri0 \DC-'<1 M
O\riO OOC- O'I

C'"lNOOCDOU1 CD
'<1ri0 \DC-'<1 M
O\riO OOC- 0\

00 0
0 0
0 0

0 0
0 0
N N

00 0
0 0
0 0

0 0
0 0
N N

0 0 0

000 0
0 0
0 0

0 0
0 0
0 0

ri ri

000 0
0 0
0 0

0 0
0 0
0 0

ri ri

000 0
0 0
0 0

U1 U1
N N
3 «@

ri ri

U1 CD
ri
M

0\DO \D
0 0\ 0\
0 c- c-

U1 CD
ri
(n

0\DO \D
0 0\ 0\
0 c- c-

O'<l'O '<I'
0\DO \D
OriO ri

U1NU1 N
U1 ri C
M C'"l

N

NU1U1U10NN ri
CD\DriU1NN \D
'<1\D'<1ri \D ('")

0000000 0
0000000 0
0000000 0

N

0000000 0
0000000 0
0000000 0

NU1U1U10NN ri
CD\DriU1NN \D
'<1\D'<1ri \DC')

0000000 0
0000000 0
0000000 0

NOOOCDL.110 U1
U1U1U1C-N\D ri
'<1\0'<1ri U1 ('")

y

0 0

0 0

0 0
0 0
0 0

0 0
0\ 0\
ri ri

M E-1 E-ln r,,ig
f:;l 11'.l

E-l
P,
[z1
A

M N C- C- CD
,._:i ri "" LO CO co
l'l;NNNNN
DU1LOLOLOU1
E-t I I I I I
)rt rlrlrl r,oo o ora; r--- r- r--- r- r-
E-t O O O O C
Z I I I I I
Ori ri ri ri ..
U\D \D \D \D \J:

[ii
E-t
CJ]

$
a no
o Dz

3#li
E-t r.1 NA

$,
$4%o
ll E-l E-t

E-t CJ] CJ]

~z,oooo
E P'◄
H H [ii [ii

bf{tr
::>OOE-IE-l{g<oo

u
H

~
[ii
CJ]

CJ]
E-l
H
[u

,,c+no vo
r.:ILOU1U1U1LOU1\DCD
ll'.lriririririririri

LOU1LOU1LOU1LOU1
[ii I I I I I I I I
l"ilriririririririri
>i<'"lMMMMC'"lC'"lC'"l I'<,
Oc-c-c-c-c-c-c-c- 0
HOOOOOOOO
P, I I I I I I I I E-l

GGGs@Gd$e

rn
[ii
u
H

~
[ii
CJ]

3
0rn
P'◄
[ii
P,

CJ]
[iiu
~
P'◄riU1C-CDM'<1U1
l"ilririririMC'"lC'"l
Ulririririririri

U1 U1 U1 U1 U1 U1 U1
HI I I I I I I< ri ri ri ri ri ri ri
Z<'"lM<'"l<'"l<'"lM<'"l r,.
Oc-c-c-c-c-c-c- 0
CJl O O 00 0 00
P'◄ I I I I I I I E-t
l"ilririririririri [ii
P.\D\D\D\D\D\D\D z

CJ] CJ]

38
HH
E-1 E-l

iiliil
HH
P'◄ P'◄
E-l E-t

3&uu

>< ><
E-l E-l
HH
uu

a
H
E-l

CJ]

3
H

%
P'◄
P,

%
2
CJ]

s....g
§a~~E ~

I I I P'◄
000

HOOO I'<,
r.1000 0
uooo
CJl I I I E-l

468a

0
1H

iii
[ii
CJ]

z

#
P'◄ ~ E-l

CJ] [ii z
E-1 E-l E-l !4+n4$
$=
H CJl

a
stau

E-l O 0rn o P'◄g°
#%zzo
H H l:Q

CJ]

2•
~ l"ilriNC
[il ririri
;> E-lc-c-c
] Za@ a
P'◄ ! I I I

000
u ooo I'<,o CJJooo o
[ooo

E-l Z I I I E-l, Gus Be

><
E-l
H
P'◄ E-l} ggg

on22 ?
E-lE-lHHDUll

5g3;jg?s@?
kl fig $28,#lo
::, I I I HI
E-l CJl CJl CJl l'n r.1 CJl I
$ g 4 3%8j3jg%g

rn CJJ CJJ n {u u
I H

E-lAAAA><A E-l

#28 $
i ii!Ea i

0 E-l E-l E-l E-l Z E-l P4&gs9gsss
g
iii
[ii
CJ]
MriNC'"ll.11\DCD

P'◄ri\D\D\D\D\D\D
0'<1'<1 """""" """"3 d @ @ @ d

I I I I I I I
rnooooooo
r.10000000
ooooooo

ioooooooI I I I I I I
ri ri ri ri ri ri ri

U\0\0\.0\0\0\.0\0

±
I
$
g
[z1
E-1z
H

+l
DO

3
H
E-l
P,
H

5
CJ]

[:l

I



0 ><y E-< r-- O NOO'<l'riO'<l''<l'N\Dri y 0\'<!'<'100\000\00ri ,., ri ri v O a 0 + O O r-- ,., 00 0 '<l' '<l' ri ri
0 H '<l' ,., NO\t"'-0 \DOINOON 00 NOOC--f'1NOI 0 r-- ri ri v o o oouo 0\ r-- r-- 00 00
y ~ 0\ U") N 0\ r-- r-- '<l' ri "',., ,., O 00\'<l'riC--<'1ri 0\ r-- '<l' 0 0 r- Lu) Nrif'1U1U1 ,., ri ri 0\ 0\E-< 0 U") 0 3 ) \DO\Nri 0\ 0\ '<l' "' riO 0\ ,., ,., ,., rl U") \D\Df'1ri U") O O ,., ,.,u 4 U") ri N U") O ,., y 00 ri O N ,., 0 0 y NA! ri U") O ri ri ,., '<l' '<l' 0 0y y

y yr
ri ><y E-< j 0 OOO'<l'OINOOriU1<'1N y '<l'oor--or--ooooou,u, y 00 00 00 CX> 0\ 0 \.0 l.00 CD '<l' '<l' 0 '<l' 0 0 r-- r--0 H r-- 00 00\Dri'<l'OOOU'l'<l'ri\D r-- O O rl N ri 0\ ri 00 O O \D N ri ) o 00 O U") 00 00 ,., ,., '<l' '<l'
y ~ N ri C--\D0000rif'1ri0\\DO\ N Ori ri ri ,., ,., 00 r-- <D 00 00 00 '<l' r-- OC--f'")f'") U") O O r-- r-- r-- r--E-< 0 '<l' 0 a ( 0 00 \D 0 r-- 0 U") '<l' <'10 ri ri <D y y r-- O 00<'10\0I U") r-- r-- '<l' '<l' ,., ,.,u y y ri ri -l r-- ,., ,., ri 00 0\ riO ri U") 0\ 0\ 00 00 ,., ,.,,:i: ri O <D ri ri ,., ,., ,., 0 0y y

N y

y

~
E-<y lz1 0 0 0000000000 0 0000000000 0 0 0 00000000 0 00 0 '<l' '<l' 0 00 Cl 0 0 OOOU'l OU'lOOO 0 OOU10UlOU100U") 0 0 0 OOOOOOriO ri 0 0 ri ri 0 0N H § 0\ O U1 NOO 00 NNU'lOO ,., 0 00 000 0 C--N 00 N 0\ ri ri OOC--<'100\'<!'0 ,., '<l' '<l' 0\ 0\ 0 0Cl ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' aH ill 00 0\ ri N '<l' f'1 ri'<l'OIO'<l' ri OUlC--riC--<D ri ri 0\ 0\ ,., ,., U") ri U") 00 U") ,., U") '<l' '<l' '<l' U") U")0 ri U") ri riNf'1ri ri 0 N U") r-- riN N U") 00 00 '<l' '<l'0 ri ri r-- r-- N ri '<l' '<l' '<l' 0 0y • N y

Ill
H
p:;
E-<

6
(.)

0 0
0 0
0 0

U") U")
U") U")
0 0

V

0 0
0 0
0 0

U") U")
U") U")
0 0

V y

0 0
0 0
0 0

U") U")
'<l' '<l'
0 0

y

Ill
t;j
E-< riz '<l'
or--
0 uo

I,,;
n 0
ll r-- o
HO
j ~ E-<
o6 %

rl
N
O
U")

E-t I
en rl

8
[,<10
E-t I E-tz rl [,<1
H <D Z

lz1 E-t
<.J Ill

3±en Nen o
H N en

3
H

#p:;
Al

%
•,., .......
o en
00 ~

i

rzi en
E-t lz1
0 lz1z.......
93

lz1
(.)
Hz

0 lz1u en

00 0

00 0

00 0

lz1 ri ri
U O 0\
H O DO:> U") U")
P:, I I
[l r ri
no) o [

r-- r-- 0
E-too
Ill I I E-t

3G3

0 0\,., U") '<l'
riri'<l'N 0

ri U")

00\f'")U") '<l'
riri'<l'N 0

ri U")

0 r--,., U") r-
ri ri N NU")

ri '<l'

eng
. ii
lz1 E-< :r!:r: z en u
E-t H
OllE-<><
I Ou E

1z1 A! H H
O +l ..:l

3:a4azS
E-< lz1 lz1
Z I en

z3&±le
E-t H C!J Al H 6
< U CIA.UH
H H ~ZDHE-<UP:, Henp:,,:i:H] Eo E-<
P:.rz:IU[zl ..:l><U i>:
P,E-irz:1;3:E-tHE-irz:I P,
lz1 ,:t! H lz1 <DH ..:l 0
AS:rzienZlll<.Jrz:1 8;

2eng
i

U") ri U")
r--
y

0 ri U1
0,.,

0 ri U1
0,.,

00000000 0
000 OOOUlO f'1
oor-- oor--o u,

00000000 0
000 OOOUlO f'1
oor-- oor--o u,

00000000 0
000 OOriO ri
oar-- OO'<l'o ri

en
rJ
(:irlriNf'1'<l'OlriN:r! '<l' U") U") U") U") U")"' r-
(.) U") U") U") U") U") U") U") U")

U") U") U") U") U") U") U") U")>< I I I I I I I I
E-tririririrlrlriri

222%
Hoooooooo
(.) I I I I I I I I E-t
~ririririrlrlriri [,<1
r.;"'"'"'"'"'"'"'"' z

E-<

8
en

""~
~
E-t

0 0
0 0
rl ri,., ,.,

0 0
0 0
ri ri,., ,.,

0 0
0 0
ri ri,., ,.,

E-<
Do
0 00

'<l'en u,
p:; I
lz1 rl

%%
~~ E-t
6 %

•u

rt r
ri N

r--

y

rt r O
ri N

r--

•

ririO \D
ri U")

<D

y

00 U"),.,

00 U"),.,

r-- r-
y

0 U")\D
U")
O

y

0000000000 0
000 OOUlOOO U1
ONU") OriOOU'lUlO <D

o 0 DO
U")
O

y

0000000000 0
000 OOUlOOO U1
ONU'l OriOOU'lUlO \D

o uo
0
DO

y

0000000000 0
000 OOUlOOO U1
OOU") UlOC--N\DO U1

f'100<'1 f'1
ririf'1ri 00

ri\DOIOU") r-
riNf'1ri ri

ri

ri\DOOU") r-
rif'1<'1ri ri

ri

en
lz1
H

~

en
lz1
Hen ..:lenen enrzir:i.

f'.l f'.1 ;'.] ~ g;
..:l..:lenE-<..:lP< en

EageDb bnenen r:i.en
Hb Cl

D ZC>i>:enE-<Z
enC>enOZill ZH

lz1 ZllHHDrzir,,ien
Clrz:IHP:.E-<E-i..:l..:l~H
<uE-to.:i:.:i:-.....oi:i.:>
Ei Hz bu )piii fa
enµ,HHDrz:1~:I:D..:l0 r,,. p:; Z Q P< r,.i Olrzi
a O blo 'b> fai

f'1 N U1 '<l'
ri

f'1 N U1 '<l'
ri

Ori'<l'ri
ri

0000000000 0
ooooooooo
OU'lOONN'<l'UlOUl f'1

0000000000 0
ooooooooo
OU'lOONN'<l'OOU") 00

0000000000 0
0000 00000 0
OU'lOOO UlOOOO 00

riNf'1\DOOO\riNf'1\D
ririrlNNNf'1<'1<'1<'1,., ,., ,., ,., ,., ,., ,., ,., ,., ,.,
U") U") U") U") U") U") U") U") U") U")

en I I I I I I I I I I
lz1 ri ri rl ri ri ri ri ri rl ri
Hf'1<'1<'1<'1<'1<'1<'1<'1<'1<'1
..:lr--r-- r--r--r--r-- r--r-- r--r-
r:i.0000000000
Al I I I I I I I I I I
D ri ri rl rl ri ri ri rl ri ri
CJl\D\0\0\0\0\0\.0\D\.O\.O

H

~
lz1en

0 U")
N r--

±

0 0
0 0\
0 r--

0 U")
N r-

ri

0 0
0 0\
0 r--

0 0
0 0
0 U")

U") 0
ri N

ri

~
E-<

.i
%3
E-< u

~
3
(.)

Ien en
lz1u
H

~
lz1en

0\

2<bu
E-< Iu rl

38
E-< 0
Z I E-<

8iri ~
i

3
H
E-<
P,
H

""uen
lz1
Q

v >
N lz1 E-<
0 E-< H
vg

~ E-<
OU
"" A!P,

,., E-< E-<
N en lz18e
OD
f;] ill

E-<
P,
lz1
Q



NOCXlOCOO~Ol0NM LO CO
r-- 'SI' 10 0 0\0\riO CO
CON O ~ COrit--MO

0 ><
N E-t

~ ~
E-t

?
LC1 M 0

rl M
rl

0«- a O a
CD MMO\
rl N rl

10 100N
rl rl M
rl rl N

rl 0\ 0
a:, co r--
0\ rl rl

~ ~ 0\
10 10

QJ
H
RI
rl
rl
RI

(

E-t±CJ A
?

rl rl
a (
a:, r-
LO 0

0 LO
0 rl
0 a:,

N ~
LO
10

i#
0 0
E-t E-t

0 0
0 LO
0 0\

r-- rl
rl LOy

0 0
0 LO
0 0\

a:, N
rl LO

N

0

0

0
0

0
0
0
rl
tu

.µ
i::
£
QJ
0
RI
rl
%
H

0

0
0
0

rl

.µ
i::
2
QJ
0
RI
rl
0,

8l

0
0
0

rl

0
0
0

rl

i::
QJ
QJ
H
0
(I]

QJ
0
RI
rl

£

QJ
'U
RI
H
Ol
§'
'U
%
QJ
QJz

0 0 0 0 0
0
0

N

rl
o aJo
oS::o
o Rio~ N
rl rl

0
H.µ
i::
0
0

0 0
0 0
0 0«
rl ~

.£1

t'
·rl
0

rl
t
a:,
LO

E-tz
4
H

&
fil
~
fil
E-t

I
CJ

(I]
.µ
0

•r,
QJ
0
Ho
~
rl
'1-1
i::
H

'U
i::
RI
i::
0
·rl.µ
RI
H.µ
rl
·rl
'1-1
i::
H

t'
H!

rl QJ
M g.
' H
~ Ill
10 QJ

.µ
RI>

·rl
H
Ill

o H
LO 0~ >,
.5%
N >,
N .Q

'Ug
QJ

·rl

%
¥

0
LO .µ
q ¥

O
rl p.
N QJ
y H

rl
QJ
0
><fil
H
QJ
%

E-tog
%4

u
fil
E-t 0
0 .µ
Z AE-t QJ en
82%

d
> a

0
d
d) 44
Ol
i:: 'U
RI QJ; n
CJ H

::,
'8
C, ·rl
A QJ
A H

0\
N
a:,
LO

0
0
0

LOy

rl
rl
a:,
LO

0
0
LO

LO

0
0
LO

LO

3
0
E-t

E-t

8
CJ

~

QJ
.µ
QJ
rl

%•• 0 ..
en o en
E-t E-t

9
0 Cll 09z.%.
E-t E-t
O...; O
Z RI Z
E-t ·rl E-t
0 .µ 0o O
[u d i:,,

p.
QJ
.Q

'U
rl
5
:i:
(I]
·rl•E-t

.µ

%
'U
3
N
N
0
N
QJ

:5
8
H
1H
(I]
QJ

·rl
i::
2
QJ
0
i::
RI
H·#lg
oO
£; g
:5
·rl
:i:
QJ
rl
0
·rl
.£1

g$°
n
o g

N

RI

H
0
1H
QJ
(I]
RI

o .£1 o
o 0

'°- ~o ,
QJ

:5

rl
rl
a:,
LO

E-t

I
H

8
fil
0
E-t

?

s
¥
0

QJ

:5
H
0

0 1H
0
0 .µ
- i::a:, QJ
H
H::,
0

i::
0
·rl.µ
RI
0

cii .g
E-t QJg±
%°

(I]

8
%£
E-t ·rl
0 0
0-rl
"" rl

g,
QJ
.;,:

0.µ

'U
%
QJ

%

0
0
0

a:,

0
0
LO

r--

LO
N

":i 37

~
en
fil
%
f;l

~
CJ

en
Ill
H:z:en
0
filg
g

0
N
a:,

10
10
d

10
0\
N

%
E-t

%

co r--
10 10

3 q
0 N
r-- LO

LO NO r--
O LO

r-- 0\ N

rl
10

0 10
M 0\
00

r-- COOrl
~ LO rl
0 10 10

a:, ~
N N
N LO

~ NO CO
M 0\ LO

O 10

LO o
~ r--
10 rl

0\ co
10 10

r-- COOri
~ LO rl
LO 10 rl

rl 10 LO
) O 10
CO N ~

LO ~
10 10

3
E-t
8

M M CO LO
10 10

rlt--10LO LO
NrlrlN LO
N rl rl

rlCOl0LO 10
NrlrlN LO
N rl rl

N

mo) <a « a O
0\ ~ NNr--

rl rl rl

N
rl

N
rl

LOMl00NMM 0\
rll0t--N Mr-- 10

C"'l \0 - 0

LO
rl

O

LONMN

LONMN

LON MN
N

LON MN
N

000000000000 0
0000 0 LOOOO LO
OLOOO O NOOO r--

roooooooooo
0\ 0 t--OMO~r-- r--
0\ LC1 OOriCOM LO N

OOOOOOOOLOOOO LO
0000 OOOriOOO rl
OLOOO OriLOMOOO ~

1
N

000000000000 0
0000 LO LOOLOO LO
LOLOOLO O ~coo 0

000000000000 0
0000 LO LOOLOO LO
LOLOOLO O ~coo 0

>< .. .. ..
i4+ 0\ N 10 r-- 0\ () O
E-t rl rl rlrl rl N N N N ~ ~ 0\::> CO CO CD CO CO CD CD CD CO a:, CO CO
0 LO LO LO LO LO LO LO LO LO LO LO LO

I I I I I I I I I I I I
,-:i rl rl rl rl rl rl rl rl rl rl rl rl
,i:MMMMMMMMMMMM I>,
E-t r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- 0
Hoooooooooooo
Ill I I I I I I I I I I I I E-t
"1:ririrlrlrirlrlrlrlrirlrl [ii
tJ\O\O\D\0\0\0\0\0\0\0\0\0 zc3

3
H
E-t
Ill
H

5en
r.i
A

N A><
N t'il E-t
0 E-t H
vg

~ E-t

re ~

rl ><
N E-t
0 H
v Db>

H
E-t

?

M E-t E-t
N en t'il~ r:l C,af';l lil

E-t
Ill
r.i
A



0 >-<
N E-< 0 0 ON0"1Sl't--"1 0\ I.O OIO U1 OIO ri I.O 0 ri ri 1!10"11.0NOlll .--i N 0\ 00 rl 0\ MCD \.0 I.O Ill ri t-- I.O O
0 H 0\"1"11.0t--1.0SI' 0\ 00 .--i SI' SI' (D Ill Ill y a OutO 0\ t--ONOI.Olfl<D<D 0 t-- "1 I.O I.O Ill
y E O\t--NCDl.01.0ri N_ u) r- 0\ 0\ 0 0 ri ri "10 O 0\ rlrlNr-1\0<DriN I.O SI' ri Ill "1 o- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -E-< .--iNl.001.0t--l.O y 0\ (D r- SI' SI' (D (D r- <Driri"1"1 ..., Or Lu)+l DO y I.O qi M l""l N rl? I.OOC-1.0riSI' r- r- (D ..., ..., I.O I.O 0\ V Ill NO\rit-- y I.On Illril.OSl'ri Ill 0\ "" SI' 0 0 (D (D y ..., yy ...,

ri .--i Ill Ill

(
ri >-<y E-< 0 0 OSl't--0\1.0NOI r- t--0"1 0 Ill 0\ 0 SI' SI' 0 "" 00<D0"1t--t-- U1 t-- O\N riNI.O O 0 0\ lllri0\"10
0 # .--iNrl"11.0rlN 0\ Ill "1 SI' ..., SI' ..., 0\ r- Ill Ill (D OIN N Olt-- 0\ <DSl't--1.0Nri 0 t--OOt--1!1
y <DNSl'NNrlO 0 0\ r- ri (D NSl'"1 0 r- r- I.O NON Sl't-- "" 00\ 0 <DO SI' Ill Sl'ril.00\t--- - - - a - - - - - - - - - - - - -E-< r 00@ O ..., V a r- 0\ N CD 0 SI' "" r- <DNri<Dt-- U1 O<D"1NN"1 N "1 Ill r- I.O% Olt--lllSl'NO\ 0\ (D (D ..., U1 (D (D I.O .--iN N ..., ri r- ri 0 ..., rl..., I.O "" ri Ill y ..., ..., 0\ 0\ rl r ...,

"" rly SI'

y 2%
0 yo Oat

y 0 0 0000000 0 0 Sl'O "" 000 0 00 0 U1 CD Ill O t--N<D O 0 0 000000 z (!) 0 0 0000000 0 0 I.O \0 0 0 0 ri 0 r- SI' ri U1 Sl'OII.ONlfl<D r- 01!1001!1N as 0 0 0 "1 0 I.O O O "1 v 0.--i .--i 0 0 N ri 0 .--i r- \0 (D ..., ..., r- SI' ri (D 0\ 0 ri Ill Ill Ill- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -l;l ill 0 0 NlllOOl<Dt--SI' I.O U1 N r- Ill Ill ..., (D 0 .--i .--i (D y Nt--"1NN"1 ri Ill I.O SI' "1 ri0\ 0\ <DIOOC-"11.0 y U1 U1 y N Ill r NN N ..., ..., r- ri I.O I.On Ill0 rl .--i SI' I.O Ill ri Ill SI' ..., ..., SI' "" ...,
3 r

N SI' ri .--i

00000
a uooO
aiuoO

00000
.... 1!1000
CD,S,IOOO

00000
00000
0 O O Ill O

ril C/l (!)u r,i ::i z

###
2°

HZ :x! I
$2#5 E-<
E-< C/l U)

'z I o o3 oo
E-< Pt p:: p::
H H r-1 rilA::> r,,::,:: ::,::
::i QI O E-t E-<{g <oo

u
H

~
ril
U)
MN t-- t-- CD

+]+l Lu000,
b no Ill LC1 LC1 LC1
E-< I I I I I
) rt rlr rl rt
,om o mo
p- c- r--- r--- C
E-< 0 0 0 0 0Z I I I I I
Or-lr rt rl rl
Ul.0\0\0\01.0

a mo aorltO Ort Lu)0
(D\O,S,"1rll.O 0

r
r
ri

,S,"1 ,s, Orlt--Oo 0\
rlN,S,lfl<DN "1
CD I.O ,a, "1 rl I.O 0

ri
r
ri

.... ...,.,.I.Orl"100 rl
rt V @ O00 I-
000 a rt0O rt

ri
(D
rl

U)
E-<
H..,.
,,en+ocvo
ril Ill Ill Ill Ill U1 Ill I.O Cll
D]+r +4l+l +t illl

Ill Ill Ill Ill U1 Ill Ill Ill
ril I I I I I I I I
[]rl rt rlrlr rlrl +4
o) mo moo)no [u

Ot--t--r-r-r-r-r-r- 0
HOOoooooo
~ I I I I I I I I E-i
ad4G344G3%

U)
rilu
H

~
ril
U)

riNCD CD
V l

""

riN<D CD
NN N

d

riNCD CD
Vy

<I'

(D(D 0
Ill .--i...,

(D(D 0
Ill rl...,

(D (D 0
Ill .--i...,

z.3.,A ,
..,. E-t O E-t .......
I I I >< Pt
UlC/lC/lf,lE-t Z
pl Bl a2;HO

;#;3#4
322366&n n n0l b>

U)

tl
~
il'.ril0t--<D"1<1'U1
rilriririrl"1"1"1
Dyl rlrlrlrl rt rl

Ill U1 Ill Ill Ill U1 Ill
H I I I I I I I
,rlrlrlrlrlrl relz...,...,...,...,...,...,...,..,.
Or-r-r-r-r-r-r- 0
UJooooooo
P,: I I I I I I I E-i
#34G34¢3 %

"1NOOCDOU1 CD
<I' .--i O \0 r-"" ...,
0\.--io oar- m

"1NOO<DOU1 CD
<l'riO \Ot--,s, "1
O\riO oar- m

"1NOO<DOU1 CD
tr O Of @ (
0lo OOr O

en C/l

6
HH
E-< E-<
DP
l'.Q l'.Q
HH

£&
Guu

00 0
0 0
0 0

0 0
0 0
N N

00 0

00 0
0 0
0 0

0 0
0 0
N N

000 0
0 0
0 0

0 0
0 0
0 0

rl rl

000 0
0 0
0 0

0 0
0 0
0 0

rl rl

000 0
0 0
0 0

Ill U1v
<I' <I'

rl rl

en
6
H

%
%
£
2
C/l

&....%
+3#4I I I P,:
000

+looo u
ri!OOO 0
uooo
C/l I I I E-t

434214

U1 (D
.--i...,

0\00 \0
OO O
0 r- r-

0\00 \0
OO O
0 r- r-

0,S,O ,a,
0\00 \0
Orio ri

u u
Ill ri t-
"1 ...,

Ill CD
rl...,

y

NllllOIOONN ri
CDI.OrilllNN I.O
t O @ rt O (

0000000 0
0000000 0
0000000 0

y

0000000 0
0000000 0
0000000 0

NllllOIOONN ri
<D\OrilflNN I.O
SI' I.OSI' ri \0 ...,

0000000 0
0000000 0
0000000 0

NOOO<DIOO U1
lllllllllt--NI.O rl
Sl'\OSI' ri Ill "1

y

H s Z

.i ±2 ggg22#l 4%
E-tE-<HHDUl! s ggzo gin n zn

gg pi g i33gge;; #±g±
,8,Rs a
PI I I iT 5
En u nun Hi$4gggg4± a,#g

C/l C/l C/l C/l .-,. C/l 6 au> H E-t O O H
E-tAAAA><A E-< C/lUP,: E-tgg#?gs sf
Pt ri1 ril ri1 ri1 i gi bi o
OE-tE-<E-<E-< E-< Pt E-<E-tZ Pt4#9ssss? 2g

g gg ?g ii ±ass.g a.., $
P,:,-il.0\01.0\0l.01.0 ril ririri P<l
Q,s, SI' SI'.,..,.<!' ::> E-<t--t--r- ::>
..,. ""<I' <I' ril z <I'"" .... ril

I I I I I I I P,: ~ I I I P,:
C/lOOOOOOO ~000

883888888 888 %
~

0000000 ~ooo
I I I I I I I E-< I I I E-t
.--iriririririri ril ririri P<l

U\01.0I.OI.Ol.01.0I.O Z HI.Ol.01.0 Z

0 0

0 0

0 0
0 0
0 0

0 0
O O
l

3
H
E-<
Pt
Hp::
u
U)
ril
A



0 ><
N E-t r-- "' NCD<:l'rl0<:1'<:l'N\Ori y O'l"-2'ff100'\CD0\00r-t C"1 rl rl NO\CD\OriOOt"'-- C"1 00 0 "" "" rl rl
0 H "" C"1 NC'lt--0 \OC'INCDN CD NOO r-- C"1 NC\ CD N r-- rl rl Nl..00\\DU")OLOC""I "' r-- r-- CD CDN ~ "' 1/l NC'lt--r-- '<l'rl\OMM "' OC'l'<l'rlt--C"lrl OI "" 0 0 N t--1/l N rl <'11/l l/l C"1 rl rl "' "'E-t 0 1/l 0 ( \OC\Nri "' O @ O rl 0 "' C"1 C"1 C"1 rl 1/l O 0 ) +«-l 1/l "' "' C"1 C"1

u N 1/l rl N 1/l "' C"1 N CD rl O C"1 0 0 y y,i: rl 1/l "' rl rl C"1 '<I' "" 0 0y y
N Nr

rl ><
N E-t N 0 OCD<:l'C'INCDrll/lMN y .::toor--or---mmoLOLO N CD CD CDCDC'I0\01/lOCD '<I' '<1'0 '<I' 0 0 r-- r--0 H r-- CD CD\Orl'<l'OCDl/l '<l'ri\O r-- o O rl N rl O +«-l CD "' "' \0 N rl 1/l C"1 CD \0 1/l CD CD C"1 C"1 "" '<I'N £ N rl C--\O(l)CDrlC"lrlC\\00\ y 0 rl rl rl C"1 C"1 CD r-- "' CD (D CD '<I' r-- OC--MC"l 1/l "' "' r-- r-- r-- r--E-t 0 '<I' 0 (n O<D \0 0 r-- 01/l'<l' O rl rl "' N N r-- "' CD C"1 C\ C\ 1/l r-- r-- '<I' '<I' C"1 C"1% N N rl rl rl r-- C"1 C"1 rl CD "' rl O rl 1/l "' "' CD CD C"1 C"1rl "' "' rl rl C"1 C"1 C"1 0 0

N • N y

N 3 e-,
N r,.:i 0 0 0000000000 0 0000000000 0 0 0 00000000 0 00 0 "" 1 0 00 D 0 0 0001/l 0 1/l O O 0 0 001/lOl/lOl/lOOl/l 0 0 0 OOOOOOriO rl 0 0 rl rl 0 0N H § "' "' u ao CD N Nl/l O 0 C"1 0 00 0 CD or-- N CD N "' rl rl OOC--MOC'l'<l'O C"1 '<I' "" "' "' 0 0t!l a ' ' ' ' ' ' a a a ' 'H l'.Q (D "' .-iN'Sl'C"l .-i'<l'C'IO'<I' rl 01/lt'-rit--\O rl rl "' "' I"') I"') 1/l rl 1/l CD 1/l I"') 1/l '<I' '<I' '<I' 1/l 1/l0 rl 1/l r rlNl"'lrl rl 0 N 1/l r-- rl NN 1/l CD CD '<I' '<I'0 rl :::! r-- r-- N .-i '<I' '<I' '<I' 0 0y N

N y

l'.Q
Hp,;
e-,
6u

0 0
0 0
0 0

1/l 1/l
1/l 1/l
0 0

N N

0 0
0 0
0 0

1/l 1/l
U1 1/l
0 0

cv

0 0
0 0
0 0

1/l 1/l
"" '<I'0 0

N N

l'.Q
Hp,;
e-, rlz '<I'
0 r-
Ul/l

I
l

C/l l"'l Ii,;r O
HO

$!
66

C/l

~
±au

I

6 C/l
H 3

C/l ~ H

#st
'
C/lg
fg
2

"' "'"' "'I"') I"')

I"') I"')
(D (l)
I"') I"')

"' "'"' "'(") I"')

I"') I"')
CD <D
I"') I"')

'<I' ""rl rl

"' "'
'<I' '<I'
CD CD
'<I' '<I'

rly

"'1/le-, I
C/l rl

8
l oe-, I e-,z rl [,1
H o z

C/l

3
He-,
$
p,;
p.,

£
%

)
0 C/lI

r,.:i e-,u l'.Q

3a a
::, rl
C/l N
C/l 0
HN

r,,i C/le-, r,,i
0 r,,iz Ii,

3

r,.:iu

5
0 r,,iu C/l

00 0

00 0

00 0

r,,i rl ri
U O O
f-i \0 "'p> u 1/l
P: I I
M rl rl
C/l I"') I"') Ii,

r-- r-- 0e-, 00
l'.Q I I E-<
J'.il ri rl [,1
Q\0\0 z

o Ou a
rlrl'<l'N 0

rl 1/l

oo(Lu <
rlrl'<l'N O

rl l/l

Ot--l"'ll/l r-
rlrlNN l/l

rl '<I'

C/l6 C/l4d $[iJ z C/l u
e-, H
O EE

I A Ii, E-<
l , H H
U H Hts}
E-< r,.:i MZ I C/l
HE-< I

24&
E-< H t!l P., H
,( U t!JP<U
H H i Z ::, HO Hi n pa
] Ei Ki
#e9git%
g t1batbii
AS:rz1UlZl'.QUr,.:i

3
H

0 rl U1
0
I"')

0 rl U1
0
I"')

U1 ri 1/l
r--
N

00000000 0
000 0<DU10 l"'l
oar-- oor--o 1/l

00000000 0
000 0CDU10 l"'l
oar-- oor--o l/l

00000000 0
000 OOriO rl
oor-- OO'<l'o rl

C/l

~
i,co+o:i! ""1/l l/l l/l l/l l/l \Or-u 1/l U11/l l/l l/l l/l l/l ll)

l/l l/l l/l l/l l/l l/l l/l l/)
I I I I I I I I

Eirlrlrlrlrirlrlrl
Hl"'ll"'ll"'ll"'ll"'ll"'ll"'ll"'l Ii,
,-:ir--r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r--r-- 0
Hoooooooo
U I I I I I I I I E-<
,(rlrlrlrlrlrlrlrl [,1
li,\0\0\0\0\0\0\0\0 z

C/l

3
H

C/l ~#
2
C/lg
I

0 0
0 0
rl rl

l"l I"')

0 0
0 0
rl rl

I"') I"')

0 0
0 0
rl rl

I"') I"')

e-,
Oo
0 CD

'<I'
C/l 1/l

I

3
C/l r-- [:J
37e
6

;
u
~

rlrlN 0
rl N

r--

~

rlrlN O
.-i N

r--

N

rlrlO \0r Lu)

"'
~

CD U1
I"')

CD U1
I"')

r-- r-
y

0000000000 0
000 OOl/lOOO U1
ONl/l Ori<Dl/l l/lO \0

o Luo
1/l

"'
y

0000000000 0
000 001/lOOO 1/l
ONl/l Orl<Dl/l l/lO \0

0000000000 0
000 OOU1000 U1
001/l 1/lOC--N\OO U1

o Luo
1/l

"'
y

0 l/l I"')
0

"'
y

1"')001"') I"')
rlrll"'lri CD

r- O O 0 1/l r-
r y ) rl rl

rl

.-i \0 0 0 1/l r-
ri l"'l l"'l rl rl

rl

C/l
r,.:i
H

n +l
C/l C/l C/l r,.:i p.,
# BBn nEl u

r,.:i p.,p.,e-,p,;p.,p.,
H P<P<BOP.,O IDb bnp., C/lC/l P.,C/l C/l

aoc2&n go! zii ±$Zs±4805n Hibl;tig&zag g
?$
C/l §g s,as,a
[,1 rlrlrirlNNl"'ll"'ll"'lC\:> ~'<I' '<I'S!' '<I' '<I' '<I' '<I' '<I' '<I' '<I'
M ll'llll l/lllll/lllll/l l/l l/lllln I I I I I I I I I I

r,.:i rl rl rl rl rl rl rl rl ri rl

gg22 %
>oooooooooo

E-< P: I I I I I I I I I I E

, 33GGG#43Gd %

0000000000 0
00001/lOOOOO 1/l
01/lOONN'<l'l/lOl/l I"')

l"lNl/l '<I'
rl

0000000000 0
00001/)00000 1/l
01/lOONN'<l'OOl/l CD

l"'lNl/l '<I'
l

0000000000 0
0000 00000 0
01/l(l)O 1/lOOOO CD

Ori'Sl'rl
.-i

.-iNl"'l\O<DC'lrlNM\O

.-irlrlNNNl"'ll"'ll"'ll"'l
I"') I"') I"') I"') I"') I"') I"') I"') I"') I"')
U1 U1 U1 U1 U1 U1 U1 LO U1 U1

C/l I I I I I I I I I I
r,.:i rl rl rl rl rl rl rl rl rl rl
Hl"'ll"'ll"'ll"'ll"'ll"'ll"'ll"'ll"'ll"'l
,-:ir--r--r--r--r--r--r--r--r--r-
P-ooooooooooo
P., I I I I I I I I I I
0.-irlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrl
C/l "' "' "' \0 "' "' "' "' "' \0

H

~
l
C/l

0 0
O O
0 r--

0 1/l
I-
rl

0 0
O O
0 r--

0 1/l
N r--

rl

0 0
0 0
0 1/l

1/l 0
rl N

rl

"'2z
Due-, I
u rl

$2 8
E O
Z I E-<
0 [a
0 o z

~
%

C/l C/l
r,.:iu

l
r,.:i
C/l

3
He-,p.,
H
P:u
C/l
r,.:ia

I

I"') E-t e-,
N C/l r,.:i
0 l"z1 t!J

"38
f;1 ll1

E-<
P<
l"z1
Q



0 0
0 Ill
0 0\

CD N
rl Ill

N

0 Ill
0 rl
0 CD

a
Ill
\0

E-<

4u A
%

#3
0 0
E-< E-<

0 0
a Ill
0 0\

r-- rl
rl Ill

y

rl rl.,. ,.,
CD C--
lll 0

0

0

$
0
44
0
0

0
0
0
rl
<I),

.j..l
i::a,
ia,
0

"',-fg.
H

0
0
0

rl

0

.j..l

~a,
0

"',-f
0,
a,
P::

0
0
0

rl

0
0
0

i::a,
a,
H
0
Ill

X
·rl
tll

a,
0

"',-f

$

0 0 0 0 0
0
0

N

,-f
o aJo
0 I: 0
o nlo'<l' N
rl ,-f

0
$

.j..l
i::
0
0

0 0
0 0
0 0

.,.-..-1 ~
rl ';tl

.i::

~
·rl
0

rl.,.
CD
Ill

E-<z
4
H

8
rz1
P::
r,i
E-<

Iu

a,
H
"'.-I
.-I

"'
,.,
tll
.j..l
0.,..,
a,
0
H
P.
:i:
0
.-I
4
i::
H

'tl
5
i::
0
·rl
.j..l

"'11
.-I
·rl
'H
i::
H

B
LO H
rl a,,., g.
, Hg8

\0 a,
.j..l

"'>·rl
H
Pl

0
LO -i-l
.,. H
- 0

rl P.
N a,
y ¥

.-I
a,
0
X
rz1
H
a,
%

E-<og
0 rl'

Zs
<I),

r,i
E-< 0

g°
E-< a, Cl]

813u i
> a

0
d
g"
i:: 'tl
"' a,.i:: tll
O

::l

'4
t!.J ·rlA a,

H

0\
N
CD
Ill

%
E-<
H

~
Ul

E-<

#u
~

rl
rl
CD
Ill

0
0
0

Ill
N

3
0
E-t

0
0
Ill

Ill

0
0
Ill

Ill

a,
.j..l
a,
.-I

~•• 0 ••
C/l O Ul
E-< E-<

9839
~~~
@';tl@
E-< ·rl E-<
0 .µ 0

Ou u,
a,
.Q
"Cl

3
:i:
tll
·rl
ti

a
0
H
44
tll
a,
·rl

~
a,
0
i::

"'H·2g
0 o
i:: -+2
:S
·rl
:i:
a,
.-I
0
·rl
.i::

g$°
Ill <"1g

N

"'
H
0
'H
a,
tll

"'o .i::o
oO
Ill H
- ::ln

a,

:S

rl
rl
CD
Ill

E-<z
¥
H

8
r,i

0
E-<

%

0
0
Ill

r--

0
0
0

CD

~
H
0

a,

:S
H
0

0 'H
g .j..l

- i::CD a,
$
H
6
i::
0

·rl
.j..l

"'0•• ::l
C/l 't:J
E-< a,

s'tl

8%
tll

r,i a,
E-< 0
9$
E-< ·rl
0 0
0-rlrz. .-I

g.
a,~
0

.j..l

'tl
%
a,

%

Ill
N

:;; 213

4

Cl]
r,i

%
gJ

~u

Ul

""H::r:
Cl]
P::
r,ig
~

\0
\0.,.

Ill 0.,. r--
\0 rl

0\ CD
\0 \0

\0 IOON
rl rl ,.,
rl rl N

rl 0\ 0
CD CD C---
0\ rl rl

.,. .,. 0\
\0 \0

LO NOC---
) O Ill
C--- 0\ N

.,. .,. 0
0 N N
C--- LO CD

CD C---
\0 \0

[u
0
E-<

%

rl
\0

LO .,.
\0 \0

0 \0,., en
CD N

C--- CDOrl
'<l' Ill rl
0 \0 \0

C--- CDOrl
<:I' LO rl
Ill IO rl

rl \0 Ill
,., en '°
CD N '<l'

LO '<l'
\0 \0

'<l' NO CD
<"1 0\ Ill
,., 0\ \0

CD '<l' \0
O

N LO N

3
E-<

8

<"1 <"1 CD Ill
\0 \0

rl C--- IO Ill Ill
NrlrlN Ill
v !

rlCD\OU') \0
NrlrlN Ill
y rl rl

N

Ill
rl

y
rl

ll1 <"1\00N"1<"1 0\
rl\Ot--N Mt-- \0

C"") \D - 0

N
rl

u
2
E-<
Ul

65
HU
E-<

E-< u z
E-< Z P 0

tg#?a 3
Pl HrzlZE-<fil E-< tll H
H ::i ;:,;oCll rziZl -i-l P-t

0
tb opio l
ZOI rzl:> el ;:,; rnf!gm! g92g

a#?#&ts$.
P<ONP<HHC/l E-<Ulr,lUJ QJ

0
Z

HOIHH~ fz, N
::,r,ii,::pU t!.J)-<H><P::P::•rl H
QI OOI zi>:: ,-:ii,::r,ir,ir-1 ':;!Hr,i r,i E-<r,1 H f<l! ,ci: E-< E-< nl ...,
9g gggipp ;
g28#4#gas
28g84%3888%

Pl

lllNMN

roooooooooo
0\ 0 t--0 <"10 <:l' C--- C---
0\ LO OOrlCD!Yllll N

u O
rl ,.,

rl

NOCDOCD0 <:1'0 \0N!Yllll CD
C--- <:I' \0 0 0\0\riO CD
CD NO <:I' CDrlC---"10

ooooooooooo u
0000 OOOrlOOO rl
OlllOO Orlll1 <"1000 <:I'

lllNMNy

000000000000 0
0000 0 lllOOO Ill
OlllOO O NOOO C---

lllN MN

lllNMN
N

p .. ..
jrl"1'<l'll10\NIO C---O\ri"10\
E-<rlrlrlrlrlNNNN'<l''<l'O\
p CD CD CD CD CD CD CD CD CD CD CD CD
0 LO Ill Ill Ill Ill Ill Ill Ill Ill Ill Ill Ill

I I I I I I I I I I I I
.,:i rl rl rlrl rlrl rl rl rl rl rl rl

g222 %
Hoooooooooooo
P., I I I I I I I I I I I I E-<
i<l!rirlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrl [ii
UIO \OI0\0\0\0IO IO IO IO IO \O z

000000000000 0
0000 Ill ll10 1l10 Ill
llllllOLO O <:1'000 0

000000000000 0
0000 IO U')OU')O Ill
llllllOLO O <:1'000 0

,-:i
t!.J

3
H
E-t

""H
P::u
Ula

0 ><
N E-t
OH

£
E-t

?

,., E-t E-<
N Cll rz1
a M t!.J

39
f:;1 l'Q

E-<
P<e

r



OOOMri•oooo1.0oor--ooOOMIDOl.000000000N
IDr--LOr-- 1.ooomooNr--riOl.00 00 •LO 1.0
NNOOri MLOIDriLOMM0,1.01.ori r-- riM 0

ooooomoLOmoooor--oooommooNooooooMm
IDNO,LOO•LO moom•ri omo OOIDLOmr-
oo a Lat +tr)noon u @+la (n

r--lDriOOr--M•Or--Noooo•oNOOOOOOOOO
LOriri•LOr--oooor-- NOr-- OOri 1.0
OOriNrilDNLONrir-- ooom MN ri

r--

N
ri

N
ri

ool.0"'
0
ri

(n
1.0
M

LO

yr-l a
LO

LOIDriMO,l.0.MOIDOOOOOO•oo1.000000,•
O LOO+y 0OOO VO O +I
r--ooriMOOriLONriN •ri N N

OM
LO

N
1.0n

r-- ri

"'n
ri

ri

00 N ri
00

r Lu)yIya+-l @
ri M 1.0

NO,NLOririri
00 N
ri

0 ><N E-t
0 H
N j:'.;

E-tut

r
ri ><N E-t
0 H
N j:'.;

E-t

2

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOriC--000000000000
0000 OOLOOOMNl.0000 1.0
IDC--00 •LOIDN•r--Mr--lDOLO M

om1.0r--r--LO•N•ooooooo1.0000000000
•LOLOOOO,MOriMOOOOO r-- 0 0 0
LOriNLOOONLOM.001.or--oo O O • LO

LONMO• 0 0
r--r--OOIDN

t rl

rilDLOril.00,0•
r4 @ y

ri
0 • 0 LO
r--001.0N

"<:l'M

00000000000000000000000000000

OOOOIDOOOOOOOOOOOrilDOOOOOOOOOOM
000 LO OOOOLONLO 00 00
1.01.00 • LOmNNOOMO, Ori 1.0

OOOOIDOOOOOOOOOOOrilDOOOOOOOOOOM
000 LO OOOOLONLO 00 00
1.01.00 • LOO,NNOOMm Ori 1.0

r--N

r--N

ri

N

r--

r--

r--) y a
LO

ID•MO,riO,MIDNOOOOOOOOOOOOOOLOOO
LOOOOr--0000000 000
VO to+lo O O

MMNNrilDMr--•ooooooooooooooLOoo
1.00,LOOOLOriON• 000
OONMr--NriNMl.0 om

MMNNrilDNr--OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
1.00,LOOOLOriNNOO
00 NM r--N ri 0 ) «-

n
N
r--

n
N
r--

O a
N
ri

O a
N
ri

rlOOr--rim
riM

rlOOr--riO,
riM

M

M

oO o
r-- 00 r--

M

ONO M
r-- 00 r--

<'l

M E-1 E-1
N t/l rz1
0 gN a8
~ D'.l

E-1
P,
"'1
Q

(n 9#N
0 9£N

0 D'.lu
3
Ill
0

3

N Q ><
N "'1 E-1
0 E-1 H

g ;
f!1 E-1

%%
z

H Ii E-1

z?
0 C!)

>< E-1E-1 '>·

~
Po\
0 E-1... 2E-1
Ill rz1
0 :,:

"' LO
~ N
E-1 ••
rz1 -0

$i
D'.l

mOriMmr--oo•r--ooor--moo•
000,0,0,0,0,MMMMNMOOmriri
"'"'"'"'"'"'000000"'"'00
1.01.01.01.01.01.or--r--r--r--r--r--1.01.or--r--

00
(n
0
r--

C!)

re
Ill
Ill
Den

#u
rz1

!
I
C!)

±
I
ril
3
H
E-1
~

00 00
MM
00
r-- r--

u
H

~
ri•LOriNM•LOl.00,riririririO,o,o,o,o,ririNNNN

lriMMLOLOLOLOLOLOO,riririririrlrl0,0,0,riririrlriri
rlrlriririririririrlNNNNNNNNNNMMMMMM

riLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLO
ri I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
•riririririririrlririririririrlrirlrlriririririrlriri
Orlrirlriririririririririrlririririririririririririri·························~uoooooooooooooooooooooooooc
~ I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
Q)LOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLO~
ANNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN~

~
0
0
ri
D'.l

O H H 4 0 #> O O d UH~l da a& 8 54<25 %»
M en I a rt n nd)+ ·« C
~u H G> D'.l c ~uocro com
~ena A m I ~ 0 ~~Q) en k
i ; d »dtr0 db

OE O ; O 'd d d Um11
rzla~~~ C< roCNGl~A~~k C

o:i: r.. muo o~ G>k~l>l.--iUOroG>en o
HE-I z G>Oro ~.i:: HG>§m!1uo.i::1:-1:i:~G>r..G>D>a ii pi ind» d) n «z£4» 3 d
o:i: D'.lE-1 c~zoroa~ krzlCO!DCCkk
u i,:eno, en G>r..Ho~au,o~~ OG>G>or..o

D'.l o en ·n ~ u :,: ::, , t3: .i:: , H •n ~ •n a o >< ::, ::, •n ~ o
zb up E ;Or @E dr 1 Up; ! nu @ ;p o
O z d d HUH) I tr d I o·pH pd) O
H BA-OUUI ~~-~~<HP<enC!>U~D-~1eno
g 352$ uuugu.484 ! 001 Ittgy ponnni non1 ongnn g [[!
NUE-1 ~E-IUE-IE-IE-IE-IE-llE-IE-tlE-IE-IAE-IE-1 Oz~zz

p#3±s###±#e±##±?%t
~E-1~ oencnen~~~~~~~~~~~E-t~i>I~~ 1aUAH~~~UUUUUUUUUUUaUrzl HU<UUen OH> 00000000000 o:i: Hen~enen
rz1 H~O HHHHHHHHHHH HE-lrz1HHHHH
l>IC!lD'.lrzlU D'.lD'.lD'.lD'.lD'.lD'.lD'.lD'.lD'.lD'.lD'.lC!>D'.lO~<~l'.3:~~

~0,0riMLOIDr--O,Orio•oomo•M•r--oomriMOOOLOr--oo
rz1oomo,o,o,o,o,o,oorirlrlriNNMMMMMOO,OririNM
zmmmmmmmmoooooooooooooomooooo
rz11.01.01.01.01.01.01.01.0r--r--r--r--r--r--r--r--r--r--r--r--r--r--1.0r--r--r--r--r-
C!)
MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMOriO,O,O,o,o,

1•••••••••••••••••••••L0000,o,o,o,o,
rlrlrlrirlrlrlrirlrirlriririririririririririr--r--r--r--r--r--o••··························0 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I

00000000000000000000000000000
ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooor..
00000000000000000000000000000

uoooooooooooooooooooooooooooo
~ I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I E-1
Q)LOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOril
ANNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN~l4NNNN Zt3

6
H
E-1

"'H
Illuen
rz1
A



~OOOIDr-NOOOOIDOOrlO\O~rlOONrlOON0\000\00\0NOOM~NOOOOOONrl
uO O Va OrlrlLu OO t +V000Od Or @ + O O O
00\ rl OOrl O,~O,N O,\D rlNOOr-ooo~~ ID M rl rlNID

r
rlrl rl u) NMMr~ NN rlr- ~rlOONID u ~ M

N
M

0\ rl 00
r- N ~
M \Dr-

rl Mr
o, N \D
MM

u) o
N 00
\D (")

rlO\
r- M
rlN

~MOOOOOO\MOOOC-C-NM~OC-O\OC-NMO~MNO\OIDOOOIDOOOOIDC-0\000~
Lu) au to+lo@ a o LOLL)00rtoo O tr uO
N.-t ~OON N~~MM~ OON rlO\rlrlO\NON~~~ 0\ IDO\r- 0

rl rlN rt mo+LuO uO rl rl M rl~~

¢ V
O O
000\

NrlOO
ID~ r
M ~ rl

NO
00"'
MM

0\0
M \D
N

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOrlC-000000000000000000
0 o oo oooo 00 0 00
0\ 0 ~OID ~r-Mr-M rl~ 0\ 00

u)
r
rl

MM a Lu) 0 o) rllD rlN

00 0000 0 00
ID \DIDO "'"'"' n) 0 a Mr-

M et n 00~ ~~ \DID
rl rlrl

rl rlrl

OOOOOOOOIDOOOOOOO~rlOOC-0\IDC-ONOOOOOOOOOOOOOMIDOOO~
O OIDO OMr-0 r-~rl\D MOO 0\0 MO\ID N

uOo Oro rtart +l 0LO Or O rl

000000000000000000000000000000000000000000~

"'"'
rl
00

~~o u
ID o,

rlM
NO
(r

O @
0\0
MID

Ori
IDN

mn) + O
0 Lu
\D rl~

M 00 Lu
N O\N
r- MM

@ a
"'"'"'"'
rlrl
00 00

ID MID r- ~M

"' 00 0\00 0 00

"' ID 0\ ID ID 0

rl Mrl rl rlO

"' y 0 ( Nrl
M r- MM e (

00

"'M

rl N rl
N

rlNrl
N

o nO
d

o O~

M ~ ID
d

n a O~

@ L) d

~~~~

u <+ O
rlNO

rl

u) O
rlNO

rl

rl

rl

00000000\DOOOOOOO~rlOOC-O\IDC-ONOOOOOOOOOOOOOMIDOOO
0 OIDO OMC-0 C-~rl\D MOO 0\0 MO\ID
O Lu)OO Lu)Oro rt0rt or-l @ O) Or O

N A ><
N lzl 8
OE-IH
N CJ ~
~ 8
OU
pi 4
P<

6
H
8
ll,
H
Plu
CJ)
ril
A

I

.µ .-t nS O o U nS .-t +l C rz1 ): O> :,: H nS +l •..t a, P. a,
l d« I4» d· OH!O d 'd; d ; ,
roll< Q).l,J il4 ~00+lH~£~+l~U.-trz1Q).-t~ ~0roQ)HHQ)C/l~a,p :,:~ CCC u nS.-tA ~:i::a~o .µ ~
tr;n 0Hi dd d do pa dpl.do 04 tr n 0
0 ~H ll, ~nSHO.-trof'IQ)l~Ol~U O OOri!+l~ll,
~~ .-t p +lt,\00nSN :IlOO~~ril+l.-t ril OQ~Q) i§ll,3j ; " ~544437g3Zg 24454£

o j ; >czii ·i«bib> if, dd
i:,, c ~ 0,0,M~+la+J!coa~:i::a,1 1 curoro o~
11'1 .-t~OOO H~~~roa~ Q)~Ori!O+l0CJJ CJJ C/l0 Q)Q)Q)U~
] yd HO 2;Ho non«jb22Aro gt o

_p,; CnSO I IHI I I I I I I I .-t~~OOO+lnS HC/JU
:,:~ HQ)~fil C/l C/l C/l C/l C/l C/l C/l C/l C/l C/l C/l.C/l C/l C/l C/l C/l C/l C/l C/lZ!1QOOOCCooO~H 8
il41 Q)~Carilril ril ril ril ril ril ril ril ril rillril ril ril ril ril ril ril ri!O :,:1:,: :,: :,:Q)HQ)~IOri!Z
IG +l Q) HHHHHHHHHHH~HHHHHHHHH UC/JUUU>Q)~.-t t,\Ofil ri!
CJJD roooCJJ HHHHHHHHHHHLlHHHHHHHHE-il~fil C/l C/l C/lQ)+l+l~~:,:PI~
pl , ; ) t iiiiiiiiiii pl ii it rb Hy« HO [ bi
HA l~G0il4il4 1l, ll, ll, ll, ll, ll, ll, i:>,i:>,:,: i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,0rz1 CllA~~~ll,~U AC/JIH
HI :Il+l~PDDPDPDDDDDDUPPDPPPDDH:i::Z, I I I I 1~00
P<P< U~A~CJJCJJ C/l C/l CJJ C/l C/l CJJ C/l C/l C/l CJJC/l CJJ C/l CJJ C/l CJJ C/l;P<OCJJ C/l CJJ C/l CJJ CJJ CJJ CJJ C/l CJJDO

ee ;99oooooooooodooooooo !E85383358333%5
i~0G0G0ZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZ ~i:,,:,:zzzzzzzzz1P1

ZZZZZHHHHHHHHHHH~HHHHHHHHOOHC/l rzl rzl ril ril r"l ril ril ril rzl ril ril
:,:rz1 1z1HHHHH8E-l888888888H88888888U:Il f'IPIPIPIPIPIPIPIPl~~083#gggg33333£33g36£4£33£,g;gggggegg4g
~~HHHHHrillzl ril ril ril ril ril ril ril ril ril~ril ril lzl ril ril lzl ril lzl E-iH~~ZZZZZZZZZ~~
~~~p,. f'l f>l f>l i:>,i:>,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,oi:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,~rz1Drz1000000000HO

:i::ooi:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,i:,,ooooooooooouooooooooi::iE-< CJJ~uuuuuuuuu~u

u
H a+iomraoo+loot Oto@coo@oar-aOaaoo+loon4OO
HMMO\NMMM000\0\0\0\0\0\0\0rlrlrlrlNNMMMMMMMNMO\O\OrlNMMMMMO\
~000\00000\0,0,0,0,0,0,0,Q0000000000000000\0,000000000\
pr-r-1Dr-r-r-r-1DIDIDIDIDIDID1Dr-r-r-r-r-r-r-r-r-r-r-r-r-r-r-r-1D1Dr-r-r-r-r-r-r-r-1D
ll, . . . • • . . •
NNMMMMM0\0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0~N~~~~~~~~~~Nrl

lrl.-trlrlrlrlrlNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNrlrlNNNNNNNNNNNM~
MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM~~~~~~~~~~~~~~OO+tu Lu uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuiuuuuuuiuiuiuuuu

rl I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
~rlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrl
Orl.-trlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrl
# # @ @ @ @ d d @ @ @ d d d @ # M # @ «d @ # # @ }@ } # @ d @ @ @ @ d d @ d

+Joooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo
P, I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
d u Lu iuLuuuuunuuiuuuuuuuuuuuiuuouui uiuuuuuuiuuiuuiu
ClNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN~l5NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN

~
ril:,:
u
H
H
gi
ll, ~

N

rl Irl~
0

CJ) CJ) ril

6 6 u
Lu eH N H

8 8

$ I~~Pl N Pl ?ll, ll,

fil
I I rell,

~ CJ) ~ ?' ~ I ';nCJ) H

~ ~~~ ~~
E HH

i %9
a$% m l

~ Pl~
~

ll, ~
0 00

H Pl
8 8 ll, 8

% gJ ~ ~



0 ><
N E-< vo Luo r-- O l) OO (n 000 r-- r--0 H ONO N 0 \0 '<l' M Ill (D (D OIy ~ '<l' (D O'I rl t--\0\0N N M M r-- rl

E-< ll) ll) ("'J Ill r--,. .._, r--- Cl) (D M n '<l' (D% \0 r-- Ill s, rl "' "' 0 0o
rl rl rl rlM

v Vr
rl y E-< (D "' I.O 0 M rlOlllNO (D rlOri r-- (D0 H '<l' rl r-- '<l' MNl"'-rl ) (D (D I"'- Illy ~ N N 00 M N r-- <D s, N Ill Ill rl r--

E-< t--N<"l M \D a:, C\I \0 '<l' r-- r-- <D Ill¥ '<l' Ill Nrl Ill 0 0 00 O
rl rl M'<l'

y

y 3 E-<y l'a1 0000 0 00000 0 000 (D (D0 t!J 000"1 Ill 00000 0 0"1"1 "10N H B Olllt--Sl' N <DO O <DO '<l' (D '<l' \0 r-- rlt!J - - - - - - - - - - -H ~ ONr-i \O N t--t--M'<l'O r-- \0 \0 "' Ill \05 rl '<l' on) V V 0 o) r-- '<l' \0 O0 0 Ill '<l' Ill '<l' '<l'O
rl rl rl rl Nrl

(D (D
I{) I{)
t--N

rl rl
rl N
'<l' (D

rl

(D (D
Ill ll'l
t--N

rl rlr
'<l' (D

rl

(D (D
Ill Ill
r-- r--

ll) rl
0 +«l
'<l' '<l'

N rl

000
000
ll'l0ll'l

a, 00
0 0 a,
rl r-- Ill

000
000
ll'l0ll'l

a, 00o oa,
rl r-- Ill

000
000
I{) I{) 0

r-- rl '<l'
0 C,(D
rl rl 0

rl rl

00000 0
00000 0
oouo

00000 0
00000 0
<DOIOIOO N

00000 0
0000 0
<DOllllO <D

Ill
r--

0000 0
00 00 0
oor--o M

Ill r-- rl O \0
N O \0

N rl

Ill r-- r-i O \0
N O \0

N rl

0000 0
0000 0
oor--o M

0000 0
0000 0
OOt--"1 <D

"1 Ill r-irl a,
N a, Ill

rl rl

rl rl

3
H
E-<p.,
Hp,;
tJ
rne

I
p,;

I
rl r-i N <D

I a, rl rl a,
0 r-- r-- Ill

Ill '<l' 'Sl' Sl' Ill
Ill I I I I
r-- Ill "1 Ill Ill
0"1"1llllll (,,

r-- r-- r--r-- 0
+>oooo
P, I I I I E-<

8833

p,;

£
Cl}
rlMrlN <D

I a, a, rl rl a,
oor--r--lO

O d et a Lu)
Ill I I I I I
t--\0\0\0\0\0
uuuuu [
r--r--r--r--r-- 0

+100000
P, I I I I I E-<

388888%

Ny

276



DEVELOPMENT FUND 27
IMPACT FEES

The Development Fund helps provide for the financing of public facilities such as roads, water
systems, sanitary sewer, public safety, and recreation for land not yet developed. The City of Franklin
has considerable undeveloped area and was one of the most rapidly growing communities in
Southeastern Wisconsin until it was interrupted by the 2008 Recession. City Officials recognized the
need to recover the costs of providing public facilities and infrastructure needed to serve new
development through the imposition of impact fees. The Impact Fee changes over time as
development takes place and growth rates change. A revised Impact Fee study was adopted April
6, 2020. The 2022 fee on a single-family residence is $6,961, related to Parks/Recreation, Water
systems, Transportation Facilities, Public Safety, Library Services, and Administrative. The fee is
collected when building permits are issued. In 2013, the Common Council adopted Ordinance 2013
2105 establishing the Southwest Sanitary Sewer Service Area and created a Sewer Impact Fee to
support sanitary sewer infrastructure in that District. The 2022 Sanitary Sewer Impact fee is $3,501.

The Library built in 2002 included space for future growth anticipated with development. Library
Impact fees are dedicated to Debt Service on that portion, originally $1,722,000. Current Impact Fee
receipts are not sufficient to meet the Debt Service on this debt. Those deferred amounts will be
recovered once growth resumes.

Law Enforcement Impact Fees are dedicated to a portion of the 2001 Law Enforcement building
project ($2,530,380). Current Impact Fee receipts are not sufficient to meet the Debt Service. The
deferred amounts will be recovered once growth resumes.

The Fire Department anticipates expansion of fire station space to serve the southwestern portion
of the City as it develops. Current Fire Impact fees will aid in the construction of that additional Fire
Protection infrastructure.

Transportation Impact Fees have been dedicated to Debt funding the Drexel Ave reconstruction from
Loomis Road to Highway 100 ($1,086,715). Current Impact Fee receipts are not sufficient to meet
the Debt Service. The deferred amounts will be recovered once growth resumes.

Water Impact fees are aiding specific additions to the water infrastructure including over sizing
needs. Future water infrastructure needs will utilize Impact Fees as collected. The Water Impact Fee
study is currently under review. The Utility plans to construct additional elevated storage in
2022/23/24 near Hwy 100 and St. Martin's Road. It is anticipated that Impact fees will assist with a
significant portion of those project costs.

Park/Recreation Impact Fees support the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan ("CORP")
initially adopted in 1994 and updated several times, most recently in April, 2020. The Impact Fee will
contribute to projected needs for additional recreational facilities.

In 2013, the Common Council created a Southwest Sanitary Sewer District served by the Ryan
Creek Sanitary Sewer Interceptor. In conjunction with the District a Sanitary Sewer Impact Fee was
created to provide resources for sanitary sewer mains in the District.

277



City of Franklin, WI
2023 Budget - Development Fund

The Common Council recently directed and authorized the purchase of land in the southwest area
of the City, in the amount of $1,500,000. The City will be closing on this property in the very near
future. This purchase is utilizing $542,754.45 of existing Impact Fee Revenues for this purchase.

Staff is currently revising the Impact Fee Spending Plan to ensure that the appropriate amount of
fee revenue will be spent by the statutorily required dates.

Capital Projects:

(

Fire Station Design
Water Tower Park Design
Frisbee/ Disc Golf Course
116/ Street Trail w/Ryan Road
St. Martin of Tours Trail
Cascade Trail Design
STH 100 LL, Land Purchase
Forest Home Trail
Water Connection

Totals

Project Cost
$355,000
$100,000
$20,000
$1,110,000
$224,135
$103,000
$178,500
$65,000
$718,425

$2,874,060

278

Impact Fee Use
$88,750
$47,000
$9,400
$172,360
$138,964
$63,860
$110,670
$40,300
$107,764

$779,068



0 ><y E-f <l''Sl'MO\I.ClO\ri<Dt--M'Sl'O r-- 0\ 0\ oo M or-- r-- 0 0\ 0\ ON N \D I.Cl rl 000 0 0 0 r-- rl \D0 H I.ClO.-IMO\<l'\D0\0\DN 0 \D \D (D (D n (n) rl rl Cl) <D rl (D 0 0 \D \D 01.C]I.C]y i:; Nl"1r--N'Sl'rl<l'\DMri<D \D r-- r-- 0 0 0\ 0\ I.Cl I.Cl 0\ 0\ ON M 0 r-- r-- \D M N- - - - - - - - - - -E-f 0\1"1\DOO\rlO\O<l'<D<I' r-- r-- r-- I.Cl I.Cl N N M n M n \D I.Cl rl \D (D <I' r-- "' (D
u I.Cl rl t--lD\D<D\DO\riN \D y N 0 0 'Sl' 'Sl' r-- r-- "' 0\ <D N rl y y I.Cl o ond N rl I.Cl n N N y (V) I.Cl I.Cl )

rl
rl rl

rl ><
N E-f rl'Sl'CDO\OM<l'LOr--oor--o 0 rl rl or-- r-- 00\ "' 00 0 00\ "' \D 0 \D rl 00 rl <I' <I' Op- (on0 H MIDN<DrlrlLO<l'<l't--rl N N y rl rl <I' <I' "' "' n) (n 0\ "' I.Cl LO O I.Cl
y i:; MOO\DOO<D<Dt--0\D<D LO ID ID LO I.Cl LO LO n rn 0 0 0\ 0\ <I' <I' LO I.Cl 0\- - - - - - - - - - -E-f LOrl"'l'Nrlrlt--MLOt--0 ID ID ID LO LO rn ( <I' <I' <I' <I' y N rl rl ID CD r--2 M Cl) \DID<l'<l'N<l'MLO rl 0 0 <I' 'Sl' r-- r-- n (n 0\ 0\ rl rl rl ID <I'rl rl N <D y N rl ::! <D LO N

N 3 E-<
N a I.ClOOl"'lN<l'<D0\0000 rl 0 0 00 0 00 0 O LO LO 00 0 00 0 0 LO 0 LO 0 0 rl O 0\0 C!l OOrl'Sl'NID<l'O\NO 0 "' 0 0 0 0 o LO LO or-- r-- 0 0 <I' <I' y N

0\ "' "'
N 9 <l'IDO\DM<l'<l'NO 0 N 0 0 0 0 or-- r-- o rn 0 0 0 0 I") n N <I' rl- - - - - - - - -3 " \OQ)("l'lr-{Lt)['q!O\Q 0 ID I.Cl LO LO LO I.ClN r-- I.Cl r-- N I.Cl LO <I' <I' <I' <I' ID M r--rllDr--Ot--LOO\<l't-- \D ID y N r-- r-- r-- LO N t-- M rl 0 0 0 0 r-- r-- ID N LO0 )( t--MNN LO rl rl rl rl rl ) n M 0\ "' ID ID LO I.Cl °'N

I") n NI.ClN

000000000000 0
000000000 0
000000000 0

000000000000 0
000000000 00 0
I.ClOO\DI.ClOLOOO 01"'1 <I'

0 0 OLOLO
ONt--
0 M \D

0 0\ 0
0\ \D N
rl 0\ N

rl

0 0 0 I.C]I.C]
ONt--
0 MID

0 0\ 0
0\ ID N
rl 0\ N

rl

0 0 000
0 I.Cl LO
'Sl'<l'O

"'"' 0ID O <I'
I.Cl r-- rl

NI.ClM

r--
0
rl

r--
0
rl

r--
0
rl

r--
0
rl

000 0
0 0
<D <D

000 0
0 0
<D <D

OLOO LO
N N

(n

N
(D
LO

N
<D
LO

0
0
rl

rl

y
(D
LO

N
(D
LO

0
0
rl

rl

00 0
0 0
\D ID

00 0
0 0
\D ID

00 0
0 0
0 0

LO
0
(

LO
0
(n

00 0

00 0

00 0
0 0
0 0

O LO I.Cl
r-- r-
rn) o)

r-- r-
) (o)
rl rl

0 LO LO
r-- r-
rn o)

r-- r-
rn )
rl rl

0 LO LO
or-- r-o
u)
r-- M rl
rl r ()

00 0
O I.Cl LO
<Dr-- LO

<D N rl
<D LO <I'

rl

00 0
O I.Cl LO
<Dr-- LO

<D N rl
<D LO <I'

rl

00 0
Cl.Cl I.Cl
or-- r--

LON r-
t--1.Cl N

rl

I.Cl
r-
rl

LO
r-
rl

00 0

00 0

00 0
0 0
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
0 0
0 0

LO LO
rl rl

0
0\
rl

rl

0

"'rl
rl

0 M "'ID ID
I.Cl

N

OOOLOLOLOOOLO
t--t'-rl<DLOONM<I'
rlrl Mrlrlrl

OOOLOLOLOOOI.Cl
r--t--rl<DLOONM<I'
rlrl l"'lrlrlrl

IDO\Mril.Clt--<1'0\0
rllDr--or--LOO\<l'r--
1"1M t--MNN

000000000000 0
000000000 0
000000000 0

ME-< E-<
N en lz1
o pa D
39
f;"! III

E-<
Pl
rl
Q

r-
N

%en CJen E

8
H l: E-< ~es
rzi O ~
Cl) I'.>.

Pl Cll
12;0
,i: H rz1 LOZ Pl r--
0 HO o
H t; +l
Cl) E pa
Cll H ;>
rz:1 td46;

H Pl OE-<
E-< E-<

jg#
68%#
CJ
p;
l
E-<•••I riO\N
NI.Cl <D

LO LO I.Cl LO
LO I I I
r-- LO I.Cl LO
ouuu [

r-- r-- r-- 0
-1-10 0 0
P, I I I E-<

&GR5 %

0 on)
I <D 0\

I.Cl I.Cl
rl I.Cl LO
rl I I
LO rl rl
0 rl rl

I.Cl LO
-1-1 0 0
P, I I
QI r-- r-
ANN

rln

ien H

",p; rzi rl
a n LO
:i: 0
E-< E-<
0 III

lz1
OA
E-<
0
E

~ I'.>.
e g
3zi E-< E-<

III
H
+l

en
3
H
E-<
,:(
H

%
£
2
Cl)g
$
f;l

rl
I")

><

46
Cll Hg

,
p pd o
rzi Cl) M
:i: 0
E-< E-<
0 III

8
E-<
0p; E-<

~ p;g3z
, E-<

£
C!l
H
:i:

0\ M
I <D 0\

LO I.Cl
rl I.Cl LO
M I I
M rl rlon [u
0 o O

-1-1 0 0
p. I I E-<

a55%

rl E-<
l"'l Pl

rzi
A

Cl)

3
H
E-<
,:(
Hp;
Pl

£
2
Cl)

•

rzi
CJ
H
+-l
0
Pl

O o
I <D 0\

LO LO
rl LO LO
rl I I
N rl rl
0 rl rl

V
-I-loo
P, I I
QI r-- r-
ANN

±4
!
~ rlp; rzi rl

rz:IC/l N
:i: 0
E-< E-<
0 III
6&
E-<
0
E

lz1r,. p;

4$
il ei
A E-< E-<

±7
H
Cl)
Cl)

±
0
H p
E pl

3&
E-< 0
Cl)
Hz
H

4.
I rl

y
r-- LO
<I' I
rl r--
0 <I' r,.
rl 0.µ 0

, I E-<

8%

Cl)

6
H
;;J
H

%
£
2
Cl)g;

z I'.>.

#s za
.i:ori HE-<l: Ulen
rzi u E-< E-< CJ rzi E-< rzi5& &g %, g
j ii05 }s 5
d i, n Qi[flit[i o

iznnb> o8gzge "3ggjssa5i3?ej.
I I 4Ebul+ ) Z ::>
Cl) en I I I I I I Z H 0±±ERE;jg?
68666665#
$$$&$$$&
2zi2ii&%&j

~
%
8
rlNM'Sl'LOIDt--0\rlM\DO\

I 0\ CJ\ 0\ 0\ 0\ 0\ 0\ 0\ rl rl rl 0\
NNNNNNNNr--r--r--r-

O<l''Sl' <l'<l'<l'<l'<l'<l'<l'<l'<l'<I'
0 I I I I I I I I I I I I
0000000000000
ooooooooooooo u
000000000000 0

-1-1000000000000
I I I I I I I I I I I I E-<

±558

6
H
E-<
Pl
H
I'.>.uen
rla



0 :,,
N E-l a, LO
OH LO rl
N~ <l' r--

E-l l"'lrl

% l"'l O'I
(D (D

(D (D

r b
N E-l LO <D
OH rl \0

£, r-- \0

E-l rl "'± O (n)
(D rl

(D "'

N ~ E-<N [ii Ori
0 Z (.!) r-- r--
N Eti § \0 <l'

H Ill O'IN~ l"'l (D
0 rl rl

0 O

N A l><
N l'z1 E-< 00
O E-l H r--N
N o \0 \0

~ E-< "'"'g% l"'l O'I

~ I rl CJ\

O'I LO

i filrx,
E-i l"'l E-1 E-<rx, I N rll [ii OLO0 0 r:g (.!) NOi

b ""aB8 \ON
E-1 gi Ill 0\0H • O'INu E-< O'IN
P: z E-1

t ll, LO \00 [iirx,
A0

E-< +-l
P: g0
ll, [ii

% A "gN [ii OLO
r-- ·° NO\

E-< N g \ON
[ii
(.!) 0 Ill O'IO§ 'O u O'IN

Ill ~ gJ OIN

LO \0
!§
3

3 [ii
u

H

; tJE-<
ll,
H
P: ?u
C/l
[ii
A

.A
HZg
HH

p,: %2
IQ [ii

[ii

3
H

280(.!)



0 ><y E-< MLC)\Oq'QQ N <DON O<D0 H LC)q'qoll')Q 0 0\ 00 )N R OO"d't"-"-'O LC) q, 0 LC) \D M- - - - -E-< r-0\r-tq"Q \D MO \D r- Mu r 0 \D MO \D \D 0,( \D e0 \D LC) r- N

{
rl ><y E-< M0\0000 (I) N O<D <DO0 H MOO 0 r- Nor- N LOy E O @ O N N 0\ N N M<D

E-< LC) rl n LC) r- MLC) MLOu N M NM O<D,( NM

y 3± -y 00000\D \D 0 \D \D 0 q,0 0 0 U") r- N LO r-N LONy 8 0 LC) r- q, N N q, N (I) \D

H a:l NN r \D LO M \D LC) 0\

8 () ~ MN (I) LC)
MM

E-f
fil ,:J

2
a:l

000000 0
LOOri O q,
NO LO N

M M 0
() (r

000000 0
000 0
0 0 rl

NM

000000 0
000 0
0 0 r rl

NM

000
\0 Oq<
N LON

MMO
)

000
0 0
rl rl

(

000
0 0

rl

n) (

00
LOM
(I) \D

LC) LC)
(I) LC)
MM

00
MM
\D r-

LC) (I)
LC) LC)
MM

00
MM
DOI

LC) (I)
LC) ll')
MM

3
H
E-f
P,
H
I>:
tJ
t/l
fil
A

i
8

M

i i3
tJ fil f;! ~z t/l E-f t/l t/l fil
HE-fZfill fil C!lJ>: Z H t/l tJ·a t/l HI t/l O :>
E-f E-f..:I p,; 0zuzi o
4e9%2
CJJZCllHE-fE-f
Cll H Cll~ Oa:l
%#% a8»
?°4

E-f ~ I>: E-f H

3#32#a ¥±Egg3fil E-< 1'.i1 0)
Pl Z Ill eg

~ t/l H CllH E-f '

eg 2
8
MM NM 0\ M Z

I 0\ MM M <D 0\ [.,1
or-r-r-LOLC) ::>

g-r"/''/'"I'"?"? f;l
0000000
0000000 r,.
000000 0

-iJ O O 000 0
P, I I I I I I E-f
g ;;:l ;;:l u1 ;;:l ~ ;;:l ~

rl
LC)

299



en

0
0
rri_
en
)o
rn
-(J).

8
N
ia,.,..
,,;
-v,.

0
g
a en
3
N ID=m-v,.

0 0
0 0
0 "!.- mct:) r-.
<I). V).

O 0
O 0
...... 0
r-. r-.:
-sf" en
V). V).

0
0 O
0 ID

1
r-. N..... ,,;
V). -v,.

0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 r-.
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N tr

0 0 o r-. 0 0 0 Lil m en ...... .,.. 0 r r-.
0

r-:-<+ O M ? co 0 LI) N• o N. en ......- a, r-:-- r-. ,,; LI) N o ......- DO LI) N .,.. r-. N <:I;. ....en ,.... " ...... 0 .,..
V). 0 .... ...... u%- V). V). r -v,.

.........
00 - ,,; V). ,,; V). 0%-

-v,.
00/ -v,. N

-v,.V). -v,.

N ()
(I)N N u "'0 0 C L.N N (I) (I)
L. .0

a:
(I) E

G)

±- (I)

)

0 E
m..

ro
+-'
0
+-'

w
+-'
0

"'
C

C C: :z

z
"'

6--- iii: r::
(I) ·--1/1

...... .,,
1/1

..c 0 (I)

O ....
"' >- --'

"iii ·;::
0

Cl.
QJ

I ti
Cl. co

O
JI: o

E

..,

E E
u i,i

(I)

.,, ....
.E

8
.,,

00 ...
"'

y "' «:.... QJ
iJ

+-'

a. C: z
y

C

0 E C!lS
o

C1J

... .,, i,i
y

Cl.

Ill "tJ ... "tJ ...
U

.,, .,,
~

Cll c( 0 Cll 0

·t
... u )("' iii U:: u

tl"j
C1J

b.11 1/1 ...
3

Cll ... E "iii Cll

CL

L. 5 "iii ..c:

*
b.11 Cll ... "iii ... ...

y
b.11 ~ 0 iJ 0 0c( I- I-

+-'
C
C1J
Cl.

0 U r---0 Ez r---
6 9

0
0 0 0 M ( <D

m
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 en 0 C1J r---_ '°- r---
0 0 0 a,

0 0 t
CL

Vo
0 \.0 ...... f 0 co ,,,- ......- M -v,. r--- r---V).

Do • e .....
I.II N. m 00

ct:) ...... LI) ,,; [-(/). -(J).

r--- LI) \.0 t
V). V). V).

'SI" LI) ...... ,,;
-v,.

+-'

-(J). V). V). -v,.

"'0u

V')
QJ
QJ
I...

-I-'
QJ
a::

( ""O
C
ro
V')
QJ
>
-I-'u
<(

-I-'
QJ
tl.O
""O
::J
co
QJu
C
ro
I...
::J
V')
C

..c
-I-'

ro
QJ
I
CV')
(I
0
(J

""O
QJ
-I-'u
QJ·--..
0
I...
a..



O O ) OO Orn) door rl
OIOIC"l<XlOrllOO<Xl<XlOlrlOIU') a,
U'lN<D\01'"-l"ll'"- \OcYlll'll"lOION 10............- ...

0 Pl .-f"" a,r- y 3 f-
0\"" Ill a,

0 a0O+IO OMO0CO a
00 <D.-f \00 N 00 Ill
Ol'SI' Nl"'IOIO I'"- 0 r

000 0

q, N
q, M

Ill

rl
OI
N

Ori \OM
00 'SI' \0 Ill
rl ""

Ill 'SI'
r-- rl
MN

.-f

(X)-Nill'°""rlONU'IOINrl rl
ONO\NN- .-10\ 00
l'"-rl N rl

OIOC"'IO
""(DU') r--
0 N

rl

0 00 0""I'"- 0 rl
00 Pl N
MN 'SI'

0
10

rl l><
N E-1 Ill 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 \01"'1101"'10\0\00IOl\001'"-l"'IM "" \0 N r-- N 10 M"" \OIOOIOOIOl'"-\01'"- \0 OI N 0 r--
0 H (X)'Sf \0 0 0 lONrlO OI rl I'"- OI I'"- N U'I rl OI Ol'S!'O\O rl l'"-rlONl'"-1'"-'SI' 'SI' OI '<l' N 10 (X) r--
N t \0 "" r-- .--i rl OI cYl 'SI' Pl Ill rl 'SI' N \0 10 Pl Pl \0 rl (X)"" (X) OI a, \0 a, \0 r-- (X) Pl

\0 """"
OI p- qi N- - - - w - - - - - - -E-1 a, OI r-- r-- N 'SI' <Xl Pl I'"- Pl 10 (X) ll'l 'Sl'OM rl \0 rl (X) rlltl lOIOM<XlM r-- en M Pl r r

k 'SI' 'SI' 'SI' 'SI' NO'Sl''SI' 'SI' OI <Xl N 1'"- e 9 Pl - 'SI' 'SI' rl cYl I'"- 0 0 10 en Pl
1'"-N 'SI' rl rl 'Sl'N +{ 0 +l rl )we

rl

N l E-1
N rz1 000 0 0 0 0 0 'Sl'<XlOOO\OOOl"l'Sl'OOOO OI 0000 0 100\00\0 00 NrlOO 10 000 0
0 Cl 0 0 0 0 OI 'SI' 0 N Pl l"l "" a, N 10 N MM (X)
N 89 0 0 rl rl 1"'10 "" r-- 10 Pl N a, OI N<Xl \0 \0 ""

:;i Ill (X) (X) r-- r-- <XlN Pl (X) OI rl 'SI' O e± NN 0 Ill OI

"" qi r-- OI N 0 r-- OI r rlr-- 10 (X) Ill 10 ""0 \Orl rl r-- rl \ON .--i q, "" g
rl r

000 0
0 0
0 0

000 0
0 0
0 0

rl rl

000 0
0 0
0 0

rl rl

000 0
0 0 0
Ill O Ill

N rl rl

Ill \0
N Ill
rl rl

II') \0
N Ill
rl rl

Ill M
N \0
rl

N
Ill
(")

OU'IOO'Sl'OOON
OOIC"'IIO'Sl'OIO
\ON Mrlrlrl

.-f rl

0 U'I m q, 0 a:> N
OOIMIO'Sl'OIO
\ON MrlMrl

.-f M

00000000000 0
0000000 0 0 0
OOOIOOOO O O Ill

00000000000 0
0000000 0 0 0
OOOIOOOO O O Ill

IOIO<Xl 'Sl'O<DN
N\ON Ill Ill OIO
ION r-!Olrlrl

rl

00000000000 0
0000000 0 0 0
00010000 o O Ill

0000 0

0000 0

0000 0
0 0
0 0

n) )

rlO.-f <Xl
0 \0
.-f N

rlOrl<Xl
0 \0
rl N

rlO
0
rl

oo,n,qoo
O<Xl<Xll"l<Xl
\0 rl rl

OOltlqlO
0 (X) (X) <'I (X)
\Ori rl

ooO
Oltl<DMU'l
II') rl rl

M

""

0\0
(D (D
\0 rl

OIO
(X)(X)
\0 rl

0001"1
10 (DU')""
\0 rl

00000000000000 0
00 0 00000 000 0
NO M 00000 MOrl OI

00000000000000 0
00 0 00000 000 0
NO cYl 00000 cY'IOrl OI

00000000000000 0
0000 00000 000 0
0001"'1 00000 1"'100\ OI

0 0
0 0
r-- r--

vS

0 0
0 0
r-- r--

N N

0 0
0 0
r-- r--

N N

0 0
0 0
rl rl

r-- r-

"" ""

0 0
0 0
rl rl

0 0
0 0
rl rl

r-- ...
qi ""

10
rl

10
rl

10
rl

Illr

000 0
0 0
0 0

000 0
0 0 0
0 0 0

10 M 00
N N

Pl E-1 E-1
N en ri1
o ri1 Cl
N 5§

[;j Ill

E-1
Ill
[:l

H:,:
A
rz1
A

lz1 H :,:
lz1 II'. < t!)H II'.
.. a oSP! H Pa a
" #48 <g:# AR# S: #e!°

«· ?· so ao3°C}rzl II'. en HN Pit ~\O
E 21n H

"Egg 9i @z up bn o nu0 o# go! o " #l24 "oj°a° »ja ea
446 g34• 43

-· HUH O g Uo0
A,ci: ,-'.1 E-lrzl enen AE-1
a OB Hu a H PJa H

273£3#8,3443 ?=sos6»roeg .55
$$924$23$228a% o so
~t!JC}ll'. rzlHP,U)lenp,.H re I t!>HH re

• ? ?A en Ill en

5....-s+so..&...$
I 000\00000000 l'il I 000 §

1'"-l'"-1'"-rllOIOIOIOIOIOIO ;> l'"-IOIO

~1'1'1''?'?'?'?'?'?'?'? [;l ~1''?'?
ONNNNNNNNNNN 0\0\0\0
IOrlrlrlrlrlrlrlrlMrlM Ii:, ltlrlrlrl Ii:,
00000000000 0 000 0

-I-IIOIOIOIOIOIOIOIOIOIOIO -1-llOIOIO
I). I I I I I I I I I I I E I I I E
QJIOU'IIOIOIOIOIOlOIOIOIO [ii QIIOIOIO [ii
c:::ir--r--r--r--r--r--r--r--r--r--r-- z c:::ir--r--r--z

g a
n p; E-1

Ill ): Ill
QJ H I

oo:,...i:)l
ri1 .:IH <s"o4 %Geo:i! I-IP U
U 1-1 11'.A

::IA I I:i::u

~

Ei~ ~~ :::rl HU 0
Ill Ez

P, :C r-l P, H
UHi

§ Ill Pl :i::
tll Pl-lUE-lrll6g8,a &
H HC)J::p',j;l H
E-1 E-1 HP, :C E-1
~ HI I I I ~

s 34444g
g 8888 •
P, I Ill

?a 2
oo Ill rn

8.....A
!,'ii I 0000 !,'ii
;> l'"-IOIOIO ;>
1z1 .-f"" IOIOIO l'il
p', .-f I I I I II'.

0 rl .-f .-f .-f

8 "3333 8
-1-llOIOIOIO

E-1 I). I I I I E-1
r,!1 QJIOIOIOU'I M
Z Ar--r--r--r-- Z

£ E } 2

s s Ee"g g eeseo3
s' s6Ei ,-'.l l'rl ooo t:'.i.-, .C A

H.CE-1 .C)l EiU I U l'I
OOj HH 0 01 n 2
Ela ,ta
rillslP'<Ul f::U£!! I U >tril
; QJ t:'.i oo 1.11 11'. o43»#.#,

·G84$44482"
n .l azka,4
EiEi ll! :l<:enlllO ~ll!Oltl ..:IE-1

ril~,-'.1 11'.lllr-lHUl EiNUH
U ,i:oo HUE-lril enen..-1 Ul

I ri1Ul>t:I:'dlll1"1,-'.IUl I A~ioonogo%3;2.:{434.:%8·zooo oa¢noioo«
Hp',p',E-t ~ i:lll'. .:IHE-lt1ri1ZU
~t!>CH/llll Hll!U)ltll OOH.C

H
A

~.-f ... \01'"-..,.-fNC"l,q,U')\Ol'"-OIO
IOOOONOOOOOOOO<Xl
........ .......... 101010,n,n,nll')lt)lt)

Qql"""""" IOU'IIOIOIOU'IIOIOIOIO
.-f I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
000000000000000
Ill .-f rl .-f .-f .-f .-f .-f .-f rl .-f .-f .-f .-f .-f
00000000000000

-1-llOIOU'llOIOIOIOIOIOIOIOIOIOIO
I). I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
QJIOIOIOIOIOIOIOIO~IOU'IIOIOIO
A r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- '3Nr-- r-- r-- r--

rl
10
rl
0

rz1u

3
H
Ii:,

(/)

(/) ~
ril Hg
±4

~
'en,

Aa
83
E-10$8
E-1 ~
C/l
H
l'.:i

~ OI
I OI
rl

r-- 10
,qo I
rll'"-0""rl
-1-10p. I
QJ 10
Ar--

3
en tll ~
E-1 rz1 en "'z t/l E-1#g5
n pl O

£g=
"6gz H t/l
0 t [;l ~
g>%
~ t/l ~ Het &g

3 £....a
I rlrl<D M

r-- r-- r-- ;>
t a <a []

0 I I I P,,
0000oggg [:)
-1-1000
I). I I I Ei
QJIOltl lO M
Ar-- r-- r-- Z

3
H
E-1
Ill

5
t/l
[:l



0 ><y E-t r- V Lu) CD \0 .-t n 00000 00 OMO ) 0 0 a, 0\0 .-t .-t
0 H \00\0\,-tO\ ... "' 00 00 Nill r-- 00 r-- .-t NM
{ £ \OLllNM ... CD 00 .-t .-t r-- .-t 00 \0 Ill .-t ll) \O- - - - - -E-t 0\ N r- Ill ... M Ill Ill Ill ... 0\ Ill 00

k .-t LON .-t .-t N r-- .-t Ill 00 ...
.-t .-t N Ill r-- ... N

MN NM

(

.-t p
y E-t NNLOO.-tN ... \0\00.-t .-t 00 Ill 00 .-t 0\ 0\ r- '<SO r-- .-t '<SO
0 H 000\LOt--\O\O \0 0\ .-t 0 l '<S''<S'N y M n) ? d O MM
N ~ CDUl'Sl' ...... .-t .-t .-t '<SO \0 00 N.-t.-t Ill l N 00 00 O \0 \0- - - - - -E-t 0 V @ at @ \0 '<SO '<SO r-- r-- 0\ Ill Ill Mr-u .-t LO Ill .-t .-t O + '<SO 0\

-i: .-t .-t 00 O e N.-t

NN MM

4 ± E-t
N ril 000000 0 0000 0 000 0 0 0 \ON\O Mt--
0 t!) 000000 0 00 0 Ill 0\ M O
N H § OU'IOOOO Ill lllN r-- .-t \0 Ill \00

t!) - - - - - -H , UlNLOLll'<S'O \0 '<SO '<SO \0 .-t Ill I

5 .-t LO \0 .-t .-t .-t \0 \0 0\ 0\0
.-t .-t OMN .-t 0\- --r MN

MM
MM
00 LO

or-
.-tr-
0 Ill

MM
MM
CD Ill

or
.-tr--
0 LO

MN

MM) n
\0 00

r--o
0\ rl
.-to

MM

Ill
r--

000
000
O y o

Ill 0\ M
'<S't--M
O'<S''<S'

000
000
O\N M
Ill O
'<S't--M
O'<S''<S'

(n

000
000
00 \0 00

rl 00 \0
M rl 00
"' rl rl

NM

E-1
f;! f:l

I
f/l Is
3su u

0 0

0 0

0 0

000 0

000 0

-000 0
00 0
0.-t .-t

Ill

t°
UU H
I I I ~~4$
~ f;! ril
rlH:>< A
UE-1

8 '0 I H Ill; u a
H ri1 Pl 0
I ri1 I LO
QJ r,,
QJ f/l
1-l l: l:
rlHH

ril 4a: :§ :§
f;! i:: u u
333
G zz

QJ ril rilaaa

LOLO

0000 0

0000 0

0000 0
000 0
0 .-t '<SO LO

£, a
t; re A

$ ±'
? 44
9 1 m
1'.!iUfllU 0g o·a£,.:i u l: .-t
,cC 1-lH N

812 %
~ P<1 i:l UHp, aH
ea #2a
¥8±E

i:,; QJ P<1 P<1
,-=lt!JAAA
,cC I I I I

±#1%
uuuu

f/l

3
H

%
re
%
p., I

?4n ...+.
I 10000

r-- LO Ill LO
.-t '<SO Ill LO Ill
NI I I I
0 rl .-t .-t rl

5 "3388
-I-I LO Ill LO Ill

E-t P, I I I I
M QJlllLOlllLO
Z Ar--r--r--r--

000000 0
000000 0
... OOOLOO 0\

NMOOOOO\ r-
y 0 3 l
.-t .-t

000000 0
000000 0
... OOOlllO 0\

NMOOCDO\ r-
V 0 @
.-t .-t

000000 0
000000 0
OOOOlllO Ill

NMLOLllt--0\ 00
0 I.OM
.-t .-t

~
ril
A

-4() @«4 () 0
1000000

r-- r-- t-- Ill LO Ill
O ... '<S' ... LllLOLO
NI I I I I I
0000000
LO
000000

-1-l LO LO Ill Ill LO Ill
P, I I I I I I
QJ Ill LO Ill Ill Ill Ill
A r--r-- r--r-- r-- r--

i

5
H
E-1
P<
H
i:,;u
U)a

EI E-t
N Ul ril
0 P<1 t!)

8r;:i~
E-t
P<
ril
A

v (
N ril E-t
0 E-t H
vo ;

~ E-t

%%



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

She
REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2021-2486, an
Ordinance Adopting the 2022 Annual Budget for the
Capital Improvement Fund to Transfer $260,000 of

Engineering Capital Funds to the Street
Improvement Fund

MEETING DATE

10/18/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.13.

BACKGROUND

The Engineering Department is seeking Council approval to transfer $260,000 from the Capital Improvement
Fund to the Street Improvement Fund to appropriate the funds needed for the W. Minnesota Avenue and S.
50th Street Water Main Extension (Minnesota Avenue) project in 2022.

The resolution to award the contract to Willkomm Excavating and Grading, Inc. was approved at the October
4, 2022 Council meeting, and it was referenced that a budget amendment would be forthcoming.

Within the 2022 Engineering Capital Budget, $412,125 of net City funding was allocated for the DPW Building
Expansion Design. This project has been delayed. Of the $412,125, the City Engineer is requesting $260,000 be
moved to the Street Improvement Fund for the Minnesota Avenue project.

ANALYSIS

This transfer will not adversely impact the City's Capital Budget.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the attached proposed Capital Improvement Fund and Street Improvement Fund budget
amendment transferring $260,000 of Engineering Capital Improvement funds from account number 46-0331-
5216.9692 to the Minnesota Avenue project in the Street Improvement Fund, budget account number 47-0331
5823.3050.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-, An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2021-2486, an Ordinance
Adopting the 2022 Annual Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund to Transfer $260,000 of Engineering
Capital funds to the Street Improvement Fund.

Roll Call Vote Required.

Finance-DDG



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2022----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2021-2486, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2022 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND TO

TRANSFER $260,000 OF ENGINEERING CAPITAL FUNDS TO THE
STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2022 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 16, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer is requesting to amend the DPW Building Expansion
Design Project, Capital Improvement Fund budget to decrease by $260,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer is requesting to amend the Minnesota Avenue Project,
Street Improvement Fund budget to increase by $260,000.00, which was approved by the Common
Council on October 18, 2022; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

$260,000.00Decrease

That the 2022 Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund and the Street
Improvement Fund be amended as follows:

Appropriation IExpenditure
DPW Build Expansion Design
Capital Improvement Fund 46-0331-5216.9692

Section 1

Appropriation IExpenditure
Minnesota Avenue
Street Improvement Fund 47-0331-5823.3050

Increase $260,000.00

Section 2 Pursuant to §65.90(5)(a), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to post a notice of
this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this Ordinance on the
City's website.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this 18th day of October, 2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Confirmation ofthe Appointment ofGary
Meerschaert as Director ofInspection Services

The Common Council may enter closed session
pursuant to Wis. Stats. $19.85(1)(c) and (f), to

consider employment, promotion, compensation,
or performance evaluation data ofa public employee
over which the Common Council has jurisdiction or
exercises responsibility and to consider financial,
social or personal histories of specific persons
which, if discussed in public, would be likely to

have a substantial adverse effect upon the
reputation ofany person referred to in such histories

and may re-enter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein

as it deems appropriate

MEETING
DATE

10/18/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.14.

Mayor Steve Olson and Director of Administration Peggy Steeno request confirmation of Gary Meerschaert as
the City of Franklin Director of Inspection Services pending successful completion of the background check,
which is underway, and a pre-employment drug screen, which will take place after successful completion of
the background check.

Along with the typical benefits granted to employees hired by the City, the starting salary will be $102,000. In
addition to the standard benefits, a fifth personal day, that is normally acquired after 5 years of employment,
was requested to be given upon start of employment. It is also requested that employee be allowed to utilize
vacation, if desired, in advance of 6 months of employment as stated in the Employee Handbook.

Mr. Meerschaert' s resume, as well as the job description for this position, is attached for review.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats. §19.85(1)(c) and (f), to consider
employment, promotion, compensation, or performance evaluation data of a public employee over which the
Common Council has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility and to consider financial, social or personal
histories of specific persons which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect
upon the reputation of any person referred to in such histories and may re-enter open session at the same
place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

Motion to confirm the appointment of Gary Meerschaert as the Director of Inspection Services for the City of
Franklin pending successful completion of a background check and pre-employment drug screen, including
the fifth personal day upon start of employment and ability to utilize vacation in advance of 6 months of
employment.

DOA-PAS



Gary Meerschaert
Milwaukee, Wisconsin, United States

~ gary meerschaert@yahoo com

(m l1nked1n com/in/gary-meerschaert-a705651

Summary
Broad experience base of over 20 years mn military, construction and manufacturing venues A team player with
expertise in management of personnel and resources to complete projects from conception to final reahzat1on
on time and within budgetary requirements. Strengths focusing in building and manufacturing systems for
applications in industrial and medical device manufacturing.

Specialties: Professional Designer of Engineenng Systems
Wis. Luc. # 2010-007
Wisconsin Certifications #255392
Master Electrician Certification
Commercial Building Inspector Certification
FIre Detection, Prevention & Suppression Inspector License
Commercial Electncal Inspector Cert ification
UDC Electrical Inspector Certification
UDC Plumbing Inspector Cert1ficat1on
UDC HVAC Inspector Certification
UDC Construction Inspector Cet1ficat1on
Sol Erosion Inspector Certification

Experience

11111 Building Inspector
City of St. Francis
Dec 2019 - Present (1 year 9 months +)
A sense of Community led to incorporation for St. Francis in 1951. Working secretly to avoid counter
pet1t1oning by Milwaukee for annexation, Fred J. Schoendorf and Henry RaJchel, Town of Lake
Treasurer and Clerk respectively, and other Interested cttzens got enough petitions on incorporation
papers to put the issue before the voters On July 24th, 1951 a total of 1,069 people voted to
incorporate. The City was chartered in Madison the next Day ..

• Building Official - Waukesha Group
SAFEbuilt
Dec 2018 - Dec 2019 (1 year 1 month)

Facilities Engineer
lmmucor, Inc.
Nov 2017 - Dec 2018 (1 year 2 months)

Facilities Manager
lmmucor, Inc.

Gary Meerschaert - page 1



Oct 2017 -Nov 2018 (1 year 2 months)

Electrical Inspector
City of Greenfield
Sep 2013 - Nov 2017 (4 years 3 months)
Responsible for inspecting the installation of electrical systems and equipment to detect faulty wInng
and ensure they comply with national and state electrical codes and standards. V1s1ts construction sites
and residences, performs inspection, and makes recommendations for improvement

Part Time - Electrical Inspector
City of Kenosha
Feb 2013 - Sep 2013 (8 months)
Responsible for inspecting the installation of electrical systems and equipment to detect faulty wmng
and ensure they comply with electrical codes and standards. V1s1ts construction sites and residences,
performs inspection, and makes recommendations for improvement

• Maintenance Supervisor
BAPTISTAS BAKERY
2011-2013(3years)
BaptIstas Bakery produces and markets baked snack products. The company's products include potato
based crisps, mult1grain chips, vegetable chips, and wheat based snacks Add1t1onally, 1t provides
packaging products that include pillow and bulk packs, bulk totes, quad seal bags, and zipper re
closeable pouches

Responsible for the effective operations of the maintenance department along wth ensuring efficient of
resources mn reducing mechanical and electncal downtime and maintaining the building and facilities.

Also responsible for developing, supporting and coaching maintenance staff.
Ensure Maintenance Department meets and maintains compliance requirements for audits, such as
HACCP, N FPA, and SQF. Direct and organize the maintenance department ensuring efficient use
of resources reducing mechanical and electrical downtime while properly mamntamnmng building and
facilities.Promote and mamntain good relations wth the hourly maintenance and production employees
through good communications, meetings, reconciliation of personnel issues, holding effective Team
Meetings and being proactive in resolving Issues.Administer far and consistent polices, practices and
d1sc1phne where required in conJunct1on with Plant Manager and Human Resources.

t Master Electrician
Mondi Group
2011- 2011 (1 year)
A producer of silicone-coated release liners for pressure-sensitive products. The range of products
includes a variety of one and two-side silicone-coated papers, one and two poly-coated Kraft, and
silicone-coated films.
Master Electric1an
Install and repair electrical systems, apparatus, electrical and electronic components of machinery and
equipment following codes, manuals, schematics, blueprints and other spec1ficat1ons
Install power supply wnng and conduit for newly installed equipment and machines.

Gary Meerschaert - page 2



ill

Diagnose malfunctioning apparatus such as transformers, motors and vent1lat1on equipment using test
equipment.
Diagnose and repair or replace faulty electronic components such as printed circuit boards on plant
machinery, vent1lat1on and power generating equipment.
Replace faulty electrical and mechanical devices of machines using hand and or power tools.
Monitored and supervised outside contracting personnel for installation of equipment and systems
meeting spec1ficat1ons and scheduling.

Commercial Electrical Inspector
INDEPENDANT INSPECTIONS LIMITED
Jan 2006 - 2011 (6 years)
Conduct residential and commercial electncal installations inspections to ensure compliance with
National and State of Wisconsin Electrical Codes

Maintenance Supervisor
MERZ AESTHETICS
2004 - 2010 (7 years)
A leading manufacturer of medical aesthetic products including volum1zmg fillers and injectable
aesthetics treatments. Responsible for the operation of maintenance act1vItIes for buildings, clean room
environmental and production equipment of four medical device manufacturing facilities. Proficiency in
MS Office, Excel, PowerPomnt, Auto Cad, Solid Works, Proteus IV Maintenance Software and lvu Carner
Control System.
Managed the maintenance of four facilities equipment and custodal duties including scheduling,
assignment of duties, and supervIsIon of between 7 and 15 direct reports to the Maintenance
Department. Analyzed data, prepared reports, and made recommendations for improving maintenance
and facility operations or solving related problems which shortened regulatory downtime by 2 days
Initiated and carred out maintenance and facilities projects that improved appearance, efficiency or
reduced operating costs such as energy efficient lighting replacement resulting mn a lighting cost savings
of nearly 50 percent. Contacted and sohc1ted bidding for construction, fabrication and design projects
along with supervising, project managing and coordinating tasks with outside vendors as needed.
Ensured all maintenance actIvItIes were performed following FDA, OSHA, Environmental and company
regulat1ons/standards/gu1delines. Drafted and executed mstallat1on/operat1onal qualification protocols
for new equipment and systems in FDA regulated processes. Identified and managed installation of
lvu Carner environmental control systems software to monitor clean room spaces in add1t1on to three
remote facilities ensuring notification of out of specification conditions shortening response time by 8
hours. Designed and managed the installation of new High Vacuum Steam Sterilizer in add1t1on to all
electrical and mechanical systems for two new clean room expansions m response to business growth.

Electrical Foreman I Project Manager
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 430
1986 - 2003 (18 years)
Installation of low, medium and high voltage electrical systems for residential, commercial and industrial
busmesses Expenenced mn moving, set-up and trouble-shooting of industrial equipment

Education
=~·· Gateway Technical College

Gary Meerschaert - page 3



Associate, Business Management
2008 - 2011

e Journeyman Electrician, NJATC Electrical Apprenticeship
Commerce Master's Certification, Business Management; Business Management

Skills
Electrical Engineering • Supervisory Skulls • Project Management • Manufacturng • Electncrty •
Teamwork • HVAC • Facilities Management • Electnc1ans • Troubleshooting

Honors & Awards
Pinnacle Award
Sep 2018
FY 2018 Pinnacle Award for Safety

Gary Meerschaert - page 4



Job Title:

Department:

Reports To:

Appointing
Authority:

Salary Level:

FLSA Status:

Prepared By:

Prepared Date:

Approved By:

Approved Date:

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Job Description

Director of Inspection Services

Inspection Services

Director of Administration

Mayor

Salary Range I 0

Exempt

Mark Luberda, Director of Administration and Dana
Zahn, Human Resources Coordinator

March 2019

Summary:
Supervise, administer, and perform the enforcement of the codes of the City of Franklin
and the State of Wisconsin, and administer and enforce the provisions of those sections of
the Municipal Code under the department's jurisdiction.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities:
Review plans and specification for compliance with local and state building codes.

Review surveys and site plans for compliance with the provisions of the zoning code.

Issue building, heating, sign, and other departmental permits.

Conduct on-site building inspections, including footing, foundation, rough carpentry,
insulation, occupancy, soil erosion, and housing inspections.

Assign work to the Inspection Services staff including but not limited to the building
inspectors, plumbing, and electrical inspectors and supervise their work.

Meet with contractors, owners, and the general public to answer questions regarding
building, housing, signs, and soil erosion.

Review and meet with contractors, architects, and developers in the preliminary stages of
design to insure the compliance with building codes.



Attend, as Ex Officio member, Board of Zoning and Building Appeals meetings.

Attend, as Ex Officio member, the Architectural Board meetings.

Coordinate inspections and provide reports to the license committee on all liquor sale
operations, all tavern and other licensed facilities prior to the issuance of a municipal
license, as required.

Coordinate inspections and report to the license committee on the installation of all
amusement rides.

Receive, delegate or perform, and coordinate the investigation and resolution of
complaints.

Prepare and issue orders and citations in order to obtain compliance with Municipal
standards.

Act as a witness in court cases to obtain compliance with Municipal codes.

Coordinate inspections with the Fire Department, building inspectors, plumbing, and
electrical inspectors.

Prepare and administer budgets for the Inspection Services Department, under the
direction of the Director of Administration.

Review and recommend changes to the building, plumbing, electrical, and sign codes

Prepare specifications and act as coordinator of municipal construction and remodeling
projects.

Prepare specifications, bids, and purchase equipment for the Inspection Services
Department.

Review and recommend revisions of codes used within the jurisdiction of the Inspection
Services Department.

Attend meetings as required by the Mayor and Common Council. This may include
meetings outside of normal business hours

Peripheral Duties:
Serve as representative of the city to the Building Inspector's Association of Southeastern
Wisconsin and the WI Building Inspector's Association

Minimum Qualifications:
Education and Experience:
Graduation from a college or university with a Bachelor's degree, five (5) years building
inspection experience, or any equivalent combination of education and experience.

Language Skills:
Ability to read, analyze, and interpret common scientific and technical journals, financial
reports, and legal documents. Ability to respond to common inquiries or complaints from
customers, regulatory agencies, or members of the business community. Ability to write
speeches and articles for publication that conform to prescribed style and format. Ability
to effectively present information to top management, public groups, and/or boards of
directors.



Mathematical Skills:
Ability to work with mathematical concepts such as probability and statistical inference,
and fundamentals of plane and solid geometry and trigonometry. Ability to apply
concepts such as fractions, percentages, ratios, and proportions to practical situations.

Reasoning Ability:
Ability to define problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions.
Ability to interpret an extensive variety of technical instructions in mathematical or
diagram form and deal with several abstract and concrete variables.

Necessary Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Thorough knowledge of building codes and construction standards and practices.

Thorough knowledge of zoning codes and their enforcement.

Thorough knowledge of building materials and their applications.

Working knowledge of structural engineering and the ability to review calculations and
plans for compliance with code standards.

Skill in the operation of listed tools and equipment.

Ability to present and communicate ideas and concepts with the public, verbally and in
writing, including the ability to present information to the Common Council and various
other Boards and Commissions.

Ability to plan, delegate, and supervise personnel in a manner which will gain respect.

Ability to maintain effective work relationships with other departments, appointed
officials, elected officials, and the public.

Ability to formulate, implement, and administer policies and procedures affecting the
Inspection Services Department.

Ability to make independent judgments which have significant impacts on the
organization.

Supervision Exercised:
Exercises supervision over Inspection Services Department personnel. Carries out
supervisory responsibilities in accordance with the organization's pohc1es and applicable laws

Responsibilities mclude interviewing and tramning employees; planning, assigning, and directing
work; appraising performance, rewarding and disciplining employees; addressing complamts and
resolving problems.

Responsibility for Public Contact:
Daily contact requiring courtesy, discretion, and sound judgment.

Licensing and Certification:
State of Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services (DSPS) Certifications
in the categories of commercial buildings, Uniform Dwelling Code Categories of
construction, and HVAC; Plumbing and Electrical preferred.

Valid Driver's License.



Tools and Equipment Used:
Personal computer, copy machine, fax machine, calculator, hand tools, automobile, radio
and telephone.

Software:
The person shall have the ability to use products in the Microsoft Office suite, Crystal
Reports, Govern Software, GIS, and software provided by Government agencies, product
listing, approval and evaluation services (OSHA, UL, FM, ICC Evaluation Services).

Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

Hand-eye coordination is necessary to operate computers and various pieces of office
equipment. While performing the duties of this job, the employee is occasionally required
to stand; walk; use hands and fingers to handle, feel or operate objects, tools, or controls;
and reach with hands and arms. The employee is occasionally required to sit, climb,
balance, stoop, kneel, crouch, crawl, talk and hear.

The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 10 pounds. Specific vision
abilities required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral
vision, depth perception, and the ability to adjust focus.

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee frequently works in outside weather
conditions and occasionally in an office environment. The employee occasionally works
near moving mechanical parts, in high, precarious places and is occasionally exposed to
wet and/or humid conditions, or airborne particles.

The noise level in the work environment is usually quiet in the office, and moderate to
loud in the field.

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that
may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them
from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer
and employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and
requirements of the job change.



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

She
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Confirmation of the Appointment ofKaren
Kastenson as Director of Clerk Services

The Common Council may enter closed session
pursuant to Wis. Stats. 19.85(1)(c) and (f), to

consider employment, promotion, compensation,
or performance evaluation data of a public employee
over which the Common Council has jurisdiction or
exercises responsibility and to consider financial,

social or personal histories of specific persons
which, ifdiscussed in public, would be likely to

have a substantial adverse effect upon the
reputation ofany person referred to in such histories

and may re-enter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein

as it deems appropriate

MEETING
DATE

10/18/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.15.

Mayor Olson requests confirmation of Karen Kastenson as the Caty of Franklin Director of Clerk Services
pendmg successful completion of the background check, which 1s underway, and a pre-employment drug
screen, whICh will take place after successful completion of the background check.

The startmg salary will be $90,500, along with all of the typical standard benefits granted to employees hured
by the City. It is also requested that employee be allowed to utilize vacation, 1f desired, in advance of 6
months of employment as stated in the Employee Handbook.

Ms. Kastenson's resume, as well as the job description for thus post1on, 1s attached for review.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to WIs. Stats. 19.85(1)(c) and (f), to consider
employment, promotion, compensation, or performance evaluation data of a public employee over which the
Common Council has jursdiction or exercises responsiblty and to consider financal, soc1al or personal
histores of specific persons which, 1f discussed mn public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect
upon the reputation of any person referred to in such histories and may re-enter open session at the same
place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as 1t deems appropnate.

Moton to confrm the appointment of Karen Kastenson as the D1rector of Clerk Services for the City of
Franklm pending successful completion of a background check and pre-employment drug screen.

DOA-PAS



KAREN KASTENSON 

------------ PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY------------

I am a self-motivated leader that works well with others and is willing and able to take on any task. I am outgoing and detail

oriented, I am proficient at building and maintaining professional relationships. I have an extensive background in accounting 

and human resources in the government sector, as well as working in the Clerk's and Treasurer's offices. 

CVMIC 

Certificate of Perfecting Leadership: February 2022 

Certificate of Supervision: November 2018 

UW Parkside - Kenosha, WI 

EDUCATION 

Bachelor of Science: Business Administration/ Accounting, 1995 

-------------- WORK HISTORY--------------

City Clerk/Comptroller, 04/2019 to Current 

City of South Milwaukee - South Milwaukee, WI 

• Plans, organizes, directs and administers the activities of the Office of the City Clerk

• Serves as official custodian of city records; responds to open records requests, certifies and records official legal

documents, ordinances tax roll, assessment roll, resolutions, code book and other permanent records

• Serves as Clerk to the Common Council and attends all regular and special meetings and records all proceedings of

the Common Council, and directs preparation agendas, minutes, meeting notices and publications

• Serves as the Secretary for the Board of Review

• Supervises payroll and accounts payable staff and administration of issuance of W-2 and I 099 tax forms and

corresponding reports

• Supervises insurance coordinator and administration of health, dental, life, general liability, and workers'

compensation insurance policies for all city departments and employees

• Supervises and oversees the Building and Grounds Maintenance Supervisor and the upkeep of the buildings and

grounds and maintenance of equipment

• Supervises the communication of the City through the website, social media and newsletter

• Oversees technology updates including building security system, switchboard and phones, AV equipment and acts as

the liaison between the City and the contracted IT professionals

• Administers and maintains detailed account of financial transactions and prepares and posts journal entries

• Establishes and maintains internal control procedures and assures accounting standards and procedures are

maintained

• Prepares monthly financial reports and establishes and maintains general ledger accounts and activities

• Compiles information and prepares the annual budget

• Corresponds with auditors and prepares information for annual audit

• Files required State and Federal financial reports, certifies and prepares the Statement of Assessment and Statement

of Taxes

• Plans and oversees all election activities

• Oversees administration of various license applications and issuance

• Administers oaths of office



Deputy Comptroller/Payroll Coordinator, 06/2014 to 05/2019
City of Oak Creek Oak Creek, WI

• Administers, coordinates and supervises the payroll and time and attendance systems
• Supervises one payroll employee
• General ledger, payroll, accounts payable and accounts receivable
• Acts as Chief Financial Officer/Comptroller in the absence of the Finance Director/Comptroller
• Journal Entries and account reconciliations
• Annual budget
• State and federal tax filings and reports, quarterly and annually
• Financial reports, annual financial statements, finance committee reports
• Assists HR with employee benefits and OPEB reporting
• Reconciles benefit deductions
• Performs analysis for bargaining negotiations and contracts

Payroll and Accounts Payable Coordinator, 11/2012 to 06/2014
Andis Company - Sturtevant, WI

• Payroll, payment of withholdings and tax payments, all state and federal required tax filings and reports, W2s
• Payroll and benefits journal entnes
• Accounts payable, W2s and 1099s
• Monthly sales tax returns

Deputy Clerk-Treasurer, 05/2008 to 11/2012
Town ofYorkville-Union Grove, WI

• Budget preparation
• Collected personal property and real estate taxes
• Processed dog licenses
• Accounts payable, accounts receivable, general ledger
• Collected Mobile Home Taxes
• Administered employee benefits and prepared all medical insurance reports
• Yearly retirements benefits reports
• Payroll, W2s, quarterly unemployment reports, Federal 941 reports
• Received and paid accounts payable invoices
• Yearly financial audit and Workers' Compensation audit

Treasurer/Deputy Clerk/Accountant, 11/2003 to 09/2009
Town ofRaymond-Franksville, WI

• Budget preparation
• Accounts payable and 1099s
• Accounts receivable and processed deposits
• Collected personal property and real estate taxes
• Deposited funds in the Town bank account and with the LGIP
• Processed dog licenses
• Supervised six tax collection employees
• Yearly retirement benefits report
• Yearly Workers' Compensation audit
• Payroll, W2s, quarterly unemployment reports and Federal 941 reports
• Involved in collective bargaining agreement with the Department of Public Works



Accountant/Deputy Clerk/Deputy Treasurer, 03/2001 to 11/2003
Village of Sturtevant - Sturtevant, WI

• Accounts payable, accounts receivable, payroll and general ledger
• Collected personal property and real estate taxes
• Processed dog licenses
• Budget preparation
• Annual Financial audit
• Workers' Compensation audit
• Assisted with benefits administration
• State and Federal quarterly and annual reports processmg

--------------- SKILLS---------------
• Thorough knowledge of compensation and benefits
• Budget development
• Financial reporting
• Well versed in governmental policies, procedures and statutes
• Excellent interpersonal skills
• Attention to detail
• Extremely organized



Job Title:

Department

Reports To:

Salary Level:

FLSA Status:

Prepared by:

Prepared Date:

Approved by:

Approved Date:

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Job Description

Director of Clerk Services

City Clerk

Mayor

Salary Grade XI

Exempt

Dana Zahn, Human Resources Manager

June 20, 2022

Common Council

June 21, 2022

Summary:
Perform a variety of specialized and complex administrative duties as required by Wisconsin
Statutes and as directed by the Mayor and Common Council by performing the following duties:

Essential Duties and Responsibilities:
Perform duties of City Clerk pursuant to §62.09( 11 ), Stats.

Staff Support for Common Council, Official Boards and Committees:
Attend meetings (some of which may be beyond normal business hours) and provide staff support
for the Committee of the Whole, Common Council, License Committee, Fair Commission, Board of
Canvassers, Board of Review and other boards, commissions and committees as required and
provide an accurate recording of the proceedings, and follow through with actions taken at such
meetings; supervise the timely preparation and distribution of meeting agendas, minutes and other
accompanying information for boards, commissions and committees; publish meeting minutes,
official notices of public hearings and other information as required by law; assist in the preparation
of resolutions and ordinances and codification/dissemination of the same; act as filing officer for
financial interest statements and other ethics related matters; and oversee publication for contract
bids for projects and bidder prequalification recordkeeping.

Official Records:
Serve as official custodian of all City records, public documents and the corporate seal of the City.
Certify, attest and record legal documents; enter enacted ordinances and resolutions into the
permanent record of the City; oversee the records and retention management of the official
documents of the City; certify tax roll, assessment roll and other documents; maintain all papers and
records open to inspection during normal work hours; accept claims for damages, lawsuits and other
legal papers served on the City; administer oaths of office to elected and appointed officials and
personnel; notarize documents for the City and the general public.



Elections:
Perform the duties required by Wisconsin Statutes relating to elections including overseeing the
election process; serve as Filing Officer for the City; record/update voter registration information;
educate the local candidates and the electorate on elections and procedures; arrange for polling
places and recruit, train and supervise inspectors of election; prepare and distribute ballots,
including absentee ballots and other supplies required for the conduct of elections; proper
maintenance and programming of electronic voting equipment; serve on the Board of Canvassers
and prepare official Board of Canvass statement certifying election results; prepare reports and
recommendations for federal and state agencies, including census, as required.

Licenses:
Supervise perm1ttmg and licensing for intoxicating liquor, fermented beverages, food
establishments, transient merchants, cigarette, soda, coin-operated machines, special events, and
other licenses regulated by Wisconsin Statutes and Franklin Municipal Code. Regularly monitor
fees, applicability of licenses and code requirements.

Assist the Fair Commission to oversee, establish and recommend rules and regulations governing
St. Martins Fair and applicable permitting. Coordinate the operation and requirements for
conducting the Fair.

Board of Review:
Serve as Secretary to the Board of Review which includes scheduling hearings, preparing and
publishing notices, preparing documentation for Board members, recording and preserving records
of all actions taken by the Board, notifying State of compliance with requirements of the
proceedings, and preparation of notices of determination for property owners.

Maintain current knowledge of municipal government functions, federal laws, applicable statutes,
rules and regulations or sources of information.

Carry out Mayoral and Common Council directives and prepare necessary correspondence. Provide
secretarial and research support to the Mayor and Common Council.

Develop and administer department policies and procedures.

Coordinate operation of Weights and Measures Program with the State of Wisconsin.

Direct the Deputy City Clerk in monitoring hotel/motel tax reporting and complaint handling.

Supervise Clerk's Office telephone usage and information direction to the public and other
departments. Supervise processing of incoming and outgoing mail for departments of the City, and
supervise coordination of the City's information directory.

Oversee noxious weed complaint and processing operation.

Prepare and maintain budgets assigned to the Director of Clerk Services including the City Clerk,
Elections, Sealer of Weights & Measure, St. Martins Fair, Weed Control and the Mayor/Common
Council.



May be required to work additional hours to assist with election and licensing duties, or attend
meetings as directed by the Mayor.

Other duties as assigned by the Mayor.

Peripheral duties:
Operate a vehicle to perform errands.

Ability to operate audio/visual equipment.

Keep well informed and proficient in computer skills and applications.

Supervisory Responsibilities:
Supervision of City Clerk employees, secretary, Weed Commissioner, and Inspectors of Election.

Qualifications:
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty
satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or
ability required. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities
to perform the essential functions.

Education and/or Experience:
Bachelors degree in Business Administration or related field, five years municipal
administrative/supervisory experience, or any combination of education and experience that
provides equivalent knowledge, skills and abilities. Certification from the International Institute of
Municipal Clerks is highly desired.

Language/Communication Skills:
Skill in diplomacy and interpersonal communications. Ability to read, analyze and interpret
complex documents. Ability to write correspondence and other documents. Ability to effectively
present information and respond to the most sensitive inquiries or complaints.

Mathematical Skills:
Ability to work with mathematical concepts such as probability and statistical inference, and
fundamentals of geometry. Ability to apply concepts such as fractions, percentages, ratios and
proportions to practical situations.

Reasoning Ability:
Ability to use functional reasoning in performing influence functions such as supervusmng,
managing, leading, teaching, directing and controlling. Ability to exercise the judgment,
decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the direction, control and planning of an
entire program or multiple programs.

Computer Skills:
To perform this job successfully, an individual must become knowledgeable in spreadsheet
software; word processing software; management of election software; and any other software
needed to do the job duties listed.



Certificates, Licenses and Registrations:
Valid Wisconsin Drivers License.

Certification from the International Institute of Municipal Clerks is highly desirable.

Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to sit; use hands to
finger, handle or feel, and talk and hear. The employee is frequently required to reach with hands
and arms. The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 25 pounds. Specific vision
abilities required by this job include close vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception
and ability to adjust focus.

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate.

Other Qualifications:
Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as tax rolls, special assessment
rolls, budgets, invoices, general ledger, audits, meeting agenda and minutes, legal notices,
ordinances, resolutions, statement of taxes/assessments, spreadsheets, contracts, leases, agreements,
plats, maps, municipal codes, State statutes, municipal officials' handbook, election manual,
policies, procedures, guidelines and non-routine correspondence.

Evaluate work performance of subordinates; prepare performance evaluations; coordinate the
evaluation of all employees within the department. Has the authority to effectively recommend
hiring, promotion, transfer, discipline or discharge of employees.

Miscellaneous:
The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be
performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if
the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and requirements
of the job change.



APPROVAL

Sb>
REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

FF&E, LLC v. City ofFranklin Board ofReview,
Milwaukee County Circuit Court Case No. 20-CV
6955, and Corresponding 2022 Assessment. The

Common Council may enter closed session pursuant
toWis. Stat. $ 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel
for the Common Council who is rendering advice
concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with
respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate

MEETING
DATE

10/18/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.16.

The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19 .85(1 )(g), to confer
with legal counsel for the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be
adopted by the body with respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open session at the
same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel
for the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the
body with respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

DOA-PAS / Legal Services Dept. -JW



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Sam's Real Estate Business Trust v. City ofFranklin,
Milwaukee County Circuit Court Case No. 21-CV
5567, and Corresponding 2022 Assessment. The

Common Council may enter closed session pursuant
to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(g), to confer with legal counsel
for the Common Council who is rendering advice

concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with
respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate

MEETING
DATE

10/18/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.17.

The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer
with legal counsel for the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be
adopted by the body with respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open session at the
same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel
for the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the
body with respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

DOA - PAS / Legal Services Dept. -JW



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

S8
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust v. City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County Circuit Court Case No.
21-CV-5568, and Corresponding 2022 Assessment.
The Common Council may enter closed session
pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 19.85(1)g), to confer with
legal counsel for the Common Council who is

rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted
by the body with respect to the subject litigation,
and to reenter open session at the same place

thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein
as it deems appropriate

MEETING
DATE

10/18/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.18.

The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer
with legal counsel for the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be
adopted by the body with respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open session at the
same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel
for the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the
body with respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

DOA -PAS/ Legal Services Dept. -JW



BLANK PAGE



PPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Common Council Consideration of Code of Conduct
Complaints. The Common Council may enter closed
session pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 19.85(1)(f) considering
financial, medical, social, or personal histories or
disciplinary data of specific persons, preliminary
consideration of specific personnel problems or the
investigation ofcharges against specific persons
except where par. (b) applies which, if discussed in
public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse
effect upon the reputation ofany person referred to in
such histories or data, or involved in such problems or
investigations, and to reenter open session at the same

place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
therein as it deems appropriate.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

MEETING
DATE

10/18/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.19.

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(f) considering financial, medical,
social, or personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of
specific personnel problems or the investigation of charges against specific persons except where par.
(b) applies which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the
reputation of any person referred to in such histories or data, or involved in such problems or
investigations, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

DOA-PS



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

$hr COUNCIL ACTION 10/18/2022

LICENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES ITEM NUMBER

PERMITS H.

See attached listing from meeting of October 18, 2022.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

As recommended by the License Committee.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



Franklin
f

W 4 S CO N S 1 N

414-425-7500
License Committee

Agenda*
Franklin City Hall Health Wing

9229 W. Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI

October 18, 2022 - 5:15 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
2. I Aoolicant Interviews & Decisions

License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Reserve Class B DBA Staybridge Suites Milwaukee Airport South
Combination, Dadaswami Hospitality LLCEntertainment &
Amusement Vcki Jesson, Agent
2022-2023 9575 S 27% St
5:20 p.m.

Extraordinary Race Day Events - Elf Run/Winter Run series
Entertainment & Special Person in Charge: Max NollEvent

5:25 p.m. Location: Whitnall Park to South of West College Ave
Date of Event: Sunday, November 20, 2022

Extraordinary Wheel & Sprocket - Fat Bike Event
Entertainment & Special Person in Charge: Amela KegelEvent

5:30 p.m. Locaton: 7044 S Ballpark Dr and Kegel/Alpha Trail
Date of Event: Frday, November 19, 2022

Extraordinary Rock Sports Complex - APFC MMA Midwest Indoor
Entertainment & Special InvitationalEvent

Person in Charge: Paul Clmoch5:35 p.m.
Location: 7095 S Ballpark Dr - MOSH Performance Center
Date of Event: Friday, November 18, 2022

Operator Nicla, Kaylee R
2022-2023 Luxe Golf/Dog Haus/The BricksNew

Operator Pantoja, Isabella L
2022-2023 Hideaway Pub & EateryNew

Operator Patel, Amrish H
2022-2023 Discount Cigarettes & LiquorNew

Operator Salas, Nicole W
2022-2023 Bowery Bar & GnllNew



License ommuttee Agenda
Health Wing
October 18, 2022

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Operator Singh, Agyapal
2022-2023 Discount Cigarettes & LiquorNew

Operator Walker, Adaira D
2022-2023 On the BorderNew

Operator Johnson, Hadi L M
2022-2023 Swiss Street Pub & GnllNew

Operator Zoromskis, Eric L
2022-2023 Swiss Street Pub & GrillNew

3. Fireworks Display Fireworks Display Process for License Committee
Process Consideration and Discussion for Recommendation to

the Common Council (Referred from 9/20/2022 &
10/4/2022 Common Council Meeting)

4. License Procedure Review and Recommendation Regarding Current
Review Alcohol Beverage Licenses Enforcement Policy

Guidelines and License Committee Administrative Rules
and Procedures (Referred from 10/4/2022 Common
Council Meetina)

5. Alcohol License Statistics on Existing Alcohol Beverage Licenses in the
Statistics City of Franklin and Statistics on Quota ofAvailable

Licenses in Relation Thereto.

6. Adiournment

Time
Notice Is gven that a majority of the Common Council may attend thus mectmng to gather mnformation about an agenda 1tem over which they have
decis1on-making responsibility Thus may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even

though the Common Council wll not take formal action at thus meeting

Page 2 of2



BLANK PAGE



FRANKLIN FIRE DEPARTMENT
Permit Application

Permit Type Requested:

Bon Fire $50.00 per event

Application Date.

Fireworks $50.00 per event

*Fees per City of Franklin Fire Code 133.17
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••
Description of Event:

Date of Event:-------------------

Address of property that permit is being requested for:

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••
Property Owner's Name: _

Address: -------------------------

Phone Number: -----------------------

Occupant's Name if different from owner: _

Address: -------------------------

Phone Number: -----------------------

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••
The applicant agrees to comply with all applicable codes, statues and ordinances and with the conditions of
the permit if issued, and understands that the issuance of a permit creates no legal liability, expressed or
implied, on the Department or municipality; and certifies that the above information is accurate.

Applicant's Signature: _ Date: -----------

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

Fee Amount: ----------
Fees Paid: -----------

Permit Issued by: _

Date:-----------------

All questions or requests for inspections shall be made to the
Franklin Fire Department

8901 W. Drexel Avenue, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132-9725 (414) 425-1420 / Fax (414) 425-7067



pm
Franklin

WISCONSIN

August 2, 2021

Scot Johnson, Director or Events
ROC Ventures, LLC
7044 S. Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: franklin field (Milkmen) - Fireworks.
Notice of Violation regarding hours of operation.

Dear Mr. Johnson:

City ofFranklin
Department of City Development

Please be advised, it has come to the attention of the City of Franklin that on Friday, July 30, 2021,
the fireworks show lasted until 11: 12 p.m. based on recordings of the west sound monitor. fireworks
shows must end by 11 :00 p.m. in accordance with the Extraordinary Event permit No. EE2021-002
(attached). Therefore, you are in violation of your Extraordinary Event permit and hereby notified
that future fireworks shows must encl by 11 :00 p.m. Failure to comply with this time restriction may
result in revoking your Extraordinary Event permit.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

"Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP
Principal Planner

cc: Brian Sajdak, Assistant City Attorney
Aid. Daniel Mayer
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk



LICENSE
City of Franklin

EXTRAORDINARY
EE2021-002

STATE OF WISCONSIN
CITY OF FRANKLIN

EVENT
$100.00

Whereas, BALLPARK COMMONS (MILKMEN)-FIREWORKS, 7044 S BALLPARK DR,
ScoT JOHNSON has paid one hundred dollars to the Treasurer of the City of
Franklin, as required by the resolutions and ordinances of the City and has
complied with all the requirements necessary for obtaining this License.
Now therefore, by order of the Common Council and by virtue hereof, the said
BALLPARK COMMONS (MILKMEN)-FIREWORKS, SCOT JOHNSON is hereby licensed
and authorized to hold an extraordinary event in the City of Franklin on May
29, June 19", June 26", August 14%» August 289, 2021 at
approximately 9pm; and July 16" and July 30", 2021 at
approximately 9:30pm subject to all the conditions and provisions of said
resolutions and ordinances.
Special Instructions: In compliance with NFPA 1123 Fire Code, and
individual applications for each event submitted to the Fire Department and
provided Staff concerns are satisfied with the exception of games exceeding
nine innings in which 11:00 p.m. is the end time for fireworks and that the Oak
Leaf Trail is temporarily closed with barricades and signage indicating fireworks.

Given under my hand and the corporate seal of
the City of Franklin this 5" day of April, 2021

/s/ Stephen R Olson
Mayor, City of Franklin

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk



-
City of Franklin

9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WI 53132-9728
TELEPHONE: 414-425-7500 FAX: 414-425-6428

CITY CLERK OFFICE

EXTRAORDINARY ENTERTAINMENT & SPECIAL EVENT
APPLICATION

Application must be received a minimum of 30 working days prior to event.
Event Location (address and full description) Ballpark Commons - Franklin Field

7e, ,/Ia«,{ D, Fraklin,L,I 53132
Owner of propertylliChae!Immerman
Purpose of Event F_ir_ew_o_r_k_s_d_is.,_p_la.,_y_im_m_ed_i_at_e....,,ly_f_o_llo_w_in_,g"--se_le_c_t_M_i_lw_a_u_ke'--e_M_ilk_m_e'--n_g,,_a_m_e_s _

Date(s) and Time(s) Starting at approximately 9p on 5/29, 6/19, 6/26, 8/14, and 8/28. And starting at approximately

9:30p on 7/16 and 7/30. Each show will run roughly_10 minutes *Start times are approximate based on avg length of game.

Setup date(s)/time(s)_1Oaoneven!dates
Breakdown date(s)/time(s) Promptly after show conclusion

Maximum number attending per day_Stadiumattendanceonly
Maximum number of tickets to be sold (if any) per dayStadiumattendanceon/
Applicant Ballpark Commons - Franklin Field - Scot Johnson

(If corporation, attach certified copy of Articles of Incorporation together with the name, age,
residence and mailing address of each person holding more than 10% of the stock.)

/{ el 3
Address (including City/State/Zip) 736S. Ballpark Dr. Franklin WI 53132

Home phone Cell_...,__~----------------

E-mail Business phone_(A1A)SO-o17
Fax _ Business E-Mail scotj@rocventures.org

1. Provide plans to limit the maximum number of people permitted to assemble.

2. Provide plans for fencing the location of the special event and the gates contained in such fence. A detailed
drawing must be submitted as part of this application.

3. Provide plans for supplying potable water, including the source, amount available and location of outlets.

4. Provide plans for providing toilet and lavatory facilities, including the source, number, location, type and
means of disposing of waste.

5. Provide plans for holding, collecting & disposal of solid waste material

6. Provide plans, if any, to illuminate the location, including sources and amounts of power and location of
lamps.



1. Provide plans to limit the maximum number of people permitted to assemble.
a. This event is in conjunction with a ticketed baseball game at Franklin Field. No tickets will

be sold separately for this event.
2. Provide plans for fencing the location of the special event and the gates contained in such fence.

A detailed drawing must be submitted as part of this application.
a. See Attached Map to show fallout/launch location.

3. Provide plans for supplying potable water, including the source, amount available and location of
outlets.

a. Existing stadium infrastructure will be used.
4. Provide plans for providing toilet and lavatory facilities, including the source, number, location,
type and means of disposing of water.

a. Existing stadium infrastructure will be used.
5. Provide plans for holding, collecting & disposal of solid waste material

a. Existing stadium infrastructure will be used. Any additional waste material generated as a
result of the display (i.e. shells from firework mortar) will be collected and disposed of at
existing dumpster sites.

6. Provide plans, if any, to illuminate the location, including sources and amounts of power and
location of lamps.

a. No additional lighting will be needed.
7. Provide plans and description for parking vehicles, including size and location of lots, highway

ingress/egress, parking lots and shuttle services.
a. Since this event coincides with a baseball game, no additional parking will be utilized.

8. Provide plans for telephone services, including source, number and location.
a. Existing stadium infrastructure will be used Management has access to mobile phones

available for customer use upon request.
9. Provide plans for security, including number of guards, deployment, names, addresses,

credentials and hours of availability.
a. No additional security will be used for this event. The vendor contracted to produce the

event will provide personnel to monitor access to fallout/launch area.
10. Provide plans for fire protection, including number, type and locations of all protective devices,

including alarms & extinguishers, number of emergency fire personnel available.
a. Wolverine Fireworks Display, Inc. (Vendor) to provide this information as needed.

11. Provide plans for sound control and amplification, including numbers, locations and power of
amplifiers & speakers.

a. No sound amplificiation will be used for this event. We will monitor noise following the
protocol attached. No salute mortars will be used to help limit the decibels. Some may be
louder than 79 dBA.

12. Provide plans for food and beverage concessions and concessionaires, including names, addresses
and license or permit numbers.

a. No additional concessions will be utilized as part of this event
13. Provide plans and specific descriptions for each of any other type of vendor or provider of

amusements or entertainments, including names, addresses and license or permit numbers.
a. Fireworks to be provided by Wolverine Fireworks Display, Inc (formerly Bartolotta

Firerworks). Permit/License information to be provided as needed



7. Provde plans and description for parking vehicles, including sze and location of lots, highway
ingress/egress, parking lots and shuttle services.

8. Provide plans for telephone services, mcludmg source, number and location.

9. Provide plans for security, including number of guards, deployment, names, addresses, credentials and
hours of availability.

10. Provide plans for fire protection, including number, type and locations of all protective devices, including
alarms & extinguishers, number of emergency fire personnel available.

11. Provide plans for sound control and amphficat1on, including numbers, locations and power of amplifiers &
speakers.

12. Provide plans for food and beverage concessions and concessionaires, mcludmg names, addresses and
license or permit numbers.

13. Provide plans and specific descnpt1ons for each of any other type of vendor or provider of amusements or
entertainments, including names, addresses and license or permit numbers.

14. Provide Certificate of Insurance no later than 10 days pnor to the event.

15. D $100.00 nonrefundable license & administration fee payable with application.

D bond D letter of credt D] cash deposit

(due no later than 10 days pnor to the event, based upon anticipated cost of services)

______ Police services

Fire services

Registered Santtaran (non-staff) services, tf needed

Total estimated costs

Applicant agrees to indemnify and save harmless the City of Franklin from and against any and all hab11it1es,
claims, demands, Judgments, losses and/or all swts at law or in equity, costs and expenses, including
reasonable attorney fees, for tnJury or death of any person or loss or damage to the property of any person,
firm, organization or corporation, arising mn any way as a consequence of the granting o a license for this
special event. Applicant affirms that the statements contained mn thus app tr ue and correct to the
best knowledge of Applicant.

# e

»e.33/8/

RECEIVED REPORTED TO COUNCIL LICENSE #_SERVICE FEE TO BE INVOICED _

P \SHARED\LICENSES\APPLICATIONS\APP EXTRAORDINARY ENTERTAINMENT & SPECIAL EVENT



City of Franklin Municipal Code

Chapter 133. Fire Prevention, Protection and Control

$ 133-1. General provisions.
C.
Permits required.
(1)
The Fire Department shall be responsible for issuing the following permits:

%...a a"
§ 133-14. Miscellaneous use provisions.

Fireworks.
ill
Sales. Except as provided in§ 167.10(2) and (4), Wis. Stats., no person shall sell, or possess with the
intent to sell, fireworks.
(2)
Possession. No person shall possess, manufacture, use, display, discharge or sell any fireworks
without a permit.
ill
Use. Except as provided in § 167 .10(3), Wis. Stats., no person shall possess or use fireworks without
a user's permit issued pursuant to Subsection A(4)(d) below.
(4)
User permit.
(a)
As provided in § 167.10(3), Wis. Stats., fireworks user's permits may be issued for festivals or
celebrations after proper application to the municipality.
ill.
The AHJ shall require a certificate of liability insurance or similar proof of coverage in an amount
deemed appropriate.
(c)
Fireworks displays shall be required to be conducted in accordance with the conditions and
requirements set forth in NFPA 1123, Code for Fireworks Displays.
(d)
Permits to display or discharge fireworks shall be issued as follows:
ill_
An application for a permit may be obtained at the Fire Department.
2I
Applications shall be submitted not less than seven days prior to the date of such display.
Ifil.
No accumulating or purchase of fireworks shall be allowed prior to the issuance of the permit.
[4L



After review of the application and inspection of the site, a permit shall be issued or denied at the
discretion of the provisions of this chapter and the promotion of public safety and security of adjoining
property.
(SL
The AHJ reserves the right to reinspect the display and landing sites at any time to ensure public
safety.
Ifil.
NFPA 1123 and 1124 will be used as a guide for these inspections.
I
The cost of such permits shall be set forth under § 133-17 of this code.
Ifil.
All persons applying for a permit must also submit proof of liability insurance in the amount of
$1,000,000 and a copy of any contract with companies which will be responsible in whole or part for
the fireworks, storage, or display.
Ifil..
All display companies and personnel who are paid to set off fireworks within the City shall return to the
area of fireworks display with 18 hours of the display and during daytime hours to carefully search for
and dispose of unexploded fireworks.
I.1Q1
The Franklin Police Department and/or Fire Department personnel are authorized to enlarge the area
required to be searched by the display companies and their personnel.
(5)
No permits. Permits will not be issued to sell or manufacture fireworks.
(6)
Use of caps and sparklers. No unlicensed person may use fireworks, caps, or sparklers in a municipal
park or at a fireworks display for which a permit has been issued if the display is open to the public.
ill..
Pyrotechnics. Pyrotechnics are prohibited in public buildings and places of employment unless
authorized by the AHJ and shall be used in accordance with NFPA 1123 .
(8)
The Fire Chief and/or his or her designee may disallow the display of fireworks due to local
circumstances, such as extremely dry conditions or other unforeseen circumstances.
(9)
Sky lanterns. The use of free-floating sky lanterns and similar devices utilizing an open flame shall be
prohibited.

$ 133-17Fees.
A.
Fees shall be established for permits and shall be payable to the municipality. Fees are
subject to change.
B.
Permit fees. The fees established in Table 133-17A apply to permits required by this code.

Table 133-17A
Permit
Bonfires

Fee
$50 per fire



Permit
Open burning
Blasting
Fireworks

Table 133-17A
Fee
$15 per year
$100 per project
$50 per event

§ 133-1 BViolations and penalties.
A.
Any person who violates any of the provisions of this code, or who fails to comply with
any order made hereunder, or who builds in violation of any detailed statement of
specifications or plans submitted and conditionally approved hereunder, or any certificate
or permit herein from which no such appeal has been taken, or who fails to comply with
such an order as affirmed or modified by a court of competent jurisdiction within the time
fixed herein, shall for each and every violation and noncompliance be subject to the
following:
(1)
Imposition by forfeiture of no more than $500 per day by the Municipal Court.

§ 133-3Adoption of Wisconsin Administrative Code.
A.
The most current legislatively enacted version by the State ofWisconsin of the Wisconsin
Administrative Code, on the effective date of this Code, shall apply.
SPS 303 Administrative Procedures
SPS 305
SPS 307

Licenses, Certifications and Registrations
Explosives and Fireworks



Chapter 133. Fire Prevention, Protection and Control

§ 133-10. Revocation of permits.

A.
The AHJ may revoke any permit issued in accordance with thus code in any case where it may find that any
of the conditions of the issuance have not been maintained or where there has been false statement or
misrepresentation of any materal fact in the application or plans on which the issuance was based.
B.
The AHJ shall promptly notify the permit holder of the request for revocation and, if so requested by the
permit holder, the effective date of the revocation shall be deferred pending a hearing before the Chief of
the Fire Department. The decision of the Fire Chief for revocation, following the hearing, shall be final.



t

Wisconsin Fireworks Law 2021
Wisconsin Department of Justice

This memorandum is intended as an advisory to law enforcement to address recurring
issues with respect to the possession, sale and use of fireworks in Wisconsin. It
summarizes Wisconsin fireworks law, answers common questions and corrects common
misunderstandings about the law. The applicable statute is Wisconsin Statute 5 167.10.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/statutes/statutes/167#/statutes/statutes/167/ 5

The statutes do not give the Department of Justice direct authority to enforce the
fireworks law. Enforcement responsibility and authority rest with local law enforcement
and district attorneys, or municipal prosecutors in the case of local ordinance violations.
Therefore, law enforcement should consult their local district attorney and municipal
prosecutors with respect to specific enforcement questions in their jurisdiction.

#
Local ordinances may also regulate fireworks and may be stricter than state law, but
cannot be less strict. This advisory discusses only state law, so some devices or materials
described as legal in this advisory may be prohibited by a local ordinance.

Legal WithoutA Permit

State law allows the sale, possession and use, without a permit, of sparklers not exceeding
36 inches in length, stationary cones and fountains, toy snakes, smoke bombs, caps,
noisemakers, confetti poppers with less than ' grain of explosive mixture, and novelty
devices that spin or moveon the ground. Wis. Stat. 5167.10(1). There is no age restriction
on sale, possession or use of these devices and the statute does not classify them as
fireworks. Local ordinances may be more restrictive than state statutes and mayprohibit
any of these items or limit their sale or use. These are the only kinds of "fireworks," as
thatword is commonly used, that a person may use or possess withouta permit or that
may be sold to a person who does not have a permit.

Illegal Without A Permit

Possessing or using any other fireworks, including, for example, firecrackers, roman
candles, bottle rockets and mortars, in Wisconsin without a valid permit is illegal. Wis.
Stat. § 167.10{3}. A commonly used rule ofthumb is that a permit is required if the device
explodes or leaves the ground. The sale of these restricted fireworks to a resident of this
state without a valid permit is also illegal. Wis. Stat. 5 167.10(2).

Wisconsin Fireworks Law, 2021 1



•
Conditions For A Valid Permit

The requirements for a valid permit are contained in Wis. Stat.§ 167.10{3}{a), (c) and (f)
and are detailed below.

A permit may be issued by a mayor, village president or town chair or any person
designated by the mayor, village president or town chairperson. Wis. Stat.
§ 167.10{3}{a). If a city, village, or town requires that a user's permit be signed or
stamped, a person who is authorized to issue the permit under par. {a) may sign or stamp
the permit before the permit is issued rather than signing or stamping the permit at the
time that it is issued. Wis. Stat. § 167.10(3)(/m).

A permit is valid only in the city, village or town of the official who issued it. A mayor,
village president, town chair, or a person they have designated can only authorize
possession or use of fireworks within their jurisdiction. Wis. Stat. § 167.10{3}(a). For
example, a permit issued by the town chair of one town cannot and does not authorize
possession or use of the fireworks in another town. Transportation Exception: A person
who has a valid permit from one municipality may purchase fireworks in another
municipality and transport them to the municipality in which the person has a permit.
Wis. Stat.§ 167.10(3}{b)7.

A permit may require a bond or insurance. Wis. Stat. 5 167.10(3)e). An official issuing
a permit may require a bond or insurance policy to indemnify the issuing municipality for
any damages that may result from the possession or use ofthe fireworks.

A permit may be issued to an individual or group of individuals. Permits, other than for
crop protection, may be issued to a public authority, a fair association, an amusement
park, a park board, a civic organization, an individual, or a group of individuals. Wis. Stat.
5 167.10(3)c).

Although individuals may obtain permits, a group may also obtain a permit in the
group's name. A group with a permit may authorize an individual to make purchases on
its behalf, but the permit must be in the name of the group. A person buying for a group
should have both a copy ofthe group's permitand the authorization ofthe group. A group
may not issue a blanket authorization to all of its members to purchase on behalf of the
group. CityofWisconsin Dells v. DellsFireworks, Inc., 197 Wis. 2d 1,21, 539 N.w.2d916 (Ct.
App. 1995). http://www.wicourts.gov/ca/opinions/94/df/94-1999.pdf. Wis. Stat S
167.10 creates "strict regulations" on the sale and use of fireworks. Id. Based on all the
circumstances the organization must actually exercise control over the purchase or use of
the fireworks by its members. Id.

The authorized buyer may only buy the kind of fireworks specified in the group's permits.
The total quantity purchased by all authorized buyers on behalf of the group cannot
exceed the quantity of fireworks authorized by the permit. The fireworks purchased on 
Wisconsin Fireworks Law, 2021 2

146



behalf of the group may only be possessed in the municipality which issued the group's
permit, except while being transported from the point of sale to that municipality. The
fireworks may only be used by the group on the date and location specified on the permit
and subject to any other conditions on the permit.

A valid permit must specify the general kind and approximate quantity of fireworks
which may be purchased. Wis. Stat. 5167.10(3)003.

A permit must specify the location atwhich the fireworks may be possessed or used.
Wis. Stat. 5 167.10(3)0)4. As noted above, this location must be within the jurisdiction of
the official who issued the permit. It must be a specific location within that jurisdiction,
rather than the entire jurisdiction. The statute uses "location" in the singular. A permit
that specifies multiple locations is notvalid.

The permit must specify the date of the permitted use. Wis. Stat. 5 167.10(3)f)4. The
word "date" is in the singular in the statute. A permit that specifies multiple dates or a
range of dates of permitted use is not valid. This, in combination with the specification
of location, means that a separate permitis required for each date and location for which
use is permitted.

The permit must specify the date on and after which the fireworks can be purchased.
Wis. Stat. § 167.10{3}(f}2. Once a permit is issued, the permitee may purchase fireworks
up-to the date of the permitted use.

A copy of a permit for large fireworks displays must be given to a fire or law
enforcement official in the municipality which issued the permit at least two days
before the date of use. Wis. Stat. 5 167.10(3)g). This requirement does not apply to
smaller consumer fireworks which require a permit, i.e. those classified as Division 1.4
explosives under CFR 173.50, or those items which fall outside the definition of fireworks
e.g. those identified in Wis. Stat. §167.10{1}{a)-{n). (Display fireworks are those classified
as Division 1.3 explosives under CFR 173.50.)

The permitmaycontainadditional restrictions. Wis. Stat. $ 167.10(3)/f)5. A municipality
may adopt ordinances imposing special restrictions, e.g., times or manner of use,
distances from buildings or spectators, etc. and a permit may specify these additional
restrictions.

Permits may not be issued to minors. Wis. Stat. § 167.10{3){h). Since minors may not
be issued fireworks permits, there are no conditions under which it is legal for a minor to
possess or use any fireworks except those allowed without a permit, e.g., sparklers,
snakes, fountains, etc.

Fireworks vendors rather than only wholesalers or jobbers are now permitted to sell
fireworks to a person who is not a resident of this state. Wis. Stat. § 167.10{2}{bg).

Wisconsin Fireworks Law, 2021 3
1 A7



However, a nonresident person may not possess or use fireworks in Wisconsin without a
valid Wisconsin permit. Wis. Stat. 5 167.103)(a). See also State v. Victory Fireworks, Inc.,
230 wis. 2d 721, 726-27, 602 N.W.2d 128 (Ct. App. 1999). A nonresident who lawfully
purchases fireworks under a permit can possess and use those fireworks in Wisconsin
pursuant to the terms of the permit or may transport them out of state. A nonresident
without a valid Wisconsin permit may order fireworks from a fireworks vendor for
shipping out-of-state. Wis. Stat. § 167.10{4}, or may transport those fireworks from
Wisconsin to another state. (See below)

Persons may transport fireworks from the place theywere purchased to the city, town
or villagewhere their possession or use is authorized under a permit or ordinance. Wis.
Stat. § 167.10{3}{b)7. However, persons transporting fireworks may not possess them in
a city, town or villagewithout a permit from that jurisdiction ifthey remain there for more
than 12 hours. Wis. Stat.§ 167.10{3}{bm).

Penalties

A person who possesses or uses fireworks without a valid permit, or who sells fireworks
to a person who does not have a valid permit, is subject to a forfeiture of up to $1,000
per violation. Wis. Stat. 5167.10(9)b). Each firework illegallypossessed, used or sold may
be a separate violation.

A parent or guardian who allows a minor to possess or use fireworks (not including those
for which no permits are required) is subject to a forfeiture of up to $1,000 per violation. 
Wis. Stat. § 167.10{9}{c).

A city, village or town may obtain an injunction prohibiting a person from violating Wis.
Stat. $ 167.10(8)(a). Violations of such an injunction are criminal misdemeanors, subject
to up to 9 months in jail and a $10,000 fine. Wis. Stat. § 167.10{9}{a).

Enforcement

The statutes do not give the Department of Justice direct authority to enforce the
fireworks law. Enforcement responsibility and authority rest with local law enforcement
and district attorneys, or municipal prosecutors in the case of local ordinance violations.

Therefore, law enforcement should consult their local district attorney and municipal
prosecutors with respect to specific enforcement questions in their jurisdiction.

Susan V. Happ
AssistantAttorneyGeneral
P.O. Box 7857
Madison, WI 53707
(608) 267-1339
happsv@doj.state.wi.us

t

Wisconsin Fireworks Law, 2021 4

148



1te Cg ef
1SKEGOIi ..

W182 S8200RacineAvenue
Muskego, WI 53150
262-679-4100

www.cityomuskego.org

INDIVIDUAL FIREWORKS APPLICATION/PERMIT FORM
• An individual user fireworks discharge permit application may be made by any owner and resident of real

property in the City of Muskego for intended discharge on such applicant's property.
• Such application maybe made pursuant to $167.10(3)(c) oftheWisconsin State Statutes and shall be subject

to all requirements contained within §167.10 Wis. Stats.

• la&iiieiffi. Acceptable formsof payment include cash, check (payable to City of Muskego) and credit/debit
card which includes a service charge.

• All permit applications must be filed between May 1 and June 30, unless earlier submission is required to
allow for Public Works and Safety Committee review pursuant to Section 263-4(C)(4)(h) of the Muskego
Municipal Code.

• Such use is restricted to the following dates: July 3, 4, and 5 each year, subject to the following. If the 4"of
July falls on a Monday or Tuesday, the Saturday before will be allowed. If the 4 of July- falls on a
Wednesday orThursday, the Saturday afterwill be allowed.

• The application must specify the name and address of the requested permit holder, the date on and after
which fireworks may be purchased, the general kind and approximate quantity of fireworks which may be
purchased, the date and location of the proposed use, and the name, address and telephone number for the
individual responsible for the discharge of fireworks.

• In the interest of neighboring roperty owners, the applicant must further provide to the City [ioo#ft@@f
lfp#j6j#$#ft@ 9jhim. tl_ sa3f' tz hi, name covering the applicant in the case of personal injury or property damage
that occurs as a result of the discharge of fireworks.

• Mail form to Attn: Fireworks Permit, City of Muskego, W182S8200 Racine Avenue, Muskego, WI 53150 or
drop-off in drop box in front of City Hall.

• A copy of Section 263-4 of the Municipal Code is provided. Please read for all regulations.

Applicant (Owner & resident of real property in the City of Muskego}

Address of Applicant

Phone Number

Email Address

Location of display, only if different from address of applicant: _

STATE: State law requires this permit to list the specific date and location of where the fireworks will be used.

□ July 2, 2022□ July 3, 2022
D July 4, 2022□ July 5, 2022

Note: Fireworks can only be used between 4:00 p.m. and 11 :00 p.m.

1A0



THE FOLLOWING FIREWORKS WILL BE DISPLAYED: State law requires this permit to specify the general
kind and approximate quantity of fireworks. Please list kind and quantity below. (For example, firecrackers - 50
roman candles - 10) f

General Kind of Fireworks Approximate Quantity

I certify that I am familiar with all Federal, State, and Local laws and regulations pertaining to the display of
fireworks, and if granted said permit, do agree with and obey all provisions thereof.

Applicant's Signature_Date.,2O22

OFFICE USE ONLY

Application approved by. Date.,2)22
Clerk-Treasurer Staff on behalf of Mayor Petfalski $35 oo Fee (2-216) #100 01.02.00.4265

Receipt# Amount: $ 35.00 Cash_ Check#tCredit Card

Municipal Code Section 263-4 provided _

T\General Government\Masters\AP-Fireworks Individual 2022.docx

150



W230 S9185 Nevins Street
Big Bend, WI53103
Phone: 262.662.2747
Fax: 262.662.3751

Fireworks User Application/Permit
Date of Application:
Payment & Type:

Applicant fame.- Bate of Birth;
D{1f,am{ {1dtaS,
pplicant phone numbef.,t-

Date of Fireworks Display:. _
lrq[]f}{9T )]St]qJ,

[{P9tf ff Fy·f

State law requires this permit to specify the date the fireworks will be used. The State Attorney
General's Office has determined that the permit must give a single specific date on which the fireworks
may be used.

THE FOLLOWING FIREWORKS WILL BE DISPLAYED: State law requires this permit to specify the kind and
quantity of fireworks. The Wisconsin Department of Justice has determined that the term "Class C"
does not satisfy the requirement. Please list kind and quantity. (For example, firecrackers-SO, roman
candles-10, bottle rockets-20, etc.)

lD£,qT]fa of [)],pl@/{
Public or Private:. _

I certify that I am familiar with all Federal, State, and Local laws and regulations pertaining to the display
of fireworks, and if granted said permit, do agree with and obey all provisions thereof.

Applicant

Authorizing Agent

Fee: $35.00

Date

Date

-This permit is for individual use of fireworks at the location listed and on the fireworks display date. A
separate application must be completed for each day requested.
-The Village of Big Bend requires an indemnity bond or policy of liability insurance taken in the Village
pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute 167.10(3)(e).

4r



Village of Big Bend Municipal Code
Section 10.01 (3)(e)(11)b}-h)

B. Any fireworks use shall be subject to the following requirements:
1. Wind velocity shall not exceed 15 miles per hour as recorded by the National Weather

Service at Crites Field, Waukesha, Wisconsin.
2. Wind direction at time of use shall be away from buildings or other combustible

materials and structures and shall not carry fireworks onto any adjoining buildings or so
as to cause annoyance or danger to other persons or property.

3. Sufficient firefighting implements and personnel shall be available at the scene to
control any fire which may be caused by the fireworks in use.

C. No fireworks may be used between 10:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m., with the exception of New Year's
Eve/New Year's Day when additional hours of use may be established by permit.

D. Only the permit holder may discharge fireworks.

E. Upon the issuance of a citation to any permit holder for the violation of any of the provisions of
this section, the person's permit to use fireworks within the Village of Big Bend shall be
suspended. Upon conviction of any citation issued under this section, a person's permit to use
fireworks shall be revoked.

F. No person shall be in the possession of fireworks pursuant to this section may resell those
fireworks in the Village of Big Bend.

G. The permit the Village issues for the use of fireworks will be printed on bright colored paper
stock and must be displayed by people taking out such permit so that it is visible from the street.

H. The type of indemnity bond or liability insurance that may be required pursuant to Wisconsin
Statutes 167.10 (3) (e) is required in the Village of Big Bend.

Limitation of Liability. A party requesting a user permit and/or a seller's permit has the ultimate
responsibility for their own safety and for the safety of all persons who may be affected by their activity.
The issuance of a user permit or a seller's permit shall not be interpreted as endorsing or condoning the
activity or as ensuring that the activity will be safe. An applicant for a user permit and/or a seller's
permit individually and on behalf of any entity for which the applicant submits the application, and also
on behalf of the property ownerwhere the activity will be conducted, accepts all the risks and agrees to
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Village of Big Bend, its officers, employees and agents, from
any and all claims arising out of the use, sale or possession of the fireworks.

Indemnity. The Village may require an indemnity bond with good and sufficient sureties or policy of
liability insurance for the payment of all claims that may arise by reason of injuries to person or property
from the handling, use or discharge of fireworks under any user's permit. The bond or policy, if required,
shall be taken in the name of the Village of Big Bend and any person injured thereby may bring an action
on the bond or policy in the person's own name to recover the damage the person has sustained, but
the aggregate liability of the surety or insurer to all persons shall not exceed the amount of the bond or
policy. The bond or policy, if required, together with a copy of the permit shall be filed in the office of
the Village Clerk.

(

152



CITY OF NEW BERLIN FIRE DEPARTMENT • PERMIT APPLICATION
16300 W. National Ave. New Ber lin, WI 53151 • Phone: 262-785-6120 • Fax : 262-785-6130 •www.newberlin.org • skon@newberlin .org

$ _
$ _

$ _
$, _

$-~----
$ _

$ _

$. _

TOTAL FEES$
Make checks payable to: City of New Berlin

#Tanks. _

Permit# [l";
fed}F;

f ti r.

$ 75.00
$ 50.00

$ 7500

Double Fees

Double Fees

$ 20.00

Phone#:
State: Zip Code:

Fee Amount

$ 60.00 Sq Ft. $
$ 80.00 Sq.Ft. $
$ 95.00 Sq. Ft. $
$ 110.00 Sq Ft. $
$ 135.00 $
$ 165.00 $
$ 250.00 $

$
$

Plan Review for Cryogenic/LP/all othertanks
Site Inspection of tanksystems

Fireworks:
Permits
Site Inspections

Variance from State orMunicipalCode:

Re-Inspection:

Starting Work Without Permit or Plan Review:

Plan Approval Return Fee: (Note: Ifmailed back to contractor)

Building Permits:
a) 1-4,999 sq ft.
b) 5,000 - 9,999 sq ft.
c) 10,000 -24,999 sq ft.
d) 25,000 -49,999 sq. ft.
e) 50,000 -74,999 sq. ft.
f) 75,000 -99,999sq ft.
g) 100,000-149,9999 sq. ft.
h) 150,000 - sq ft.
i) Multi-Family Buildings

Rough Building Inspection:
Residential or Commercial

Occupancy Inspection
Re-Occupancy/New Occu

}2le, .»
Reviewed/Received By:. _
Owner/or Occupancy: _
Job Site Address: _
Contractor: _
Contractor Address: _
City: _

Type of Permit

Date Received...- pproved By". mountppfoved"j
Charge to Account#· _

WHITE COPY - APPLICANT • YELLOWCOPY - FIRE DEPARTMENT • PINK COPY - TREASURER
Updated. March 20 2014 • Lt. Perce • FiePrevention and Inspection Bureau



Village ofRochester
300W. Spring Street, P.O. Box 65, Rochester, WI 53167
(262) 534-2431 Phone, (262) 534-4084
email: vrochstr@wi.rr.comwebsite: http://rochesterwi.us

FIREWORKS
APPLICATION/PERMIT FORM

Reflections of
the Past...

Visions of
theE

• Individual applicantmust bean ownerorresidentofreal property in theVillage ofRochester
• Fee- $15.00, cash or check payable to theVillage ofRochester
• All permitapplicationsmustbe filed betweenMay 1 and June 30
• This permit is for individual use offireworks atthe location listed belowand on the fireworks display

date July 3 through July 5 only)
• A separate application must be completed foreach day requested.
• Mail form to:Village ofRochester, P.O. Box 65, RochesterWI 53167 grapply in person
• A copyofSection 9-8 oftheMunicipal Code is provided. Pleaseread all regulations.

Applicant: Telephone: _
(Owner or resident of real property in the Village ofRochester)

Person{s} )]sChar!QIBIreWOIkS
Address ofApplicant: _

Location ofdisplay only if different from address ofapplicant: _

______________.2016 Note: Fireworks can only beused between 4:00 p.m. and 10:30 p.m.

STATE: State lawrequires this permitto specifythe date the fireworkswill be used. The StateAttorney
General's Office bas determined thatthepermitmustgive a single specific date on which the fireworks may
be used.

THE FOLLOWING FIREWORKSWILL BE DISPLAYED: State lawrequires this permitto specify thekind and
quality offireworks. TheWisconsin DepartmentofJusticehasdetermined thattheterm "Class C" does not
satisfy the requirement.

Please list kind and quantitybelow. (For example, firecrackers - 50, roman candles - 10)

Specific Kind ofFireworks Approximate Quantity

(Liston aseparate sheetifmore space isneeded)
I certify that I am familiarwith allFederal, State and Local laws and regulations pertaining to the display of
fireworks, and ifgranted said permit, do agreewith and obey all provisions thereof.

I as the applicant, agree to indemnifyand hold harmless theVillage ofRochester from and against all
liabilities, claims, demands, judgements, losses, and all suits atlawor in equity, costs and expenses, including
reasonable attorney fees, forinjuryor death ofany person orloss ordamage to the property ofany person,
including both parties hereto and theiremployees, arising fromthe ignition and use offireworks.

Applicant's SignatureBate;2]6

Application Approved by: Date: __, 2016
(Clerk-Treasurer, on behalfof Village President)

$15.00 Fee _ Municipal Code Section 9-8 provided to applicant

154



Municipal Code of the Village ofRochester, Racine County, Wisconsin

H. Penalty. Any person who violates any provision of this Section orwho shall transport passengers
in a horse-drawn carriage within the Village of Rochesterwithout first obtaining a license as
required herein shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalties set forth in s. 9-50.
Each day of continued violation of the provisions of this Section shall be considered a separate
offense.

9-8. SALEAND DISCHARGEOF FIREWORKS RESTRICTED1

A. State Laws Adopted. The statutory provisions ofWis. Stat. s. 167.10, as may be amended from
time to time, regulating the sale and use of fireworks, except in so far as this ordinance is more restrictive
as to use, are hereby adopted by reference and made part of this Section as though fully set forth herein.
This Section is adopted pursuanttoWis. Stat. s. 167.10(5).

B. Definitions. As used in this section, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

1. "Novelty Fireworks" means the following types of fireworks:

- A cap containing not more than 1 /4 grain of explosive mixture, if the cap is used or
possessed or sold for use in a device which prevents direct bodily contact with a cap
when it is in place for explosion.
- A toy snake which contains no mercury.
- A sparkler on awire orwood stick not exceeding 36 inches in length that is designed to
produce audible or visible effects or to produce audible and visible effects.
- A device designed to spray out paper confetti or streamers and which contains less than
1/4 grain of explosive mixture.
- A fuseless device that is designed to produce audible or visible effects or audible and
visible effects, and that contains less than ¼ grain of explosive mixture.
- Adevice that is designed primarily to bum pyrotechnic smoke-producing mixtures, at a
controlled rate, and that produces audible or visible effects, or audible and visible effects.
- A cylindrical fountain that consists of one or more tubes and that is classified by the
Federal Department of Transportation as a Division 1.4 explosive, as defined in 49 CFR
173.50.
- A cone fountain that is classified by the Federal Department of Transportation as a
Division 1.4 explosive, as defined in 49 CFR 173.50.

2. "Novelty Fireworks, Commercial" means the sale and storage of novelty fireworks for
commercial purposes, for which a temporary use permit is required under s. 35-21.G.10.

3. "Statutory Fireworks" means anything manufactured, processed or packaged for
exploding, emitting sparks or combustion which doeo not have another common use,
inclusive of pyrotechnics, but not including any of the following:

- Fuel or a lubricant.
- A firearm cartridge or shotgun shell.
- A flare used or possessed or sold for use as a signal in an emergency or in the
operation of a railway, aircraft, watercraft ormotor vehicle.
- Amatch, cigarette lighter, stove, furnace, candle, lantern or space heater.
- A model rocket engine.
- Tobacco and a tobacco product.
- Anything defined herein as "novelty fireworks."

1 Ordinance #2016-4 Adopted May 9, 2016

9-35

4rr



Municipal Code of the Village ofRochester, Racine County, Wisconsin

C. Sale and Storage of Fireworks.

1. The sale and storage of statutory fireworks is prohibited within the Village of Rochester
unless such sale or storage is part of a permanent use of land duly authorized under
Chapter 35, Planning and Zoning.

2. The sale and storage of novelty fireworks for commercial purposes is prohibited within
the Villagewithout a Temporary Use Permit under s. 35-21.G.10. unless such sale or
storage is part of a permanent use of land duly authorized under Chapter 35, Planning
and Zoning.•

D. Use of Statutory Fireworks.

1. Use prohibited without a permit. The use of statutory fireworks is prohibited in the Village
of Rochester unless the fireworks are used pursuant to a user permit issued by the
Village of Rochester, according to the provisions ofWis. Stat. s. 167.10(3} and all of the
requirements and limitations of this Section 9-8.

2. User permit. A user permit application for the discharge of statutory fireworks may be
madeby any owner or resident of real property in the Village of Rochester, for intended
discharge on such applicant's property in the Village. Such application may be made
pursuant toWis. Stat. s. 167.10(3)(c), and shall be subject to all applicable terms of this
Section 9-8. Such use is restricted to the following dates: July 3, 4 or 5 each year, subject
to the following. If the 4th of July falls on a Monday or Tuesday, the Saturday before will
be allowed. If the 4th of July falls on aWednesday or Thursday, the Saturday after will be
allowed. The application must specify the name and address of the requested permit
holder, the date on and afterwhich fireworks may be purchased, the general kind and
approximate quantity of fireworks which may be purchased, the date and location of the
proposed use, and the name, address and telephone number for the individual
responsible for the discharge of fireworks. All permit applications under this subsection
must be filed between May 1 and June 30.

3. Restrictions and limitations. In addition to all other requirements of this Section 9-8 and
applicable State laws, any use of statutory fireworks shall be subject to the following
requirements:

a. Wind velocity. Wind velocity at the time of use shall not be more than 15 miles
per hour as recorded or forecast by the NationalWeather Service Forecast
Office, Milwaukee/Sullivan, Wisconsin.

b. Wind direction. Wind direction at the time of use shall be away from buildings or
other combustible materials and structures and shall not carry fireworks onto any
adjoining buildings or cause annoyance or danger to other persons or property.

c. The storage, use or display of permitted statutory fireworks shall conform to the
standards set forth in NFPA 1, Chapter 65, Explosives, Fireworks and Model
Rocketry, as may be amended from time to time. Every display shall be handled
by a competent adult operator. After the permit is issued, possession, and use of
fireworks shall be lawful for that purpose only. No permit granted hereunder is
transferable.

d. Storage and handling of statutory fireworks.

(1) No person may store or handle statutory fireworks on any premises
unless the premises are equipped with fire extinguishers.

9-36

156



Municipal Code of the Village ofRochester, Racine County, Wisconsin

(2} No person may smoke where statutory fireworks are stored or handled.

(3} Aperson who stores or handles statutory fireworks shall immediately
notify the Fire Chief or Fire Inspector of the location, description and
quantity of the fireworks.

(4} No person may store statutory fireworks closer than the separation
distances required in NFPA 1 Chapter 65 to a dwelling.

(5} No person may store statutory fireworks closer than the separation
distances required in NFPA 1 Chapter 65 to public assemblages or
places where gasoline or volatile liquid is sold in quantities exceeding
one gallon.

(6) No person may use statutory fireworks forwhich apermit was not issued
while attending a fireworks display forwhich a permit has been issued
under this section.

e. Parental liability. Aparent, foster, or family-operated group home parent or legal
guardian of a minorwho consents to the use of any fireworks by the minorwho is
under the age of 18 years of age is liable for damages caused by the minor's use
of the fireworks, and in addition shall be subject to the penalty provided in this
Municipal Code.

f. Fire prevention. Sufficient firefighting implements and personnel shall be
available at the scene to control any fire that may be caused by the statutory
fireworks.

g. Hours. Statutory fireworks may only be used between 4:00 P.M. and 10:30 P.M

h. Responsibility on Permitted Property. For property that is subject to a statutory
fireworks permit, only the individuals designated on the permit application may
discharge fireworks. Such individual is respensible in case of a violation, jointly
and severally with the permit holder and property owner, and any or all of these
parties may be cited for the violation. Any damage or personal injury as a result
of the ignition of fireworks shall be the responsibility of the permit holder.

i. Responsibility on non-permitted property. For property that is not permitted for
the discharge of statutory fireworks, if fireworks are discharged the actual person
that caused the illegal discharge is responsible for the violation if such person is
identified to theVillage's satisfaction. If theVillage cannot determine to its
satisfaction the actual person that caused the illegal discharge, the owner or
occupant of the property where the discharge occurred will be presumed to have
caused the discharge, or to have aided or abetted the discharge, and shall be
held responsible for the illegal discharge and may be cited for the violation. Such
presumption may be rebutted only by credible evidence to show that the owner
or occupant of the property had no knowledge of the fireworks being on the
property at any time prior to the discharge, and that the owner or occupant of the
property fully cooperated with theVillage in trying to identify the actual person
who caused the illegal discharge.

j. No sale. No person in the possession of statutory fireworks pursuant to this
section may resell those fireworks in theVillage of Rochester.

k. Permit availability. The permit issued for the use of fireworks must be made
available upon request of a law enforcement officer

9-37

4rT



Municipal Code of the Village ofRochester, Racine County, Wisconsin

4. Fee. A fee for statutory fireworks permits shall be established by the Village Board and
placed on the Fee Schedule, and must be submitted at the time of application and shall
be non-refundable.

5. Acceptance of risk. All fireworks discharge permits issued in the Village are issued
subject to the possibility that discharge may be prohibited, even if the permit is issued,
due to the restrictions and limitations of this Section. All applicants accept this risk and
shall be solely responsible for all consequences of the same, by their submittal of the
application.

6. Statutory fireworks may be possessed and used by the Village without a permit, but
Village fire and law enforcement officials must be notified of the proposed use of
fireworks at least two days in advance.

E. Possession of statutory fireworks.

1. Statutory fireworks may be possessed while transporting the fireworks to a city, town,
village or county where the possession of the fireworks is authorized by permit or
ordinance, but the person doing the transporting may not remain in the Village for more
than 12 hours.

2. Statutory fireworks may be sold or possessed by persons delivering the fireworks to a
person granted a permit under this Section.

F. Use of Novelty Fireworks. Individuals may possess and use novelty fireworks on private property
with the permission of the owner or person in charge thereof. Novelty fireworks may be used in
Village rights-of-way, but not in the paved portion of streets. Novelty fireworks may not be used in
Village parks or in or on other Village property.

G. Temporary ban on all fireworks. The Village President, upon recommendation of the Fire Chief
because of extreme dryness or drought, may in the President's discretion declare a temporary
ban on fireworks, whether statutory or novelty. No fireworks of any kind may be discharged during
a declared ban. Any permit which would otherwise allow discharge on a date during such ban is
automatically revoked, subject to the following. Such permittee may apply for a new discharge
date after the ban is lifted without incurring a new fee. If any of the possible discharge dates of
Section 9-8.D.2. are during the ban, the Village Board shall have the authority, but not the
obligation, to establish additional discharge dates which would apply only to those permittees who
were not able to discharge fireworks on their permitted dates due to the ban.

H. Seizure and destruction of fireworks; Revocation of permit.

1. In addition to, and not to the prejudice or exclusion of such other penalties and remedies
as may apply, any fireworks stored, handled, sold, possessed or used by a person who
violates the terms of this Section may be seized and held as evidence of the violation. In
the event a person is convicted of violating this section all fireworks seized shall be
destroyed pursuant to the provisions of Wis. Stat. s. 167.10(8)(b), provided that, if
storage after seizure but prior to resolution of the charges is deemed too dangerous, the
seized fireworks may be destroyed pursuant to statute. Fireworks seized as evidence of a
violation for which no conviction results shall be returned to the owner if they have not
been destroyed pursuant to statute.

2. Any permit issued to the person under this Section shall be revoked upon conviction for a
violation of this Section.

9-38

r~"
t

158



Municipal Code of the Village ofRochester, Racine County, Wisconsin

I. Application for and issuance of permit.

1. Application. The application for a permit hereunder for statutory fireworks be submitted to
the Village Clerk and shall include the date of the display, and shall specify the name and
address of the permit holder, the kind and quantity of fireworks that will be displayed, and
the date and location of the display. The owner or person in authority of the site of the
display shall consent in writing to the use of the site.

2. Review and issuance. The application shall be reviewed by the Village Clerk, who may
seek the advice of the Fire Chief. The Clerk, under the authority of the Village President,
shall issue the permit only if the requirements of this Section are met.

(a) No permits shall be issued to minors.

(b) No permit shall be issued unless the applicant acknowledges in writing that he or
she understands and accepts that he or she is fully liable for all bodily injury and
property damage that may result from the issuance of the permit, and the
applicant indemnifies the Village for the same.

(c) No permit shall be issued for the storage of statutory fireworks, except as that
storage may be necessary in preparation for a display permitted hereunder, and
then only for the period set forth in this Section.

(d) No permit shall be issued for the indoor display or use of statutory fireworks.

3. In accordance with state statute, the Village Clerk shall provide copies of the permits
issued to the municipal fire and law enforcement officials at least 2 days before the date
of authorized use.

J. Penalties. See Wis. Stat. s. 167.10(9)(b), which provides that a penalty for violation of an
ordinance adopted pursuantto Wis. Stat. s. 167.10(5) may not exceed $1,000. The penalties for
violation of this Section shall be set forth in the Village Deposit Schedule and shall not exceed
$1000 per violation.

9-50 PENALTIES.

In addition to any penalty specifically set forth in this chapter, any person who violates any provision of
this chapter or any regulation or rule, or order made hereunder shall be subject to a penalty as provided
in Chapter 50 of this Municipal Code. Nothing in this section shall preclude the Village from maintaining
any appropriate action to prevent or remove a violation of any provision of this Chapter by injunction or
other equitable relief.

9-39

r



City ofMedford
Fireworks Display Permit

639 S Second Street• Medford, WI 54451 • Phone (715) 748-4321

This application, and $100 fee must be received bythe City no less than 45 days prior to the
requested date offireworks display.

Permit Applicant: [hone [gr]pef.

pplicant Address. Email;_

Time of day at which display is to be held: (No later than 11:00 PM)

The exact address/ location planned for display: _

Date fireworks purchased:_Date of actual display.

Fireworks Contractor/Operator: _

Address: _

Event Pyrotechnics/Operator lame.

Event Pyrotechnics Assistant lame(s).

Address and location fireworks will be stored at: _

Please Include:
• Certificate of Liability Insurance ($1,000,000 bodily injury to one person; $2,000,000 for

injury to more than one person; and $1,000,000 for damage to property) naming City of
Medford as additional insured.

• Map of display area and spectator area

I HERBY AGREE AND CERTIFY the above information is correct, and I am 18 years of age or older. I
understand this permit is valid only for the date{s) of display and the requirement to comply with all
Wisconsin Statutes and the City of Medford Municipal Code now in effect. A violation of any of the
above shall be cause for permit to be immediately revoked by the Medford Area Fire Department or the
Medford Police Department/Taylor County Sherriff Department.

Signature of Permit Applicant Date Signed

The permit applicant agrees to indemnify and hold the City of Medford harmless for any lawsuit or
liability which may result in the applicant's use or possession of fireworks. The City is not liable for
damage caused by fireworks for the sole reason of issuing a fireworks permit.

+ Medford Area Fire Department reserves the right to rescind this permit should weather conditions
prove unfavorable.

160



FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

□ Applicant qualifies for receiving permit, must not be a minor.

L $100.00 License Fee paid.

□ Certificate of Insurance. Attach copy.

□ Map of Area. Attach copy.
□ Fire Chief has reviewed and approved the application.
□ Police Chief has reviewed and approved the application.

This permit is valid forthe following dates:

Approved By Fire Chief/Police CRief
orDesignee

Signature Date Signed

Title
A copy of this permit shall be given to Medford Area Fire Department and the Medford Police
Department at least 2 days before the date of authorized use.

444



PYROTECHNICDISPLAYPERMITAPPLICATION

;#%$%
I. APPLICANT

_ Public Authority
FairAssociation
ParkBoard

_ Civic Organization
_ Resident Individuals Group
_ Nonresident Individuals Group

II. DISPLAY

Name:--------------AgentsName: _
Address: -------------
Date ofBirth: _
Social SecurityNo. _

Persons IgnitingFireworks:
Name Address DOB

Inventory: Attach list (includingrange of individual items)

DeliveryDate: _

Storage location address: (Note Wisconsin Lawprohibits storage in a dwelling
or within 50 feet of a dwelling):

Fire FightingApparatus: _

ID. SITE

Attach scale site plan showingperimeter lines of location, house and outbuildings on site andwithin
range of rockets, area of ignition, location ofmortars, locationofdisplay area storage, fire fighting
apparatus, viewer seating.
Type of fire fighting apparatus: _

IV. INSURANCE- (Attach Certificate of Insurance or Indemnity Bond)

CompanyName: _
AgentName: _
AgentAddress: _
Coverage Limits: Liability-$

I understandthat the application mustbe filed a minimum of (15) fifteen days prior to the display. I
hereby swearor affirm that the information is true and correct. That fireworks may not be purchased or
delivered prior to grantingofthe permit.

Subscribed & sworn to before me
this_day of,l

Applicants Signature

(Clerk/Notary Public)
My commissionexpires

162

Medical - $-------------

PolicyNumber.
Phone Number:-----------



PermitNo.:

PYROTECHNIC DISPLAYPERMIT APPLICATION

Date:------

GrantedTo: ---------------------------------
Granted pursuant to Section 347-21, Fond du LacMunicipal Code ofOrdinances for the storage and display of
fireworks. This permit maybe revokedat any time fornon compliance with any conditions to its approval listed
below:

1.) Date after which fireworks may be purchased,kl

2.) 'Type and quantity of fireworks which may be purchased:

See attached list.

Delivery:

Storage:

Fireworks may not be delivered prior tol

Fireworks may not be stored in a dwelling or structure located within
fifty (50) feet of dwelling.

3.) Storage location must be locked.

Fire extinguishers must be located adjacent to storage location door:

Class Number Size

4.) Smoking prohibited in and signs posted.

Display: 1.) Agentmustpersonally ignite fireworks or be on site during display.
2.) The agent may designate one (1) or two (2) ignites over eighteen (18) years of age.
3.) The fire extinguishers from the storage site must be in the ignition display area at

time ofdisplay.
4.) Location, date, time: _

Other: Clean up deposit: $100.00



CITY OF KALAMAZOO, MICHIGAN
FIREWORKS DISPLAYAPPLICATION

The undersigned organization or group of individuals (from two or more families) hereby apply to
the City Commission ofKalamazoo for a permit to publiclydisplayfireworks. We guarantee that the
displaywill be conducted bya qualified person under our immediate supervision in adequate open
space. A certificate of comprehensive general or personal liability insurance for a least $1,000,000,
protecting the applicant against property or personal injury damagesduring the display and naming
the City of Kalamazoo, its agents, officials, and employees as additionally insured parties
accompanies the application. Preliminary approval of the application has been given by the Fire
Marshal.

Location of the display.:
(Location of display may not be changed after approved by Fire Marshal)

Date of Display:

Name of Qualified Operator

Name, Address and Phone of applicants:

•$
'

Signature of Applicant

I endorse this application

Fire Marshal

Date:------------

Approved by the City Commission

City Clerk

Date:------------
PERMIT ISSUED SUBJECT TO COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS AND SAFETY
GUIDELINES SPECIFIED BY THE FIRE CODE. Change in location or safety guidelines
automatically voids this permit.

Date of Notification
to FAA: --------- Fire Marshal

Date: ----------------

c:\word\barb\special\firewks app

164



FIREWORKS PERMIT

PERMIT ISSUED TO: _

permits only issued to the following:
1. A public authority
2. A fair association
3. An amusement park
4. A park board

PERMIT ISSUED FOR THE PURPOSE OF: (check all that apply)
Possess and use display fireworkswithin the City of Chippewa Falls
{Proof of current federal permit required)

Possess, sell, and/or use consumer fireworks within the City of Chippewa Falls
__Other {specify) _

PERMIT IS VALID FOR THE FOLLOWING:
Date: _

Time of Day.am/pm toam/pm
Location: _

LIST THE TYPES (CLASS/DIVISION) AND QUANTITY (APPROXIMATEWEIGHT OR NUMBER) IN
POSSESSION OR ATTACH A LIST OF SUCH TO PERMIT APPLICATION:

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Applicant Name, Business Name or CompanyAuthorized to Conduct Fireworks Display/Stand:

Permit Holder Address:-------------------------Permit Holder Telephone: _

Permit Holder Email:--------------------------
This permit is used pursuant to s. 167.1O Wisconsin State Statutes, and on the condition that the City of Chippewa
Falls shall not be held liable for accident or injury occasioned during the transportation, handling, storage, or use of
the fireworks or pyrotechnic devices. A copy ofthis permit must be submitted to the Chippewa Falls Fire and
Emergency services Department at leasttwo days prior to the date of authorized use. Applications for the
sale of fireworks will also be referred to the City of Chippewa Falls Zoning Inspector for consideration.

5. A civic organization
6. Any individual or group of individuals
7. An agricultural producer for protection of crops

Permit Holder Signature

Mayor Signature

Date -----

Date------

City of Chippewa Falls Fireworks Permit#;

4( r.



Sandi Wesolowski

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:
Attachments:

DANA KERR <KerrConsulting@msn com>
Tuesday, September 20, 2022 4 28 PM
Steve Olson; John Nelson; Kristen Wilhelm; Shan Hanneman, Sandi Wesolowski; Ed
Holpfer; merchman@franklinw.gov; Mike Barber; kevmnhaleyla@gmail com;
Adam Burckhardt@live com; Glen Morrow; leonpl@hotmail com, Hogrehouse@live com;
Regulo Martinez-Montilva; Rick Oliva; Adam Remington; Peggy Steeno
Fireworks Pollutants and Norse, further research required
fireworks pollutatnt docx

The discussion of fireworks requires further research and evaluation of other ordinances and permits for other
municipalities. In addition, there needs to be an incentive for this development to become a good neighbor
and to adhere to the enforcement of standards, ordinances and process is arbitrary for this
development. There is no consistency, no citations, no repercussions so the pattern of non-compliance
compounds each year.

My concern is that this development consistently is not a good neighbor and intentionally does not follow the
required process at the City. There are over 120 events each year with disruptive noise with some going
through no process review at all.

There is a vast disparity between what was presented regarding this project since inception and what actually
has been constructed and operated.

Noise was to be mitigated. It has not. A sound study was a condition of the approval in 2016 which the
developer was to pay for. That required sound study was to make recommendations for the acoustic designs
at this development. The City Planning Manager report 11-2020 indicated the issues of noise were one of
problems of design.

Clearly having speakers pointed out from the stadium is not a reasonable standard and the City is negligent for
allowing HUNDREDS of events to be broadcast into this neighborhood over the past 5 years. The City has no
drawings for the acoustic system, the Planning Commission did not review anything, the Planning department
has no information, creating negligence for not requiring this information when citizens were complaining
about the noise since 2013.

I would like to suggest the following process to incent the development to be a good neighbor:

1. all special event permits should be based on a single day approval to encourage compliance with
mitigation of the noise to obtain other permits. (Including fireworks)

2. All speakers at the stadium need to be oriented away from residential districts and turned into the
bowl of the stadium.

3. Other speaker systems for other facilities - particularly the umbrella bar should be examined for live
music events.

4. mortar salutes should be banned
5. fireworks should be limited by time (start at 9:30 unless extra innings and then not after 10 pm) no

weekday fireworks should be allowed

1



6. Limit the number of fireworks events at this district. 8 fireworks occurred this year, that is excessive
for this location that buts residential districts and parks.

7. Decibel monitors need to be set to record at 50 dBA, to comply with City Planning Manager report,
they are presented set to record at 65 dBA

I would like to suggest, prior to the elected officials stating that there are few complaints, the actual police
reports and on line complaints for the season should be reviewed regarding the noise from this facility.

This discussion of fireworks warrants further research into other fireworks ordinances and research into the
impact of noise on the surrounding areas. The County sound study measured the fireworks so this discussion
of fireworks could wait until that report comes out to get an overall picture of the noise from this facility for all
events

The City Planning Manager indicates that the sound decibel level at the property line should be 50 decibels,
not 79. (City planning manager report Dec 2020}. But this is not what is being complied with. The sound
monitors are set to record at 65 decibels. They need to record at 50 decibels at the property line.

More input on fireworks below from my research. Also attached is a document above regarding pollutants
from fireworks and the cancellation of fireworks indefinitely at a Northwoods minor league stadium.

The fireworks mortar salutes need to be prohibited. Mortars salutes are just noise no aerial effects. The City
of Franklin permit for previous fireworks for this facility states no mortar salutes will be used to limit decibel
levels. There have been mortar salutes used at this facility.

This item should be tabled until further research can be completed including obtaining all the police reports
and on line complaints for this season.

And to research other municipalities fireworks standards.

Below are some suggestions from research of fireworks permits/ process for other communities:

Common firework permit requirements:

Application submitted no later than 45 days prior to the event. Permit Fees $100- $150 per occurrence. Per
Wis Statutes 167 each firework event requires a separate permit.

Fire chief investigation, no permit shall be granted unless the mayor written gets permission/ approval from
the fire chief to accept the application.

Insurance policies for holding an event in the State ofWisconsin are at the rate of $1,000,000 for bodily injury
to any one person, $2,000,000 for injury to more than one person and any other people afterwards. Also
$1,000,000 for any damage to property that may be caused by the fireworks under the permit.

Application to include diagram/ map of fireworks/ pyrotechnic display will take place that shows firing area,
fallout area, display site, distances to audience, buildings, parks, roadways and public pathways/ trails and any
other special conditions required by the Fire Chief, Police Chief, Building Inspection and Governing body. No
aerial fireworks display will be conducted unless a permit has first been secured. Significant fines can be
issued and/or restriction from future fireworks and pyrotechnic displays for same business.

2



Nuisances. Fireworks will not be discharged in such a manner that may create a nuisance between the hours
of 10:00 p.m. to 11:00 a.m. Fireworks use will also be subject to any additional ordinances such as noise,
nuisance and assembly.

Violations of this regulation, city ordinance or state statute may result in revocation of the permit or inability
to obtain permit in the future.

The Fire Chief may, at his or her discretion, cancel any pyrotechnic display for any reason. The City will not be
required to issue a pyrotechnic display permit for an alternate date if a display is canceled, and the City shall not
be liable for any costs incurred as a result of the cancellation.
Events can be cancelled for concerns of drought or other environmental factors.
Upon conclusion of any pyrotechnic display, the authorized individuals responsible for recovery of any unfired
fireworks shall make a complete and thorough search for any unfired fireworks that failed to fire or function
during the display. Said person(s) will immediately dispose of or remove in a safe manner any remaining
fireworks.
All premises shall be equipped with approved fire extinguishers and any other equipment required by the Fire
Chief, or his or her designee.

Fire staff will be on scene during all pyrotechnic displays permitted by the City. The operator/ permittee will be
charged for this service as set forth in the schedule of fees, which is adopted annually by resolution of the City
Council.

All fireworks that fire a projectile over land will be so set up that the projectile will go into the air as nearly as
possible in a vertical position.

Upon conclusion of any pyrotechnic display, the authorized individuals responsible for recovery of any unfired
fireworks shall make a complete and thorough search for any unfired fireworks that failed to fire or function
during the display. Said person(s) will immediately dispose of or remove in a safe manner any remaining
fireworks.

Cancellation of displays.
The Fire Chief may, at his or her discretion, cancel any pyrotechnic display for any reason. The City will not be
required to issue a pyrotechnic display permit for an alternate date if a display is canceled, and the City shall not
be liable for any costs incurred as a result of the cancellation.

Revocation of pyrotechnic display permit.
The City Clerk, Fire Chief, Police Chief, or Chief Building Inspector, or his or her designee, may, at any time for
good cause shown, revoke, suspend, or deny issuance of any permit issued under this chapter. Good cause will
include, without limitation for lack of enumeration herein, the following:
A.Any violation of the provisions of this chapter or any municipal code or ordinance;
B._Any violation of building, zoning, fire code, and municipal code applicable to the licensed premises;
C._Any violation of Wisconsin state law or the City Municipal Code and Ordinance that is relevant to the
protection of the general welfare of the community and natural resources.

3



D._Any conviction of the permittee for the illegal use of fireworks.

Kokomo Indiana
The City of Kokomo, Indiana has determined to restrict the use of fireworks which create excessive noise and
disturbances within the City.
This ordinance is designed to encourage the responsible and courteous use of consumer fireworks in the City
of Kokomo.

AND WHEREAS, the Common Council ofthe City of Kokomo deems it necessary to enact legislation concerning
fireworks usage and displays as provided for by Indiana Code: 22-11-14-10.5

Nothing in this ordinance shall prohibit the local Fire Chief, State Fire Marshal, or any duly authorized law
enforcement official from further restricting, or prohibiting, the use of fireworks during the aforementioned
periods of time for any weather related or public safety reasons.

Users shall be responsible for all debris resulting from the discharge of consumer fireworks. It is a violation of
this Ordinance if fireworks land upon property owned or occupied by another person from which permission
was not obtained, or upon public streets or City property, and which fireworks and/or all related debris is not
removed by the user withing twenty-four (24) hours of such use or discharge. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing in this ordinance shall be interpreted to grant permission to any person to discharge, place, or land
debris on property occupied or owned by another, and the twenty-four (24) hour removal period required by
this ordinance shall not relieve any such user of any applicable civil liability, including but not limited to a
cause of action for trespass or nuisance.

4



Health concerns related to fireworks beyond the impact of noise.

Pollutants enter air/ waterways for miles and days after fireworks events. The Root River
Tributary abuts this location as well as being adjacent to parks/ conservancies. Perchlorate is
commonly used in solid rocket propellants, munitions, fireworks, airbag initiators for vehicles
and signal flares.

A more environmentally friendly option would be a drone displaywith restrictions on the noise.

https://www.facebook.com/au.hazmat/photos/a .469349130205703/1114121795728430/2yp
e=3

March 23, 2021

U.S.A, MICHIGAN, OSCEOLA CO, EVART:
Bombers Fireworks Canceled Due to Perchlorates Concerns
• Fireworks for Battle Creek Bombers (Northwoods League) games at C.O. Brown Stadium
have been canceled indefinitely after perchlorates, used as a propellent in fireworks, were
found in the groundwater in Evart.
• Evart, Ml is located 120 miles away from Battle Creek, it's not a situation of the Bombers
created this pollution, as reported in a Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes &
Energy; it's that the fireworks could cause groundwater pollution. The ballpark is located in the
city's wellfield, serving as Battle Creek's only municipal water source.
• The presence of perchlorates in the Battle Creek area and its cause is being disputed by the
Bombers, who point to other studies of wells in the area as being clear of perch lo rates,
specifically, four Verona wells were tested in May 2020

Forbes report on fireworks producing pollution;

https://www.forbes.com/sites/grrlscientist/2019/12/31/festive-fireworks-create-harmful-pall
of-pollution/?sh=7fb9bfab2853

Festive Fireworks Create Harmful Pall Of Pollution
Fireworks create highly toxic gases and pollutants that poison the air, the water and the soil,
making them toxic to birds, wildlife, pets, livestock- and people - but there are
environmentally-friendly alternatives available

Pollutants released by fireworks travel far from their origin. Several studies revealed that in
mild weather, tagged heavy metals used in pyrotechnics traveled 100 km (62 miles) downwind
over a two-day period (i.e.; ref & ref). Among the pollutants traced were: strontium, vanadium
(V), potassium, titanium (Ti), barium, copper, lead, magnesium, aluminum (Al) and zinc (Zn).
These heavy metals add to the toxic pollution in the air. Further, the environmental impacts of
these emissions are not confined to the air because these heavy metals are washed out of the
air by rainfall, and accumulate in- and pollute - local watersheds.



Most urban areas have fireworks displays on two or three nights per year.

Despite the ephemeral nature of fireworks, the toxic chemicals they add to the environment
are permanent, and every year, we add more to this toxic mix. And of course, don't forget that
there are many other sources of environmental pollution, and the accumulation of all these
toxic chemicals is deeply concerning.

Health impacts of pyrotechnic pollution

Currently, there is not much published research that focuses specifically on the health impacts
of fireworks, but they do use a variety of Persistent, Bioaccumulative, and Toxic
chemicals (PBTs) to create their effects. We do know PBTs remain in the environment for very
long periods of time, that they are highly resistant to degradation, and they easily enter and
quickly accumulate in the food chain.

That said, a 2010 study used epidemiological data to estimate the likely health impacts from
fireworks pollution and found that the relative risk of cardiovascular mortality increased to as
high as 125.11% and the relative risk for cardiovascular morbidity increased by 175.16% over a
regular winter day (ref).

Further, hospital admissions for asthma and other breathing problems peak the day following a
fireworks display.

Pyrotechnic pollution in the environment

Thanks to climate change-triggered droughts, clean and safe drinking water is becoming ever
more precious - and rare. Despite this, many urban fireworks shows are held over, or adjacent
to, a body of water to reduce the likelihood of fire. This, of course, increases a plethora of
fireworks pollutants in water. For example, one study found perchlorate concentrations in
surface water of a municipal lake located next to a fireworks show spiked 14 hours afterwards,
reaching levels from 24 to 1028 times the mean baseline value, and decreased back to
background levels within 20 to 80 days (ref). (Perchlorate is an inorganic chemical used in
fireworks and other explosives.) Another study found perchlorate in groundwater and surface
water, especially in the vicinity of fireworks manufacturing sites and fireworks display sites
(ref).

Although there is a fairly large body of work on perchlorate pollution, the health and ecological
impacts of perchlorate have not been fully assessed. Nevertheless, the evidence shows that
perchlorate contaminants are emerging as potent thyroid disruptors, with far-reaching
ecological impacts too



BLANK PAGE



Page 1"1:.
License Committee

Administrative Rules and Procedures

Article I. Name of Committee

The name of this Committee shall be the "License Committee" of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as the "Committee".

Article II. Authorization

The authorization for the establishment of the Committee is set forth in $10-22. of the
Municipal Code of Franklin, Wisconsin, as amended, hereinafter referred to as $10
22.", which is incorporated herein by this reference and is presented in Exhibit A.

Article III. Membership

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

Section 6.

The composition of the Committee shall be as established in $10-22. and as may
otherwise be specified by the Common Council.

The terms of the members shall be as established in $10-22. and as may otherwise be
specified by the Common Council.

Each member shall have one (1) vote. The Chairman votes according to Common
Council policy, which follows Roberts Rules of Order. Voting by proxy is not
permitted. On a tie vote, the motion is lost. In the event the Committee is comprised of
co-chair status for each member, each member shall have a vote on all matters, absent
any conflict of interest or any other reason for abstention.

All members shall serve without compensation.

A quorum shall be two (2) members.

Actions, communications, etc. of Committee members shall be subject to the provisions
of the Wisconsin Statutes, including but not limited to the Open Meetings Act, and the
Municipal Code and policies of the City of Franklin, including but not limited to the
Code of Ethics.

Article IV. Duties

Section 1.

Section 2.

The duties of the Committee shall be as established in $10-22. of the Municipal Code of
the City of Franklin, and as may otherwise be specified by the Common Council.

The City of Franklin's City Clerk or designee shall provide administrative staff support
to the Committee.



City of Franklin License Committee Administrative Rules and Procedures

Article V. Officers

Page 2

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

The officers of the Committee shall be the Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary. In the
event the Committee is comprised of Co-Chair status for each member, one member
shall additionally be elected Secretary and no Vic-Chair shall be elected during such
status.

The Chair and Vice-Chair shall be elected by and from the Committee members.

The term of Chair and Vice-Chair shall be from election to the next election. Elections
to fill these offices shall be held at the first Committee meeting and the first Committee
meeting on or after May 1 of each subsequent year. Elections to fill vacancies will be
held at the first Committee meeting after the vacancy occurs.

The Chair shall preside at all meetings and hearings of the Committee and shall have
the duties normally conferred by parliamentary usage to such office. The Chair, with
the assistance of the City Clerk, shall:

a) Call meetings of the Committee as needed to fulfill the duties of the Committee
and determine the time and place of such meetings.

b) Prepare agendas for meetings.
c) Prepare reports of Committee actions.
d) Provide notice to all Committee members.
e) Attend to correspondence of the Committee as approved by the Committee.
f) Determine that the Secretary keeps the official records of the Committee.
g) Determine that all Committee members have these Administrative Rules and

Procedures and such other records as may be necessary for the satisfactory
conduct of the duties of Committee members.

h) Have other duties as may from time to time be assigned by the Committee.

When the Chair is unable to preside or fulfill the duties of the Chair, the Vice-Chair (or
Co-Chair) shall preside and assume the duties of the Chair until the Chair is able to
preside.

Article VI. Committees, Subcommittees

Section 1.

Section 2.

The Committee may establish committees and subcommittees as deemed appropriate or
necessary to fulfill the duties of the Committee.

The Chair shall appoint committee and subcommittee members and officers.



City of Franklin License Committee Administrative Rules and Procedures

Article VII. Meetings

Page 3

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

Section 6.

Section 7.

Section 8.

Section 9.

The Committee, its committees and subcommittees shall meet as needed to fulfill the
duties of the Committee.

The Committee shall meet at the call of the Chairman as needed to fulfill the duties of
the Committee.

All meetings of the Committee shall be open to the general public, subject to the
provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes (Open Meetings Act).

Except as otherwise provided herein or specified by the Common Council, the
parliamentary procedure of the Committee shall be as provided in Robert's Rules of
Order Newly Revised, as approved by the Common Council.

A record of all Committee actions shall be kept as part of its minutes.

Any member of the Committee may place on a Committee agenda for consideration,
discussion, action, etc. any matter that is properly within or related to the duties, rules,
procedures, activities, etc. of the Committee, by notice to the Chair and the Secretary.

All materials and information related to matters to be considered by the Committee
shall be delivered to the City Clerk not later than seven (7) working days preceding the
meeting at which the matter is to be considered. Matters submitted for consideration by
the Committee may be rescheduled to a subsequent Committee meeting when the
Committee has determined that any required materials and information have not been
received by the specified time.

Agendas and other materials for each meeting shall, whenever possible, be mailed to the
members of the Committee not later than three (3) working days preceding the meeting.

Revisions or amendments to these Administrative Rules and Procedures (except items
established in the statutes and regulations of the State of Wisconsin or the Municipal
Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, which shall be as adopted by the applicable
authoritative body), shall require approval of a majority of all the members of the
Committee and approval by the Common Council. All other actions shall require
approval of a majority of all the members of the Committee.



City of Franklin License Committee Administrative Rules and Procedures

Article VIII. Order of Business

Page 4

Section 1.

Section 2.

Each Committee agenda shall provide for the following order of business:

I. Call to order and roll call
II. Approval ofminutes ofprevious meeting(s)
III. Old business (listed)
IV. New business (listed)
V. Other business (e.g., items for future agendas, Committee rules and procedures,

etc.)
VI. Schedule next meeting
VII. Adjournment

In general, the order of business shall follow the printed agenda. The order of business
may vary from the printed agenda by consensus of the Committee members present.

Article IX. Non-member Participation

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Letters, documents and other records relevant to matters before the Committee or within
Committee duties are welcome at any time by submission to the Secretary, subject to
timing requirements established elsewhere herein. Submissions related to a specific
matter before the Committee will be considered when the specific matter is considered.
Submissions related to other matters within the Committee duties will be considered in
the Other Business section of the agenda or as otherwise deemed applicable by the
Committee.

Except for properly noticed and scheduled public hearings, non-member testimony
during Committee meetings shall be limited to a) applicants with matters before the
Committee, b) persons with knowledge or expertise relevant to matters before the
Committee or within Committee duties and c) the Mayor and Aldermen of the City of
Franklin. Such non-member testimony shall be permitted at the discretion of and upon
recognition by the Chair or on consensus of the Committee members present, and upon
statement of name, address and basis for testimony.

At a properly noticed and scheduled public hearing of the Committee, any person may
speak on the specified subject of the hearing upon recognition by the Chair and
statement of name and primary residence address.

Article X. Reconsideration

Section 1. The Committee may reconsider any action taken by it during the same meeting at which
the action was taken and at the next succeeding meeting.



License Committee

Administrative Rules and Procedures

Table ofContents

Page Article Title

1 I Name ofCommittee
1 II Authorization
1 III Membership
1 IV Duties
2 V Officers
2 VI Committees, Subcommittees
3 VII Meetings
4 VIII Order ofBusiness
4 IX Non-members Participation
4 X Reconsideration

Exhibit

A. § 10-22. Of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin.

EXHIBIT A.

§10-22. License Committee. [Added 3-6-2001 by Ordinance No. 2001-1639]

The License Committee shall consist ofthree Alderpersons appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the Common Council, each to serve a one-year term commencing May 1.
(See §19-4. of this Code.)



(
STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2010 6636

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING ALCOHOLBEVERAGE LICENSES
ENFORCEMENTPOLICY GUIDELINES

r

WHEREAS, the Common Council having directed the License Committee,
upon the Committee's recommendation, to prepare policy guidelines for use by the
Committee and the Common Council in reviewing alcohol license matters which may
involve the consideration of a denial, non-renewal or revocation of a license, to assist
the Committee and the Common Council in those deliberations; and

WHEREAS, the License Committee having reviewed other municipal and
state alcohol beverage license enforcement policy guidelines and having prepared a
policy thereafter and having recommended its adoption at its special meeting on
March 15, 2010 and the Common Council having considered such recommendation
and having determined that the proposed policy guidelines will serve to protect the
health, safety and welfare ofthe Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common
Council of the City ofFrankl.in, Wisconsin, that the City ofFranklin Alcohol Beverage
Licenses Enforcement Policy Guidelines, in the content as annexed hereto, be and the
same are hereby approved.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this 16th dayof March ,2010.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 16th day of March 2010.

APPROVED:

Tho

ATTEST:

a-K)ea±lourkt
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES 5 NOES 1 ABSENT o---
(Ald. Sohns)

1



CITYOF FRANKLIN
ALCOHOLBEVERAGELICENSES

ENFORCEMENTPOLICYGUIDELINES

Intent. As it is the responsibility of the License Committee ("Committee") of the Franklin
Common Council to screen applications for alcohol beverage licenses withinthe City ofFranklin
and to make recommendations thereupon to the Comm.on Council for its decision under the licensing
authority granted by Chapter 125 of the Wisconsin Statutes and Chapters 158 and 169 of the
Municipal Code ofthe City ofFranklin, the Committee recommends and the Common Council
adopts the following guidelines in order to specify the reasons for denying, non-renewing or
revoking an alcohol beverage license. If a decision is made to deny, revoke, suspend or non
renew a license, the Council is required to provide that person with a written reason for the
denial. These guidelines are adopted to assist the Committee in its reviews and recommendations
and the Common Council in its decision-making, to meetthatrequirement.

The following guidelines are established by the Common Council to provide a framework for
which persons are eligible for issuance ofan alcohol beverage license (ie. grounds for denial) and
a framework for suspension, revocation or non-renewal. There is broad discretion retained on
behalf of the Committee and the Common Council to consider each case on an individual
basis. Deviation from the guidelines may be allowed if unusual, exaggerated or mitigating
circumstances exist, which may include, but are not limited to, the particular circumstances
documented or the length oftime thathas expired since the offense.

Since alcohol beverage licenseholders must act in cooperation with law enforcement to enforce
the alcohol beverage laws, drunk driving laws, and assist with minimizing disturbances of the
peace and maintaining the safety of the community, individuals with. a past history of negative or
uncooperative contacts with police agencies should be scrutinized; provided, however, that the
Committee and the Common Council shall not discriminate against such applicants based on a
prior arrest or conviction record, pursuant to Wm. Stat. $$ 111.321, 111.322, 111.335 and
125.12(1)b), unless said arrest or convictionrecord substantially relates to the circumstances of
the particular licensed activity. It is with these goals in mind, as well, that these guidelines are
adopted.

£

t

For purposes of these guidelines, an "alcohol beverage license? "license" or "permit"
constitutes a retail license or an operators license. Additionally, the definition of "person" shall
be as defined in Wis. Stat. $ 125.02(14) of the Wisconsin Statutes and $158-1. of the
Municipal Code of the City ofFranklin. Therefore, these guidelines also apply to corporations,
limited liability companies, agents, and partnerships. A corporation or limited liability company
with an arrest or conviction record may be issued a license if the corporation or limited liability
company has terminated its relationship with all the individuals whose actions directly
contributed to the conviction [$ 125.04(5C) and $158-1.]. Furthermore, to the extent Wis.
Stat. Ch. 125 or Franklin Ordinances provide additional grounds for denial, suspension,
revocation or non-renewal, the Committeemay also rely on such provisions.

Page 1 of4
168



The Common Council will only deny renewal of, suspend or revoke a current alcohol
beverage license under these guidelines, or other justification provided by law, if the person
committed an offense substantially related to the licensed activity within the license year
period immediately preceding the year for which the person is seeking renewal or within the
license year period in which suspension or revocation is sought, unless the Police Chief
demonstrates that previous offenses were not considered in the approval of the current
license. In the event the person is considered for non-renewal, suspension or revocation as the
result of such an offense, the Committee and Common Council shall consider all offenses,
regardless ofwhen they occurred, to determine application ofthese guidelines.

Additionally, with respect to a non-natural person, such person's license may be revoked,
suspended or non-renewed in the event a new officer, .director, member, or manager, is named and
such person does not qualify under these guidelines; with the exception that a corporation or limited
liability company may retain its license if it terminates its relationship with all the individuals
whose actions directly contributed to the conviction. With respect to successor agents, see Wis.
Stat.§ 125.04(6).

Notwithstancling the above, the following violations may not be used as grounds for suspension,
revocation or non-renewal ofan existing license:
l. furnishing alcohol beverages to underage persons (unless the licensee has

committed
two (2) violationswithin a one (1) year period), or

2. Violations punishable under Wis. Stat. $ 945.03(2m), 945.04(2m) or 945.05(1m)
(relating to commercial gambling and gambling devices).

A copy ofthese guidelines shall be provided to each person who applies for a license.

GUIDELJNES

Guideline 1. Provided the offense is substantially related to the circumstances of the licensed
activity, any person who has been convicted of any felony, unless duly pardoned, does not qualify
for an alcohol beverage license. (To the extent the other guidelines reference a specific offense, this
guideline shall apply ifthe offense constitutes a felony.)

Guideline 2. Provided the offense is substantially related to the circumstances of the licensed
activity, any person who has been convicted of: released from incarceration in a State or Federal
Prison System, or a county jail for, or released from parole or probation status, or has a current
charge pending, for two (2) or more offenses, arising out of separate incidents, within the last ten
(10) years in the following subcategories, does not qualify for an alcoholbeverage license:
(a) Violent crimes against the person of another, including but not limited to homicide,

aggravated battery, sexual assault, injury by negligent use of a weapon, injury by negligent
use ofa vehicle, or injury by intoxicated use ofavehicle.

(b) Crimes involving cooperation (or lack thereof) withlaw enforcement officials, including but

Page2 of4,



not limited to, obstructing a police officer, resisting arrest, bribery of public officers or
employees, misconduct inpublic office, bomb scares, or acts or threats ofterrorism.

(c) Manufacturing, distributing, delivering a controlled substance or a controlled substance(
analog; possessing with intent to manufacture, distribute or deliver, a controlled substance
or a controlled substance analog.

Guideline 3. Provided the offense is substantially related to the circumstances of the licensed
activity, any person who has been convicted of, released from incarceration in a State or Federal
Prison System, or a county jail for, or released from parole or probation status, or has a current
charge pending, for two (2) or more offenses, arising out of separate incidents, within the last
seven (7) years in the following subcategories, does not qualify for an alcohol beverage license:
(a) Disorderly conduct, criminal damage to property, solicitation of prostitution or other

prostitution related offenses, wherein the offense involves an incident at a place that is, or
shouldhavebeen licensed underWis. Stat CH. 125.

(b) Alcohol beverage offenses (under Wis. Stat Ch. 125 or Franklin Ordinance Chs. 158 or
169 - excluding administrative violations such as "failure to post license under glass")
(furnishing alcohol beverages to underage persons shall not be used as grounds for
suspension, revocation, or non-renewal of an existing license unless the licensee has
committed two (2) violationswithin a one (1) yearperiod).

(c) Perjury or false swearing, wherein the offense involves an incident at a place that is, or
shouldhavebeen licensed underWis. Stat. Ch. 125.

(d) Possessing a controlled substance, controlled substance analog or drug paraphernalia.
(e) Operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of intoxicants or drugs.
(f) Operating a motor vehicle with a BAC in excess of .08% by weight.
(g) Open intoxicants in public places or in a motor vehicle.

Guideline 4. Provided the offenses are substantially related to the circumstances of the licensed
activity, any person who is an habitual law offender does not qualify for an alcohol beverage
license. To constitute an habitual law offender there need not have been a trial or conviction for
each or any offense. What is required is that the offenses were committed, that the law has been
violated, and that the fact of such violations can be shown. See Smith v. City ofOak Creek, 139
Wis. 2d 788 (1987). For purposes of these guidelines, an habitual offender includes, but is not
limited to a person who has committed two (2) ormore offenses, each a separate incident, within the
immediately preceding five (5) years.

Guideline 5. In addition to the other provisions under these guidelines, pursuant to Wis. Stat §
125.12, a person's alcohol beverage license may be denied, non-renewed, suspended or revoked if
the person:
(a) Keeps or maintains a disorderly or riotous, indecent or improperhouse.
(b) Sold or has given away alcohol beverages to known habitual drunkards.
(c) Does not possess the qualifications under Chapter 125 of the Wisconsin Statutes and

Chapters 158 and 169 ofthe Municipal Code ofthe City ofFranklin to hold a license.
(d) Was issued a license in conjunction with a warning letter as to any future law violations,

regardless of whether the basis for the warning letter was conduct occurring earlier or
outside of any of the time limits set forth in Guidelines 2., 3. and 4. above, and has
committed a law violation subsequent to the issuance ofthe warning letter.

Guideline 6. Any person who materially falsifies an application for an alcohol beverage license
will not be eligible to re-apply for an alcohol beverage license for a period of six (6) months from
the date of denial of such application. The Committee withinits review and recommendation process

Page3 of4
170



and the Common Councilmay waive the provisions ofthis paragraph, allowthe applicant to submit a
corrected application, with the appropriate fee, and grant an alcohol beverage license to the person,
if it appears to the Common Council that any falsifications on the application were the result of
inadvertence, excusable neglect or mistake.

Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence or phrase of this Policy is for any reason held to
be invalid or unconstitutional by reason of a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such
decision shall not affect the validity ofany other section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase.

Conflict. Any impermissible conflict between Wis. Stat. Ch. 125, Chs. 158 and 169 of the
Municipal Code of the City ofFranklin and this policy shall be decided on the order ofprecedence
which shall be the order listed in this sentence.

This policy will go into effect on the 1st day ofMay, 2010.

Page 4 of4



Notice to All Licensees:

Be sure youread andunderstand this publication. Youare held responsible for
obeying Wisconsin's Alcohol Beverage andTobacco Laws. Failure to follow these laws

may result in criminal prosecution, with penalties resulting in fines, imprisonment
and/or loss oflicense.

· ·:._ . : ··· ,_,:-_·.·~-----n-"° · ·· .. '!'c '"' ---~-,- ··B· · · · · r·0-a1·. ,c. ·CityofFrankl restrictions - Ours 0 o.e 1or
. 1at0xicatingLiquor

.•

'·

C.

172



WisconsinDepartment of."
Egle #ez

Revenue

Information for
Wisconsin Alcohol
Beverage and Tobacco
Retailers
Includes information on:
• Licenses and permits
• Prohibited activities
• Underage persons and minors
• Cigarette and tobacco products
• Vapor products
• Video gambling

Publication 302 (11/21)



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
e

1. INTRODUCTION {

2. DEFINITIONS 4

3. MUNICIPAL RETAIL LICENSES 5

A. General 5
B. License Requirements 5

4. OTHER LICENSES, PERMITS AND REGISTRATIONS 9

A. Seller's Permit 9
B. Federal Alcohol Dealer Registration 9

5. PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES 9

A. Unlicensed Premises Sales 9
B. Sale to Other Licensees 10
C. Sales to Intoxicated Persons 10
D. Refilled Liquor Bottles 10
E. Corkage Fees 10
F. Giveaways 10
G. Minimum Markup 10

6. UNDERAGE PERSONS AND MINORS 11

A. Entering Licensed Premises 11
B. Verifying Identification and Age 1 "'.I

£
C. Possession by Underage Persons , :..
D. Sales and Service to Underage Persons 14
E. Employing Minors 14
F Other 15
G. Penalties 15

7. RECORDKEEPING 16

A. Invoices 16
B. Identification Register 16

8. OTHER ALCOHOL BEVERAGE INFORMATION 17

A. Payment for Alcohol Beverages 17
B. Nonalcohol Beverages 17
C. Temporary Class "B" and "Class B" Licenses 17
D. Inspection of Licensed Premises 18

9. CIGARETTE AND TOBACCO PRODUCTS 19

A. Definitions 19
B. Licenses 19
C. Purchases 20
D. Sales 20

E. Minors \

'10. VAPOR PRODUCTS 20

A. Definitions 20
B. Permit 21

174



C. Taxes 21
11. VIDEO GAMBLING 21

A. Enforcement 22
B. Violations 22
C. Taxes 22

12. RESOURCES 22
A. Wholesale Permit Holders List 22
B. Published Guidance ....................•...................................................................................................................... 23
C. Alcohol Beverage News 23
D. DOR Assistance 23



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

IMPORTANT CHANGES
>

• Publication Reorganization. The publication has been revised to group similar topics into sections. Substantiv
changes to the publication follow.

• Liquor Sales Limits. Effective June 26, 2019, the sale of intoxicating liquor for off-premises consumption by "Class
B" licensees is no longer limited to four liters at one time. Municipalities may enact ordinances allowing retail
"Class B" (liquor) license holders to sell intoxicating liquor in the original package or container in any quantity for
consumption off the licensed premises. Pages 8 and 9.

• Vapor Products. Effective October 1, 2019, an excise tax is imposed on the sale of liquid, gel, or other substances
used in e-cigarettes at the rate of 5 cents per milliliter of the liquid or other substance producingvapor or aerosol
for inhalation from the application of a heating element, regardless of whether the liquid contains nicotine.

Vapor product retailers without a tobacco products distributor permit purchasing untaxed vapor products must
obtain a vapor products distributor's permit and file tax returns. For additional information see Fact Sheet 3501.
Pages 20 and 21.

e Music Festivals. Effective May 26, 2017, unaccompanied underage persons are allowed on the alcohol licensed
premises of a music festival venue during an event with a projected attendance of at least 2,500 persons.
Page 12.

• Permit Listings. The Department of Revenue (DOR) now publishes on its website lists of permittees from whom
retailers may purchase beer, cigarettes, and tobacco. Go to www.revenue.wi.gov, click on Reports and then
search "permit". Page 22.

• False Information Penalty. Effective July 1, 2018, a penalty of not more than $1,000 may be imposed on any
person who knowingly provides materially false information in an alcohol beverage, cigarette or tobacco product
license or permit application. Page 8. {

1. INTRODUCTION

This publication provides information about Wisconsin's alcohol beverage, tobacco, and vapor products laws that
affect retailers. The information summarizes laws in chs. 125, 134, 139, and 945 Wis. Stats.

Municipal ordinances may also affect retailers. Contact your municipal clerk if you have questions about local
ordinances.

2. DEFINITIONS

The following terms are used for purposes of this publication.

Adult - A person 18 years of age or older.

Alcohol Beverages-A statutory term which includes beer, wine, and liquor.

h"""materweass«rv» woe.sos

Back to Table of tents



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

Cider -- An alcohol beverage obtained by fermentation of the juice of apples or pears that contains 0.5 to 7 .0 percent
alcohol by volume. "Cider" may be flavored, sparkling, and/or carbonated.

Class "A" Beer License -Authorizes the retail sale of beer in the original sealed containers for consumption off the
licensed premises.

"Class A" Liquor License-Authorizes the retail sale of liquor, including wine and cider, in the original containers for
consumption off the licensed premises.

"Class A" (Cider Only) License -Authorizes the retail sale of cider, but no other intoxicating liquor, in the original
containers for consumption off the licensed premises

Class "B" Beer License -Authorizes the retail sale of beer for consumption on and off the licensed premises.

"Class B" Liquor License - Authorizes the retail sale of liquor by the glass for consumption on or off the licensed
premises and, if allowed by municipal ordinance, in the original sealed container for off-premises consumption.

"Class C" Wine License-Authorizes the retail sale of wine by the glass for consumption on the licensed premises.

Intoxicating Liquor (or Liquor) - Alcohol beverages, except beer, containing 0.5% or more alcohol by volume,
including wine.

Legal Drinking Age- 21 years of age.

Minor -A person under 18 years of age.

Painting Studio -- An establishment primarily engaged in the business of providing to customers instruction in the
art of painting that offers customers the opportunity to purchase food and beverage for consumption while they
paint.

Provisional Retail License-Authorizes activities of a regular retail licenses for 60 days or until a regular license is
issued, whichever is sooner.

Underage Person -- A person who is not of legal drinking age.

3. MUNICIPAL RETAIL LICENSES

A. General

A license is a privilege granted by a municipality (city, village, or town) to a person {e.g., natural person,
partnership, limited liability company, or corporation} that authorizes the sale of alcohol beverages for a
specified time period. The governing body of the municipality may, but is not required to, issue retail liquor and
beer licenses. The municipality may refuse to issue retail licenses if it uses good judgment and does not
discriminate between applicants.

B. License Requirements

License requirements and who may issue them are provided by Wisconsin statute and established by ordinance.
License requirements for all retail licenses and specific licenses follow.

(1) All Licenses

• Face-to-Face Sales at Licensed Premises -With limited exceptions, alcohol beverages may only be sold
to consumers who are physically at the licensed premises. (secs. 125.272 and 125.51(6), Wis. Stats.)

~==~= ~~ - .......~-~-. --,..;,---,• --....""~""""'~~-,.,--ee,-·•,,e;,~,~'7~



Informationfor WisconsinAlcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

Example:The following sales of alcohol beverages are prohibited because they were not made face-to
face with the consumer on the licensed premises:

o Customer phones Pizza Parlor, which holds a Class "B" beer license. Customer orders a pizza a{
six-pack of beer for delivery to their home.

o A person calls Liquor Store and requests two half-barrels of beer delivered to their home.

o A home-delivery grocery service takes an internet order for the sale and delivery of wine and beer
for a holiday party, receiving payment electronically.

• Closing Hours-Customers must leave the premises bythe closing hour noted under the specific licenses
below. Internal business operations, such as counting cash, cleaning, repairs, etc., may be done after
hours, but licensees must prove that anyone on the premises after hours is there for these purposes.

Exceptions:

o Class "A" premises may remain open for the conduct of regular business but may not sell beer
between 12 midnight and 6 a.m., or at any other time during which the sale of beer is prohibited by
a municipal ordinance.

o The following businesses holding "Class B" and Class "B" licenses may remain open after closing
hours noted below to conduct their regular business, although they may not permit consumption
of, or sell, alcohol beverages after those closing hours:

✓ Hotels and restaurants whose "principal business" is furnishing lodging and food to customers

"Principal business" means the primary activity as determined by analyzing the amount of
capital, labor, time, attention, and floor space devoted to each business activity and by analyzing
the sources of net income and gross income. The name, appearance, and advertising of the
entity may also be considered if given less weight.

✓ Bowling centers

✓ Movie theaters

✓ Painting studios
✓ Indoor horseshoe-pitching facilities
✓ Indoor golf and baseball facilities

✓ Golf courses and clubhouses

✓ Curling clubs

✓ Racetrack grounds as defined in sec. 125.27(5)(a), Wis. Stats.

For determining closing hours, Daylight Saving Time begins at 2:00 a.m. the second Sunday in March
and ends at 2:00 a.m. the first Sunday in November. Therefore:

o Clocks are set ahead one hour at 2:00 a.m. the second Sunday in March. Taverns must close at 3:30
a.m. Central Daylight Time on this date.

o On the first Sunday in November, the clocks are set back an hour at 2:00 a.m. Taverns must close at
2:30 a.m. Central Standard Time.

• licensed Premises Supervision- Except in Class "A" beer premises between midnight and 6:00 a.m. (or
any time when the sale of beer is prohibited by municipal ordinance), one of the following must be
present on licensed premises during business hours:

o Licensee

o Person with an operator's or manager's license

q:J.-,,~ ~ ,-,,__ ,., ~--~ "-~- ' .
Rrt+ Tahlorkl}mr



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

o Adult member of licensee's immediate family (living in the licensee's household)

o Corporation's or limited liability company's agent

o Provisional operator's license holder

The holdermust be enrolled in the responsible beverage server training course pending approval of
the operator's license.

Note: "Immediate supervision" means the licensed person must be able to watch and supervise each
unlicensed person's actions. The licensed person must be in the same room or area as the unlicensed
person or near enough to see and talk to him or her.

An adult working under the immediate supervision of any of the above does not need an operator's
license.

An operator's license is only valid in the municipality where it has been issued. It does not apply in other
municipalities.

Licensees may be prosecuted for not having the required supervision on their premises.

e Alcohol Beverage Seller/Server Training Course -- As a condition of licensing, applicants must
successfully complete an approved alcohol beverage seller/server training course, unless the person:

o Is renewing a retail or an operator's (bartender's) license

o Was an agent within the last two years for a corporation or limited liability company that held a
Class "A" beer, Class "B" beer, "Class A" liquor, "Class A" (cider only), "Class B" liquor, or "Class C"
wine license

o Held a retail license or an operator's or manager's license during the past two years

o Completed an approved course within the past two years

Approved classroom and online courses are listed on the DOR's website at revenue.wi.gov; search
"Alcohol Seller/Server."

• Display Framed License-All alcohol beverage licenses must be framed and displayed in the room where
the licensed activity occurs. Anyone visiting the business should easily see the licenses. Any related
permits and licenses (e.g., seller's permit) should be displayed with the alcohol beverage license.

(2) Provisional Retail License

• Issued by a designated municipal official only to a person applying for a Class "A" beer, Class "B" beer,
"Class A" liquor, "Class B" liquor, or "Class C" wine licenses.

• Fee determined locally not to exceed $15.

• Expires 60 days after issuance or when the person is issued a license, whichever occurs first.

• May be revoked and/or penalty imposed of not more than $1,000 if issuing official discovers the holder
knowingly provided false information in the application.

• "Class B" liquor license may not be issued if it would exceed the municipality's quota.

• Not more than one provisional retail license may be issued for each type of license applied for by the
holder per year.

(3) Class "A" Beer License

• Authorizes the retail sale of beer in the original sealed containers for consumption off the licensed
premises in any quantity.



InformationforWisconsinAlcohol Beverage andTobacco Retailers Publication 302

• Beer sales are prohibited between 12 midnight and 6:00 a.m.

• Municipalities may further restrict sales hours by local ordinance.

• May give customers two free 3-ounce taste samples between 11:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m.

(4) "Class A" Liquor License

• Authorizes the retail sale of liquor, including wine and ciaer, in the original containers for consumption
off the licensed premises in any quantity.

• Intoxicating liquor sales are prohibited between 9:00 p.m.-6:00 a.m.

• Municipalities may further restrict sales hours by local ordinance.

• Unless prohibited by municipal ordinance, may give customers two free 3-ounce taste samples of wine
between 11:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m.

• May give customers one free 0.5-ounce taste sample of intoxicating liquor, except wine, between
11:00 a.m. -7:00 p.m.

(5) "Class A" (Cider Only) Liquor License

• Authorizes the retail sale of cider in the original containers for consumption off the licensed premises
in any quantity.

• Issued only to persons holding a Class "A" beer license for the same premises.

• Unless prohibited by municipal ordinance, may give customers two free 3-ounce taste samples of
cider between 11:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m.

(6) Class "B" Beer License

• Authorizes the retail sale of beer for consumption on and offthe licensed premises in any quantity. The
premises must be closed between the following hours:

o Monday through Friday-2:00 a.m. to 6:00 a.m.

o Saturday and Sunday-2:30 a.m. to 6:00 a.m.

o Second Sunday in March --3:30 a.m. to 6:00 a.m.

Closing is not required on New Year's Eve.

Municipalities may not further restrict the closing hours.

• Beer sales for off-premises consumption are prohibited between 12:00 midnight and 6:00 a.m.

Municipalities may further restrict these sales hours by local ordinance.

(7) "Class B" Liquor License

• Authorizes the retail sale of liquor by the glass for consumption on or off the licensed premises.

• A single, open bottle of wine may be taken off the licensed premises if ordered with a meal,
accompanied by a dated receipt, and re-corked prior to taking offthe licensed premises.

• Wine may be sold in its original container, in any quantity, for on and off-premises consumption. t
,,

• Closing hours are the same as Class "B" beer license.

Back to Tahte ardlkents



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage andTobacco Retailers Publication 302

Exception: A winery that has a "Class B" (wine only) license issued under sec. 125.51(3)(am), Wis. Stats.,
must close between 9:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m.

• A municipality may allow "Class B" licensees to make retail sales of intoxicating liquor for
off-premises consumption. Check with your municipality to see if this is allowed.

(8) "Class C" Wine License

o Authorizes the retail sale of wine by the glass for consumption on the licensed premises.

o A single, open bottle of wine may be taken off the licensed premises if ordered with a meal,
accompanied by a dated receipt, and re-corked prior to taking offthe licensed premises.

o Closing hours are generally the same as Class "B" beer license.

4. OTHER LICENSES, PERMITS AND REGISTRATIONS

A. Seller's Permit

Every individual, partnership, corporation, or other organization that sells, leases, rents, or licenses tangible
personal property (e.g., alcohol beverages), taxable services and other taxable products in Wisconsin must have
a seller's permit, unless all sales are exempt fromWisconsin sales or use tax.

Example: A nonprofit organization's sales of tangible personal property, including alcohol beverages, taxable
services, and other taxable products are exempt from Wisconsin sales or use tax as occasional sales if (1) its
sales of taxable products do not occur on more than 75 days during the calendar year or taxable sales do not
exceed $50,000 for the calendar year, (2) entertainment at an admission event is not paid more than $10,000,
and (3) it does not hold a seller's permit. For more information about the occasional sales exemption for
nonprofit organizations, see Wisconsin Publication 206, Sales Tax Exemptions for Nonprofit Organizations,

The alcohol beverage license and seller's permit must be issued in the same legal name {see exception below).
If the alcohol beverage license is issued to a partnership or corporation, the seller's permit must be also. A
limited liability company's (LLC) alcohol beverage license must be in the LLC's legal name, not the trade name
or owner's name.

Exception: If an alcohol beverage license is issued to an LLC, disregarded for income tax purposes, with a single
member (owner), the LLC's seller's permit may be issued in the name of the single owner. If an LLC applies for
an alcohol beverage license and furnishes a seller's permit that is not in the legal name of the LLC, the
municipality should call DOR at (608) 266-2776 or email DORSalesandUse@wisconsin.gov to verify whether the
seller's permit is valid for the LLC.

B. Federal Alcohol Dealer Registration

Before beginning business, every retail licensee must register as an alcohol dealerwith the federal Department
of Treasury, Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau {TTB), using Form 5630.Sd. Once registered, any change
to legal name, trade name, address, premises location, telephone number, business type, or FEIN should be
reported before the subsequent July 1 using the same form.

5. PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES

A. Unlicensed Premises Sales

The sale of alcohol beverages at an unlicensed premises is prohibited (see sec. 125.06, Wis. Stats., for a list of
exceptions).



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

"sale," "sold," or "sell" includes the transfer, gift, barter, trade, exchange, or any shift, device, scheme, or other
transaction to obtain alcohol beverages.

B. Sale to Other Licensees

Sales of alcohol beverages by an alcohol beverage licensee to another retail licensees for resale are prohibited.

Exception: If a licensed business is sold, it may transfer its sealed liquor, wine, and beer (alcohol beverage)
inventory to another retail licensee in Wisconsin. Cigarettes and tobacco products may not be similarly
transferred.

In place of invoices, list the entire sealed inventory of the stocktransferred using Form AT900, Alcohol Beverage
Stock Transfer, available at revenue.wi.gov. Make a copy for the buyer and keep the original for your records.
The buyer must keep the copy on its licensed premises for two years.

C. Sales to Intoxicated Persons

It is illegal to furnish alcohol beverages to an intoxicated person. The penalty for this violation is a fine of $100
to $500, imprisonment for not more than 60 days, or both.

D. Refilled Liquor Bottles

It is illegal to refill liquor bottles with any substance, even the same brand of liquor.

When a bottle is empty, deface its label. Break the bottle unless placed in a container marked "For Recycling
Only."

E. Corkage Fees

If the restaurant has an alcohol beverage license, the only alcohol beverages allowed on the premises are those
purchased by the restaurant from a permitted Wisconsin wholesaler. The retailer must have invoices from the
wholesaler showing which products were purchased from the wholesaler.

Wisconsin alcohol beverage law does not permit "corkage fees." These fees, charged by restaurants, allow
patrons to carry in their own alcohol beverages for consumption on the restaurant premises.

If the restaurant does not have an alcohol beverage license, consumption of alcohol beverages is prohibited.
The restaurant owner can be criminally charged for allowing illegal consumption on the premises.

F. Giveaways

Giving away alcohol beverages or using any other device to evade the law relating to its sale is illegal. Examples
of these illegal transactions at unlicensed premises include:

• A "free" drink with a meal

• A cover charge where mix is furnished at a price with "no charge" for liquor

• A "free" bottle of liquor tied to the sale of some other item

Violators may be fined not more than $10,000 or imprisoned for not more than nine months, or both.

G. Minimum Markup

Back to Table ordkkrents



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

Alcohol beverages may not be sold at less than cost. Cost includes a presumptive 3% markup by wholesalers
and 6% by retailers.

For questions on cigarette and tobacco products pricing and markup, contact the Wisconsin Department of
Agriculture, Trade & Consumer Protection, Trade Practices, at (608) 224-4925 or (608) 224-4989.

6. UNDERAGE PERSONS AND MINORS

A. Entering Licensed Premises

No retail licensee may allow an underage person to enter any part of the licensed premises for any purpose
unless an exception applies.

Retailers should demand proof of age of anyone entering the premises who appears to be under the legal
drinking age. Customers may prove age with one of the following, if valid:

• Driver's license

• State ID card

• Military ID card

• U.S. passport

• ID card issued by a federally recognized American Indian tribe or band in Wisconsin

• Any other form of identification or proof of age acceptable to the licensee

DOR recommends anyone who has shown proof of legal drinking age to sign an ID register book if the person's
age is in question. Record the date of purchase, the identification used, the address, and the signature of the
purchaser in the book. The book should be kept on the premises and available for inspection by any peace
officer. (sec. 125.077), Wis. Stats.)

Exceptions: An underage person may enter a licensed premises if the underage person is:

• Accompanied by their parent, guardian, or spouse of legal drinking age.

• Entering a Class "A" or "Class A" licensed premises to buy items other than alcohol beverages. The underage
person may not stay on the premises after the purchase.

• An employee, resident, lodger, or boarder on the premises.

• Entering to do business other than amusement or the purchase or consumption of food and beverages.

• Entering to buy food in a restaurant whose "principal business" is serving food.

• Entering and remaining in a dance hall or banquet or hospitality room attached to a Class B licensed
premises to attend a banquet, reception, dance, or similar event.

• Entering the following premises:

o bowling center

o car operated by a railroad

o center for visual or performing art

o curling club

o drug store

o movie theater

o painting studio

o private tennis or soccer club

o racetrack licensed under ch. 562, Wis. Stats.

o regularly established athletic field



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

o golf course or clubhouse o service station

o grocery store o ski chalet

o hotel o stadiums

o indoor golf simulator facility o vessel

o billiards center having 12or more billiards tables o
(not coin-operated) eight feet or longer

o county or municipally owned public facility as o
defined in sec. 125.51(5)(b), Wis. Stats.

indoor golf and baseball facility on premises o
holding a Class "B" license

o indoor (at least 9 by 18 meters) or outdoor
volleyball court

music festival venues with projected attendance
of at least 2,500 persons

privately owned fish farm that provides
rec,·eational fishing opportunities to the public
for a fee and is registered under sec. 95.60(3m)
(alcohol sales less than 30%)

State Fair Park and concessions in state park or
forest, or park owned by an agricultural society

0

• Entering a Class "B" beer or "Class B" liquor licensed premises:

o to do business at an auction or flea market. In this case, the underage person may not enter any room
where alcohol beverages are sold, furnished, or possessed

o room where no alcohol beverages are sold, furnished, served, or consumed by anyone when the
underage person is present

This applies only if the municipality adopts an ordinance allowing it. The local law enforcement ager
must authorize, in writing, the presence of underage persons on the date of the authorizatiol.
separate authorization is necessary for each date on which underage persons will be on the premises.
(sec. 125.07(3)(a)(8), Wis. Stats.)

o On a date specified bythe license when no alcohol beverages are consumed, sold, or given away

The licensee, the agent named on the license (if a corporation), or a person with an operator's license
must be on the premises unless all alcohol beverages are in locked storage. The licensee must notify the
local law enforcement agency, in advance, when underage persons are on the premises.
(sec. 125.07(3)(a)(10), Wis. Stats.)

• At least 18 years old and working under a contract with a licensee, permittee, or corporate agent to provide
entertainment for customers on the premises.

• Acting as a designated driver on the premises of a temporary Class "B" (picnic) beer or "Class B" (wine only)
licensee authorized to permit underage persons on the premises by the official or body of the municipality
that issued the license.

The licensee must identify the underage person using a wristband or similar item while on the premises.

B. Verifying Identification and Age

(1) Reviewing ID Cards and Driver's Licenses

• Ask pertinent questions about the ID presented. For example, if an ID card is presented as proof of age,
ask how the driving was on the way to the establishment. If the person was driving, ask to see his or'
driver's license.

• Check the card's expiration date. Only valid proof of age should be accepted.

~--., :

4

look for "Under 18" or "Under 21" feature on the carcl.

Back to Table or ck'tents



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

{

• Look for "duplicate" stamp on the card. If a duplicate, ask what happened to the original.

• If the ca rd is a Real ID-compliant card, look for a star in the top right corner.

• Ask for additional documentation verifying his or her identity (e.g., credit, debit, or insurance card with
their name). People with false IDs rarely carry backup documentation, but most people have several
forms.

• Look for laser engraved personal information, signature, and other features unique to Wisconsin ID
cards.

• Ask questions about information on the card, such as address, birth date, middle initial, or spelling of
last name. If the person doesn't answer to your satisfaction, you may refuse service and ask that person
to leave.

• Compare presented driver's license to yours. See (2) below for characteristics of a false ID card or
driver's license.

• Use an ID Checking Guide, especially in areas with a heavy out-of-state population (colleges, tourist
communities). Several commercial companies publish guides that picture alt states' driver's licenses.

(2) False ID Card and Driver's License Characteristics

• Glue lines.

• Bumpy surfaces by the picture or birth date. Any surface area inconsistent with the rest of the ID usually
indicates tampering.

• Overlay of reprinted numbers (and a shadowy or cloudy image). The ID card may have been opened to
alter numbers.

• Missing spots on the state logo. A person who alters an ID may not pay attention to one of the most
obvious clues on the card.

• Letters and numbers font type, color, and size; line spacing, or word and image placement may differ
from valid ID cards and driver's licenses. How may digits for expiration and birth date? Are numbers
consistent?

• Lack of security features {ultraviolet or micro printing}. Use a blacklight and magnifying glass to check
for security features.

• Reverse side is unfinished. Often a person altering an ID will spend significant time on reproducing an
authentic-looking photo board but merely photocopy the reverse side. These are often blurred, a sure
sign of photocopying.

• Weight or size is different. Bend the card, feel it. How does it feel compared to an authentic card? Does
it measure the same?

• Colors vary from an authentic ID or license.

• Corners of the card are uneven and jagged rather than well-rounded and smooth. This is one of the best
methods for detecting counterfeit cards.

• Shadows or glare on the picture or eye redness. Most driver licensing station cameras are set to avoid
these problems.

• Laminate differs from authentic card or license. Is it clear or cloudy?



Informationfor WisconsinAlcohol Beverage andTobacco Retailers Publication 302

(3) Retaining Proof of Age

No person who holds a license or permit, and no employee of such a person, is civilly liable for retain?
document presented as proof of age. The document may be retained for a reasonable length of time . d

good faith effort to (a) determine whether the person who presented the document is underage or (2) notify
law enforcement of a suspected violation for carrying a false ID. (sec. 125.039, Wis. Stats.)

C. Possession by Underage Persons

An underage person may not possess alcohol beverages anywhere unless accompanied by a parent, guardian,
or spouse of legal drinking age. This does not apply to underage persons employed by the following types of
licensees or permittees, in the course of their employment:

• Brewers and brewpubs

• Beerwholesalers

• Liquor wholesalers

• Facilities producing alcohol fuel

• Retail licensees or permittees, under the provisions of secs. 125.32(2) and 125.68(2), Wis. Stats. (laws
covering operator's licenses), or for delivery of unopened containers to the home or vehicle of a customer

• Campuses, if the underage person is at least 18 years of age and is under the immediate supervision of a
person of legal drinking age

(sec. 125.07(4)(b) and (bm), Wis. Stats.)

D. Sales and Service to Underage Persons

An underage person accompanied by their parent, guardian, or spouse of legal drinking age may be sold or
served alcohol beverages in any licensed premises, if allowed by the establishment. (sec. 125.07(1), Wis. Stats.)

E. Employing Minors

• Minors under 14 years old may not be employed where alcohol beverages are sold.

Exception: Minors 12 years or older may be employed at a business owned by their parent, even though
beverages are sold.

• Minors 14 years or older (including minors that are 12 or 13 years old under the exception above) may be
employed where alcohol beverages are stored, sold, or served if they are not serving, selling, dispensing, or
giving away alcohol beverages, or acting as bouncers, crowd controllers, or identification checkers. This
applies to all places licensed to sell alcohol beverages, including stores, service stations, bars, and
restaurants.

• Minors may not be employed or appear as musicians, singers, performers, or dancers at roadhouses, dance
halls, night clubs, taverns, or similar places, except:

o Minors 16 or 17 years old may be employed or appear as musicians in a hall on Friday, Saturday, or any
other day not followed by a school day, or before midnight on Sunday, if the hall was rented to celebrate
a special event such as a wedding, holiday, birthday, or anniversary.

I

o Minors may be employed or appear at dances held solely forminors that are conducted by private t_s
or civic organizations where admission is limited to the club membership or by club invitation and the
general public is excluded.

).":2""7. es-·+«- owoo. we.asow»
Back to Table oftk?tents



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers

F. Other

Publication 302

• No one may falsely represent that they are of legal drinking age to ask for or obtain alcohol beverages in
any licensed premises. (sec. 125.07(4), Wis. Stats.)

• No one may possess or consume alcohol beverages in a public, parochial, or private school, through 12th
grade, or in a vehicle owned by, rented, or consigned to a school or while participating in a school activity,
without the express, written permission of the school administrator (sec. 125.09(2), Wis. Stats.). Permission
may not be given to underage persons.

• A licensed alcohol beverage retailer may bring a civil action against a person who violates the state's
underage drinking law, if the following conditions are met:

o The conduct must occur on the retailer's premises

o The retailer must mail notice of the intent to bring action to the underage person or the underage
person's parent, as applicable, at least 15 days prior to filing the action

o The retailer must not have been convicted of, received a citation for, or been charged with a violation
of the underage drinking law

o The retailer must have reported the suspected conduct to law enforcement at or near the time when
the conduct was first discovered

This provision does not apply if the underage person was employed by or assisting a law enforcement
agency in carrying out enforcement to determine compliance with or investigating potential violations
of the prohibition on underage persons in licensed premises. A retailer prevailing in the civil action shall
be awarded $1,000 in damages and the costs of bringing the civil action. (sec. 125.07(4)(), Wis. Stats.)

G. Penalties

• Entry - Alcohol beverage licensees permitting unaccompanied underage persons to unlawfully enter the
premises are subject to a forfeiture of not more than $500. (sec. 125.07(3), Wis. Stats.)

• Age Misrepresentation -- An unaccompanied underage person unlawfully entering a licensed premises or
misrepresentingtheir age to obtain alcohol beverages is subject to a $250 to $500 forfeiture, suspension of
motor vehicle operating privileges under sec. 343.30(6)(b)1, Wis. Stats., participation in a supervised work
program, or a combination of these penalties.

• Sale - A person selling or furnishing alcohol beverages to an unaccompanied underage person is:

o Required to forfeit not more than $500 if the person has not committed a previous violation within 30
months of the violation

o Fined not more than $500 or imprisoned for not more than 30 days or both if the person has committed
a previous violation within 30 months of the violation

o Fined not more than $1,000 or imprisoned for not more than 90 days or both if the person has
committed 2 previous violations within 30 months of the violation

o Fined not more than $10,000 or imprisoned for not more than 9 months or both if the person has
committed 3 or more previous violations within 30 months of the violation (sec. 125.07(1), Wis. Stats.)

If a violation occurs on a licensed premises and is detected by means of an undercover underage person
employed by or assisting a law enforcement agency, onlythe individual responsible for providingthe alcohol
beverages to the underage person may be issued a citation for, or charged with, the violation.

• School Possession - Anyone unlawfully possessing or consuming alcohol beverages on a school premises,
in a school vehicle, or while participating in a school activity is subject to a forfeiture of not more than $200
(sec. 125.09(2)(d), Wis. Stats.)



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

Exception: A disposition in the proceedings against an underage person is provided by secs. 125.07(4)(c)
and (d) and 938.344, Wis. Stats.

License Holder Violations - The alcohol beverage license of any person committing a violatior
sec. 125.07(1), Wis. Stats., must be suspended for:

o Not more than 3 days if a second violation is committed within 12 months of a previous violation.

o Not less than 3 days nor more than 10 days if a third violation is committed within 12 months of two
previous violations.

o Not less than 15 days nor more than 30 days if a fourth violation is committed within 12 months after
committing three other violations.

• False Identification Provided to Underage Person - Anyone other than a person authorized by
secs. 125.085 or 343.50, Wis. Stats., who makes, alters, or duplicates an official identification ("ID") card,
provides an official ID card to an underage person, or knc-wingly provides other documentation to an
underage person claiming that the underage person is of legal drinking age may be fined not less than $300
nor more than $1,250 or imprisoned not less than ten days normore than thirty days, or both.

If violated for money or other consideration, the person is guilty of a Class I felony.

• False Identification by Underage Persons -Any underage person who does any of the following may be
penalized. For a first violation, a $300 to $1,250 forfeiture, suspension of the person's driving privileges,
participation in a supervised work program, or any combination of these penalties.

o Intentionally carries an official ID card not legally issued to him or her, an official ID card obtained under
false pretenses, or an official ID card which has been altered or duplicated to give false information.

o Makes, alters, or duplicates an official ID card.

o Gives false information in applying for an official ID card.

o Intentionally carries an ID card or other documentation showing that he or she is of legal drinking age,
knowing that the documentation is false.

o Provides to another underage person an official ID card or other documentation claiming that the other
underage person is of legal drinking age, knowing that the documentation is false.

7. RECORDKEEPING

A. Invoices

Every licensed retailer must keep paper or electronic copies of all purchase invoices for alcohol beverages on
the licensed premises for two years from the date of the invoice. Invoices should be kept in chronological
order and be available for inspection during all reasonable hours. (sec. 139.11(1), Wis. Stats.)

B. Identification Register

DOR recommends that every licensee keep an identification (ID) register. Record the identity of a person who
alleges they are:

• Legal drinking age.

• Underage person's parent, guardian, or spouse and of legal drinking age.

Include the date of purchase, type of identification used, address, and signature of the person. Verifytrre
signatures in the book and on the person's ID match.

•

Back to Table ofdk}ents



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers

A "Proof of Age Register" or "Identification Register Book" may be purchased from:

Publication 302

• Tavern League of Wisconsin, 2817 Fish Hatchery Road, Fitchburg, WI, 53713-5005, phone: (608) 270-8591,
website: tlw.org.

• Wisconsin Grocers Association, 10 West Mifflin, Ste. 205, Madison, WI, 53703, phone: (608) 244-7150,
website: wisconsingrocers.com.

8. OTHER ALCOHOL BEVERAGE INFORMATION

A. Payment for Alcohol Beverages

A licensee may only buy liquor or beer for cash or on credit terms for a period not to exceed:

• Beer - 15 days

• Liquor - 30 days

A licensee in debt to a wholesaler beyond the above time periods may not purchase alcohol beverages from the
wholesaler. A person may not be issued a license if he or she exceeds these limits.

B. Nonalcohol Beverages

Beverages that contain less than 0.5% alcohol by volume are not alcohol beverages regulated by ch. 125, Wis.
Stats. Therefore, nonalcohol (NA) "beer," and mocktails may be sold in the same manner as water and sodas
(e.g., regardless of age).

These beverages should not be confused with those labeled "low alcohol" {LA), which generally contain 3.2%
alcohol, and are regulated by ch. 125, Wis. Stats.

C. Temporary Class "B" and "Class B" Licenses

Temporary Class "B" beer and "Class B" wine only licenses {picnic licenses) are short-term authorizations that
allow the following organizations to make retail sales of alcohol beverages at a particular picnic or similar
gathering, at a meeting of the post, or during a fair:

• bona fide clubs and chambers of commerce

• county or local fair associations or agricultural societies

• churches, lodges, or societies that have been in existence for at least 6 months before the date of application

• posts of veterans' organizations

Temporary licenses may also be issued to authorize a "wine walk" or "beer walk." This is a single day event at
which customers are served a glass of beer or wine at multiple locations (e.g., jewelry stores, art galleries,
clothing boutiques, salons, furniture stores, etc.) during shopping visits.

(1) Requirements

Requirements that apply to other alcohol beverage licensees also apply to Temporary "Class B" wine and
Temporary Class "B" beer licensees, including:

• Licensed operators (person's holding an operator's license, also known as a "bartender's license")
serving the wine or beer and/or supervising serving wine or beer.



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

• Temporary operator's licenses may be issued to persons employed by or donating services to the
qualified organization for the event. A person may hold two temporary operator's licenses per year.r-

• Licensees must purchase all wine and beer from liquor or beer wholesalers and breweries/brew
authorized to self-distribute to retail licensees.

Form AT-315, Applicationfor Temporary Class "B"I "Class B" Retailer's License, is submitted by the
qualifying organization to the municipality to apply for a Temporary Class "B" beer or Temporary "Class B"
wine license. Applicants for a wine walk or beer walk should attach to the application a list of participating
locations and premises descriptions or submit a separate application for each location participating in the
event.

(2) Wine Walk

A municipality may issue to the same qualified organization up to 20 Temporary "Class B" wine licenses for
the same date and time. The qualified organization is the licensee and sponsor of the single-day, multiple
location event. The following requirements apply:

• Admission fees must be charged for participation in the event and no additional fees may be charged
for service of alcohol beverages at the event

• Municipalities may authorize the licensee to permit unaccompanied underage persons on the licensed
premises if the underage person is a designated driver and is identified by the licensee (e.g., wristband)

• No person may serve wine after 9:00 p.m. on the licensed premises

• Qualified organizations may receive Temporary "Class B" (wine) licenses for up to two events during. a
12-month period

• Municipalities are limited to 2wine walks within any 12-month period.

(3) BeerWalk

A municipality may issue to the same qualified organization an unlimited number of Temporary Class "B"
beer licenses forthe same date and time. The qualified organization is the licensee and sponsor of the single
day, multiple-location event. The following requirements apply:

• Admission fees must be charged for participation in the event and no additional fees may be charged
for service of alcohol beverages at the event

• Municipalities may authorize the licensee to permit underage persons on the licensed premises

• Sales for off-premises consumption must end by midnight, or earlier if required by municipal ordinance

• Municipalities may charge up to $10 for each Temporary Class "B" beer or Temporary "Class B" wine
license issued for the single-day, multiple-location event.

D. Inspection of Licensed Premises

Licensed premises may be inspected by law enforcement officers during all reasonable hours, including business
hours. All rooms connected to the barroom, sales room, or storage area may be inspected as part of the licensed
premised. Refusing to permit an inspection is grounds for revocation or suspension of the license. (sec.
139.08(4), Wis. Stats.)

Alcohol beverages, cigarettes, tobacco products, and personal property identified in violation of the statues
may be seized.

Back to Table of (8tents



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

9. CIGARETTE AND TOBACCO PRODUCTS

A. Definitions

• Cigarette - any roll of tobacco wrapped in paper or any substance other than tobacco.

• Nicotine Product-a product that contains nicotine and is not any of the following:

o tobacco product

o cigarette

o product approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration for sale as a smoking cessation product or
for another medical purpose that is marketed and sold solely for the approved purpose.

• Tobacco products - include:

o cavendish

o cheroots

o cigars

o fine cut and other chewing tobaccos

o granulated, plug cut, crimp cut, ready-rubbed, and other smoking tobacco

o periques

o plug and twist tobacco

o refuse scraps, clippings, cuttings and sweepings of tobacco and other kinds and forms of tobacco
prepared in such manner as to be suitable for chewing or smoking in a pipe or otherwise, or both for
chewing and smoking

o shorts

o snuff flour

o snuff, including moist snuff

o stogies

"Tobacco products" does not include cigarettes, as defined under sec. 139.30 (1m).

B. Licenses

A license from a municipality is required to directly or indirectly sell, expose for sale, possess with intent to sell,
or give away any cigarettes or tobacco products in any manner or upon any pretense or by any device.

The following provisions apply:

• Training- Retailers are required to provide training to employees whose duties include the sale of
cigarettes, tobacco products, or nicotine products. The training must be an approved program by the
Department of Health Services.

• Inspection/ Confiscation- Licensed premises may be inspected by law enforcement officers during all
reasonable hours, including business hours. Refusal to permit inspection is punishable by fine,
imprisonment, or both.

All cigarettes or tobacco products kept in violation of the laws and all personal property used in
connection is subject to seizure.

=-==-========-==-==•="""""'"-"""==~-=:r..~===========,..•===-=--====--====•==="~~~A~==~~
tual, t-ralalts.ta»t



InformationforWisconsinAlcohol Beverage andTobacco Retailers Publication 302

• Recordkeeping- Every licensed retailer must keep purchase invoices for cigarettes and tobacco products
on the licensed premises for two years from the date of the invoice. Invoices should be kept in
chronological order and be available for inspection during all reasonable hours. (sec. 134.65(4), Wis. t
Stats.)

C. Purchases

Retailers must purchase cigarettes and tobacco products from a manufacturer, distributor or jobber who holds
a valid permit from DOR. If a retailer purchases tobacco products from an out-of-state company that does not
have a permit from DOR, the retailer must obtain a distributor permit from DOR.

D. Sales

• Certified Manufacturers and Brands - Only cigarettes and Roll-Your-Own (RVO) tobacco products in
Directory of Certified Tobacco Manufacturers and Brands on the Wisconsin Department of Justice's website
(www.doj.state.wi.us) may be sold to Wisconsin consumers. Products not listed cannot be sold or possessed
for sale after the date shown on the directory. Wholesalers and retailers that possess for sale, or sell,
products in violation are subject to confiscation of that product and/or fines, forfeitures and revocation of
their permits.

• Minimum Markup-The unfair Sales Act, commonly referred to as the Minimum Markup Law" {sec. 100.30),
provides that tobacco products, including cigarettes, may not be sold at less than cost. Cost includes a
presumptive 3% markup by wholesalers and presumptive 6% markup by retailers. The Wisconsin
Department of Agriculture, Trade & Consumer Protection (DATCP) administers the Unfair Sales Act. For
questions on cigarette and tobacco products pricing or markup, contact DATCP Trade Practices staff at (608)
224-4925 or (608) 224-4989.

i
• Single Cigarettes - Federal law prohibits sales of cigarette packages containing fewer than 20 cigare

including single cigarettes, known as "loosies." No retailer may sell individual cigarettes.

E. Underage Persons

• Sales to Underage Persons-According to federal law (21 USC 387f(d)(5)), no retailer may sell or give away
cigarettes, tobacco products, or nicotine products (including electronic cigarettes containing nicotine) to
someone under 21 years of age.

• Possession of Cigarettes/Tobacco Products/Nicotine Products by Minors-A person under 18 years of age
may possess cigarettes/tobacco products/nicotine products for the sole purpose of resale in the course of
employment during theirworking hours if employed by a licensed retailer. (sec. 254.92(2), Wis. Stats.)

10. VAPOR PRODUCTS

A. Definitions

• Vapor product - a noncombustible product that produces vapor or aerosol for inhalation from the
application of a heating element, regardless of whether the liquid or substance contains nicotine.

• Distributor - any person:

o engaged in the business of selling vapor products in Wisconsin who brings, or causes to be brought, into
Wisconsin from outside Wisconsin any vapor products for sale

o who makes, manufactures or fabricates vapor products in Wisconsin for sale in Wisconsin F•
o located and selling vapor products in another state who ships ortransports vapor products to Wisconsin

retailers for sale by those retailers

~-- ·--.---"
Back to Table ofggtents



Information for Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

Note: A distributor includes a retailer that makes sales of untaxed vapor products in Wisconsin which are
brought into Wisconsin from another state.

B. Permit

Distributors of vapor products that do not currently hold a tobacco distributor permit must apply for a permit
by completing Form CTP-129, Cigarette-Tobacco/Vapor Products Permits Application. (sec. 139.79, Wis. Stats.)

Retailers that bring untaxed vapor products into Wisconsin for sale to consumers must obtain a tobacco
distributor permit.

Wisconsin retailers should review the Wisconsin Tobacco Products Permit Listing at revenue.wi.gov for
purchasing vapor products from businesses that hold a Wisconsin tobacco and vapor products distributor's
permit.

C. Taxes

An excise tax is imposed on vapor products received by distributors in Wisconsin.

The tax is imposed on the sale, offering or exposing for sale, possession with intent to sell or removal for
consumption or other disposition for any purpose of vapor products. The tax rate is 5 cents per milliliter of the
liquid or other substance based on the volume listed by the manufacturer and at a proportionate rate for any
other quantity or fractional part.

The vapor products tax is reported electronically using Form TT-100, Wisconsin Distributor's Tobacco and Vapor
Products Tax Return, and supporting schedules.

41. VIDEO GAMBLING

The operation of video gambling machines is a violation of Wisconsin law.

A gambling machine is a contrivance which, for a consideration, affords the player an opportunity to obtain
something of value, the award of which is determined by chance, even though accompanied by some skill and
whether the prize is automatically paid by the machine. (sec. 945.01(3), Wis. Stats.)

A "gambling machine" does not include any of the following:

• A device used in conducting a bingo occasion or raffle event under ch. 563, Wis. Stats., used in conducting a
lottery under ch. 565 or used in conducting a race under ch. 562.

• Any amusement device if it rewards the player exclusively with one or more non-redeemable free replays for
achieving certain scores and does not change the ratio or record the number of the free plays so awarded.

• An amusement device involving skill, if it rewards the player exclusively with merchandise contained within the
amusement device proper and limited to prizes, toys and novelties, each having a wholesale value which is not
more than seven times the cost charged to play the amusement device once or S5, whichever is less.

"Skill" means, within an opportunity provided for all players fairly to obtain prizes or rewards of merchandise, a
player's precision, dexterity or ability to use his or her knowledge which enables him or her to obtain more
frequent rewards or prizes than does another less precise, dexterous or knowledgeable player.



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers Publication 302

\

A. Enforcement

• DOR - Only a DOR special agent certified as a law enforcement officer may investigate or enforce video
gambling violations on premises of persons holding "Class B" liquor and/or Class "B" beer licenses with
or fewer video gambling machines.

• Municipalities-Cities, towns, and villages have the authority to prohibit by ordinance all forms of gambling
and to seize anything devised solely for gambling or used for gambling. Local law enforcement investigates
and enforces these ordinance violations.

(sec. 175.38, Wis. Stats.)

B. Violations

• Having five or fewer video gambling machines on a Class B premises may result in the following:

o Seizure of the machines

o Seizure of money in the machines

o Forfeiture of $500 per machine per incident

• Having more than five video gambling machines on a Class B premises, or any number of video gambling
machines on any other licensed or unlicensed premises, is a felony.

The licensee may be arrested by a DOR special agent or a law enforcement officer of the jurisdiction where
the arrest is made.

(sec. 945.03(2m), Wis. Stats.)

C. Taxes

The sales price from admissions for access to illegal video gambling machines are subject to Wisconsin sales tax
and the net income is subject toWisconsin income or franchise tax. The sales, lease, or rental of the machines
is subject toWisconsin sales and use tax.

DOR conducts audits of both machine operators and Class B establishments for income or franchise and sales
and use tax compliance.

For more information about Wisconsin taxes on video gaming receipts, seeWisconsin Tax Bulletin 209, page 5.

12. RESOURCES

A. Wholesale Permit Holders List

Alcohol beverage, cigarette, and tobacco and vapor products retailers must purchase alcohol beverages
cigarettes, and tobacco, and vapor products only from permitted Wisconsin wholesalers. Alcohol beverage
retailers may also purchase from permitted self-distributing brewers or brewpubs.

The following lists of wholesalers holding permits issued by DOR can be found at revenue.wi.gov:

• Wisconsin Liquor Permit Listing

• Wisconsin Fermented Malt Beverage Permit Listing

• Wisconsin Cigarette Permit Listing

• Wisconsin Tobacco/Vapor Products Permit Listing

~---,~------ .. ·-•
Back to Table ofg4tents



Informationfor Wisconsin Alcohol Beverage and Tobacco Retailers

B. Published Guidance

Publication 302

DOR has publications, fact sheets, newsletters, and answers to common questions that provide additional
information about alcohol beverages, cigarette, tobacco, and vapor products. These resources can be found at:

• Alcohol Beverage: https://www.revenue.wi.gov/Pages/AlcoholBeverage/home.aspx

• Cigarette, Tobacco, and Vapor Products: https://www.revenue.wi.gov/Pages/Businesses/Tobacco.aspx

C. Alcohol Beverage News

Sign up to receive email updates from DOR. Go to revenue.wi.gov, search for "subscribe" and sign up for Alcohol
Beverage News.

D. DOR Assistance

If you are unable to find an answer to your questions about the Wisconsin alcohol beverage, cigarette, or
tobacco and vapor products laws, visit the DOR's website, email, write, or call:

Visit our website . . . revenue.wi.gov

Email .

Write .

Telephone ...

DORAlcoholTobaccoEnforcement@wisconsin.gov

Wisconsin DOR
P.O. Box 8933
Madison, WI 53708-8933

(608) 264-4573



V)
(Y')aJ

V) 4
C C 0

aJ (4
..Y. u .........

ec _J 0o co .........• I"'---LL "'O I

4- C I
0 4o 0> <( (4.-I .........u V) 0V) (Y')

CiJ .........
u \..0

QI> (]
Vl <( =1:1:
Vl ._

QI "C QIQJ 0 "C "'C a: "C._
QJ QI QI E a: QI a: E a:"C > > > >- 0 QI > QI

Vl 0"C <( <( <( ltl <( "C c QI
<( 3 :c C C a: 5 :c: C

C "C c ..... C "C ..... ltl C ltl ._ ..... ltl "C .Vl 0 0:::: 0 V) 0 Vl -I 0 -I Vl ltl Vl -I 0::::Vl ..... QI ..... QI ..... ..... E ..... ..... ..... 5 QJ ..... ..... .....
QJ Vl C Vl ..c V) Vl QJ V) Vl V) V) Vl Vl V) V) V) ..... V) Vl Vl C Vl3 3 3

._ ._ > ._ V). ._ ._c ltl ..... ...c 0. ...c 0 QJ ...c ...c QJ 0 ...c ...c ..c 0 ...c QJ ..c re ..cr-,.. .....G re > ltl ..... ltl V) ..... LL > ..... ..... ltl > 0 ..... ..... ..... V) (] LL ..... > ..... > .....
:, 0:::: 0:::: a: (J r-,.. a: $ DO z 0 DO r-,.. a: 0 -I r-,.. DO r-,..

2 0 $ DO 0 r-,.. 0:::: r-,..
co 5 z $ V) (J

$
r-,.. -I r-,.. (]

$
-I z rJ r-,.. r] v] r-,.. -I (J z (J

<( V) 0 V) cYl Vl V) V) V) V) V) V) r-,.. V) r-,.. V) V) V) V)
0 0 0 r-,.. Lil 0 Lil 00 (J 0 rel Lil 0 0 m r-,.. 0 el Lil 0 rl r-,.. t O» cYl {n N ({ 0 0 t r-,.. Lil n 00 0 0 0 0 0 (y cYl 0 cYl pl r] 0 l 0 N DO
\D n ( Lil cYl 0 0 n v] r-,.. (] r-,.. (J 00 O Lil vl r-,.. l en n n Lil LI) 0 tr-,.. LI) Lil DO 00 Lil v] r-,.. rl r-,.. r-,.. \D Lil r-,.. O m r-,.. DO l 00 v r-,.. DO \D rt') 0

QJ C :;:; ·;:: 2
u

E C ..... QJ ._ QJ
ltl ltl ._

QJ .....ltl Vl c E ...c ..... ..... C ltlz c ._ 0 ._ ca ltl • 'ijj Vl ...c ltl Ill) >- 5ltl "C ...c ..c Vl Vl - C 0. E C..... > re Ill) u ltl ...c ,::,(, QJ ltl C QJ ._ ._ ._ ,::,(,
0

..c
C - ._ QJ E Ill) ca E - N ltl ±:

._
LJ.J QJ QJ c 5 ltl ..c C QJ .c QJ :, ltl ...c c QJQJ :, ..... ._

C ._ Vl ca ..... "'C ..... Vl> vi - :, ..... 0 QJ QJ ..c :, LL QJ 0 'a ..c?? ..c ..c ltl ltl ::..:: 5 ltl 0 ._ 6 ·;:: C C C...... ::..:: "C .0. ..... u > $ .....
0 ·- ca ._

G ~ ltl ,::,(, ..c :cQJ QJ ._ 0. ::..:: > C. :c QJ ltl ..... 0..c re ._ >- QJ QJ "C .a! QJ ...c ltl a: ltl :, QJ L. .......... ltl c QJ g ._ ..li<: 2 C 0 ltl c ..... ...c "'C 0. "'C C QJ Vlltl "'C "C £ C •5 ..c C 'i:' "'C ._ ._
QJ c· 5 ltl ltl u ·;;: QJ Ill) C bD ·;::.!:::! ltl u :, :, - c C ltl ltl .!::! ...c ltl ltl ·;:: ltl QJ ltl ·ro QJ C QJ 0 ..ci:iJ ::..:: ii: Vl D ..... <( 5 :c ~ a: I- I- 0 ::..:: ca i :c 5 0 V) 0 ..... ::..:: a: u

-._QJ
C

u 3
-I 0
-I -e ltlu :,

QJ -I G "CE u -I C Eltl ...J > 0z ...J u u C. u 3 "C
-I Vl C>- C. ltl C 5 ,..J i -c :, E - u u .,.;- -

ltl 0 ._
"C'

-I -I Vl .0 C u z-I ltl ..... - ...J0. L. ltl -I C UJ 0 "C 43 ...J u
E 9 ..c 0 Vl' c' 0 :, QJ

C. 0 u "C :;:; Vl Vl ..... QJ LJ.J u .....
0 LL -I 0 i 32 ltl QJ i ltl V) :::: > ...J ltl
u re Vl i u u -I ._ ._

C E :, 5 ...J 5..... u > 0d 0 C 0 .....
QJ ...J i C C -I Ill LL - C 0 0 0 0 ..... - QJ C u ca ia: u ._ -I ltl 0. u u u 3 - ._

...J c - - t 3 V) C -I
C - 0 u t

._ ._ Clf -I QJ 'G QJ
"C - :, C: C:  -I ltl Vl LL 0 C C C ti QJ 5 0. c 8

QJ ..cQJ 6 QJ ltl Ill ._ >C :, C C" ·;:: ·;:: ltl -I 5 ~ Vl u QJ QJ QJ ltl ._ c ltl C.
re C ..li<: UJ ¢ QJ QJ QJ ltl Vl QJ' .-I 0 0LL 0 0 :::::i I- I- c  Iii ..... ._ ._ ._ ~ 3 3 t ltl ..... .....
~ ltl QJ ._ caC u >- 3 ..li<: ..li<: ltl ltl Ill) ltl -E "C Ill) ~ u o I C" u E QJ QJ Vl

·- ltl Vl "C 5 5
._ ..c ._

C - V)
._ ltl > QJ QJ ·;::QJ ._ ltl ltl ltl ltl ltlltl >- 3 C QJ QJ 5 5 ±e l1l QJ e $ 2 $ 2 ~ 5 0. ..c 0 > .c ..c

Ci a: <( z ::..:: ' z ..... ::::, V) V) V) 0 -I Vl I- u
.....
QJ
::i::::,
ca

>- "'C'._ ._ 0
0 QJ 0u -3 0 Vl ltl ltl
C" ._ .c E QJ
:::::i DO ._ :, QJ V)

V)
<( 0 0d c 0 ,._.. • "'C

QJ ltl :, QJ· 0d G • C -co en ._ 00 -Vl C" ,::,(, ltl ·;::o "C cYl QJ 0 "'C r{ 0 ._ 00 » t 0 ltl QJ "C -a: Lil ..... ..... C :::::i cYl DO r-,.. 0 ) Ln 00 (] N E :, ..c ·;:: D
=1:1: ..... V) - t cYl DO 5 rl t 00 0 N ..... Vl 0 o<IC QJ ._ o<I 6d r] I Lil Lil Lil n a::: '.j:i V)re >- ._

0 r-,.. r-,.. DO DO I- L/l :,
0> u ltl 00 Lil ._ Vl =1:1: =1:1: 00 "'C g 0 rel Lil - 3 ..... V) ._

ltl Ill) :, (] 00 ltl =1:1: 0 QJ =1:1: =1:1: - C ltla: 0 QJ QJ .-'I 0 ·- QJ QJ - L. coE G C" =1:1: =1:1: (D .c 0 ._
on Vl Vl =1:1: Vl ltl u 'G ltl:::::i :, > > 0 "C ...c rC 3 LL C C C C. ltl ltl re co C

C 0
._ ..... C. C. C" C ltl ltl ..... QJ QJ QJ t ltl V) ._
ltl C r ·;:: ·;:: :::::i 3 V) Vi U Vl V) ._ ltl -I coQJ ...c ·- e QJ. QJ QJ ltl 0 Vl QJ > 0Vl :, I- I- ..... ._ :, C. Vl L.> > 0. ,::,(, C 0 c c Vl UJ

._ ._ ._
E ..... ._ ..... QJ .c

QJ 0 ,::,(, ,::,(, ..... - - "'C ~ Ill) Ill) Vl u ..... ltl QJ QJ ..li<:C e_fl Vl 3"C Vl u c '§: 3 "'C ,::,(, ,::,(, E c "iii
._ ltl > QJ uLJ.J > Vl ltl ltl u u £ ltl ltl 0 ltl c.. "'C > 0I C i5 .... 5 ~ ii: ii: ltl QJ • s: z $

._
5 C 0 :,

r-,.. <( u LL ::..:: ::..:: V) V) u V) -I Vl co co
c:i -0

QIz ::,
0 0 0 0 ve] 0 ] r-,.. (J r-,.. 00 ·r-,.. 00 N r-,.. L/l DO 00 en 00 "' r-,.. DO 0 N cYlQJ !!!

Vl n N cYl t st Lil Lil Lil DO DO DO r-,.. r-,.. 00 3 00 00 00 ry Lil .... t Lil 00 N (J
C 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 QI 00 00 00 00 00
QJ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0, >- 0 0 0 0 0u I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I .... I I I I I

:::::i N (J (] (y r] (] (I (I (] (] r[ (] r] r] N r] (] r] (j (] 0 (] ([ N ( N
N N r] (] (] (] (J (] (] (J r] (] r] r] (] (J r r] (] (] C: (] (] ({ N (J

Vl
Vl co co ca co ca ca co co co ca ca co co co co ca ca ca u u u co coC1J
u ...J ...J ...J -I -I -I -I -I -I -I -I -I -I -I -I -I -I -I co ca ca ca co co ...J ...J

<( <( <( <( <( <( <( <( <( <( <( <I; c::( <( <( <( <( <( ca ca ca ca co co co co



QJ
>
<(
QJ

"'Cl
QJ E

"'O
Q) a:: QJ> 0 > ><( J: .... a:: <( .... .... QJ <("'O +-' o "'Cl o o a.a:: V') V,C +-' +-' ..lo<: a:: +-' .E C ro C

0 Vl V, V') V') 0 ..lo<: ..lo<: u 0+-' QJ +-' +-' +-' +-' +-' C +-' V, .... +-' +-' +-' +-' +-' .... .... +-'V, V) V) V') V') V') V') V') ro N V') V') V') V') V') V, V, V')3 .... ro = ..c +-' ..c 0 3 ro ro ..c z..c 0 ..c ..c ..c ..c ..c > ..c +-' a. Q) ..c ..c ..c +-' ..c ..c 0 a. a. +-' ..cro +-' LL +-' +-' +-' +-' +-' a:: +-' V') I, - ::::, +-' +-' +-' [ +-' +-' ...J ro - - .... ro +-'- - - 0a:: ,..._
s lO DO DO DO DO s ,..._ z N ro a.. I. p ,..._ N DO 00 a:: ro ro a:: ,..._

= N ,..._ f f ,..._ p N V') c s N N N V') p DO 2 s al al z = N
V) rl V') V') V') V') V') CV') V') rl <( V') V') V') V') rl V') V') 0 V') V') V) V')

p, 0 () 0 DO rl CV') rl CV') p 0 CV') LO 0 rl LO CV') t rl rl 0 rl rl LO 00 0 LOM ( N 0 CV') 0 st N t LO st N. O CV') N 0 CV') p. 0 t N N rl 0 0 N ,..._
rl <t rl rl N 0) DO N rl CV') rl N 0 CV') et t 0) 0 rl 0 0 DO 0 0 LO N LO
( DO rl 0 [ DO 0) p rl DO rl I. p. 00 DO 0) 00 rl p. DO rl LO p, p. p N. 0

V, E::::,
0 Q) .!!!

.... E C ::c "'C
QJ ro C I ro .!!! ....
..c E ro ..lo<: .... > C C Q) N

E '2 u 2 0 +-'+-' 0 V, E Q) ro Q) Nro V, bO ro > V, .... V, V, +-' .E V,·- .... ro C "'O .... C z ..c5 - 5 +-' C ..c .... > V, > $ "cii C.... .... ro ::::, V, C Q) ..c ro LU ·u ro ..!!:! Q) z ..c ..c ..c u C• Q) bO u ..c C ::::, >< u ::::, C "'O 3 u ....ro 0 0 .... V, C ::c ro 3 0 ro ::::, QJ
QJ ..c C u C a:: ro ::::, ..c V');:::; .... C .... < ..c ro --, a:: 0 0 ro 2 --, LL ..c V,::::, Q) u ~ ro uE "'Cl 2 Q) 0 0 E +-' .e V, ::c 6 .... Q) V, u V,

C > Q) V, Q) --, Q) ro .!!! LL "'O > ::c V') ro C QJ
~ ro C ...J .... ..lo<: :.c > ro 0 C E ..c +-' <ii Q) Q) ro E ro "'Cl

--,
a. e ·- 0 C V, C ro Q) ..c ..cX 5 > C ..c C - C a. 0 .... .... C > '5 ..52X Q) - C .... 0 - ro .... .... ±- u 0 +-'

QJ QJ V, ro ro Q) C 5 Q) ..c Q) ro a. ·c Q) ro Q) Q) 3 ..c ro ro uz 0 2 Q) .... Q) 0 Q) +-' 5a:: < o > I- o a:: <( al (.!) Cl .... I- z Cl--, --, LL --, ...J --, - V')

u
C-
v,' "'O

C
Q) Q)

0 55 u +-' uQ) u ro u+-' ·u ...J ...J u .... ...J
ro ...J i u ...J ...J u 0 ...J ...J.... u 0 ...J ...J C a. ...J
0 ...J V') Q) C ...J e - >?- +-' .... >a. ...J C bO C C u w' 0 Q) C.... bO ro c' z Q) ...J u a. roro .... ...J u0 C .j:, Q) "iii 5 C E C C u E a.u u "'C -5 ro > C C ro .!!! ...J E.... C ...J Q) ..c ...J+-' 0 u Q) 0 ro LL ·- ...J > 0 u 0C 0 .... c u .... ro <(

::::, ? u ...Jro u ...J V, LL u ..... u +-' i c 0 u u ...J u.... ca ...J od 5 ..... 0 ...J ....
Q)

.... u .... V, u..... ...J Q) C a. Q) C ro t o <ii::::, V, 0 tJO 0 ...J ..lo<: ...J - bO ...J V, - ...Jro QJ "'C .... +-' .... a. ...J bO t a.. 0 u ...J +-'
Q) C C e u o+-' C C C u 0 ..... e ro ::::, <( ro > a. ro 0o Vl ...J 0 bO ::::, LU ...J  +-' 0 a.

QJ ro 0 ::::, ...J 0 ro +-' E u u o +-' u ...J ·c a. ::::, 0 V') a ::::, J:
C a:: ...J ".j:, Q) LL C +-' N. r ±- Q) V, ...J Q)

Q) V') a.. ..lo<: 0 C- ...J ui 0 +-' N "'Cl 0 I- C .!!! ...J ± ~
C V,z ro C C ro ::c C V') u ....- .... .... s ·- Q) 0 u D > 0 V, .!!! 0 > 2o QJ +-' Q) 63 32 u C ro V, H 0d 0 ..lo<: (.!)..c Q) ::::, ..c C a:: QJ c¥< C "'C 0 ...J Q) u "'Cl +-' V, u +-'0d C +-' ..c c • 0 3 E ro(.!) C ::::, Q) LL c ..c Q) 75 a.. ..c ::::, ui al 0 Q) 0ro V, X +-' ....

...J ·c 0 LL 2 LL .... ro E <( ..c +-' al 0 ::c c a:i ± 0 0 0 ro a:: ..c 0 0 LLa:: 0 u * * LL a.. - --, I- :.:::i * a:: * LU a.. a.. a.. a:: * I- a:: a:: *

.... V, £..
Q) u > ::,
+-' E 0
C C V)

al - c tQJ ro -= "iii X 0u +-' Q) a. Q) e-
bO > C ..c E (.!) Q) c 0.. zV, .... ro t:. - 0C Q) Q) .... ro 0 od E u E 3+-' ::::, N u V,5 ±: ro V, N ..a D 5 0 ~·q) ro ::::, 6 .... ..cc ::::, LU +-' ::::, u ........ 0 Q) V') ..... V, ro Q) a.. 6 ::::, QJ Vl

ro c "'C 0d ro Q) ::c V, bO ..... u ..lo<: V, +-' QJ
0 0 .... 0d u Q) a:: o .... ..c ..a 0 .... +-' C ±-Vl ..c bO .... .... QJtlO ~ ro .... ..c ::::, V, Q) ::::, .... t ro 0 QJ ::::,
0 QJ C ::::, Q) C 0 Q) c E a.. a.. u.... .... (.!) Q) I- Q) ..c u V')C ro c a.. +-' bO ::::, o bO - "'O 0 a. ro,Q V, Q) .... .... +-' ::::, 3- ro a.. ro - +-' ro a z u -;;:::- c -"' Q) C a. V') a.. .... QJ

(.!) ·.::: ...J Q) c > ::::, +-' C ..!!! Q) 0 V') a.. 0 ¢ QJ bOC ro ..lo<: .... 6 5 C al ¢- Q) V, >(.!) > I- 0 al +-' ro ro ro u C u "'Cl3 0 ::::, ro C >5 .... Ill +-' 2 E u (.!)
Q) V, ro Q) <( 0 0 ii: ·c

_Vl +-' 55 C a. ro > u ro ro 0 • ..c C
V') a:: QJc Q) Q) Q) ..c 3 ..c +-' V, ..lo<: +-' ..cro - ::::, ro E Q) c ..c r "'C Q) .e E - +-' C .2 0 3 u Q) E 0 >V, 0 Q) "'C C +-' X ::::,..c 0 .... ro 0 V, 0 +-' 3 3 C ·o 0 0 ro 0 ..c 0 0 roro .... ·c ro ::::, > 2 +-'u u u u (.!) ::c ::c ::c .... :.:::i 0 a:: a:: I- a:: a::- - ...J ...J a.. a.. a.. V')

t D ,..._ 00 N CV') LO DO 00 0 t LO 00 0 CV') st LO \0 (J) 0 rl N CV') t LO D 0)
N N N N t st t t ¢ t LO LO LO LO DO DO DO DO \0 p p. p. p p ,..._ p ,..._
00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 (J) 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

al co c al al c r al al al al al al al al al c c al al al al al al c al c0
...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J
al al 0 c al al al 0 al al al al al al al al al al c co al al c al co c0 c



"Oa::
Q)

VI
C..... > :;::;V') <( L.

VI ..... cu ro
VI V'l >'3 X..c Q) .....
V') ..... L. V')

z N. o z(J
$0 V'l 00

cY') Lt) rl rl
t 0 0 cY')
rl o:::t 0) rl
rl 00 I..O rl ....

QJ
QJco
oil
5
:::,
C"

r ..:::;
L. cou Q)

1/l ..c
C 1/)

3 ro 0 tlO
1/)

ro u Ill

0::: N ro Q) o
ro -, $ II- ...J ... coro Q) ....J..... C1l v2 co

1/l ... ±- C w'>- - C
L. E C C C:
.c ... Q)

Q) 5u UJ -, 0 u
1/)
1/)
Ill
G
oil....
QJ
QJ
co
co
1/)
1/)
Ill
U
II

..c uco
3 Cl.I co

u U 1/)
C: cii___, u u Cl.I___, ...J > ___, u Cl.I

...J ... ___, ..:::; co
..0 ..... LU co3 C1l C c >L. ... :J 1/)- a: 1/)

D E 0 C LU Illu - Ill U0d L. VI LU IIUJ > C a: co
..0 6d ro ·,.:; 1/) co
:J > L. Cl.I ....-....
0.. c ro ro Ill Cl.I
u 0 ..l<: ~ u Cl.I..... u 5 co
0d ;:: 3 +i .!:: oil
0:::  I- u * 5

:::,
C"
..:::;
<(
1/)
1/)
Ill
5
IIco

....J
<(

- ..c c ....-- C Cl.I·;::  - Cl.I
(.!J 0 VI co..... <(
6d C C> ·,.:; 1/)ro L. 1/)

..0 ... ..... L. Ill
:J ::, C ro 0o
0.. C1l -3 5 II..... 0 co..... 1/l u ..... <(
Q) Q) n
Q) a:: > VIL. C1l -......... C1l 3V') C Q)
1/l ro C1l c
1/l u ..l<: tlO
'3 1/l u Q)

0 :J $V'l I- I-

.--f rr, t 0)
00 00 00 00
00 00 00 00
0 0 0 0
I I I I
N ([ (] (]
N (] (J N

co cc cc cc___, ...J ...J ___,
co cc cc cc



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

DG
Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
10/18/2022

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated September 30th and October 2, 2022 through October 13, 2022, Nos 189685 through
Nos 189845 mn the amount of$ 2,614,998 70 Also included in this listing are EFT's Nos 5111 through EFT Nos
5121, EFT Nos 319(S) through 320(S), Library vouchers totaling$ 2,241 50 and Water Utility vouchers totaling
$18,099 05

Included mn thus lstg is payment to Knight Barry Title Inc mn the amount of $ 1,507,651 26 for landpurchase which
was approved at the Council meetmg on October 4, 2022

Early release disbursements dated September 30, 2022 through October 12, 2022 in the amount of$ 2,002,420 62
are provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement listing These payments have
been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834

There were no property tax distributions

The net payroll dated October 7, 2022 1s $ 429,507 59, previously estimated at$ 426,000 Payroll deductions
dated October 7, 2022 are$ 234,748 23, previously estimated at$ 245,000

The estimated payroll for October 21, 2022 1s $ 445,000 wth estimated deductions and matching payments of
$470,000

Approval to release payment to The State ofWisconsin for the Environmental Improvement Fund interest payment in
the amount of$ 167,841 44 on October 27, 2022

Approval to release payment to Crossroads Pizza for lunch for the Health and Wellness Fair m the amount of
$ 229 25

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of October 13, 2022 in the amount of$ 2,614,998 70 and

• Payroll dated October 7, 2022 in the amount of$ 429,507 59 and payments of the various payroll deductions 1n
the amount of$ 234,748 23, plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated October 21, 2022 mn the amount of$ 445,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions mn the amount of$ 470,000, plus City matching payments and

• Approval to release payment to The State of Wisconsin in the amount of$ 167,841 44 and

• Approval to release payment to Crossroads Pizza in the amount of$ 229 25

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept - KM


